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Disclaimer

We have exercised utmost care in the preparation of this report. It contains forecasts and/or information relating to forecasts. Forecasts are
based on facts, expectations, and/or past figures. As with all forward looking statements, forecasts are connected with known and unknown
uncertainties, which may mean the actual result deviate significantly from the forecast. Forecasts prepared by the third parties, or data or
evaluations used by third parties and mentioned in this communication, may be inappropriate, incomplete, or falsified. We cannot assess
whether information in this report has been taken from third parties, or these provide the basis of our own evaluations, such use is made
known in this report. As a result of the above mentioned circumstances, we can provide no warranty regarding the correctness, completeness,
and upto date nature of information taken, and declared as being taken, from third parties, as well as for forward looking statements,
irrespective of whether these derive from third parties or ourselves. Readers should keep this in mind. We undertake no obligation to publicly
update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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Adani Enterprises
Limited 1s India’s largest
and most successtul
listed business incubator.

The Company 1s adding
large companies to

1ts portfolio with the
objective to address the
needs of a growing India.

This portfolio of
maturing and nascent
pbusinesses 1s expected
to enhance value

for stakeholders in a
sustainable way.
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CORPORATE SNAPSHOT

Adani Enterprises Limited
1S a dynamic proxy of a modern
India.

The Company represents an
effective complement of established
and developing businesses.

These businesses address the
prospective needs of a rapidly
transtorming nation.

The Company has emerged as

a specialised incubator of— how
businesses are conceived, invested,
matured and demerged. “’

This incubation competence has
been validated by the Company
emerging as a distinctive wealth
creator in its own right and through
1ts demerged companies.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Vision
To be a world class leader in businesses that

enrich lives and contribute to nations in building
infrastructure through sustainable value creation.

Our business

Adani Enterprises Limited
(AEL), the flagship company
of the Adani Group, is one
of India’s largest business
organisations.

AEL has enhanced value
for stakeholders by building
prominent infrastructure
assets and widening its
presence across a range of
sectors directed towards
responsible nation-building.

Having built, matured and
listed successful unicorns
(Adani Transmission, Adani
Power, Adani Ports & SEZ,
Adani Green Energy, Adani
Total Gas and Adani Wilmar),
the Company has contributed

Adani New Industries Ltd

Adani New Industries Ltd (ANIL)
was incorporated as a vehicle

to incubate, build and develop 3
large integrated platform that will
produce green energy through

an end-to-end supply and value
chain. The Company seeks to
capitalise on to the Government’s
announcements on National
Green Hydrogen Mission (NGHM)
for taking India to greener self-
sufficiency. Adani New Industries
will act as the holding company
for the end-to-end supply chain
of our new energy segment and
address India's energy security
needs.

Besides, AEL established India's
first and largest vertically
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to India's self-reliance.

AELls investments have

been directed towards

a new energy segment (green
hydrogen) and an end-to-end
supply chain for new energy,
materials like copper and
PVC, airport management,
roads, data center, solar
manufacturing, defence &
aerospace, edible oils and
foods, mining, integrated
resource solutions, integrated
agri-supply chain and water
infrastructure.

A 150 investment in Adani
Enterprises, the group's first
IPO in 1994, had grown to
more than 900,000 by the
close of FY 21-22.

integrated Solar Photovoltaic
Manufacturing and EPC
(Engineering Procurement and
Construction) business in the
Mundra Special Economic Zone
(SEZ). With a capacity ramp-up
from 1.5 GW to 3.5 GW for cell and
module lines to be completed in
the next financial year, Mundra
Solar PV Ltd has emerged as

the fastest growing rooftop and
distributed solar EPC company in
India. Solar manufacture will now
be anintegral part of ANIL.

Data Centres

As India's internet economy
continues to grow, thereis an
increasing need to build data
centres to ensure data storage.
AEL entered into a joint venture

with EdgeConnex to form
AdaniConnex and build data
centres across the country.

Water

India accounts for 17% of the
world’'s population with access
to only 4% of the world's fresh
water resources. AEL invested in
waste water treatment, recycling
and reuse projects under the
National Mission for Clean Ganga
Framework. The Group intends
to explore opportunities in the
desalination space.

Adani Airports

With a portfolio of eight airports
(including Mumbai and Navi
Mumbai airports), Adani Airports
handles ~20%+ passenger traffic
in India. With an impetus on non-
aero consumers, coupled with a
hub-and-spoke strategy, Adani
Airports looks to serve 200+
million consumers through airport
infrastructure.

Road, Metro and Rail

The Company develops national
highways, expressways, tunnels,
metro-rail and railways. Adani
Road Transport now comprises a
portfolio of 14 construction and
operation contracts of 5000+
lane km.

Adani Wilmar Limited

Adani Wilmar Limited (AWL) is
ajoint venture incorporated in
January 1999 between Adani
Group and Wilmar International
Limited, Singapore (Asia’s leading
agri business group). AWL was
seventh Adani Group company
to be listed on the bourses
following a successful initial



public offering (IPO) during the
year under review. Its business
activities include oil palm
cultivation, oilseed crushing,
edible oil refining, sugar milling
and refining, specialty fat,

oleo chemical, biodiesel cum
fertiliser manufacturing and
grain processing. It has over 850
manufacturing facilities and an
extensive distribution channel
covering China, India, Indonesia
and 30 other countries.

Mining services

The Company enjoys mining
service contracts for nine coal
blocks with a peak capacity
of 100+ million metric tonnes
per annum. The Company was
also contracted for two iron

ore mining projects with a peak
capacity of 16 million metric
tonnes per annum.

Integrated Resource
Management

Adani Enterprises Limited
(AEL) facilitates end-to-end
procurement and logistics
services. The Company is
engaged with prominent
customers across end-user
sectors. AELs presence across its
value chain (including logistics)
has made it one of the leading
revenue generators for Indian
Railways.

Agro Products

A wholly owned subsidiary of AEL,

Adani Agri Fresh Limited (AAFL)

Annual Report 2021-22

pioneered the establishment of
integrated storage, handling and
transportation infrastructure for
apples in Himachal Pradesh. The
Company markets Indian fruit
under the FARM-PIK brand. The
Company imports apples, pears,
kiwis, oranges, grapes and other
fruit for sale in India.

Defence & Aerospace

Adani Defence and Aerospace
is engaged in the defence &
aerospace segment with a
vision to transform India into a
destination for world-class high-
tech defence manufacturing.

Human capital

As of 31st March 2022, Adani
Enterprises Ltd. employed around
1155 individuals; 32% of these

employees comprised engineers,
Chartered Accountants and
other professionals. The average

age of employees was 38. The
employees were located at 32
locations.

Credit rating

The credit rating of Adani Enterprises Ltd. was upgraded by CARE during the year as under.

Domestic

Long-term facilities
Short-term facilities

Domestic rating/ outlook
| A+/ Stable
‘ A1+

Mining Services

Rating agency Facility

CARE ‘ Mining Business (ringfenced) — Long-term facilities

Domestic rating/ outlook
| A+ / Stable

AEL Corporate

Rating agency
BWR, Acuite

Facility

‘ Short-term facilities - Commercial Paper

Domestic rating/ outlook
Al+

Corporate Social Responsibility

Adani Foundation, the CSR arm of the Adani Group, is engaged in activities
across 16 States and 2,409 villages, touching more than 3.7 million lives.
The CSR programme provides quality education, health, safety, sanitisation,
sustainable livelihood development and infrastructure development to
underprivileged communities. The Foundation implemented four projects
(Saksham, Swachhagraha, SuPoshan and Udaan).
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STATUTORY REPORTS

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Key numbers
in FY 21-22

S

64.4

MMT, Volume of the IRM segment

&7

INROZ

MW, Solar module volumes
manufactured

S

N

MMT, Mining Services production
from 4 mines

&7

36.9

million consumers served across its
airports

S

100

Lane km constructed across 5 road
projects




Awards and recognition

CIl National Awards

Cll National Award

was conferred to AEL

in ‘Beyond the fence
category’ for excellence
in water management
for driving Project
Jeewan Amrit at Sarguja,
Chhattisgarh.

Annual Report 2021-22

ABCI Awards

Association of Business
Communicators of

India awarded AEL an
award for 'Excellence in
Communication Initiatives'
in December 2020; the
award is considered

the Oscar of the Indian
communications industry.

ICC Social Impact
Award

Adani Foundation was
awarded for 'Empowerment
of Women' initiatives at

the Indian Chamber of
Commerce Social Impact
Awards in March 2021.

Greentech Safety
Award

Adani Enterprises Limited
won the top honourin the
‘Environment protection’
category at Greentech
Safety & Environment
Awards in February 2021.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Our milestones

ooo.oooooocoo.oooooooco oooco.ooooooooo.oooooocoo.oo oo.oooooocoo.oooooocoo.ooooo ®00000000000000000000000000000000000000

) = Started commodity = Listed on BSE and = Commenced Mundra
g trading NSE @ %150/ share Port operations
E = Subscribed 25x
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: 010 2009 008
&

= = Raised QIP of USD = Adani Power Limited = Acquired Bunyu Mine,
v 850 million IPO subscribed 21x Indonesia

x .

= = Acquired the = Bonus issue 1:1

= . Carmichael Mine in

z Australia

& .

8 .

°e
.
""""" ooooooooooooooooocooooo co.oooooooco.ooooooooo. oooooooooooocooooooooo ®ecccccccccsccccccccccce

= Completed the = Started = Demerged Adani = Emerged #2
demerger of APSEZ, APL manufacturing Green Energy and Adani largest IRM
and ATL solar PV panels Gas playerin the

world
= Fortune emerged as

the largest food FMCG
brand in India
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= Announced a bonus = Commenced the IRM = Entered the city gas .'.. o
issue in a ratio of 1:1 business distribution business K §
= Signed a JV with : E

Wilmar, Singapore 2

= Announced a bonus £

issue of 1:1 =

4

2

E

S

el

2007 2005 :
= Launched the Adani = Announced a stock- = Awarded India’s first -
Ports and SEZ Limited split (10:1) MDO contract z
IPO subscribed 116x §
= Launched an FCCB g
issue of USD 250 million z
= Commissioned a 5

green silo depot (seven

Iocations)
= Forayed into the = Entered into a Data = Completed the
Airports business with a Center JV Adani Connex acquisition of Mumbai
portfolio of six airports with EdgeConnex to and Navi Mumbai
develop and operate airports
Data Centers across

= Launched Adani
Wilmar Limited IPO
which was subscribed
17%

India

on
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Our Board of Directors

8]

@ Mr. Gautam S Adani

Chairman

With more than 37 years of
business experience and
leadership, Adani Group
established itself as a

prominent and global integrated
infrastructure player with
interests across the transport and
logistics, energy and utility and
materials verticals. Mr. Adani's
success story is considered to be
remarkable: marked by ambitious
entrepreneurial vision, coupled
with energy and perseverance,
helping build a robust and modern
India.

O Mr. Rajesh S Adani
Managing Director

Since inception, he has been in
charge of Adani Group operations
and responsible for business

012

relationships. His personalised and
proactive approach coupled with
3 competitive spirit has catalysed
growth of the organisation.

® Mr. Pranav Adani

Director

An active member of Adani Group
since 1999, he has been involved
in initiating and building new
businesses across sectors. He
headed the joint venture with
the Wilmar Group of Singapore,
transforming it from a single
refinery edible oil business into

3 pan India foods company.

He also leads the oil and gas,

city gas distribution and agri
infrastructure businesses of the
Group. His understanding and
analysis has helped scale the
businesses. Mr. Pranav Adani was
felicitated with several awards,
Globoil Man of the Year Award

2009 being one of them.

O Mr. Vinay Prakash

Director

He is a Mechanical Engineer with
a rich experience of over 25 years
across the integrated resources
management, mining, shipping
and logistics and port and power
sectors. Since inception, he

has been involved in nurturing
the Company’s Integrated
Resources Management and
Mining businesses. The result

is that the AELs Indian mining
business was recognised among
the top 10 Great Places to Work
in India in 2020, winning several
awards at forums for commitment
to environment, community
engagement, sustainability, safety
and CSR. Mr. Prakash holds key
positions in various professional
bodies such as Chairman of



ASSOCHAM's National Council on
coal, Member of India - Indonesia
CEOs Forum, Chairman of the
Standing Committee on Coal

and Industry in FIMI. He has
been awarded at various global
platforms including the Global
Business Excellence Award in
coal sector at World Petrocoal
Congress 2017.

O Mr. Hemant M. Nerurkar
Independent and Non-Executive
Director

He is associated with several
professional organisations like
Tata Steel, Indian Institute of
Metals, INSDAG and AIMA,
amongst others. With over 35
years of experience in steel
industry, Mr. Nerurkar is an
executive with multi-faceted
experience ranging from project
execution, manufacturing,

quality control, supply chain and
marketing. During his illustrious
career, Mr. Nerurkar has been
felicitated with several prestigious
awards such as the Tata Gold
Medal 2004, SMS Demag
Excellence Award 2002, Steel 80's
Award - 1990, SAIL Gold Medal -
1989, Visveswaraya Award — 1988
and NMD Award 1987.

O Mr. V. Subramanian
Independent and Non-Executive
Director

He joined the Indian
Administrative Service in 1971
(West Bengal Cadre) and occupied
various senior positions in the
Government of India and the
Government of West Bengal
during his career of 37 years.

Mr. Subramanian was the
Secretary to the Government of
India with the Ministry of New

and Renewable Energy (MNRE)
where he pioneered important
initiatives for the reform and
development of the renewable
energy sector, including the
introduction of the feed-in tariff
concept. As Additional Secretary
and Financial Adviser, Ministries
of Civil Aviation, Tourism and
Culture, he was on the boards of
Air India, Indian Airlines, Airports
Authority of India, Helicopter
Corporation of India and India
Tourism Development Corporation.
Later, as Financial Adviser,
Ministry of Rural Development,

he implemented National Rural
Development plans including

the National Rural Employment
Guarantee Scheme. Presently, he
is a freelance consultant. He was
the Business Development Adviser
to the Council for Industrial and
Scientific Research at New Delhi
for a year after his retirement. He
was the Chairman of the Research
Council of the Indian Institute of
Petroleum in an honorary capacity
for three years. He headed the
Indian Wind Energy Association

as Secretary General and later

as Chairman from 2008 to 2018.
Presently, he is on the Advisory
Board of India Energy Exchange.

@ Mrs. Vijaylaxmi Joshi
Independent and Non-Executive
Director

A 1980 batch IAS officer of the
Gujarat cadre, Mrs. Vijaylaxmi
Joshi had served in diverse posts
in the State and in the Centre.
She had been Joint and Additional
secretary in the Commerce
Ministry between 2011 to 2014,
She took over as Secretary,
Ministry of Panchayati Raj on

1st May 2014. She had been

Annual Report 2021-22

appointed as Officer on Special
Duty in the Ministry of Drinking
Water and Sanitation. She headed
the Swachh Bharat Abhiyan,

the Clean India Programme

under State level; she is deputed
Managing Director of government
companies like Gujarat Mineral
Development Corporation Ltd.

® Mr. Narendra Mairpady
Independent and Non-Executive
Director

An esteemed banking professional
with more than 40 years of
knowledge, experience and
exposure, he is a Certified Member
of the Indian Institute of Bankers
(CAIIB). He started his career as
officer trainee with Corporation
Bank. He was appointed Chairman
and Managing Director of Indian
Overseas Bank in 2010 and retired
as Chairman-Managing Director
in 2014. During his long career in
the banking industry, he achieved
critical parameters like team
building, brand enhancement,
priority sector lending initiatives,
branch expansions and risk
management. Mr. Narendra

has been felicitated with
prestigious awards for exceptional
contribution to the banking
industry. He has been a member
in RBI's Technical Advisory
Committee on Money, Forex and
Government Securities Markets.
He held esteemed councils and
committees with Indian Banks
Association (IBA) and is chairman
of ASSOCHAM National Council
for Banking and Finance.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Adani Enterprises.
A snapshot of our
FY 21-22 performance

IRM volume stood at 64.4 MMT in
FY 21-22 compared to 63.4 MMT
in FY 20-21

Mining services volumes
increased 58% to 27.7 MMT in FY
21-22

Solar module volumes stood at
1104 MW in FY 21-22 (1158 MW in
FY 20-21).

Completed the acquisition of:

= Mumbai and Navi Mumbai
airports

= Jaipur, Guwahati and
Thiruvananthapuram Airports

Completed the Initial Public
Offering and listed the equity
shares of the joint venture Adani
Wilmar on the Indian stock
exchanges.

In the Roads business, won 3
large 317,100 crore project for
the construction & maintenance
of three greenfield Ganga
Expressway projects of a total
464 km in Uttar Pradesh.

Announced foray into a new
green energy value chain under
Adani New Industries for the
production of hydrogen at the
lowest cost.

The revised Board Charter implemented and established new Board
committees, including a Corporate Responsibility Committee, to provide

assurance for all ESG commitments.

Financials

Consolidated EBITDA grew 45%
to 34,726 crore largely due to the
acquisition of the Mumbai Airport
and improved margins in the IRM
business.

IRM revenues increased ~2x with

a corresponding rise in EBITDA to

31,842 crore following improved
realisations.

The Airports business generated
3 healthy 31,091 crore EBITDA
during the year following the
acquisition of the Mumbai
Airport.
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Adani Enterprises.

Our key consolidated
financials, FY 21-22

Revenues

(R crore)
o "
N <
3 X
S R

Fy 21 Fy 22

Higher commodity
realisations-led
growth in the IRM
segment and overall
revenue growth

EBITDA

(R crore)

o)}

3,25
4,726

FY 21 Fy 22

Increase in IRM due to
better margins and in
the Airports business
due to the MIAL
acquisition

Annual Report 2021-22

Attributable PAT Net Worth
(Z crore) (R crore)
o ~ o ©
& N & Y
© O
- [qV]
FY 21 FY 22 FY 21 FY 22
Attributable PAT Net Worth

Decrease due to a
higher finance cost
and depreciation
in developing new
businesses

Increase in net
worth following the
acquisition of MIAL
and the listing of
Adani Wilmar
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Adani Enterprises Limited

How our businesses
performed in FY 21-22

Solar manufacturing 1

= \/olumes stood at 1104 MW as against
1158 MW in the previous year; revenues were
lower at 32,558 crore against 32,972 crore
due to a reduction in EPC volume; EBITDA
stood at 379 crore versus 3828 crore in the
previous year due to increased input costs.

=

=

e

O

ES

=

" Data Centres business

&

é§ = Adani Enterprises partnered EdgeConneX
& (50-50 joint venture) to develop 1 GW data

g centre capacity over this coming decade

o

= = Construction of Chennai 17 MW facility is
<

(%2}

nearing completion

= Land acquisition at Noida and Vizag were
completed

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Water management 1

= Received LoA for the
Bhagalpur Waste Water

HAM project in Bihar with
45 MLD capacity.
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r Airport infrastructure

= Adani Airports handled 36.9 million
passengers, 320,000+ air traffic movements
and 6.65 lakh MT cargo across seven
operational airports
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Roads and highway construction business 1

= Concession agreement was signed for the 464
km Ganga Expressway project in Uttar Pradesh
under the BOT model for 217,100 crore

S140d3d AJOLNLVLS

= Received LoA for 67 km Kagal Satara project,
Maharashtra, under the BOT model

= Completed the construction of ~100 lane km
during the year

SIN3IWILVLS TVIONVNIH

Packaged and branded edible oils

= Adani Wilmar (50:50 joint venture and
consolidated based on equity method of
consolidation revenues) increased revenues
46% from 37,090 crore in FY 20-21 to
354,214 crore in FY 21-22

= Fortune brand continued to lead the
domestic retail consumer pack market with a
20%+ market share
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Mining = Production of 27.7 MMT = Dispatched increased 67.7%

- ielures inereesed 589 included 15.0 MMT from PEKB, to 25.2 MMT, including 12.3

27.7 MMT; revenues increased 3.3 MMT fr.om GPIIl, 6.4 MMT MMT from PEKB, 3.5 l\/\l\/\T from

15% to 22,360 crore: EBITDA from Talabira a'nd B.Q MMT GPIIl, 6.4 MMT from Talab|rav

stood at #1,075 crore. from the Kurmitar mine. aqd 3.0 MMT from the Kurmitar
mine.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUTORY REPORTS

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Integrated resource 1

management

= \/olumes were 64.4 MMT
(63.4 MMT in FY 20-21)

= Revenues stood at 349,263
crore as against 324,280
crore due to improved
realisations

= EBITDA increased ~2x to
31,842 crore in line with an
increase in revenues and
margins growth.
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Agro products
= Adani Agri Fresh managed sales and procurement functions with a positive trading arbitrage.

= The Company coordinated the entire logistics of apple movement across the country without transit
delays or increased costs.
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Defence sector 1

= The Company bagged contracts
for over 1,000 crore from the Indian
Armed Forces, including the first
ever Small Arms Contract awarded
to a private sector manufacturer of
small arms.

= The Company was awarded the
first ever DcPP program for Long
Range Guided Bombs for the Indian
Air Force.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

How we have grown operations

over the years
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Definition

Sales growth, which indicates
the growing competitiveness
of the Company

Why we measure

This measure reflects the
result of our capacity to
understand sectorial trends
and service customers with
corresponding products,
services, technologies and
supply chain

Performance
Aggregate sales increased
following recovery from
the pandemic in FY 21-
22, coupled with higher
commodity realisations
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EBITDA Net Profit to Net Worth Interest cover
owners (excluding Non Controlling
(Before Exceptional Item) Interests)
(R crore) (R crore) (Zcrore) (x)
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Definition Definition Definition Definition

What the Company earned
before the deduction of
interest, depreciation,
extraordinary items and tax.

Why we measure

This measure is an index of
the Company's operating
profitability (as distinct
from financial), which can
be easily compared with the
retrospective average and
sectoral peers

Performance

Over the years, the Company
sustained operating
performance growth
measured in EBITDA terms.
In FY 21-22, there was strong
growth from established and
developing businesses

What the Company makes
available to its equity
shareholders, excluding one
off items

Why we measure
This essentially indicates
profits finally accruing to
equity shareholders

Performance

As the Company incubated
new businesses of Airports,
Roads and Others, its profit
declined in FY 21-22 due to
higher finance costs and
depreciation in infra-heavy
businesses

This is derived through the
accretion of shareholder
funds

Why we measure

This is one of the defining
measures of a company’s
financial health, especially in
terms of the funds owned by
shareholders in the business.

Performance

The Company’s net worth
increased every single year
during the last few years,
indicating a stronger financial
foundation

This is derived through the
division of EBITDA by interest
outflow

Why we measure
Interest cover indicates

the Company's comfort in
servicing interest, the highest
the interest over the better

Performance

As the Company invested
deeperin new businesses like
Airports, Roads and Others
and incurred higher finance
costs, its interest cover
moderated to 1.9 in FY 21-22

021

o
(@)
P,
o
(@]
Py
>
e
m
(@]
<
m
P
m
=

S140d3d AJOLNLVLS

SLIN3W3LVLS TVIONVYNIL



Adani Enterprises Limited

SINIWILVLS TVIONVNIH

S140d3d AJOLNLVLS

M3ING3NO FLvH0dd00

022



Annual Report 2021-22

Part two

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

The Adana
Group

STATUTORY REPORTS

platform

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ADANI GROUP PROFILE

The multi-business Adani Group
1S one of the most dynamic
industrial conglomerates in India.

Courage
Values 'J; We shall embrace new ideas and

business

Engaged in nation building

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Vision
To be aworld class

leader in businesses
that enrich lives and

STATUTORY REPORTS

contribute to nations in
building infrastructure
through sustainable
value creation.
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Enhancing stakeholder value
We shall believe in our employees and other

stakeholders

Trust

&

Enriching communities of its presence

Commitment
% We shall stand by our promises and
adhere to high standards of business
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Culture
Results Dedication
Consistently Working with
Passion achieving goals Integration commitment in Entrepreneurship

Performing with
enthusiasm and
energy

Working across
functions and
businesses to

create synergies

the pursuit of
our aims

Seizing new
opportunities
with initiatives
and ownership

The promoter

The Adani Group has been
promoted by the visionary
industrialist Mr. Gautam Adani.
The Group was founded by Mr.
Gautam Adani in 1988 as a
commodity trading business, the
flagship company being Adani
Enterprises Limited (previously
Adani Exports Limited).

The Adani Group

Headquartered in Ahmedabad,
India, Adani Group comprises

the largest and fastest-growing
portfolio of diversified businesses
in India with interests in Logistics
(seaports, airports, logistics,
shipping and rail), Resources,
Power Generation, Transmission
& Distribution, Renewable
Energy, Gas & Infrastructure,
Agro (commodities, edible oil,
food products, cold storage and
grain silos), Real Estate, Public
Transport Infrastructure, Defence
& Aerospace, Mining Services,
Copper, Petrochemicals, Data
Centre and other sectors.

The scale

Most of the Group's businesses
are among the largest in India,
generating attractive economies
of scale. Adani Green Energy
Limited is among the largest
renewable energy businesses in
India. Adani Total Gas Limited is
the largest city gas distribution
business in India. Adani Ports &
Special Economic Zone Limited
is the largest private sector port
operator in India. Adani Wilmar

is the largest edible oils brand in
India. Adani Transmission Limited
is the largest private sector
transmission and distribution
company in India. Adani Power
Limited is the largest private
sector thermal power producer in
India.

The visibility

The Adani Group comprises seven
publicly traded companies with
market capitalisation of USD 206
billion as of 29" April 2022.

The positioning

The Adani Group has positioned
itself as a leader in the transport
logistics and energy utility
portfolio businesses in India. The
Group has focused on sizable
infrastructure development

in India with operations and
maintenance (O&M) practices
benchmarked to global standards.

The core philosophy

The Adani Group's core
philosophy is ‘Nation Building’,
driven by ‘Growth with Goodness/,
its beacon for sustainable
growth. The Adani Group is
committed to widen its ESG
footprint with an emphasis on
climate protection and increasing
community outreach through
CSR programmes woven around
sustainability, diversity and
shared values.

The credibility

The Adani Group comprises four
|G-rated businesses and is the
only Infrastructure Investment
Grade bond issuer from India.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Adani: A world class
infrastructure & utility portfolio

adani

[«— Infrastructure and utility portfolio

g Incubator Energy Transport Direct to Other

% & Utility & Logistics Consumer Businesses

5 (74.9%) (61.3%) (74.92%) (65%) (100%,) (44%)

<

= AEL AGEL ATL APSEZ NQXT AWL

Renewables TéD Ports & Food FMCG

" Logistics

&

o

g (37.4%) (75.0%)

@

2 ATGL APL

= Gas Discom IPP

)

§ (100%) (50%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)

o

% ANIL AdaniConneX AAHL ARTL ADL Other

w New Industries Data Centre Airports Roads Digital specialty

< L > -

z businesses

& (Defence,

s Mining services,

Copper and

Petrochemicals

(%): Promoter equity stake in Adani Portfolio companies
(%): AEL equity stake in its subsidiaries
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Represents public traded listed verticals

~USD 206 billion combined market capitalisation

A multi-decade story of high growth and de-risked cash flow generation
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Marked shift from B2B to B2C businesses

ATGL: Gas distribution
network to serve key

AEML.: Electricity
distribution network that
powers the financial capital
of India

Locked in Growth

Transport & logistics: Airports and Roads

Adani Airports: Operates,
manages and develops
eight airports in the country

geographies across India

Energy & Utility: Water and Data Centre

Opportunity identification, development and beneficiation are intrinsic

to Adani Group's diversification and growth

0
=
APSEZ: NQXT: North ATMSPL: AAHL: Adani ATL / APL g
Adani Queensland Adani Airports / AGEL %
Ports Export Tracks Holdings Ltd. / ATGL: E
and Special Terminal Management Adani %
Economic Services Pvt. Transmission / o
Zone Limited Ltd. (Formerly, Power / Green .
Sarguja Rail Energy / Total z
Corridor Pvt. Gas Ltd. 8
Ltd.) z
%
AEML: Adani Adani Water IPP: E
Electricity Ltd. Independent @
Mumbai Ltd. ARTL: TED: Power
Adani Road Transmission Producer
Transport Ltd. and
Distribution

027

(@}
o
2
o
o
g
=
m
o
<
m
Pl
<
m
=




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUTORY REPORTS

2
@
>
o
w
>
(@)
w
<
o
o
a
o
o
(&)

Adani Enterprises Limited

Adani Group: Repeatable & proven
transformation investment model

. Phase Development Operations Post operations

Origination

= Analysis

& market
intelligence

= Viability analysis
= Strategic value

= |ndia's largest
commercial port
(at Mundra)

= Highest margin
among peers

(]
O
cC
(0]
=
o
o
4=
o
Q
(a
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= Sjte acquisition
= Concessions

and regulatory
agreements

= |nvestment case
development

= Completed

one of India's
longest intra-state
transmission lines of
897 ckm (Ghatampur
Transmission Ltd.)

= Highest line
availability

= Engineering &
design

= Sourcing & quality
levels

= Equity & debt
funding at project

= 648 MW ultra
mega solar power
plant (Kamuthi, Tamil
Nadu)

= Constructed and
commissioned in nine
months

= Life cycle O&MW
planning

= Technology
enabled OEM

= Energy Network
Operation Center
(ENOC)

= Centralised
continuous
monitoring of solar
and wind plants
across India on a
single cloud based
platform

Capital management

= Redesigning the capital
structure of assets

= QOperational phase funding
consistent with asset life

= First ever GMTN of USD 2
billion by an energy utility player
in India an SLB (Sustainability-
Linked Bond) in line with COP26
goals at AEML

= AGELs tied up ‘Diversified

Growth Capital’ with revolving
facility of USD 1.35 Billion fully
fund its entire project pipeline

= |ssuance of 20 and 10-year
dual tranche bond of USD 750
million making APSEZ the only
infrastructure company to do so

= Green bond issuance of USD
750 million established AGEL
as India's leading credit in the
renewable sector

Debt structure moving from
PSU banks to Bonds

B PSU banks

M Private banks

B DCM (Bonds)

H DIl

M Global International
Banks

B PSU-capex LC
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How Adani Group companies
performed in FY 21-22

EBIDTA growth T crore
APL APSEZ" ATL
30% = 227%™ 08% =
AGEL
45% w 467 w 09% =»
3,259 2,710 749
4,726 3,954 815

Strong growth in the consolidated EBITDA of the listed companies of the Group by 26% in FY 21-22
demonstrates the utility nature of the businesses

= APL EBITDA improved due to improved tariff realisation and higher prior period income recognition

= AGELs continued growth in EBITDA was supported by an increase in revenues and cost efficiencies brought in through analytics driven
oeMm

= ATL EBIDTA grew on account of higher revenues in transmission and distribution segments.

= APSEZ EBITDA growth was on account of an increase in cargo volume, operational efficiency and cost restructuring

= ATGL EBITDA grew due to increase in sales volume and coupled with an improvement in the operating margin and cost optimisation
= AEL EBITDA grew due to better margins in the IRM business and consolidation of the Mumbai Airport business

"APSEZ: EBITDA excludes one-time transaction cost of 60 crore in FY 21-22 and donation of ¥80 crore in FY 20-21. EBITDA excludes forex
gain/loss, other income

HFY 20-21 MFY21-22

PAT performance T crore
APL ATL
2877% w
AEL
1677% = 7%

= All portfolio companies registered profit after tax (PAT)

HFY20-21 MFY21-22
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Adani Enterprises Limited

The Adani Group's
platform of
foresight excellence,
outperformance
and leadership
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The Adani Group businesses

Annual Report 2021-22

L Direct-to- Metals &
Transport Logistics Energy )
consumer MEEELS

The Adani Group growth platform

Strategic big
picture

Betting on
India

Investing at a
Making competitive
outsized capital cost in
investments a relatively low
in futuristic commissioning
infrastructure time

Reinforcing
attractive
margins

Creating long-
term revenue
visibility

The platform

India

At the Adani Group, we believe in and bet on India. We have observed that following the announcement
of liberalisation in 1991, India has not just grown faster; it has compressed the GDP growth of the earlier
decades into considerably fewer years for equivalent growth. India is now expected to transition from a

sub-USD 3 Trillion economy to a USD 5 Trillion economy in the next few years.

At Adani Group, we proactively invested in businesses that will ride the middle-income consumption
engine seeking improved life quality. We have invested not on the basis of what is, but on what can be. By
making disproportionate investments, we intend to shift the needle not just for the Company but for the
country as a whole - with the objective of extending access, reducing costs, widening the market and, in

doing so, helping strengthen India.

Competitive advantage

At the Adani Group, we believe
that the ability to make a
significant national contribution
can only be derived from

a broadbased competitive
advantage that is not dependent
on any one factor but is the result
of an overarching culture of
excellence — the coming together
of adjacent business presence,
rich sectorial experience, timely
project implementation, ability to
commission projects faster than
the sectorial curve, competence
to do so at a cost lower than the
industry average, foresight to not
merely service the market but

to grow it, establish a decisive
sustainable leadership and evolve
the Company’s position into a
generic name within the sector of
its presence.

Relatively non-mature
spaces

At the Adani Group, we have
selected to enter businesses that

may be considered ‘maturely non-
mature’. Some of the businesses
can be classified as mature,
based on the enduring industry
presence and the conventional
interpretation of their market
potential; these very businesses
can be considered non-mature
by the virtue of their vast
addressable market potential

and the superior Adani Group
value proposition. The result is
that the Adani Group addresses
sectorial spaces not on the basis
of existing market demand but on
the basis of prospective market
growth following the superior
Adani sectorial value proposition.

Outsized

The Adani Group has established
a respect for taking outsized

bets in select sectors and
businesses without compromising
Balance Sheet safety. The Group
establishes a large capacity
aspiration that sends out a
strong message of its long-term

direction. Its outsized initial
capacity establishes economies
of scale within a relatively
short time horizon that deters
prospective competition and
generates a substantial cost
leadership (fixed and variable)
across market cycles.

Technology

The Adani Group invests in the
best technology standards of

the day that could generate
precious additional basis points in
profitability and help more than
recover the additional cost (if at
all) paid within a short tenure.
This superior technology standard
evolves into the Company'’s
sustainable competitive
advantage, respect, talent
traction and profitability.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Execution excellence

The Adani Group has built a
distinctive specialisation in
project execution, one of the
most challenging segments in
India. The Group has established
benchmark credentials in
executing projects faster than
the sectorial average by drawing
from the multi-decade Adani pool
of managerial excellence across
a range of competencies. This
capability has resulted in quicker
revenue inflow, increased surplus
and competitive project cost per
unit of delivered output.

Scalable financial structure

The Adani Group has created

a robust financial foundation

of owned and borrowed funds
(the lowest cost by far for
infrastructure building companies
in India). This enhanced
credibility makes it possible for
the Adani Group to mobilise
resources from some of the
largest global lenders at among
the lowest costs. This approach
helps transform these marquee
institutions from mere lenders to
stable resource (fund or growth)
providers for the long-term.

Adani Group's outperformance

Ownership

The Adani Group comprises a high
promoter ownership, validating

a commitment and ownership in
projects.

Port cargo Renewable Transmission City gas
throughput growth capacity growth network growth distribution’ growth
(MMT) Gw) (ckm) (GAs® covered)
6% 4 26% f* 38% -3% 4 3% 29% 4 37%
o % %
& N 4
< N
i
.
Industry Adani Industry Adani Industry Adani Industry Adani
2021 1,246 MMT 247 MMT 2021 140 GW°® 14.8 GW* 2021 4,41,821 18336 2021 228 GAs 38 GAs
2022 1,319 MMT 312 MMT 2022 153 GW?® 20.4 GW°® 2022 4,56,716 18,795 2022 293 GAs 52 GAs

v

APSEZ

v v

AGEL ATL

v

ATGL

Highest margin among
peers global

EBITDA margin: 70%'"?
Next best peer margin: 55%

World's largest solar energy
developer

EBITDA margin: 91.8%"4
Among the industry's best

One of the highest network
availability among peers

EBITDA margin: 92%'3>

Next best peer margin: 88%

Transformative model driving scale, growth and free cash flows

India's largest private CGD
business

EBITDA margin: 25%'

Among the best in industry

Note: 1. Data for 2021-22; 2. Margin for ports business only, Excludes forex gains/losses; 3. EBITDA = PBT + Depreciation + Net Finance
Costs — Other Income; 4. EBITDA Margin represents EBITDA earned from power supply 5. Operating EBITDA margin of transmission business
only, does not include distribution business. 6. Contracted & awarded capacity 7. CGD - City Gas distribution 8. GAs - Geographical Areas

- Including JV | Industry data is from market intelligence 9. This includes 17GW of renewable capacity where PPA has been signed and the
capacity is under various stages of implementation and 29GW of capacity where PPA is yet to be signed’
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How Adani Group
companies performed in
a challenging FY 21-22

exchanges in 2021-22

Adani Total Gas Limited

Movement in the Adani listed portfolio on the stock

(share price in %)
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Adani Enterprises Limited

1247 w» 95% m»
961 1,031
2,150 2,015
Adani Transmission Limited Adani Power Limited
1617 =» 118% m»
908 85
Adani Green Adani Ports and Special
Energy Limited Economic Zone Limited
73% ™ 107 =
1,105 702
1,914.70 774

M 31st March 2021

M 31st March 2022

All Adani portfolio stocks generated a healthy growth.

Annual Report 2021-22

The Adani Group:
Establishing benchmarks

Largest
India's largest
commercial
port (Mundra)

India’s largest
private sector
ports company

India's largest
single location
private thermal
IPP (Mundra)

One of the
world's largest
ultra mega solar
power plant

of 648 MW at
Kamuthi (Tamil
Nadu)

Largest

Ports company
enjoying the
highest margin
among peers

One of the
highest
transmission
line availability
in India

Aiport infrastructure company

inIndia
Quickest Longest
The 648 MW Completed
solar power one of the
Kamuthi plant India's longest
commissioned intra-state
inonly nine transmission
months lines of
897 ckm
(Ghatampur

Transmission
Ltd.)

033

S140d3d AJOLNLVLS

SLIN3W3LVLS TVIONVYNIL



Adani Enterprises Limited

SINIWILVLS TVIONVNIH

S140d3d AJOLNLVLS

M3ING3NO FLvH0dd00

034



Annual Report 2021-22

Our leadership
management's
perspective of

OUl businesses
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Adani Enterprises Limited

CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

Optimism comes from
Resilience. Resilience
comes from Belief. Belief 1s

Optimism

0 say our world is in
| uncharted waters would
be an understatement.

The adverse impact of the mix
of the pandemic, armed conflict,
and climate change has exposed
the fragility of the global system.
The challenge of predicting
the increasing complexity of
this multidimensional crisis has
become evident to governments
across the world. Amplified
inflation, disrupted food supplies,
increased human displacement,
exposed healthcare machinery,
stalled education levels and
faltering job creation are all
signs of the damaging effects of
the crisis and are testing every
nation’s resilience.

036

Resilience is a characteristic
that makes it possible to bounce
back. It is the ability to withstand
unanticipated crises; to face
uncertainty with curiosity and
optimism. This capacity within
societies to rebound from
setbacks is increasingly difficult
to model or predict as the crisis
drivers become more complex
and intermingled. While there is
always room for debate, looking
back to the recent events, there
can be no denying that India
has emerged with more credit
for its handling of the Covid-19
crisis from a humanitarian and
economic perspective than most
developed economies. When it
comes to Russia, India has been

able to take a mature approach
to the ongoing conflict. And in
this complicated environment,
India has emerged as the

fastest growing major economy
when other major nations are
confronted with recessionary
trends. India has also been one of
the very few countries that has
accelerated its renewable energy
footprint despite the energy crisis
that has seen several countries
pause their pursuit of renewable
energy goals. The government
must be given credit for the way
it has played its role and managed
this all-round balancing act.
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Our belief in our past

defines our ability to
believe in our future,
translating into the
big bets that we make
in the present. Never
have we shied from
investing in India,
never have we slowed
our investments

and never have we
feared to enter any

uncharted territories
of adjacent sectors -
our resilience comes

from this unshakeable

belief and robust
confidence in

the aspirations of
our country and
countrymen.

45%

038

EBITDA growth of AELSs
incubator business

A culture of resilience

It is India's inherent resilience
that provides our nation with its
underlying optimism. My belief in
our nation has never been higher.
To use a cricketing analogy, we
are now playing in one of the
strongest home grounds and

on one of the firmest pitches
that has ever existed. This pitch
is expected to remain firm for
several decades.

Optimism comes from resilience.
Resilience comes from belief. And
belief is optimism. In our case, it
is this resilience, optimism and
belief that drives us forward. Our
belief in our past defines our
ability to believe in our future,
translating into the big bets
that we make in the present.
Never have we shied away from
investing in India, never have

we slowed our investments, and
never have we feared to enter
any uncharted territories in
adjacent sectors — our resilience
comes from this unshakeable
belief and robust confidence in
the aspirations of our country
and countrymen. The success of
the Adani Group is based on its
alignment with the India growth
story.

We have always strongly believed
in the policies announced by

the government, continued to
invest throughout all economic
cycles, watched for emerging
sectors critical for the country’s
growth, and entered new
sectors with confidence in our
learning and operating abilities
and more importantly, belief

in ourselves. We have grown
adjacency by adjacency without
getting hung up on conventional
business models. We have built
infrastructure envisioning a

far larger and greater India; a
confidence which has paid us
dividends.

During this journey of more than
25 years, we have faced our share
of crises, stumbled a few times
but have always got back on our
feet and emerged stronger and
with a greater belief in ourselves.
It is these experiences and belief
in ourselves that have given us
our resilience and our optimism
for a greater future. It is this
future that unfolded over the
period 2021-22. This was the year
when we announced ourselves to
the world.

Preparing to go ‘Green'’

The best evidence to showcase
our confidence and belief in the
future is our investment of $70
billion in facilitating India's green
transition. We are already one

of the world's largest developers
of solar power. Our strength in
renewables will empower us
enormously in the effort to make
green hydrogen the fuel of the
future. We are leading the race

to turn India from a country that
is an over-reliant importer of ail
and gas, into a country that might
one day become a net exporter

of clean energy - 3 ‘never-done
before’ transformation in a
stunningly short period of time - a
transformation which will help
reshape India's energy footprint in
an extraordinary way.



Our growth and
success have been
recognised around
the world. Foreign
governments are
approaching us

to work in their
geographies and
help build their
infrastructure. In
2022, we also laid the
foundation to seek
a broader expansion
beyond India's
boundaries.

200

billion, Group market
capitalisation

While we now hold a major global
renewable energy portfolio, we
have made remarkable progress
in several other industries. In

one stroke, we have become the
largest airport operator in India.
Around these airports that we
operate today, we are engaged

in the adjacent businesses of
building aerotropolises and
creating localised community-
based economic centres. We
have made entries in sectors
ranging from data centres, super
apps and industrial clouds, to
defence and aerospace, to metals
and materials — all aligned with

the Government's vision of an
Atmanirbhar Bharat.

We continue to grow as builders
of India's infrastructure, winning
some of the largest road
contracts in the nation and
growing our already substantial
market share in businesses such
3s ports, logistics, transmission
and distribution, city gas and
piped natural gas. Our successful
IPO of Adani Wilmar makes us
the largest FMCG company in
the country. And now, we are
the second largest cement
manufacturer in India as well.

Annual Report 2021-22

Our combined Group market
capitalization this year exceeded
USS 200 billion. We were able to
raise billions of dollars from the
international markets — a direct
validation of confidence in both
the India and the Adani growth
story. Our growth and success
have been recognised around the
world. Foreign governments are
now approaching us to work in
their geographies and help build
their infrastructure. In 2022, we
also laid the foundation to seek a
broader expansion beyond India’s
boundaries.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

A crucial piece of
this jigsaw will be

a better-trained,
better-educated
and technologically
nimble workforce
with a belief that

they can achieve
their aspirations and
improve their quality
of life. | have no doubt
we will see this unfold
over the next decade.

040

Robust results, soaring numbers

Our rising market capitalisation
has been supported by a robust
and sustained growth in our cash
flows. Our focus on operational
excellence and accretive capacity
addition delivered across our

portfolio an EBITDA growth of
26%. Portfolio EBITDA stood at
INR 42,623 crores. This growth
was diversified and was reflected
across all our businesses with the
results speaking for themselves:

Group Highlights

= Our utility portfolio grew 26%;

= Qur transport and logistics
portfolio grew by 19%;

= Qur FMCG portfolio grew by
34%; and

= Qurincubator business,
represented by AEL, grew by 45%.

The high growth of our incubator
AEL provides the Group with

3 reliable foundation for the
continued development of new
businesses for yet another big
decade. AELs unique business
model has no parallel and we
intend to leverage this further.

Segment Highlights

AGEL:

= AGEL added 1,940 MW
operational capacity in FY22
(Green field commissioning: 200
MW, Inorganic addition: 1,740
MW)

= AGELs Solar CUF improved by
130 bps YoY to 23.8% and wind
CUF improves by 400 bps YoY to
30.8% in FY22

ATL:

= Adani Transmission Limited
(ATL) added 1,519 circuit km to its
network, reaching 18,795 circuit
km, and sold a record 7,972 million
units during the year.

APSEZ:

= APSEZ cargo volume grew 26%
to 312 MM T in FY 22; the journey
from 200 MMT to 300 MMT in
cargo volume was achieved in the
record time of just three years.

= APSEZ also handled record
container volume of 8.2 million
TEUs, a growth of 14%

ATGL:

= Adani Total Gas Limited (ATGL)
added 117 CNG stations, 556
commercial, 154 Industrial and
85840 domestic customers,
achieving a combined volume of
697 MMSCM (CNG+PNG)

Strategic Highlights

= Adani Green Energy completed
the acquisition of Softbank’s 5.3
GW renewable energy portfolio

= AEL commenced operations of
its Bravus mine in Australia.

= AEL took over operations
of Guwahati, Jaipur and

Thiruvanthapuram airports and
completed the acquisition of
MIAL and NMIAL.

While we may look back and

feel content, it is now that we
are gathering real momentum.
What we have been able to build



in two decades is India's largest
integrated infrastructure business
based on a rapid extension into
adjacent businesses. This has
resulted in our transformation
into an integrated ‘platform of
platforms’ that combines energy
with logistics, moving us closer

to unprecedented access to the
Indian consumer. | today know
of no company that has this
business model and has potential
access to an unlimited B2B and
B2C market for the next several
decades.

The milestone year

It is here that | want to take a
moment to reflect on 2022 as

a year with special personal
meaning. It represents the

100th birth anniversary of my
inspiring father and role model
Shri Shantilal Adani, and my 60th
birthday. To mark this milestone,
the Adani family came together
and decided to contribute Rs.
60,000 crores towards charitable
activities related to healthcare,
education, and skill development,
focusing especially on rural India.
These three areas should be seen
holistically, rather than separately,
as they collectively form the

drivers for an equitable and
future-ready India. We have an
opportunity in India to decisively
lift tens of millions of people
permanently out of poverty.

We not only owe it to ourselves
but also to our country to do
everything we can to catalyse
this process. Our experience

in large project planning and
execution and the learnings
from the ongoing work done by
the Adani Foundation will help
us to uniquely accelerate and
implement these programmes in
the communities that need them
the most.

The road ahead

Getting back to the theme of
optimism as a driving force

for a society, Martin Seligman,
often referred to as the ‘father
of positive psychology’, wrote
in the Harvard Business Review
that he came to his insights
into the power of optimism ‘the
long, hard way, through many
years of research on failure

and helplessness.’ Essentially,
he discovered over several
years of studies, that resilient
people develop the courage

of interpreting setbacks as
temporary, local, and changeable.
A quote attributed to Winston
Churchill echoes Seligman’s
findings on resilience. "Success

is not final,” Churchill is supposed
to have said, "failure is not fatal:
it is the courage to continue that
counts.”

The reason | am inspired by
these quotes is because | am an
incurable optimist. | have always
believed India is one the greatest
countries for an entrepreneur to

learn, develop and flourish. Today,

| see a real drive in the young
Indians to reclaim our economic

stature and gain back our position

as a pivotal force in global
affairs. Undoubtedly, the largest
middle class that will ever exist,
augmented by an increase in
the working age and consuming

Annual Report 2021-22
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Portfolio EBITDA growth,
FY 21-22

42 6273

crore, portfolio EBITDA,
FY 21-22

population share, will have an
enormously positive impact on
India’s economic growth — an
outcome of our much-vaunted
demographic dividend. A crucial
piece of this jigsaw will be a
better-trained, better-educated,
and technologically nimble
workforce armed with the belief
that they can achieve their
aspirations and improve their
quality of life. | have no doubt we
will see this unfold over the next
decade.

India, today, indeed is the world's
firmest pitch on which to bat.

Gautam Adani
Chairman
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Adani Enterprises Limited

MANAGING DIRECTOR'S MESSAGE

At AEL, we have
positioned ourselves
as a responsible
incubator today for
the businesses of

tomorrow.

A focused approach within the
Adani Group has resulted in AEL
emerging as the largest listed
incubator of futuristic businesses

that need patience and nurturing.

It has been our experience that
this responsible incubation has
helped our demerged companies
grow rapidly on listing, validating
the robustness of our incubation
process.

The year FY 21-22 proved
to be one of reckoning for
AELs incubation journey and

preparation for the decade ahead.

042

Despite challenges in the external
environment — pandemic, war,
rising freight and low container
availability, AEL reported
attractive growth in its existing
businesses on the one hand and
investments in new developing
businesses on the other.

The attractive growth was the
result of a prudent portfolio-
based approach. This approach
comprised various businesses
and we recognise that during a
given period, there will be some
businesses that may do well and

some that may not. However, the
complementarity of businesses
has been designed to generate
positive returns irrespective of
the state of the markets and
also adequate cash from some
businesses to feed the capital
appetite of the others. In this
manner, it has become possible
to grow all the businesses within
our desired overall risk and capital
appetites.

The highlight of the performance
of the Company during the

year under review was the
incorporation of 8 new subsidiary
Adani New Industries Limited.
This is one of the most exciting
developments at AEL as it will
address the generation of green
hydrogen, related downstream
products and the manufacturing
of wind turbines, batteries and
electrolysers. We believe that
these represent the businesses
of tomorrow, leading humankind
into a world that is cleaner and
‘greener’,

Adani New Industries will act as

3 holding company of an end-
to-end supply chain of frontier
energies and technologies

within AEL, addressing the

needs of India's long-term energy
security. We believe that this
business, when seen from a
limited perspective, is a proactive
instance of initiative in a new and
exciting sector; when seen from a
larger perspective, we believe that
initiatives like these can help shift
India's energy needle from imports
to captive generation that could
have downstream implications

on the country’s balance of
payments, currency strength and
competitiveness.

Coming to our operational
performance during the year,

the Company’s solar modules
manufacturing ecosystem, which



will be an integral part of Adani
New Industries, maintained a 1.1
GW volume despite headwinds of
rising input costs.

The data center business in
Chennai is slated for completion
in the first half of FY 22-23;

the Company completed land
acquisition in other states for
data center projects, creating a
foundation of multi-locational
growth within a compressed
period.

In the airports infrastructure
business, the Company completed
the acquisition of one of the
biggest airports in India, the
Mumbai airport, coupled with

the development rights of a
greenfield airport in Navi Mumbai.
The Company also took over the
airports of Jaipur, Guwahati and
Thiruvananthapuram during the
third quarter of FY 21-22.

Following these acquisitions,
Adani Airports now serves every
fifth passenger in the country. We
believe that this represents an
achievement of pride considering
that the Company ventured

into this business only in 2019
and has since achieved sizable
scale, despite passing through

an extended phase when air
passenger throughput was absent
or affected. We are optimistic
that our airports network,
structured around a hub-and-
spoke approach, will transform
the paradigm of the airports
business in India.

Our roads portfolio grew to
5000+ lane km through 14
projects across 10 States during
FY 21-22. The Company'’s business
was considerably strengthened
through a concession agreement
for the 464 km Ganga Expressway
Project in Uttar Pradesh, entailing
an investment of 171 billion.

We believe that the scale of this
project represents a validation

of the Company'’s ability to win
large contracts. The project win

graduates it to the high table
within the sector and should
translate into attractive returns
given the related economies.

The bids that had been won in the
past translated into projects and
some of them neared completion
— a successful demonstration of
competence across the entire
project lifecycle. The construction
of the road project at Bilaspur-
Pathrapalli neared completion;
the Company intends to complete
two or three projects in FY

22-23. The Company was also
awarded the Bhagalpur Waste
Water Project under the Hybrid
Annuity Model in Bihar (as a part
of the under our Water business
portfolio).

The Company's commitment
towards successful incubation
and subsequent independence
was validated during the year
under review. The Company
completed a successful Initial
Public Offering of its joint venture
Adani Wilmar Ltd on the Indian
capital market. The issue was
received enthusiastically by
investors with 17x subscription.
The success of the offering
validated confidence in the Adani
Group. The issue finished the year
under review with a 125% gain
over its offer price, a validation

of the Company’s commitment to
reward investors.

The Company also initiated

its digital journey following

the launch of Adani Digital
Labs, integrating all consumer
businesses around a single
platform. This platform is
expected to enhance synergies
across consumers of the Adani
Group portfolio companies. This
journey was reinforced with an
investment in digital and new-age
start-ups, including Cleartrip.

As far as the conventional

businesses were concerned, the
Company’s Parsa East and Kente
Basan (PEKB) mine, the first and

Annual Report 2021-22

only captive open cast coal mine
with washeries in the country,
continued to operate at a peak
capacity of 15 MMT per annum.
Apart from other operational
mines at Talabira Il & IIl, Gare
Pelma Ill and Kurmitar, the
Company also initiated operations
at its Suliyari coal mine with a
peak capacity of 5 MMT.

The sum of these performances is
that AEL reported a 75% increase
in consolidated Total Income
to%70,433 crore in FY 21-22;
consolidated EBIDTA increased
45% to 34,726 crore. A prudent
mix of established and developing
businesses will continue to deliver
strong numbers, protecting the
present and building investments
in the future.

It would be relevant to
communicate that the Company
continued to play the role of a
responsible corporate citizen
during the year under review.
During the initial months of FY
21-22, the Company leveraged

its sourcing and logistic abilities
to procure oxygen plants and
concentrators as a part of its
Covid relief initiatives for public
welfare. The Company continued
to make a positive impact in

the fields of education, health,
sustainable livelihoods generation
and community infrastructure
development through Adani
Foundation.

| must thank our stakeholders —
employees, lenders, shareholders,
government and society at

large - for their continued
support and license to operate,
which translated into smooth a
multi-business operation across
different regions.

Mr. Rajesh S Adani
Managing Director
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Adani Enterprises Limited

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER'S MESSAGE

Adani Enterprises
has been engaged

in the business of
shareholder value
creation for a quarter
of a century.

During the year under review,
the Company validated its
commitment to enhance
shareholder value following
patient investments and
incubation. The Company's
edible oils and food business,
carried out under Adani Wilmar
Limited, was listed on the stock
exchanges, generating a 125%
appreciation from its offer
price to its year closing price.
This incubation and listing

044

comprised the classic elements
of our incubation commitment:
the Company was nurtured for
more than two decades through
business-strengthening initiatives
that translated into the creation
of enduing brands and market
leadership. The result is that
Adani Wilmar is one of the fastest
growing large foods companies in
India and the undisputed leader
of the Indian edible oils market.

The success of the Adani Wilmar
IPO represents yet another
instance in a growing line of
post-listing successes of AEL-
incubated companies. At AEL, we
believe that the robustness of our
incubation is not only reflected

in the growth of that business
while it is being incubated; it is
also reflected following listing.
The result is that the listing of
Adani Ports, Adani Transmission,
Adani Green Energy and Adani
Total Gas delivered returns at

a consolidated CAGR of 37% to
shareholders, considerably higher
than the broad stock market
indices.

At AEL, our portfolio comprises
maturing and nascent businesses.
During the year under review,
AEL strengthened its incubation
pipeline through the addition of
the futuristic business of Adani
New Industries, while continuing
to strengthen its Airports, Roads
and Data Center businesses.

The last three business achieved
rapid scale within a compressed
period, considerably faster than
the sectors that they represent.
They service large addressable
markets and given adequate
support — strategic, financial and
managerial — these businesses
are expected to grow with

speed towards visible scale and
performance.

In a portfolio of businesses
influenced by diverse market
pulls and pressures, the
over-riding validation of our
strategic direction is our capital
management. At AEL, capital
management is our capacity to
feed cash flows from a business
for its own sustainable growth
while addressing the short-term
needs of other businesses. The
effectiveness of the capital



management plan was validated
by the Company'’s credit rating
during the year under review:
upgraded to A+ for long-term
debt and to A1+ (highest rating)
for short-term credit facilities
by CARE Ratings. We believe
that the ability to enhance
credit rating during one of the
most challenging phases in the
country’'s social and economic
existence is a testimony to the
Company's nation-led and future-
driven businesses.

Following 2022, in a post-Balance
Sheet date development, AEL
strengthened its net worth
through a primary preferential
equity issuance of USD 1

billion to International Holding
Company, Abu Dhabi. This fund
raising showcases confidence of
global marquee investors in the
country’'s long-term stability and
prospects in general, and AELs
business plan in particular.

AELs Consolidated Total Income
for FY 21-22 increased 75% to
370,433 crore, Consolidated
EBIDTA increased 45% to
34,726 crore and Consolidated
attributable PAT was 777 crore.
The Company's earnings per
share was ¥7.06 per share and
the Company proposed a final

The credible
feature of the
Company’s
operations was
that significant

investments in new
growth businesses
did not compromise
its financial
discipline.

dividend Re.1 per share for the
year.

Even as a number of AELs
businesses are still in the
developing phase, they have
begun to contribute to EBITDA.
The Company's Airports and
Roads business began to
generate a healthy EBITDA during
FY 21-22, validating the strength
of the AEL incubation story,
drawn from the scale and the
Adani Group synergy leading to a
short gestation towards maturity.
These relatively young businesses
contributed an EBITDA of 21,304
crore during FY 21-22 and should
grow attractively as our Airports
operations normalise following
increased passenger movement
starting the current financial
year and a ramp up in our Roads
portfolio.

The EBITDA from our established
businesses sustained their robust
momentum, increasing 13% to
33,664 crore, while attributable
PAT rose 74% to 32,038 crore.

One of the achievements of
the Company was the financial
closure for its greenfield Navi
Mumbai International Airport
project. The Company arranged
for the entire debt 0f 312,770
crore from State Bank of India,
taking Mumbai a step closer

to the launch of another
infrastructure landmark.

The credible feature of the
Company’s operations was

that significant investments

in new growth businesses did
not compromise its financial
discipline. The Company's debt-
to-equity ratio and interest
coverage ratio stood at 1.5x and
1.9x respectively, highlighting
sound capital management
practices.

Annual Report 2021-22

During the year under review,
the Company strengthened its
governance architecture and
assurance practices through the
creation of an Audit Committee
and Nomination & Remuneration
Committee (100% independent).
The Company also formed

a Corporate Responsibility
Committee comprising 100%
Independent Directors with

the objective to provide an ESG
roadmap and assurance to the
Board. AEL also overhauled its
Board-level review mechanism to
moderate risk.

The principal message that one
seeks to send out is that AEL is
poised to embark on an exciting
journey with investments in the
futuristic energy value chain,
airports, roads, data center

and materials like copper and
petrochemicals. We believe that
these businesses represent the
building blocks of the India of the
next 25 years leading to 2047 —
the first centenary of this nation
—and we are optimistic that as
these businesses grow, they will
enhance considerable value for
our shareholders as well.

Jugeshinder Singh
Chief Financial Officer
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Adani
Enterprises.
Incubating
for India
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Adani Enterprises Limited

India. Synonymous with
one word. ‘Opportunity’

India: Unprecedented scale of opportunity

Large base on which

to build for the
future

1

India is the
world’s fastest
growing major
country

India is the
world's seventh

largest services
economy

5

India accounts
for the world'’s
fifth highest flight
departures

048

India is the third
largest economy
by purchasing
power parity

1

India accounts for
the world's largest
number of railway
passengers

India's export
growth is the

second highest in
the world

] Capitalising in an
existing critical mass

India is the fifth
largest economy
at current
exchange rates

2 15

India is

the world’s
second largest
agricultural
country

3 12

India accounts for
the world's third
largest number of
electricity users

2

India has the
second largest
agriculture sector
in the world, by
dollar value

India accounts
for the world's
second highest
number of
mobile telephony
subscribers

Quicker economic .
growth with
moderate investment

India is the world’s
fifth largest
manufacturing
country

India accounts for
the world's third

highest number
of air passengers
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India: Speed of opportunity

To largeness, ]

This speed This This
India is of the past momentum momentum
bringing the represents an could could reduce or 8
prospect of speed NIRIMBEIELE accelerate eliminate poverty S
of change momentum national wealth in our lifetimes E
creation and 5
inclusion §
1 | 1 | 3
:
.
India is the second Increase in India’s India moved up from Indian industry is the =
fastest growing global ranking from 14th in 1996 to 3 in fifth largest in the g
consumer economy, up 17th in 1996 to second terms of air passengers world, up from 13th in 3
from the eighth in 1996 in terms of mobile 1996)
connections o
z
z
o
| 1 | 1 2
=
11to 5 14t07 12to7 410 27 .
India's manufacturing India is the seventh India's position has million, Growth in E
sector (largest part of largest services grown from the twelfth India's international @
industry) is 5th largest economy, up from 14th largest consumer departures from 1996
from 11th largest in in 1996 economy in 1996 to the to 2020
1996 seventh
O0to87 7 50t025" 12to0 4 h
% penetration in mobile Decline in the % of India’s domestic investment (gross capital
telephone penetration women marrying below formation) improved from 12th rank in 1996 to
from 1996 to 2020 18 years. fourth in 2020 (dollar value)

Source: Anand Rathi Share and Stock Brokers Limited
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You have seen the past. Now see what India's future may hold
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“We are approximately 10,000 days
away from 2050.

Over this period, I anticipate India
will add about USD 25 trillion to its
economy.

This translates to an addition of USD
2.5 billion to our GDP every day until
2050.

Over this period, I also anticipate India
will add about USD 40 trillion to its
stock market capitalisation.

This represents an addition of USD 4
billion to the market every day until
2050.

Over this period, India will have
eliminated all forms of poverty.

We have a real shot at making this
happen - in just 10,000 days.”

Gautam Adani,
Chairman, Adani Group



What does Bharat Par Nirbhar mean?

Annual Report 2021-22

A country focused
on self-reliance and
beyond

provider

A country positioned
as a global products

A country []
responding to

the China + 1

opportunity

4 reasons why Bharat Par Nirbhar is an idea whose time has arrived

#1

= |ndia's
demographic
dividend

= Youthful country;
economically

productive; potent
consumption driver

= |ndia's median age
across 1.6 billion
population to be just
38 years by 2050

= Greater
willingness to take
moderate leverage
and accelerate
consumption

= Long-term policies
to address India’s
health, education
and skilling gaps

#2

= |ndia's rapid
middle-class
expansion

= The largest middle-
income population in
the world

= Growing appetite
for cars, motorcycles,
televisions, air
conditioners,

mobile phones and
refrigerators

= Driven by private
consumption,
accounting for 70%
of India's growth
since 2000

= This could
graduate India into
the world's largest
consumer market

= Digitalisation will
transform India

= |ndia’s retail
payment system
is now a global
benchmark

= 99% Indians have
Aadhaar numbers

— linked to bank
accounts and mobile
phone numbers

(Jan Dhan-Aadhaar-
Mobile trinity)

= BHIM (Bharat
Interface for

Money) created

the interoperating
backbone to connect
all banks and
consumers

= |ndia's digital
transformation
opportunity could
enhance India's
nominal GDP by 100
to 200 basis points

#4
= |ndia is among
the world's largest

investors in
renewable energy

= |ndia's investment
in solar, wind and
green hydrogen
energy inspires
unprecedented
possibilities

= Decentralised
power could
accelerate the
micro-sizing of
‘everything’

= This could extend
rurally to micro-
manufacturing,
micro-agriculture,
micro-water, micro-
healthcare, micro-
banking and micro-
education

= Revolution in
alternative energy
technologies could
graduate into a
net green energy
exporter
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The big questio nd our answer

We are bemg

asked why Adani
Enterprises is investing
aggressively In a range
i Of new businesses

| like green hydrogen,

| petrochemicals,
alrports, roads, copper
and data center.
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Our answer:

Because India 1s rapidly
graduating from
Atmanirbhar Bharat to

Bharat Par Nirbhar.

053
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There are remarkable things
happening around us

The basis of AEL's Bharat Par Nirbhar story

Venture capital India accounts for India added about India delivered a |
g funding in India 60,000 start-ups one unicorn every record foreign direct
= crossed USD 1 billion in and 81 unicorns - the week in 2022 investment of USD 65
g 2015 and is expected third largest start-up billion in a pandemic
4 to touch USD 45 billion ecosystem in the world year
: this year
ES
z
. FDI is expected Core sector capital expenditure 1 Searches for loans Loans below 1
" to increase to - cement, metals, oil refining and grew the most in 325,000 have
g a record USD power (especially renewable) - tier-3 cities at 47%, grown 23 times
g 100 billion in FY could be about 35 trillion in 3 years, followed by tier-2 since 2017
% 22-23, making twice the capex in the previous (32%) and tier-4 (28%) (Source: TransUnion
g InQIa the world’s three years (Source: TransUnion CIBIL CIBIL and Google)
E th|r‘d _Iargest FDI (Source: Spark Capital) and Google)
recipient
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70% of fintech NBFC 1
disbursals are outside

Tier-1 cities; 78% customers
are millennials (25-45 years)

(Source: The Times of India,
11.06.21)

The National Infrastructure Pipeline

size at USD 1.5 trillion - nearly USD 300
billion a year - is even larger than what is
being undertaken in the US as part of that
country's infrastructure stimulus.

(Source: Business Standard, 27.11.21)
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India's foreign exchange
reserves crossed USD 600
billion for the first time in June
2021, almost tying with Russia
as the fourth largest reserve
holder in the world

(Source: The Times of India, 11.06.21)

India's Finance Minister launched

a four-year road map for a I6 lakh
crore asset monetisation plan in her
FY 21-22 Budget speech - 20 asset
classes across 12 ministries

(Source: The Times of India, 24.08.21)

200 by 2025-26
investment of 1

22.04.22)

India aims to increase 1
airports from 141 to

(Source: The Economic Times,

Around 87% of the Indian
households could have an

with an internet connection by 2025
trn and there could be a 21% rise in
the duration of internet access
through mobile since 2019.

(Source:The Economic Times, 23.04.22)




The Indian
government

will set up 75
digital banks
this year,
according to the
Indian Finance

The Indian software as a 1

service (Saa$S) industry
is set to clock in @ massive

USD 100 billion in revenues

by 2026. India is gearing
to supersede China as the
second largest SaaS nation

Annual Report 2021-22

Indian entrepreneurs are building bigger enterprises
faster — 50% of the 130 companies reached

unicorn status in the first five years after their initial
institutional fundraise. The public listing of 12 unicorns
is another indicator of the increasing maturity of the
Indian technology (tech) ecosystem. The total number
of unicorns from India more than doubled from 62 to

Minister. 130 in just 15 months.

(Source: The Economic Times, 20.04.22)

in the next few years.

(Source: Business
Standard, 20.04.22)

(Source: Business Standard,
20.04.22)

India’s tax collections 1
soared to a record
%27.07 lakh crore in

FY 21-22 compared
with the Budget
estimate of ¥22.17 lakh
crore.

The number of active 1
dematerialised accounts in

the country jumped 63% to 89.7
million in FY 21-22, underpinned
by factors such as an increase
in smartphone usage, and
attractive returns delivered by
the equity markets.

India surpassed the target set for asset
monetisation in FY 21-22, raising over
97,000 crore with roads, power, coal,
mining and minerals accounting for a
large chunk of the transactions. The
target for FY 21-22 was 388,000 crore
from asset monetisation. The Centre is
also confident of achieving the %1.67 lakh
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(Source: The Times of India,

(Source: Business Standard, 15.04.22) crore target set for the current fiscal year. 08.04.22)

(Source: The Times of India, 14.04.22) ‘ﬁ
c
. . . m - ] N g
ndia's exports witnessed 40% growth India’'s airports could In FY 21-22, India's equity Z
during FY 21-22, hitting a record USD see 33.81 crore market broke into the @
417.8 billion and surpassing the target set passengers in FY 22-23, world's top five club in terms 2
by the government by 5%. The country’s 69.35% more than of market capitalisation for @

USD 40 billion in exports in March 2022 FY 21-22. the first time, climbing two
was the highest in a single month. (Source: Business Standard, positions. %
(Source: Business Standard, 04.04.22) 29.03.22) (Source: Business Standard, 12.03.22) §
9
m o
India will launch a digital 1 The Indian digital economy of USD 85- India achieved the 1 =
currency in FY 22-23, joining a 90 billion in calendar year 2020 could highest ethanol é

see an exponential rise to USD 800 billion
by 2030 in the backdrop of increased
internet penetration, rising incomes and a
young Indian population.

(Source: The Telegraph, 16.02.22)

small group of countries (nine at
the moment) that possess their
own digital currency.

blending of 8.1% with
petrol in FY 21-22
(December-November)
supply year and is
committed to achieve a

(Source: Business Standard, 03.02.22)

blending target of 20%
by 2025.

|
Industrial capex, which comprised only a fourth of the1

overall annual average capex of about 12 trillion in
the past five fiscal years, is estimated to have grown at
more than 30% in FY 21-22, faster than the compound
annual growth rate of 6% between FY 15-16 and FY
19-20.

(Source: Mint 22.04.22)

India, the world’s
largest recipient
of remittances,
received USD 87
billion in 2021.

(Source: Business
Standard, 01.07.21)
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Adani Enterprises Limited

At Adani Enterprises, we
are preparing ourselves
for this new India.

We are investing today for tomorrow
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Our last annual report
was prefaced by the
word ‘Incubation’.

The theme of this year's report is ‘Incubating for India'".

As a concept, incubation Incubation is increasingly §
is becoming increasingly relevant due to the nature of §
relevant. variables, Black Swans and 3
The concept is nat anly competitive pressures. %
relevant for technology When businesses are small, §
companies; it is now they need to be protected S
accepted as critical for all and supported by existing
companies. businesses. g
Successful incubation can They need to be sustained %
make or break companies by a strong Balance Sheet, 3
within the first few years of managerial bandwidth, g
being launched. relationship networks and g
The sl b reusss institutionalised knowledge.
successfully can result in an They need to be spun off into %
extensive loss of national standalone status only when Z
resources. they achieve self-reliance. =
z
7

057



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUTORY REPORTS

2
@
>
o
w
>
(@)
w
<
o
o
a
o
o
(&)

Adani Enterprises Limited
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The most critical words
1IN our commitment to

Incubation:

'Of India,

by India and for India’

Overview

Adani Enterprises Limited is more than a company; it is a snapshot of the

world as it is likely to be in the future.

A world that will gravitate
towards food hygiene.

A world where companies will
need to build national internet
infrastructure.

Adani Enterprises has seeded
today's space with related
businesses that will be
increasingly relevant in tomorrow'’s
world.

The Company has brought to
these businesses a largeness of
vision, coupled with aggressive
business implementation and
patient capital.

These businesses represent more
than a commercial or arbitrage
proposition; they represent a
superior proxy of a better lifestyle,
cleaner world and better hygienic
proposition.

Most of these businesses
represent a showcase of how

A world that will seek to invest
in energy-efficient resources.

A world that will invest more
extensively in efficient and
convenient mass mobility.

humankind would want to live
across the foreseeable future.

The result is that these businesses
hold out a growing bias for
consumption today and tomorrow,
the basis of business continuity.

This assurance of being among the
first-movers in business today with
the prospect of a considerably
larger and more competitive
business tomorrow represents

the underlying optimism at Adani
Enterprises.

Marked by the prospect

of enhancing value for all
stakeholders associated with the
Company.
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Adani Enterprises is
India’'s most successful

Incubator.

The Company has built on competencies aggregated

across three decades

Adani Enterprises, in its capacity
of a focused incubator, is unlike
any listed company in India.

We have created an entire
company around the incubation
theme, which is unlike any listed
company in the country.

We have focused exclusively on
incubation for more than two and
a half decades in a rapidly growing
post-liberalisation India.

We combine the roles of venture
capitalist, private equity investor
and consultant.

We provide Adani Group with the
courage to venture into new and
uncharted areas.

We invest with the foresight that
our business will plug national
gaps a few years down the road.

We bring a responsible patience
to our commitment — 8s opposed
to being pressured into short-
term decisions by the debt on our
books.

We are incubating businesses with
the aspiration to create industry
leaders and sectorial transformers.

We leverage the power of deep
pockets, multi-year patience,
Group knowledge, visibility to
recruit talent and availability of
adequate capital.

We provide our incubating

companies the shock absorbers to
ride out challenging market cycles
and sectorial shakeout.

We have demonstrated the
courage to make outsized
investments at the outset,
transforming what would have
been a beginner's handicap into a
competitive advantage.

We have successfully reconciled
the soul of a start-up with the
competitiveness of a mature
organisation — a rare foundation
around which to build @ modern
business.

We have responded with a
portfolio approach - collection
of businesses — that enhances
business sustainability.

We grow our business through
strategic business units,
accountable to the Board of
Directors for their sustainable
growth.

We work with the objective to
create robust businesses that
strengthen profitability within our
system and enhance shareholder
when demerged.

We believe that our incubation
pedigree is measured and
appraised on how we enhance
value for all our stakeholders.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

In FY 21-22, Adani Enterprises
deepened its commitment to
incubate for India

The Company entered the green hydrogen, petrochemical, digital
and copper businesses
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Digital

Vision Scale

Digitalise Adani's consumer-facing portfolio to Connect with 120 million users through the
meet customer needs with improved customer super-app by 2025 and 400 million people
engagement, increased monetisation and a by 2030 through various Adani portfolio and
faster time-to-market. partner services

Rationale Focus

Create an integrated Adani platform to provide a Develop one Adani platform with quick support
seamless experience for 400+ million lives that from partners/concessionaires and onboard
Adani businesses touch across different verticals airport consumer business to begin Adani's

digital journey



Green hydrogen

Vision

To graduate India into the largest green
hydrogen hub in the world

Rationale

Green hydrogen is being increasingly viewed
as a critical medium for the decarbonisation of
energy, industry and mobility.

Petrochemicals

Vision

Leverage the Group's resources at Mundra to
build a state-of-the-art petrochemicals industry
to enhance PVC import substitution

Rationale

There will be a growing opportunity to consume
green fuels and moderate national carbon
footprint

Copper

Vision

To emerge as a globally admired copper business

Copper demand is expected to strengthen on
account of sustained urbanisation

Annual Report 2021-22

Scale

To emerge among the largest green hydrogen
producers in the world.

Focus

To invest with potential partners for electrolyser
manufacture and backward integration into
component manufacture to secure the supply
chain for the solar and wind generation
businesses, and artificial intelligence-based
utility and industrial cloud platforms.

Scale

The Company is planning to commission
refineries, petrochemicals complexes, specialty
chemicals units, hydrogen and related chemicals
plants in a petrochemical cluster in Mundra

Focus

Build and operationalise the first phase of the
PVC project by November 2024, leveraging
Group resources and the Mundra locational
advantage with a project size of 2 MMTPA

Scale

The Company (through its 100% subsidiary Kutch
Copper Limited) expects to emerge as the largest

single-location copper smelting complex in the
world by 2030.

Focus

The Company will manufacture copper and by-
products, precious metals (gold and silver) and
sulphuric acid, which can be partly converted
to phosphoric acid. The Company may explore
value-added downstream opportunities like
copper tubes.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

ADANI AND THE INDIA STORY

Adani Enterprises is invested
in a story called India

If India grows, Adani Enterprises grows faster

Economic growth

The GDP growth achieved by the
country in the first 60 years was
replicated and compressed in only
the next seven. We believe that
India will return to an aggressive
growth phase from the current
year onwards with the pandemic
behind it.

Demographic advantage

India is not just adding most
people to its population each
year; India's average age at 29 is
also younger than the comparable
average age in China (38) and
USA (38). This indicates that
India's youth will be economically
active far longer, a robust
foundation on which to build a
consumption-driven economy

Catch up

Our optimism is derived from

the reality that there are two
consumption curves transpiring
concurrently in India — one is the
catch-up curve where an under-
consumed India (across virtually
every product or commodity)
that is lower than the global
average plays catch-up in the
first phase. There is a second
curve where the per capita
consumption average is aligned
with the economic growth of
that year. When you put these
consumption drivers together you
get a sustainable consumption
appetite for the long-term, the
scale of which if which is perhaps
unmatched anywhere.
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Aspiration

The modern Indian is different
from his or her predecessor.

The modern Indian seeks to

live better, consume more, less
price-sensitive, open to buying
on credit, influenced by the
smartphone and more globally
exposed to trends than ever.

The result is that we foresee a
progressive decline in savings
and an increase in spending. Why
this is important is because this
is transpiring across the second
largest population spread of the
world, creating an unprecedented
economic transformation
opportunity.

Government policy

The principal driver of economic
change is top-down. The Indian
government has unleashed an
unprecedented complement

of economic reforms, providing
the country with a long-term
direction. The core of this
direction has been centred
around the concept of self-
reliance - Atmanirbhar Bharat -
that ensures that India produces
much of her needs within and
uses the critical mass to service
the needs of other countries.
Besides, the Indian government
announced the production-linked
incentive scheme, catalysing
capital expenditure across a
range of large industries. We are
optimistic that these policies will
give the country a decisive push
towards manufacturing-driven

growth, accelerating the creation
of jobs, incomes and prosperity.

Privatisation

The last two Union Budgets

have underscored the need for
the monetisation of national
economic assets through
responsible privatisation. A
significant privatisation that
occurred during the last financial
year was that of India’;s national
carrier Air India. We foresee this
trend extending to other assets
and sectors, attracting private
sector capital and enterprise that
could result in enhanced national
productivity. We also perceive the
government's monetisation plan
to be a decisive economic trigger.

India and Adani Enterprises

At Adani Enterprise, we believe
that we have a growing stake

in the emerging India story.

We are not just a collection of

a few businesses (as on 31st
March 2022), but we are also
the country's largest organised
listed business incubator that is
focused on building for India, by
India and in India.

The principal message that we
wish to communicate is that if
India grows quicker than it has
done in the past and higher than
the global economic growth, then
Adani Enterprises is likely to climb
into the next orbit.
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Adani Enterprises brings to the
table a compelling business

portfolio increasingly relevant
In a rapidly modernising India

Overview

The businesses of Adani
Enterprises have been threaded
around a singular idea: invest
today in what India will need
tomorrow.

These businesses address large
and relatively under-penetrated
spaces with respect to the
consumption appetite of today or
of the foreseeable future.

By setting up large capacities
with some of the most pedigreed

partners in the most attractive
locations at some of the most
competitive costs around

the most responsible ESG
propositions, we are competently
placed to build profitable and
sustainable businesses.

These businesses have not

been built to merely mark out a
presence across their respective
sectors; they have been built to
lead their sectors, offer customers
3 superior price-value proposition,

reduce their break even points
and widen their markets.

As a result, the businesses
constituting Adani Enterprises
have not been created only to
service existing markets; they
have been built to enlarge
markets, enhance lifestyles,
secure national interests and
strengthen prosperity — the most
effective means by which we can
take India ahead.

Our businesses

Green hydrogen: To engage in
the production of green hydrogen
with the objective to create

a cleaner world and provide
inexpensive energy to users

Solar manufacturing: Engaged
in the manufacture of solar
photovoltaic cells and modules
that represent the building block
of the solar energy revolution

Airports: Engaged in the
management of prominent
airports positioned to deliver a
world-class experience

Road, metro and rail: Engaged in
the development of infrastructure
projects that facilitate mass
mobility

Data centres: Engaged in the
development of data centres to
help retain India's internet-derived
data within the country

Defence and aerospace: Engaged
in the manufacture of strategic
military and defence products
that enhance India's self-reliance

Edible oil and foods: Engaged
in the manufacture, marketing
and branding of food resource
products that enhance health,
hygiene, safety and well-being

Agro products: Engaged in
enhancing India's farm yield with
the objective to feed a growing
nation

Water: Engaged in the
development of infrastructure
projects that enhance water
transportation and use efficiency

Mining services: Engaged in

the responsible extraction of
resources and consumption,
enhancing safety and moderating
logistic costs

Integrated resource
management: Engaged in the
access of energy resources from
diverse global pockets and just-in-
time delivery to Indian customers,
strengthening working capital
efficiency

Petrochemicals: To engage in the
production of a range of green
fuel and green energy that help
India decarbonise with speed

Copper: To engage in the
production of copper and
downstream products that
service the growing needs of
the country’'s consumer durables
revolution
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Adani Enterprises Limited
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1

Energy & Utility

2

Transport & Logistics

The Company's
business has been 3
structured across five
buckets

Consumer Businesses

4

Natural Resources

5

Metals & Manufacturing
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Energy & utility business

New industries Data centres
(End to end green H, chain)

Water

Transport & logistics business

|

Airport T Road
.. |

Food FMCG T Digital
|

Services business (MDO & IRM) T

Commercial mining

Metals & manufacturing business

Defence T Petrochemicals

Copper T
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Adani Enterprises Limited

INCUBATION APPROACH

How we have built a unique
incubation umbrella

Overview

Companies manage businesses;
Adani Enterprises manages
companies.

Adani Enterprises has graduated
from the promotion of one
business (ports) into a collection

of several businesses (including
demerged) that have been grown
completely from scratch. This
represents the largest collection
of business being incubated
completely from scratch in India

or perhaps in any listed company
anywhere in the world. These
businesses possess a complement
of scale, strategic importance and
technology sophistication.

Process efficiency

The incubation pedigree of Adani
Enterprises has been influenced
by the following realities:

Structure: Adani Enterprises
operates like a holding company;
it owns complete or significant
equity stakes in its constituent
businesses

Accountability: Each AEL
business vertical or constituent
company is headed by a Chief
Executive Officer who reports
periodically to the Chairman and
the Company’'s Board of Directors
on business growth, profitability,
challenges and opportunities

Financial support: The Company
provides critical cash flow support
during the initial phase of the
capital expenditure period, which
makes it possible to moderate

an exposure to debt, enhances
business liquidity and kickstarts a
cycle of responsible reinvestment
that helps mature the business
with speed

Playbook: The Adani Group
template of incubation represents
3 guidepost of all initiatives that
succeeded in the past (and are
likely to recur). The constituent
business enjoy access to Adani
Group competencies that infuse
institutionalised competencies
into the new businesses without
each of these companies needing
to reinvent any wheel, making it
possible to leapfrog capabilities
and time

Verticalisation: The Company has
been structured across distinctive
verticals that operate mutually

exclusive of each other. In turn,
this verticalisation enhances
focus, accountability and
specialisation.

Partnership: The AEL corporate
team plays the role of a strategic
advisor to each of the Company's
businesses, which ensures that
the Adani Group management
bandwidth is always available to
assist, support and nurture the
businesses

Governance: The constituent
businesses get an immediate
access to an operating framework
(strategic/tactical/controls/
reporting) that makes it possible
to capitalise on and build on an
available governance foundation

Our Group priorities

At Adani Enterprises, the
businesses of our constituent
companies are woven around
overarching Adani Group themes,
which enhance strategic synergy,
direction and outcomes.

066

India: We believe in and bet

on India. We proactively invest
in businesses that will ride

the country’'s middle-income
consumption engine (directly or
indirectly).

Ownership: The Adani Group
comprises a high promoter
ownership, enhancing the
confidence of other stakeholders.



Futuristic: We invest in business
likely to be futuristic or at least
likely to remain relevant for the
next few decades. Wherever the
sector is likely to be phased down
due to an overarching global
direction away from that product
or service, we cap investments in
that business.

Competitive advantage: We have
invested in an overarching culture
of excellence - rich sectorial
experience, timely project
implementation, commission
projects faster than norm,
commission assets lower than the
industry average, grow markets,
establish leadership and evolve
into a generic name.

Nascent spaces: We have
selected to enter ‘'mature non-
mature’ business spaces —
‘mature’ based on a conventional
interpretation of their potential

and 'non-mature’ based on their
vast emerging addressable
market and the Adani Group value
proposition.

Outsized: We take outsized
bets in select sectors, which
sends out a strong message of
our long-term seriousness. The
disproportionate initial capacity
would have been a dragina
conventional structure; it is

an advantage in an incubated
structure that establishes
economies of scale immediately
and deters prospective
competition.

Execution excellence: \We possess
a culture of specialisation in
projects execution, one of the
most challenging segments in
India, marked by the ability to
execute projects faster than the
sectorial average by drawing on a
validated Group level managerial

Annual Report 2021-22

excellence.

Technology: We invest in cutting-
edge technology standards that
generate incremental profitability,
helping recover any additional
cost that might have been

paid. This superior technology
pedigree effectively becomes a
potent driver of the Company'’s
competitive advantage,
positioning the Company around
a technology-driven recall even
as it may be present in relatively
conventional sectors.

Scalable financial structure: We
have created a robust financial
foundation of owned and
borrowed funds (the lowest cost
by far for infrastructure building
companies in India), empowering
mobilisation from some of the
largest global lenders at the
lowest costs for the longest
tenures (quasi equity).

Outcomes

The quality of AELs incubation
has been reflected in the speed
of maturing of its various
businesses. This has helped
mature the demerged entity so

that it emerges as a sectorial
benchmark with a credible

credit rating that leads to the
maximisation of stakeholder
value. This demonstrates that the

AEL influence is not restricted to
the incubation period but extends
beyond, helping create sectorial
leaders.

The Adani Group DNA

India focus 1 High promoter ownership

Nascent spaces

Execution excellence 1

Technology

Futuristic 1 Competitive advantage

Outsized 1

Scalable financial structure 1

Our incubation competence: Access to Adani Group strengths
Recruitment 1

Business vision 1

Global competitiveness

Organisational architecture

Capital Management Plan 1

Funding pipeline 1 Operational monitoring

Project execution

High asset utilisation 1

Our incubation life cycle

Fund

Conceive *

»

Fuse Develop

¢

Hold Demerge
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Adani Enterprises Limited

At the heart of our incubation
effectiveness lies a robust ESG
focus that enhances value in a
responsible way

Overview

At Adani Enterprises Limited, we
believe that we are in business
to do the right things in the right
way.

We are engaged in business

for the benefit of all our
stakeholders: the customer must
benefit through an enhanced
product or service, the employee
must derive pride, remuneration
and career growth, the investor
must generate a superior

return on employed capital

over competing investment
alternatives, the community must
benefit from our presence, the
government must benefit through
taxes and livelihood creation
while our vendors must benefit
through the outsourcing of
products and services.

This commitment to the creation
of integrated value for all our
stakeholders represents the basis
of our long-term existence. It
reflects in enhanced Financial
capital, Manufactured capital,
Human capital, Intellectual
capital, Social and relationship
capital and Natural capital.

The environment component
addresses the world's priority
that businesses consume
environmentally responsible
resources, consume an optimal
quantum, recycle waste, consume
a modest quantum of finite fossil
fuels and build resistance to
climate change, moderating the
carbon footprint.

The social component addresses
the need to invest in employees,

vendor/customer relationships
and community welfare.

The governance component
enunciates strategic clarity,
prioritises values cum conduct
codes, selects a prudent Board of
Directors and indicates alignment
with UNGC principles, evoking a
responsible expectation across
stakeholders.

The combination — environment,
social and governance — provides
a platform for long-term growth.

Some of the principles of our ESG
commitment have been described
in this section, which provide a
perspective of who we are, where
we come from and what we hold
dear.

At AEL, we have centralised the
importance of integrity in our
operations. We place the highest
standards when it comes to
personal and collective integrity,
reflected in a compliance with
the enunciated standards

stipulated by the government,
other regulatory agencies and
peer global standards. Over

the years, our commitment to
integrity has also extended to
gender respect, zero tolerance for
sexual harassment, impatience

with ethical transgressions,
commitment to recruit without
prejudice and appraise without
partialness, respect for the dignity
of people and environment
integrity and respect for the laws
of the lands of our presence.

At AEL, we run businesses that
operate around a high sense
of discipline when it comes to

068

compliances, documentation,
reporting and transparency on
the one hand and operating

standards on the other, the basis
of sustained outperformance.



Annual Report 2021-22

Board of Directors

At AEL, we believe that the
success of our strategic direction
is influenced by our Board of
Directors. Our Directors represent
the strategic ‘pilots’ of our

direction, helping the Company
accelerate or course-correct. We
have placed a premium on our
Board composition, comprising
achievers of standing. The Board

comprises a good proportion of
Independent Directors, who can
speak their mind and influence

the Board.

ESG commitment

At the core of our sustainability
lies our ESG (environment-social-
governance) commitment. This
commitment has been formalised
through a policy; besides, this
ethic is not just documented

but is lived. Over the years,

this commitment has reflected
in pro-active investments in
equipment, certifications,
people and initiatives directed to
moderate the Company'’s carbon
footprint. The Company’s social
commitment has been reflected

in various initiatives to enhance
value for employees, vendors,
customers and community.

The Company's governance
commitment comprises an
enunciation of how it intends to
do business.

Long-term

At AEL, we plan for the long-term.
Our investments are not inspired
by considerations of short-term
arbitrage but by the sustainable
long-term value we can generate.

This is visible in the verticals of
our presence: some of the spaces
can be considered relatively
nascent; we believe that as the
lifestyle revolution widens and

the consumption market grows,
our businesses will progressively
mature, deepening our relevance.

Plural focus

At AEL, we are present in diverse
businesses that enrich the
holistic value of our portfolio.
Over the years, this diversity

has strengthened our ability

to withstand specific sectorial
headwinds. Besides, our ability to
Cross-support other businesses

has enhanced our corporate
sustainability.

Controlled growth

At AEL, we believe that business
sustainability is best derived
from achieving a balance
between aggressive growth

that threatens the safety of the
Balance Sheet and conservative
growth that leads to sectorial

under-performance. The result

is that each of our business
constituents has defined their
respective growth appetites
without impairing the overall
Balance Sheet. The Company has
consciously allocated accruals

into business growth without
stretching the Balance Sheet. The
result is that we have remained
liquid and profitable through
market cycles.

Process-driven

At AEL, we believe that growth
can be best derived when the
promoter charts out a strategic
direction, remains engaged in
the business at the strategic
level but delegates day-to-day
management to professionals.

This arrangement has been
catalysed by an investment in
processes and systems, a scalable
foundation that will enable the
Company to grow profitably

and sustainably. A framework

of checks and balances makes

our de-risking effective. As an
extension, our audit-driven and
compliance-driven approach
enhances the credibility of our
reported numbers.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Our ESG commitment

Environmental

Moderate carbon Protect Use 5R’s (replace, re-use,
footprint bio-diversity renewable, recycle and reduce)

: | ; : : ) ! |
Superior Ongoing audit and investment Disclose environment
environmental rating in environment compliance performance
Social

| |
Large Focus on knowledge, Investment
workforce experience and retention in training
- |
Culture Servicing marquee %12.87 crore expended
of passion customers on CSR, FY 21-22

Governance

Code and values

Code of Conduct

Whistle blower policy

Anti-bribery and anti-

slavery policy

Corporate-Environment-
Health-And-Safety Policy

Code of Practices for Fair Disclosure

Remuneration policy

Prevention of Sexual
Harassment (POSH)

|
ESG Employee care and
commitment fairness
|
Insider Trading

Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for

Structure and oversight

Board with strong |

independence

Business
Responsibility Policy

Fully Independent
Audit Committee

Risk Management
Policy

Transparency and reporting

Material event policy

Related party
transactions

Quarterly self-declarations on
the web

- =l | =& eu N




Adani Enterprises.
Successtul incubator enhancing

shareholder

value
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Adani Enterprises has emerged as a successful business-creating engine,
presenting the modern face of Indian business to the world

Our established incubation credentials

Successful Created six
incubator since unicorns
1994

Our track record

Adani Ports & SEZ Limited
= Commenced operations in 1998

= Demerged from AEL in 2015

= Emerged as the largest Indian
private sector ports company,
among the five fastest growing
port companies of the world
and arguably the world’'s most
profitable ports company

= Aspiration to emerge as the
world’s largest ports company by
2030.

Established Providing Providing
capability in shareholders strong cash
transforming multi-fold returns flow support to
start-ups into and direct business start-ups during

sustainable ownership their initial capex
businesses exposure cycle

Adani Transmission Limited
= Commenced operations in
2009

= Demerged from AEL in 2015

= Emerged as the largest Indian
private sector power transmission
and distribution company

= Scratch to leadership in one of
the shortest tenures for an Indian
power infrastructure company

Adani Total Gas Limited
= |ncorporated business in 2005

= Demerged from AEL and listed
in2018

= Emerged as the largest Indian
private sector city gas distribution
company

= Equal equity ownership by
TotalEnergies

Adani Green Energy Limited
= Commenced operations in 2015

= Demerged from AEL and listed in
2018

= Emerged as the largest Indian
private sector renewable energy
company

= |ntends to emerge as the world's
largest private sector solar energy
company by 2025 and the world’s
largest renewable energy company by
2030

= 20% stake by TotalEnergies

Adani Wilmar Limited
= Commenced operations
in 1999

= |PO and listing in 2022

= Joint venture of Adani
Group and Wilmar Group

= Emerged as the largest
Indian edible oils company

= |ntends to extend
deeper into the foods
business

Adani Power Limited
= Commenced operations in 2006

= World's first coal-based thermal
power project to be granted carbon
credits by the United Nations
Framework Convention on Climate
Change (UNFCCC)

= World's first company to set up

a coal-based supercritical thermal
power project registered under the
Clean Development Mechanism
(CDM) of the Kyoto protocol

= Demerged from AEL in 2015
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How we have enhanced value

1 Market value to shareholders | Capital management 1
= Delivered 37% CAGR in = Robust structure; debt-to-
market value since listing in equity ratio of 1.5x as on 31st
1994 March 2022

= Delivered 170%+ CAGR in
market value in three years

Successful incubator
= Created six unicorns since
inception

= Listed ATGL, AGEL and Adani
Wilmar in the four years ending
FY 21-22

How AEL enhances shareholder value

ending FY 21-22

wn)
g
E Business mix | Adani Group synergy 1 Capacity influence Revenue and profit 1
g = Complement of = Driven by Adani = |[nvestment in visibility
@ diverse businesses Group vision and superior scale = Annuity incomes
< . .
%’ = Some businesses ambition = Scale translating E;T;Si%i:hTU;)tl_year
= addressing futuristic = Access to into cost/ P
spaces established Group market/service = Enhanced revenue
g « Businesses address capabilities competitiveness / profit visibility
§ large unmet needs or = Leveraging a = Scale influencing = Enhanced ability to
g demand common managerial / brand dynamics mobilise competitive
g = Businesses likely financial pool = Scale to transform funds
S to remain relevant = Driven by sustained sectorial dynamics = Enhanced access
across the long-term outperformance to data
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Acquisitions
= Ability to spot and
consummate opportunities

= Ability to mobilise
corresponding funds with
speed

= Ability to fast-track growth

= Ability to establish market-
leading advantages
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Capital Management Plan
= Capacity to leverage the
Group credit rating

= Ability to mobilise low-cost
debt

= Ability to mobilise long-term
debt (quasi-equity)

= Ability to structure the
business at a low equity cost

ESG
= Deeply ESG-compliant
business model

= Extensively de-risked
approach; established global
corporate credibility

= Robust governance and
disclosures

= Focus on enhanced value for
all stakeholders




Annual Report 2021-22

Measurement of our delivered shareholder value

Direct Indirect*
8,116 68,362
T crore, AEL market capitalisation, 31st March T crore, market capitalisation of all stocks
2016 demerged from AEL, 31st March 2016

221,582 10,31,282

T crore, AEL market capitalisation, 31st March T crore, market capitalisation of all stocks
2022 demerged from AEL, 31st March 2022

*Includes the market capitalisation of Adani Ports and SEZ Limited,
Adani Transmission Limited, Adani Green Energy Limited and Adani
Total Gas Limited and Adani Power Limited.
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Demerged since 2015 5

pe)

=<

Company Name Created in Market capitalisation, 31st March 2022 g

Adani Ports & SEZ 2007 USD 22 billion 3
Adani Power | 2009 | USD 9 billion

Adani Transmission | 2015 | USD 34 billion :

=z

g

Demerged since 2018 %

=

Company Name Created in Market capitalisation, 31st March 2022 5
Adani Green Energy 2018 USD 39 billion
Adani Total Gas | 2018 | USD 31 billion

Listed in 2022

Company name Created in Market capitalisation, 31st March 2022
Adani Wilmar 2022 USD 9 billion
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Adani Enterprises Limited

BUSINESS VERTICALS

Adani New Industries Limited
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Green hydrogen

Overview

India is expected to account

for the biggest share of energy
demand growth over the next two
decades; the country is expected
to surpass European Union as

the world’s third-largest energy
consumer by 2030.

This reality is expected to open
growth avenues with India
attractively placed to transform
its energy economy towards clean
and sustainable energy routes.
The race towards green energy
assumes significance at a time

the on-going Russia-Ukraine
crisis has raised energy costs
across the world. This is hurting
India, which imports 85% of its
oil and 53% of its natural gas
requirements.

This reality has prompted India
to explore green hydrogen
development possibilities as a
viable energy alternative with
the objective to replace the
country’'s energy imports. Green
hydrogen could emerge as an
ideal power source for energy-



intensive industries like refining,
steel, cement, heavy mobility
and industrial heating. More

importantly, green hydrogen
could play a major role in India’s
transition from the world's third

Annual Report 2021-22

largest greenhouse gas emitter to
a responsible green economy.

Government initiatives

The Indian government has
embarked on a serious push to
a green hydrogen policy, which
is expected to transform the
country's energy mix.

National Green Hydrogen

Policy: The government of India
notified the National Green
Hydrogen Policy to achieve a
production of 5 million tonnes

of green hydrogen by 2030. The
government announced measures
to promote the use of green
hydrogen through lower emission
incentives, comprising a8 waiver of
interstate transmission charges
for 25 years to the manufacturers
of green hydrogen and green
ammonia. This waiver would apply
for projects commissioned before
30th June 2025.

National Green Hydrogen
Mission: The Union Government
plans to launch a comprehensive
green hydrogen mission to take

ANIL: AELs response on green hydrogen

Adani Enterprise Limited
launched a new subsidiary
called Adani New Industries
Ltd. (ANIL) with the objective
to incubate, build and develop
a large integrated platform to
produce green energy through
end-to-end supply and value
chain development. AEL has
always contributed to nation
building; the Company intends
to add value to the government's

the Green Hydrogen Policy
ahead; this was announced in
February 2022. The mission

is expected to infuse green
hydrogen purchase / consumption
obligation (GHCO) in fertiliser
production and petroleum
refining, akin to the renewable
purchase obligation (RPO). The
mission is also expected to

list the sectors that will need

to start using green hydrogen
voluntarily with a8 mandatory
roadmap for the fertiliser and
petrochemical sectors. Under
the mission, the government is
expected to launch incentive
schemes, including a capex
incentive and PLI scheme for the
manufacture of electrolysers. The
mission is expected to propose
GHCO for 30% substitution of
green hydrogen in the refinery
and fertiliser sectors by FY30
and CGD for 10% blending of
green hydrogen by FY30. The

announcements to take India to
greener self-sufficiency.

Adani New Industries Limited
aims to enhance India's energy
security through an end-to-end
supply chain. The Company
intends to assist India’s transition
from an importer of fossil fuel
energy to a green energy nation
with an investment of USD 50
billion across the decade.

mission is expected to propose
15% grey ammonia substitution
(domestic + import) with green
ammonia in existing plants by FY
25-26 and 30% substitution by
FY 29-30 as per GHCO mandate.
The Government is expected to
waive transmission and wheeling
charges for green H2 and green
ammonia projects. Guidelines
are expected to be announced
for green ammonia export to
capitalise on low renewable
energy tariffs.

The government intends to
provide a single portal for all
clearances required for setting
up green hydrogen production
along with a facility for producers
to bank any surplus renewable
energy generated with discoms
for up to 30 days and use it as
required.

oy umoers R
48

GW, renewable energy
capacity directly connected

2.54 -

MMTPA, green hydrogen
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Adani Enterprises Limited

= ANIL plans to establish a fully
integrated manufacturing facility
of 10 GW per annum, extending
from poly silicon to cells and
modules at Mundra SEZ

= The Company intends to
commission 7.5 GW per annum
manufacturing capacity in the
wind turbine manufacturing plant
at Mundra SEZ

= The Company entered into an
exclusive technology transfer
agreement to manufacture,
assemble, commission and
maintain wind turbines in India

= The Company plans to establish
5 GW per annum of electrolyser
manufacturing facility at Mundra
SEZ

= The Company intends to start
10 GWh per annum of battery
manufacturing facility at Mundra
SEZ

= The Company plans to
construct a 30 GW green
hydrogen generation facility at
Khavda to ensure a fully built
capacity to generate green
hydrogen of 2.54 MMTPA
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The ANIL business outlay will

be strengthened through a
partnership with Total Energies,
France. The energy supermajor
agreed to invest 25% minority
interest in Adani New Industries
Ltd. to co-create the world's
largest green hydrogen
ecosystem. These green hydrogen

ANILs vision

partnerships are expected to
transform the global and Indian
energy landscapes, reinforcing
the Adani-TotalEnergies
partnership at the portfolio level.
ANIL, backed by the Adani Project
Management and Assurance
Group, aims to operationalise the
renewable platform by FY 25-26.

To decarbonise industries and
mobility while delivering hydrogen
as an alternative green energy,
with the least expensive electron,

could potentially transform India’s
energy landscape.

ANILs business segments

Adani New Industries intends
to create the largest integrated
platform with three segments:

Supply chain products
manufacture: The Company
intends to manufacture major
components for renewable
energy generation like polysilicon,
ingots, wafers, solar cells

cum modules, wind turbines,
generators, electrolysers, fuel
cells and ancillary products. The
Company's solar manufacturing
capacity of 3.5+ GW (1.5 GW
existing + 2 GW of expansion) will
be a part of the ANIL portfolio.
The Company targets 6-10 GW of
manufacturing capacity.

Green hydrogen generation: The
Company will focus on integrated
renewable energy generation
through solar and wind energy
capacities. These will power
electrolysers to produce green
hydrogen. The Company will
create a pipeline to transport
green hydrogen from Khavda

to Mundra for manufacturing
downstream products

Downstream products: This
segment will focus on large
downstream products involving
the manufacture of ammonia,
urea, methanol / ethanol and
other anchor projects

7.54

MMTPA, green ammonia

1.0 -

MMTPA, green hydrogen
capacity eyed in the first
phase

~1.7

MMTPA, green methanol

LH2, LOHC

Other technologies available
as required
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How ANIL could transform Mundra SEZ into the world's largest
integrated green hydrogen hub

Overview

ANIL will focus on Mundra
SEZ on account of a large
land parcel, strategic location
and developed supporting
infrastructure, which is
expected to become the
world's largest integrated
green hydrogen hub. The
Mundra green hydrogen is the
only one in India backed by

a player with rich expertise

in renewable energy and
ports infrastructure. The

hub is backed by ongoing

polysilicon capacity by FY 24-
25 and an MoU with POSCO for
creating an integrated green
steel plant.

The Mundra green hydrogen
hub will support multiple
applications of green hydrogen,
including a substantial
utilisation within Adani's
portfolio business:

= Green fertilisers

= Ammonia exports

methanol)

= Long haul and heavy trucking
(methanol for diesel blending)

= Steel and petrochemicals

= Fuel cell mobility at Mundra
& other ports

= Polysilicon, CGD, edible oil
and other small-scale users of
H2

= Power generation Co-firing
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investments to increase = Marine mobility (ammonia, ‘ﬁ

. 2

Solar manufacturing
a

Perhaps the most exciting achieve a capacity of 175 GW India's cumulative renewable §
development coming out of India of renewable energy by the end energy generation capacity §
is the sweeping transformation in of 2022 and 500 GW by 2030, (including hydro) stood at 150 g
its renewable energy landscape. arguably the largest renewable GW and likely to accelerate from -
India is not just playing a side role energy expansion programme this point for a good reason. Due E
in the global renewable energy undertaken by any country. to India's favourable location in @

transformation; it is playing

a front-line role in altering its
reality within the country and
enhancing its respect in the
global community of nations.
The result is an unprecedented
growth headroom for companies
in the sectorial value chain,
whether they be engaged in
manufacturing renewable energy
products or generating clean
power.

The scope resident within

the sector is reflected in the
following details: India ranked
third in Renewable Energy
Country Attractive Index in 2021.
India set an ambitious target to

This enunciated policy translated
into positive ground realities.
About 63 GW of India's renewable
energy capacity is under various
construction phases; installed
power capacity from non-fossil
fuels is expected to rise to 66%
of the overall national power
generation capacity by 2030.

In line with this projected
transformation, India's renewable
energy generation capacity
addition in FY 22-23 was
estimated at 16 gigawatt (GW), its
highest annual increment.

There is a basis for the national
optimism: as on 31st March 2022,

the solar belt (400 S to 400 N),
at is one of the best solar energy
recipients, marked by abundant
sunlight availability.

This is how the picture is
expected to strengthen:
according to the government'’s
vision document, coal-based
power is expected to account for
just 33% of the country's total
installed 817 GW capacity in
2030, (presently, 53% of 393 GW
installed capacity) and a mere
10.5% in 2047. This projection

is aligned with Prime Minister
Narendra Modi's net-zero
commitment to make India self-
sustaining in its energy needs by
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Adani Enterprises Limited

the 100th year of independence
and increase the share of
renewable energy from 22% to
67% by 2047. Of the 1,325 GW
projected installed capacity by
2047,1,125 GW is expected to be
derived from renewable energy,

140 GW from coal, 10 GW from
gas and nuclear power generation
capacity from 7 GW to 50 GW.

This provides an optimistic
encapsulation of where India
is and where it intends to go:

Solar benefits g ——

Cost friendly; one-time
investment for 25 years

Reduce the carbon footprint 1

|
No greenhouse effect
Better grid security 1
|

Limitless and eternal solar
energy

Saving on electricity bills 1

the fifth largest country in the
world in terms of solar rooftop
installations and one of the
fastest growing in terms of overall
renewable energy capacity
addition.

Government initiatives

The Indian government did

not just enunciate a strategic
direction; it implemented a
range of initiatives and reforms
to encourage and incentivise
domestic solar products
manufacture.

= |n the Union Budget FY 21-

22, the government allocated
219,500 crore for production-
linked incentives (PLI) to enhance
the manufacture of high-
efficiency modules, prioritising
fully integrated manufacturing
units into solar photovoltaic (PV)
modules.

078

= |n April 2021, the production-
linked incentive (PLI) program
was launched to push gigawatt-
scale manufacturing of high-
efficiency solar photovoltaic (PV)
modules with an outlay of 45
billion.

= |In June 2021, Indian Renewable
Energy Development Agency Ltd.
(IREDA) invited bids from solar
module manufacturers to set up
solar manufacturing units under
the central government’s 34,500
crore Production Linked Incentive
(PLI) scheme.

= |n July 2021, the Ministry of
New and Renewable Energy
announced its decision to
undertake Rooftop Solar
Programme Phase Il, which aims
to install RTS capacity of 4,000
MW in the residential sector by
2022 with a provision of subsidy.

= To encourage domestic
production, customs duty on solar
inverters was increased from 5%
to 20% and on solar lanterns from
5% to 15%.
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AELls business

The Company ventured into
solar manufacturing in 2017. The
Company’'s manufacturing unit
and R&D facilities are located

in Electronic Manufacturing
Cluster (EMC), a SEZ in Mundra,
supported by manufacturing
units of critical components
(EVA, back-sheet, glass, junction
box and solar cell and string
interconnect ribbon). The
Company'’s total capacity stood at
1.5 GW capacity as of 31st March
2022.

The Company is respected for
its scale, speed and quality

of operation. The Company

is India's first and largest
vertically integrated solar
company that offers products
and services across the
photovoltaics spectrum. The
Company commissioned India’s
largest solar cell and module
manufacturing facility with a
total installed capacity of 1200
MW each (later de-bottlenecked
to 1500 MW each). They possess

unmatched skills in addressing
new challenges, adopting cutting-
edge technologies and delivery
impeccable quality.

The Company sources cutting-
edge technology equipment from
best-in-class producers. This has
translated into cost leadership,
high operational scale and
standards aligned around global
benchmarks. The manufacturing
facility is likely to be scaled to 3.5
GW of modules and cells.

Key highlights, FY 21-22

The Company registered the
highest annual sales volume
amongst all Indian solar

photovoltaic manufacturers.

The Company is India's leading
module supplierin the DCR
(accounting for over half of India's
total DCR production).

The Company is India's largest
solar PV module supplier in the
CPSU segment.

The Company enjoys the largest
solar rooftop market share of
more than 50% as well as of
KUSUM schemes across India.

The Company was the first and
now the largest producer of

bifacial cells in India.

The Company's credit rating
improved to A- (positive outlook).

The Company's order book stood
at 700 MW at the end of the
financial year.

The Company became a

member of PV Cycle, a non-
profit organisation that offers
collective and tailor-made

waste management and

legal compliance services for
companies and PV module waste
holders across the world.

The Company expanded its solar
retail footprint across 21 States
(comprising more than 2,000

towns for the distribution of solar
panels in India).

Solar product sales achieved 1104
MW in FY 21-22 compared to 1158
MW in FY 20-21, despite COVID
outbreak.

The Company sold nearly 251 MW
under the KUSUM scheme.

The Company engaged in

cost optimisation, efficiency
improvement in wafers, B
grade cell reduction, lower glue
wastage, alternative source
development for cell line and
module line spares and life
enhancement of high-cost
consumables.

Our logistical advantage

Capacity
Technology

1500MWp per annum
Crystalline silicon technology with a judicious product mix of multi, mono

and bifacial products

Location/state

Nearest port

Major raw materials

Raw materials coming from

Mundra, India

China, Singapore, Malaysia and Vietnam

Mundra port (adjacent to the factory premises)
Silicon wafers, silver paste, glass, EVA Al frame and backsheet
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Achievements

Received ISO | Received ISO 50001- 1 Recognised as Top Won the Torch 1
9001:2015 (QMS), 2018 certificate Performer by DNV-GL Bearer of Make-in-
ISO 14001:2015 from TUV for Energy PVEL Global reliability India Award from EQ
(EMS) and ISO Management system testing for four
45001:2018 (OHSMS) (EnMS) consecutive years
certificates by TUV (2018 to 2021) the

only Indian Company

to be so recognised
Won Green Urja 1 Listed as Most | Rated as Largest Rated as Largest |
Award 2021 from Bankable Indian Indian Solar PV Indian Solar PV
Indian Chamber of Brand in PV Module module supplier module supplier for
Commerce Tech Global Tier-1 for TH 2021 as per CY 2021 as per JMK

ratings - CCC+ India Solar Market Research Annual

Leaderboard 1H 2021 India Report card

by Mercom 2021
First-mover | Knowledge 1 Balance Sheet |
= Firstin India to commission = Experienced team of = Prudent deleveraging
3 vertlcally.mtegrated sol'ar . professionals and technologists « Profit making business
photovoltaic manufacturing in .
Mundra Special Economic Zone " State-of-the-art RED facility = Robust cash flows

= Global alliances, strengthening
technology access
]

Competence
= Comprehensive EPC solutions provider

Sales

= Pan-India presence
= Robust and rapidly growing order book = |nternational quality standards
= Respected clientele; brand-enhancing projects = Prudent technology investments

= Economies of scale

Delivering best-in-class environmental compliances

ETP treated water

GPCB limit Result

pH@25°C | 6.58.5 | 7.61
Total suspended solids (mg/L) ‘ 100 ‘ 14
Fluoride (as F) (mg/L) | 15 | 1.2




STP treated water
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pH @ 25°C

Total suspended solids (mg/L)
Biomedical Oxygen Demand (BOD) (mg/L)

GPCV limit
7.16 7.18 7.2
100 1 28
30 9.1 14

Drinking water

pH@25°C
TDS (PPM)

Total hardness (in PPM as CaCO3)
Calcium (in PPM as CaCO3)

GPCB limit
6.5-8.5 8.09
500 176
200 108
120 78

Ambient air

GPCB limit
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PM 10 (ug/m3) 100 82

PM 2.5 (ug/m3) 60 26 "

SOx (ug/m3) 80 10.4 =

NOx (ug/m3) 80 19.6 g
&

Management System certifications Certification standard Certification agency §

Quality Management System ISO 9001:2015 TUV Nord g

Environment Management System ISO 14001:2015 TUV Nord o

Occupational Health & Safety Management System ISO 45001:2018 TUV Nord %

Energy Management System ISO 50001 - 2018 TUV Nord ﬁ
=

Product certification Certification standard Certification agency =

Module Quality Qualification IEC 61215; IEC 61730: | IEC (International Electrotechnical Commission) 5

2016 standards

Module Safety Qualification UL 61730 UL

Salt Mist Corrosion certification IEC 61701 IEC (International Electrotechnical Commission)

Ammonia Corrosion certification |IEC 62716 IEC (International Electrotechnical Commission)

Potential induced Degradation

(PID) certification IEC 62804 IEC (International Electrotechnical Commission)

Dynamic Mechanical Load IEC 62782 IEC (International Electrotechnical Commission)

certification

Packaging, Shipping & IEC 62759 IEC (International Electrotechnical Commission)

Transportation certification

Sand & Dust certification IEC 60068 IEC (International Electrotechnical Commission)

Triple IEC — LST Testing 3 XIEC IEC (International Electrotechnical Commission)

To comply all PSU/Domestic BIS/IS 14286 Bureau of Indian Standard

tenders requirement
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ANIL business philosophy
Manufacturing ecosystem
Solar modules WTG Electrolyser

Full backward Manufacturing Focus on utility scale Full backward
integration starting Turbine, Nacelle & stationary storage integration for better
from silicon till Rotor Blades market control and cost
modules Technology Partnership efficiency
Focus on high partnership with with established Focus on reduction in
efficiency future renowned global technology players production cost: USD
technologies — players being evaluated 250/kW -> USD 100/

£ TOPCon and HJT kW (FY30)

s

= Khavda resource site to supply power to H, = |ntegrated project connecting Khavda to

" generation plant Mundra with 42" H, pipeline of 1.5 MMTPA for

g = Electrolyser supplied by manufacturing division manufacturing of downstream products at

E = Electrolyser technology (Alkaline vs PEM) e

% targeting lowest H, generation cost while = Landed cost at Mundra will be the lowest

é maintaining flexibility for intermittent renewable through pipeline given economies of scale

I power

Downstream products

= Mundra SEZ best placed to become green Hydrogen hub with port infrastructure and various industry
clusters
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= Multiple end use cases: Ammonia, methanol, urea production

= |ndustry clusters for Green H2 consumption: Copper, cement, aluminium

Key considerations
= ANIL & AGEL will be the largest consumer of RE manufacturing ecosystem

= Market certainty for ANIL given captive consumers and execution certainty for captive consumers

= Fully integrated manufacturing and consumption to result in lower wastage, faster turnaround, lower
inventory, savings in overheads improving cost efficiency

= Khavda as the ideal hydrogen generation hub due to its immense RE potential and site readiness
= Mundra SEZ as an ideal green hydrogen and manufacturing ecosystem due to fully developed site and
utility infrastructure

H,: Hydrogen; ANIL: Adani New Industries Limited; AGEL: Adani Green Energy Limited; TOPCon: Tunnel oxide passivated contact technology;
HJT: Heterojunction technology; WTG: Wind Turbine Generator; PEM: Polymer electrolyte membrane; MMTPA: million metric ton per annum;
RE: Renewable Energy; SEZ: Special Economic Zone
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Our data center business

The big picture

India's digital economy is
expected to reach USD 1 trillion
in value by 2025, with the
government planning to treble
the country's installed power
capacity for data centres. This
indicates a USD 4.5 billion
investment opportunity to set up
data centre infrastructure by that
year.

The vision of AdaniConneX is to
build a 1 GW capacity data center
by 2030, supported by ongoing
land acquisition and construction
activities across Chennai, Noida,
Navi Mumbai, Hyderabad, Vizag,
Pune, Kolkata and Bangalore. The
first data centre in Chennai is
about to be commsisioned.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Overview

Macro: India is projected to
emerge as the world’s third
largest economy by 2030,
comprising 776 million internet
users, 75 million Small and
Medium businesses (SMBSs),

5 million+ developers, 59
thousand start-ups, 1200 listed
enterprises, and 1300 global
development centers. The Indian
SaaS ecosystem is now the
third largest in the world and is
expected to service 11% of the
global SaaS demand by 2025. In

line with these technology trends,

Mckinsey predicts a USD 1 trillion

digital economy by 2025. (Source:

ETimes, McKinsey)

Digitalisation: India is expected
to have about 830 million
smartphone users by 2022. The
digital delivery of entertainment,
healthcare, education as well

as goods and services is on the
rise. Besides, the pandemic has
had a huge impact on remote
and hybrid work, requiring

more investments to be put

in cloud-based services and
mobile technologies. This could
significantly increase the demand
in the country for data centres.

Data sovereignty: The
proliferation of cloud computing
highlighted the importance of
data sovereignty. With massive

Expanding footprint

amounts of data crossing borders
and public cloud regions, the
Indian government incentivised
the local development of

data centres to protect India’s
consumers. The government'’s
proposal to recognise the data
centre sector at par with critical
infrastructure sectors like power,
railways and roads enhanced its
importance.

Support: The government is
targeting an investment of %3
lakh crore in the next five years as
part of the hyperscale data centre
scheme and is planning to provide
around 4% of capital investment
as an incentive to companies,
along with real estate support
and faster clearances.

5G: The fifth-generation is the
latest upgrade in the long-term
evolution mobile broadband
networks. While 4G was a leap
forward, allowing people to
stream music and video on the go,
5G is designed to connect more
devices beyond smartphones with
higher speed and capacity.

E-commerce: The Indian
e-commerce market is expected
to grow to USD 111.40 billion by
2025 from USD 56.6 billion in
2021, Further, this online retail
market is estimated to be 25% of

the total organised retail market
and is expected to reach 37% by
2030. Therefore, it is expected

to reach USD 350 billion by
2030. Each month, India adds
approximately 10 million daily
active internet users - the highest
in the world. 100% FDlI is allowed
in B2B e-commerce. 100% FDI
under the automatic route is
permitted in the marketplace
model of E-commerce. Close to
100% of pin codes in India have
seen e-commerce adoption. More
than 60% transactions and orders
in India come from Tier two cities
and smaller towns. E-commerce
payments in India are expected
to rise at a compound annual
growth rate (CAGR) of 18.2%
between 2021 and 2025 to hit
USD 120.3 billion.

Smartphones: Indian smartphone
users stand third in the list of
‘Maximum time spent on devices'
after Indonesia and Brazil globally
(2021). Third on the list is India,
with an average smartphone
usage time of 4.6 hours a day,
close to a 40% year-on-year rise.

Increased thrust on digital transformation has driven demand for data centres across sector.

Entertainment and media 8

Technology 8 /

Retail and e-commerce 12 —

Banking and financial services 15 — X

084

Sector-wise
demand as
of first half of
2021 (in %)

6 Health care

43 Cloud

Source: JLL, Spark Capital Research
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AEL and data

The Adani Group's extension

from B2B to B2C businesses
makes data aggregation critical,
inspiring a deep understanding of
consumers and their prospective
actions. The result is that the
data centre business is not just
another standalone business

but one positioned to leverage

the vast data generated by

the Group's consumer-facing
businesses — airports, edible
oils, etc. — that could interface
periodically with an estimated
500 million consumers by 2025
(population equivalent to a
number of countries combined).

The result is that at our Company
data management and storage
represent the frontier of digitally-
driven research, driven by a need
to derive enhanced knowledge
of consumer preferences that
could sharpen strategy and
competitiveness.

AdaniConneX

The AdaniConneX vision is

to empower India’s digital
infrastructure growth, becoming
the most trusted and preferred
customer choice.

Our business is driven by the
perspective that digital highways
will generate a multiplier
economic effect, warranting an
imminent need for a robust digital
platform through scalable data

centers, submarine lines and
network connectivity.

Adani partnered EdgeConneX,

a US global data center firm,
possessing more than 10

years of experience in serving
global technology giants.

The joint venture tapped into
complementary strengths of both
parent organisations to achieve
the ambitious 1,000 MW of data

center capacity goal over the
next 10 years.

AdaniConneX's vision is to
catalyse the growth of Indian
digital players by becoming their
trusted and preferred choice.
The Company intends to build

a reliable data center network
supported by renewable energy.

Sectorial momentum

India is passing through
unprecedented data growth
marked by the following
segments:

Enterprises: The digital
transformation initiatives by
enterprises is widening the
market. Enterprises move their
workload from captive data
centers to third party co-location
data centers and public/hybrid
cloud.

Large cloud players: India's cloud
market is growing in double

digit percentages. The country's
public cloud services market
(IaaS+Sa8aS+Paas) is likely to

be valued at USD 10.8 billion by
2025, growing at a3 CAGR of 24.1%
between 2020 and 2025. On
account of high-end customer
demand, these cloud players will
need a higher number of cloud

regions, each with 3-4 availability
zones, building significant data
center capacity to address
captive requirements.

Government: India is witnessing
a digitisation of government
processes, covering Smart Cities,
Digital India, Meghraj and Aadhar,
among others,

Tech native businesses: 65% of
India's population is less than

35 years of age, reflected in

a stronger embrace of digital
technologies. The country's
average internet data usage
increased from 1.24 GB per
month in 2018 to 14.1 GB in June
2021. Besides, there has been an
uptrend in tech-enabled start-
ups in the e-commerce, online
gaming, social media, online
learning, remote working and OTT
fields.

Government initiatives: Some
Indian reforms and global
developments driving data centre
capacity growth consist of:

= The Indian government'’s
flagship ‘Digital India’ programme
intends to transform the nation
into a digitally empowered society
and knowledge economy.

= The grant of Infrastructure
status to Data Centers will boost
the digital ecosystem through

a lower capital cost, attracting
sizable investments

= Qver 1.2 billion Indians enrolled
in the world's largest biometric
digital identity programme called
Aadhaar, creating an available
data foundation to build on.

= The focus of the MeghRaj
project initiative is to accelerate
e-services delivery in India, while
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Adani Enterprises Limited

optimising ICT spending of the
Government.

= The Indian government drafted
a policy to provide ‘infrastructure
status' to the data centre sector,
raising it at par with industries
like railways, roadways and power.

Highlights, FY 21-22 g

= Chennai data centre
nearing completion

= Completed land
acquisitions at Noida and
Vizag

= Land aquistion in progress
at Mumbai, West Bengal,
Pune, Hyderabad and
Bangalore

= Dicussion in advance stages
with global tech companies

= The central government seeks
to graduate India into a data
centre hub with an ambitious
incentive scheme worth 12,000
crore to encourage investments.

= The government's investment
target is 33 lakh crore over five

Competitive strengths

The Adani Group possess
extensive experience in delivering
critical and large infrastructure
across sectors. This will be
leveraged to commission the
AdaniConneX data centre
infrastructure around global
standards.

The Adani Group is a leader in
the energy management sector,
including the generation of green
energy, among the most crucial
factors to succeed as a data
center operator. The result is
that the Company is attractively
placed to provide differentiated
offerings such as creation of
edge data centers in primary and
secondary markets as well as
green powered data centers to
customers.

years as a part of the hyperscale
data centre scheme, planning
to provide 3-4% of capital
investment as an incentive to
investing companies, real estate
support and faster regulatory
clearances.

The Adani Group possesses rich
experience in delivering large
projects with unique full-stack
capabilities in power generation,
transmission and distribution,
including renewable power. On
the other hand, EdgeConneX
brings unique capabilities in
operating and designing over 50
global data centres in more than
40 markets. As a validation of
this capability, the joint venture
won the trust of prominent
hyperscalers and Fortune 50
companies.

The Company possesses technical
expertise and a customer-centric
approach that translates into
customised and specialised
solutions.

Enhancing sustainability

The Company's sustainability
commitment is visible through
the adoption of emerging
technology and sustainability
practices resulting in Green Data
Centres.

Environment

The Company takes the
following initiatives to maintain
environmental sustainability.

Renewable power

= The Company is engaged in
collaborative efforts to minimise
its carbon footprint through the
use of renewable power.

086

= The Company is committed to
provide up to 100% renewable
energy to its data centers.

= The Company expects to
leverage state-of-the-art
technologies (solar, wind, hybrid +
storage).

= The Company intends to
integrate green hydrogen as
a backup power solution for
data centers (feasibility study
completed).

= The Company will deliver energy
at a competitive cost around an
integrated approach towards

renewable energy development.

Energy efficiency

= The Company leveraged
cutting-edge technology and
design best practices to reduce
Power Use Effectiveness (PUE).

= The Company designed
facilities to enhance mechanical
and electrical efficiency.

= The Company will seek to
continuously moderate carbon
footprint and power intensity.

Water resource management
= Treated water is used for



operations with rainwater
harvesting.

= The Company will reduce water
and energy intensity through
technology-driven innovation.

= The Company utilises air-cooled

chillers over water-cooled chillers.

= The Company utilises
water-efficient, free cooling
technologies and taps into
reclaimed water supplies.

Green building

= The Company’s data centre
facility will be positioned as

3 '‘Green Building' certified by
industry-recognised institutions
like IGBC.

= The Green Data centre

rating system will facilitate the
construction and operation of
data centres with enhanced
resource efficiency, moderating
operational costs.

Social

Diversity and inclusion

= The Company aims to create
aspirational and sustainable
workplaces by nurturing diversity
and inclusion.

= The AdaniConneX culture is
reflected in mixed ethnicity,
regional affiliations, physical
ability, age, education, domicile
and merit-based appointment.

Training and development

= The Company supports
employee development through
online and digital learning
platforms, on-the-job training
and leadership development
opportunities.

= AdaniConneX (in partnership
with EdgeConnex) provides onsite
employee training in overseas
facilities for access to a global
exposure and best practices.

Community development

= Qur community-led programmes
are conducted through Adani
Foundation

Health and safety

= The Company is committed to
'Zero harm and zero leak’ that
protects the health and safety
of employees, associates and
partners.

= The Company is engaged
with HSE experts for a closer
monitoring of HSE management

Outlook, FY 22-23

The Indian data centre industry
is expected to double and
exceed 1 GW by 2023, given the
increased data consumption
driven by laws pertaining to data
localisation within India. The
data boom in India is being driven
by a significant use of social
media and messaging services,
increased use of smart devices
(smartphones, tablets, smart
home solutions etc.)enhanced
adoption of loT and cloud
services by corporates. The Make
in India and China+1 structural
shifts will attract companies to
set up facilities in India, expected

to improve the demand for loT
and cloud services. Although
India has emerged as one of

the largest data consumers in
the world, the number of data
centres and their capacities are
significantly lower than in the US
and China. AEL will leverage the
vast quantum of data generated
by its various consumer-facing
businesses (airports, electricity
distribution, edible oils, household
gas connections etc.) that
interface every single day with
millions of customers and could
cover an estimated 500 million
consumers by 2025.

Annual Report 2021-22

development and implementation
comprising an EHS Policy, KPI-
based implementation, structured
review and feedback mechanism,
regular assurance, reporting and
monitoring

= The Company partnered a
world-class consulting company
to enhance its safety outcomes.

Governance

Business ethics and compliance

= The Company strikes a balance
between economic, social and
environmental performance while
addressing stakeholder needs

= The Company conducts
periodic training and workshops
on the awareness of its code and
conduct

Data security

= The Company applies stringent
industry-recognised security
controls to its data centre
infrastructure,

= The Company has invested
comprehensively to protect data
and its physical premises from any
compromise of confidentiality,
integrity and information, data
and intellectual property.

India's digital infrastructure is
expected to be driven by the
adoption of ICT technologies

like telemedicine, telepresence,
digital payments and remote
learning, migration to cloud & off
premises environment, as well

as initiatives by the government
comprising Smart Cities, Digital
India and MeghRaj, among others.
The result is that a demand

surge can be anticipated, helping
double the Indian data centre
industry from 499 MW in the first
half of 2021 to 1 GW in 2023.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

BUSINESS VERTICALS

Our ailrports business

088

Overview

India is the fifth largest global
aviation market and positioned
to emerge as the third largest
by 2025. The country’s aviation
sector prospects have been
marked by a population that is
the world's second largest, land
mass that is the world's seventh
largest.

Within this large market, air travel
democratisation has been one

of the defining developments

in recent times, marked by
affordable air fares, connectivity

extending to a larger number of
towns and the convenience of
internet ticketisation. This growth
in passenger growth has created
the need for larger service-driven
airports, transforming them

from mere connectivity hubs

to nodes of urban development
(aerotroplis).

Adani Enterprises ventured into
the airport development sector
in 2019 not merely to participate
in the ongoing sectoral growth
but to transform it. The Company



focused on a complement of
airports development for onward
transformation — infrastructure
expansion, enhanced service and
a complement of aero and non-
aero revenues with the objective
to translate into the development
of ‘airport villages' to address
‘non-passenger airport visitors',
The Company intends to design
futuristic airports, offer seamless
processes that facilitate touch-
less operations and create a
'‘gateway to goodness.’

To address this niche with the
importance it deserved, Adani
Enterprises incubated its airports
business. The Company bid for
and acquired operating interests
in 3 complement of 8 airports

Sectorial review, FY 21-22

The global aviation industry

was extensively affected by the
lockdown imposed following the
outbreak of the pandemic. By
early April 2020, the number of
international flights had declined
nearly 80% while domestic flights
had dropped 70% worldwide. The
Indian aviation sector staged an
appreciable recovery following
vaccine roll-out and the global
easing of travel restrictions.

In 2021, the Indian government
calibrated the opening of the
domestic air sector as the first

that address a quarter of India’s
air traffic consumer base of 200+
million people. The Company
intends to provide end-to-end
service integration, committed

to the achievement of the best
ASQ ratings across categories.
Besides, the business will
represent a convergence of the
Company's B2B and B2C interests;
it will represent adjacencies for
other Adani Group businesses.

The Company commenced
operations in Ahmedabad,
Lucknow and Mangaluru airports
in FY 20-21; operations in Jaipur,
Guwahati and Thiruvanthapuram
commenced from October 2021.
The Company completed the
process of acquiring Mumbai

wave of the pandemic declined
and air transport bubbles

with specific countries were
introduced. The government also
strengthened the aviation sector
through the disinvestment of Air
India, privatisation, modernisation
and the expansion of airports

in line with the regional
connectivity scheme (UDAN) and
incentivisation of maintenance,
repair and overhaul (MROs)
operations within the country.

Annual Report 2021-22

International Airport Limited.
Following the completion of
this transaction, the Company'’s
portfolio comprised seven
operational airports and one
greenfield airport.

The pride of the Company'’s
portfolio is Navi Mumbai
International Airport Limited,

a subsidiary of MIAL. The
proposed state-of-the-art airport
is expected to commence
commercial operations by
December 2024, manifested in
the ability to handle 20 MPPA
traffic (Phase 1).

| Key numbers B
200+

million, consumer base

80+ -

million, passengers

120+

million, non-passengers

(in million)
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Vision: To be the
largest airport operator
in India with 300
million+ consumer
base by 2030

Airports
Mumbai

Passenger footfalls  Airports
Jaipur
Trivandram

Mangaluru

Passenger footfalls

Guwahati

|
Ahmedabad |
|
Lucknow \
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Key highlights, FY 21-22 g

= Total passengers handled
by the Company (including
Mumbai) were ~36.9 million,
significantly affected by the
pandemic.

= Employee strength was
~2400 as on 31st March
2022.

= Revenues were 32884 crore
and EBITDA 1091 crore,
influenced by passenger
movement in the wake of the
pandemic and subsequent
national unlocking.

Our holding structure g

|
Adani Enterprises

Limited

100%

Ownership of Adani Airports
Holding entity

090

Government initiatives

Airports Authority of India (AAI)
proposes to develop more than 20
airports across Tier-1l and Tier-I11
cities in five years.

AAl proposes to develop
Guwahati as an inter-regional
hub and Agartala, Imphal and
Dibrugarh as intra-regional hubs.

AAIl proposes to invest 25,000
crore in five years to augment
facilities and infrastructure at
existing airports.

The Indian Government plans
to invest USD 1.83 billion for
the development of airport
infrastructure and aviation
navigation services by 2026.

In the Union Budget 2022, the
Indian government allocated

310,667 crore for the Civil Aviation
ministry for FY 22-23 (600.7
crore earmarked for regional
connectivity scheme UDAN and
39,259 crore for the financial
restructuring of Air India).

In Union Budget FY 21-22, the
Indian government expanded
the scope for Krishi Udaan in
convergence with Operation
Green Scheme, wherein air
freight subsidy of 50% for agri-
perishables will be provided

to North East states and four
Himalayan states/UTs. The
expansion of product coverage
will strengthen the Krishi Udaan
scheme and improve air cargo
transportation from these states.

The Company will accelerate
digital investments leading to
Pranaam services, passenger
self-service solutions, centralised
airport control center, airport
operations system, customer
relationship management and
electronic point-of-sales system.

The Company has emerged as

a sectorial outlier within only

a couple of years of entering

the business. Going ahead, the
Company intends to re-define
India's airports infrastructure
sector through gateway
development, regional footprint
growth, focus on consumers and

non-passengers and a deeper
investment in digital technology
interventions that widen
consumer choice and delight.

The Company's outlook is
underpinned by the fact that
India is expected to emerge as
the third largest aviation market
catalysed by the government'’s
decision to popularise the
public-private partnership model,
graduate India into an MRO hub,
flexible use of air space and
matured regulatory framework
with assured returns.
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Our strengths

Network 1
The Company's
portfolio comprised
seven operational
airports and one
greenfield airport,
an effective
platform to build

a network effect
for new routes
development.

Integrated

The airports
business will
leverage the
Group's existing
businesses to
develop world-class
renewable energy
infrastructure that
helps moderate the
carbon footprint of
the Group airports.

Our shareholding

Core

= Mumbai International Airport

Limited (74%)

= Ahmedabad Airport (100%)

= Navi Mumbai International
Airport Ltd. (74% by MIAL)

= Lucknow Airport (100%)

Regional

= Jaipur Airport (100%)

= Guwahati Airport (100%)

= Trivandrum Airport (100%)

= Mangaluru Airport (100%)

Framework 1
Consistent
projected cash
flows on the

basis of Airports
Economic
Regulatory
Authority

model wherein
Aggregate Revenue
Requirement

(ARR) will be
determined using
AERA's building
block approach

for five years (with
provisions for
under-recovery /
over-recovery).

Revenue
augmentation
The Company's
airports enjoy

an attractive
opportunity to
generate substantial
non aeronautical
revenue (30% used
as cross-subsidy for
ARR determination).

Extension 1
The Company
intends to develop
airports as an
urban extension,
addressing non-
passengers as well.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

BUSINESS VERTICALS

Our roads and highway

construction business

Engaged in widening and deepening India’s arterial transportation lifeline

The big picture g

The Adani Group intends

to emerge among the three
leading players of the roads
and construction business

as measured by assets under
management (operation and
under construction assets) by
2025.

092

Overview

India is one of the most attractive
road and highway construction
destinations in the world.

The country stands at an
inflection point in road building
potential. India has the second
largest road construction
throughput in the world,
stretching across 5.89 million
kilometers. This road network
transports 64.5% of all the

country’'s cargo as 90% of its total
passenger traffic uses the road
network. Road transportation

has been growing following
connectivity improvement and
lifestyle change favouring the
use of passenger and commercial
vehicles over alternatives.

Adani Enterprises entered the
business of road and highway



construction in January 2018.

It is to the Company'’s credit
that within just four years,

the Company built a portfolio
of 14 road projects and three
wastewater treatment projects,
corresponding to an investment

of approximate ¥42,000 crore,

The result is that this business
has emerged as one of the fastest
growing within the Company.

By the close of the year under
review, the business enjoyed a

Government initiatives

The Government of India
launched the National
Infrastructure Plan (NIP) and
National Monitorisation Plan
(NMP), catalysing the growth of
the roads and highways sector.

= The government proposed
multiple large infrastructure
programme like Delhi-Dehradun
and Delhi-Amritsar-Katra
expressway projects; the Ministry
plans the securitisation of the
Raipur-Visakhapatnam National
Highway project, the first mineral
highway in the country, providing
timely evacuation to a majority of
minerals created in Chhattisgarh,
Odisha and Jharkhand to
Visakhapatnam port.

= The government allocated
nearly 111 lakh crore under the
National Infrastructure Pipeline
for FY 19-25, the roads sector
likely to account for 18% of this
proposed capital expenditure.

= The Gati-Shakti Master Plan
of the Indian government will

facilitate road construction and
employment.

= |In October 2021, the Indian
government issued a notice
regarding concessions under

the Vehicle Scrapping Policy,
effective from April 2022, to
encourage owners of the vehicles
to discard old vehicles having a
higher fuel consumption cost.

The government launched a
conversion project for 15 major
roads in Agartala Smart City to
make weather-resilient roads.

The government announced a
plan to install charging stations at
an interval of 40 to 60 kilometres
on national highways to
strengthen wayside amenities. In
alignment with this plan, around
700 e-vehicle charging stations
are expected to be installed by
2023, covering 35,000 to 40,000
km of national highways.

Our certifications

ISO 9001 for Adani Road
Transport Limited and Bilaspur

Pathrapali Road Project Limited

Pathrapali Road Project

ISO 45001 for Bilaspur
Limited

Annual Report 2021-22

pan-India presence, comprising
more than 5000 lane km
footprint across Andhra Pradesh,
Chhattisgarh, Gujarat, Keralg,
Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra,
Odhisha, Telangana, Uttar
Pradesh and West Bengal.

ey numoers B
64.5

% of goods transported in
India through roads

90 -

% of passenger traffic in India
that uses the road network

14

Road projects awarded to AEL

5000+

Lane km, project length
awarded to AEL

oo B

The Company seeks to improve on
its already enhanced quality and
safety practices.

The Company seeks to tighten
project monitoring and controls.
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Budgetary provision

= |n the Union Budget FY 22-23,
a368,000 crore higher allocation
was made for roads, the highest
rise (in terms of revised estimates
of FY 21-22) among all Ministries
in FY 22-23.

= The Union Budget FY 22-23
allocated %1,99,107.71 crore to the
Ministry of Road Transport and
Highways.

= Total budgetary outlay
increased 5.5x from 333,414 crore
in FY 14-15 t0 %1,83,101 crore in
FY 21-22.

= The government proposes to
build 25,000 km of highways in
FY 22-23, factoring the fastest
pace of more than 68 km per day
compared to the highest pace of
~37 km/day in FY 20-21.

= The government also
formulated the Gati Shakti Master
Plan for developing expressways
to facilitate a faster movement of
cargo and people

wn)

=

= . . o

B Enhancing sustainability

Z

g At AEL, the long-term committed to minimise our = The Company integrated ESG

:Z(’ sustainability of our business is carbon footprint and adopt across business operations and

= built around the need to enhance resource-efficient methods in the the integration of ESG aspects for
stakeholder value. Our business following ways: critical suppliers by FY 23-24
i ilt around Environment, ) ) .

‘é’ s bu -ta OU d Environment = The Company is working = The Company integrated

S Sustainability and Governance ) . -

& o ) ; towards zero harm to life through systematic materiality

o (ESG) principles in the following ) ) ) o

= ways: its leadership commitment, assessment in its management

Cc:> ' uniform deployment of safety system.

P Our value creation model is built standards, capacity building, ) )

< . = The Company ensured inclusive

) around an integrated approach management systems and
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of Environment, Sustainability
and Governance (ESG) principles.
The Company has set out to
build India’s lifeline, connecting
remotest parts through road,
metro and railways. We are

customised processes.

= The Company implemented
sound systems to manage
environmental impacts, climate-
related risks and opportunities.

growth by undertaking CSR
initiatives aligned with business
sustainability to enhance societal
welfare.

The roads and highways construction business leverages the following strengths

The Company isin

a strong financial
position to fund large
infrastructure projects.

The Company 1
invested in

an experienced
management team
with a collective
~3,000 person years
of experience in the

completion.

The Company has
strong systems and
processes leading
to timely projects

The Company has a 1
balanced projects
portfolio comprising a
mix of HAM, BOT (toll)
and TOT.

construction and
management of large
infrastructure projects.
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Achievements, FY 21-22

= The Company added
experienced and qualified talent

= The Company implemented the
Adani Business Excellence Model
and ESG framework

= The Company bagged the
largest greenfield (Ganga)
expressway in India.

= The Company added 325000+
crore in order book; year-end
order book was 334000+ crore

Company'’s projects, FY 21-22

= Adani Road Transport (ARTL)
received a Letter of Award (LoA)
from National Highways Authority
of India (NHAI) for a road project

= The Company engaged
competent vendors/contractors
to execute projects; it resolved
issues to minimise disputes/
claims.

= The Company achieved project
milestones within given time
frames in the Suryapet and
Mancherial projects.

= Despite Iabour unavailability
and skilled manpower restrictions,
the Company operated existing

sewage treatment plants

within established performance
parameters; the Company
achieved COD of its package |l
and Il within the scheduled time
despite COVID-19 constraints.

Kagal Satara in Maharashtra
worth ¥2,008.47 crore. The
construction period for the 67-km
long road project is anticipated

to be two years from the date of
appointment, with the concession
period expected to be 18 years.

The road sector in India is
expected to record substantive
growth as the waning of the
pandemic is expected to be
complemented by frontloaded
infrastructure investments.

A total of 1,41,190 km of national
highways was completed in FY 21-

22. The nation seeks to develop
22 greenfield access control
expressways to reduce travelling
time. Apart from reducing travel
time and fuel cost, fast-track
highways will catalyse economic
development. The Ministry of
Road Transport and Highways

prioritises the moderation of the
national logistics cost from 14-
16% of GDP to 10% of the GDP in
line with the global average.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

BUSINESS VERTICALS

Our packaged food and

branded edible oils business

096

Overview

One of the biggest drivers of
India's organised edible oils sector
has come from the pandemic,
putting a priority on food hygiene.
There is a greater consumer
propensity to buy packaged oil
brands more than unpackaged
loose equivalents, resulting in

a watershed for India's edible

oils sector. The result is that a
market that was worth USD 3.54
billion in 2020 is expected to
grow 6.82 % CAGR from 2021 to
2027, reaching a probable size of
USD 5.72 billion in 2027.

What makes this a compelling
space to be present in comes
from the fact that the edible oils
import bill stood at 13.2 million
tonnes valued about 371,600
crore in 2019-20. Though India
imported a similar quantity of
edible oil in FY 20-21, the import
bill jumped 63% and touched %1.17
lakh crore due to an increase
ininternational prices. India’s
vegetable oil imports increased
from 40 lakh tonnes to 150,000
tonnes in the space of two
decades, reflecting a growth in



the country's per capita incomes
and aspirations. The reality is that
imports are expected to reach

20 million tonnes by 2030. India
produces less than half of around
2.4 crore tonnes of edible oil

consumed annually. The import of
edible oil is the third largest item
on India's import bill, next only to
crude petroleum oil and gold.

Government support

India's agriculture ministry
proposed a five-year Edible Oil
Mission plan for an estimated
expenditure 0f 19,000 crore
to reduce edible oils (palm and
soybean oil) import. The Indian
government announced a
National Edible Oil Mission-0Oil
Palm (NMEO-OP) to enhance
oilseeds production towards
cooking media self-sufficiency.
India will launch an Oilseeds
Mission, entailing investments of
%11,000 crore in the ‘cooking oil
eco system’,

The government undertook
measures to encourage and
incentivise farmers to grow
oilseeds with the objective

to reduce India's dependence

on edible oil imports. As far

as staples are concerned, the
government has been extending
loans and incentivising channel
partners to strengthen supply
chain infrastructure and enhance
adequate storage and processing
units for food grains and oilseeds.

AELls business

Adani Wilmar Limited (AWL) is
among the largest packaged

food FMCG companies in India,
offering a range of consumer
products under multiple brands.
The Company possesses a vibrant
basket of edible oils and food
staples, emerging as one of

the fastest growing food FMCG
companies in India.

AWL is present in virtually every
Indian household on the back

of a strong brand, best-in-class
infrastructure, wide and deep
distribution network and efficient
sourcing. The Company possesses
more than 50 manufacturing
facilities (including owned and
third-party units) and 85 depots
located every 200 kilometers. The
result is that AWL enjoys a reach
across 90 million+ households
and a retail reach across 1.8
million outlets.

Focus

= To become the largest food
FMCG Company in India across
key packaged food segments.

= To expand the distribution
network across rural and urban
India

= To launch new products and
brand extensions with ready-to-
cook and ready-to-eat features

Annual Report 2021-22

Our Competitive

advantage

Market leading brands

Wide and deep distribution 1
network

State-of-the-art
manufacturing capabilities

Sourcing capability across 1
market cycles

Superior products quality

Diversified products 1
portfolio

Key highlights, FY 21-22 gud

Despite the lockdowns,
the Company operated its
manufacturing units smoothly

Under the RACE programme,

the Company intends to cover
8,000 new towns in four to six
quarters, deepening its presence
down to towns with a population
of 20,000, widening its rural
footprint.

The Company strengthened its
manufacturing and R&D facilities

Seven of nine palm oil refineries
were RSPO-compliant.

Outlook, FY 22-23

AWL will strengthen its kitchen
essentials portfolio in line with its
vision to emerge as India's largest
food FMCG company.

097

(@}
o
2
o
o
2
=
m
o
<
m
P
<
m
=

S140d3d AJOLNLVLS

SIN3IWILVLS TVIONVNIH



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUTORY REPORTS

=
@
>
o
w
>
(@)
w
<
o
o
a
o
o
o

Adani Enterprises Limited

Diversified product portfolio:

The Company is engaged in

the production of packaged

food, edible oils, personal care
products and industry essentials
(including oleochemicals, castor
oil and its derivatives and de-oiled
cakes). A significant majority of
the Company's sales comprised
branded products accounting

for approximately 75% of the
edible oils and packaged food and
FMCG sales volume for FY 21-22
(excluding industry essentials
which were offered on a non-
branded basis).

State-of-the-art facilities:

The Company's 22 plants are
strategically located across ten
States in India, comprising 10
crushing units and 18 refineries.
Of the 18 refineries, 10 are port-
based to facilitate the use of
imported crude edible oil and
reduce transportation costs,
while the rest are located in

the hinterland proximate to raw
material production bases. The
Company'’s refinery in Mundra is
the one of the largest standalone
in India (capacity 5,000 MT per
day). The Company used 30

Advantages of the joint venture

Adani Group: Deep understanding
of local markets through a pan-
India Adani Group presence;
experience of the domestic
market, strong logistics and

098

leased tolling units as of 31st
March 2022, enhancing capacity
through an asset-light model.

Deep and wide reach: The
Company possesses the largest
distribution network among all
the branded edible oil companies
in India. As of 31st March 2022,
the Company was present in one
of three Indian households - a
household reach of 113 million
through its Fortune brand.

Online ecosystem: In addition to
the traditional retail distribution
channels, the Company serves
customers online through
Fortune Mart (18 outlets) and
Fortune Online (25 cities)

that provides home ordering
convenience. The Company'’s
website showcases the entire
Fortune brand products basket
with the option to shop through
other prominent e-commerce
platforms. Its B2B app (Fortune
Business) for kiranas is available
in 16 cities.

Brand: The Company’s flagship
‘Fortune’is the largest selling
edible oil brand in India.

This brand is respected for

consistency, values, dependability
and a superior cooking outcome.,
The brand accounted for a

large portion of the Company'’s
revenues in FY 21-22. The
Company’s brands address
diverse price points. ‘Fortune’
addresses premium pricing;
‘Bullet’ addresses value pricing.
The Company has a number

of masstige brands, including
‘Bullet’, ‘'King's', ‘Aadhar’, ‘Raag’,
‘Alpha’, Jubilee’, ‘Avsar’, ‘Golden
Chef' and 'Fryola’.

Integrated: The Company is
present across the value chain -
backward and forward integration
- with integrated infrastructure
helps to maintain and expand
market position.

Capacity addition: The Company
proactively anticipates capacity
requirements. Forinstance, a
large capex was undertaken by
AWL in FY17 to increase refining
capacities from approximately
9200 TPD to 16,500 TPD today.

extensive distribution presence

Wilmar Group: Largest palm

oil supplier in the world; global
sourcing capabilities; deep
technical know-how; defined risk

management policy for hedging
foreign exchange and commodity
risks; rich market intelligence;
long-standing relationships with
suppliers
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Growing responsibly

The Company deepened its
ESG framework through various
initiatives.

Edible oil / RSPO: AWL increased
traceability (up to mills) of the
sourced palm oil to 95% by

FY 21-22.1t benchmarked
operations as per Wilmar's
sustainability policy (NDPE
policy), procuring resource from
credible suppliers like Bunge,

Cargill, Viterra (ex-Glencore),
Wilmar and ADM, among others.

plants, recycling all the water
used in its processes.

Recyclable packaging:
Approximately 96% of packing
materials used could be recycled
after use.

Community uplift: AWL
implemented the SuPoshan
project as part of its corporate
social responsibility initiatives

the towards eradication of
malnutrition and anemia in India
with a focus on children O-5 years
old, adolescent girls and women
in the reproductive age.

Water conservation: AWL
prudently invested in
environment-friendly equipment;
the Company installed zero liquid
discharge facilities across major

What is driving our edible oils sector

Shift in consumer preference
to branded products: The

household consumption is set
to treble

increasingly shift to healthier
alternatives. The segment

(@}
o
2
o
o
2
=
m
o
<
m
P
<
m
=

0
Indian packaged food market . . could become USD 30 billion in >
. Expansion of retail outlets: o B c g
is expected to double to : i ) size in five years. 5
S The increasing penetration of o
USD 70 billion in 5-10 years, X : . S . Z
: organised food retail outlets is Per capita income: A rising 3
catalysed by economic growth, ) ) ) . ) n
R offering a range of options. purchasing power is derived 3
demographic dividend and . . 9
. . . . from increased per capita 3
growing e-commerce. Healthy eating habits: Indian . ) - : 4l

: incomes in India; companies

. . households are likely to . o

Growing consumption: There . are investing in better o
: double their spend on health- . ' z
is a preference for ready-to- packaging methods, materials >
focused foods and beverages . L Z
eat processed products and L and machinery to capitalise. 2
- in five years as consumers E
snacks. By 2030, India's annual 9
>
>
A
=z
2
w

0S99



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUTORY REPORTS

2
@
>
o
w
>
(@)
w
<
o
o
a
o
o
(&)

Adani Enterprises Limited

BUSINESS VERTICALS

Adani Digital Labs business
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Overview

Adani Digital Labs is one of the
most exciting initiatives of the
Adani Group. The objective of
ADL is to emerge as the Group's
digital arrowhead, investing in
cutting-edge technologies that
enhance the future-preparedness
of conventional businesses on
the one hand and deepen the
relevance of modern technology-
driven businesses on the other.

In view of this, ADL is being
positioned as more than just

3 support function within the
Adani Group. ADL is being
positioned as a strategic catalyst
that is expected to enhance the
visibility, competitiveness and
futuristic orientation of not just a
handful of businesses within the
Adani Group, but of every single
function across every single tier



across every single market across
every company of Adani Group. In
view of this, the existence of ADL
is not incidental to the success
and sustainability of Adani Group;
itisintegral toit.

Interestingly, the influence of
ADL will extend from that of a
back-end technology provider
and support system; it will extend
to engaging the Adani Group
through cutting-edge technology

with millions of India's consumers,

the backbone of its vibrant
economy. What makes this
support function relevant is that
the Adani Group (through all its
businesses) presently addresses
400 million consumers across
its businesses of airports, edible

oils, foods, gas (industrial and
retail), real estate, electricity and
financial services.

The objective of Adani Digital
Labs is to make Adani Group
future-ready for a time when
its business footprint widens
to address more than a billion
consumers by 2030. In view
of this, ADL expects to play
the role of a potent, dynamic
and responsive platform that
facilitates consumer engagement,
service and delight.

Adani Digital Labs is focused
not only on growing digital
engagements between the
Adani Group and consumer; it
intends to onboard every Adani
consumer on a digital platform

Our vision

= Digitalise and integrate
Adani's B2C businesses onto a
unified platform through the
'super app’ that addresses the
needs of diverse and demanding
stakeholders.

= Unleash the power of digital
transformation leading to
enhanced productivity, better
resource management, improved
customer engagement, faster
products delivery and higher
realisations, among others.

= Connect 120 million people
through the SuperApp by 2025
and 300-400 million people by
2030 through a range of Adani
businesses and partner services.

= Widen the breadth of services
through strategic partnerships
and acquisitions; aim to provide
an ecosystem of services that
enhance consumer value

= On-board Adani Group
customers or consumers onto

the SuperApp, engaging them
through loyalty and reward
programmes, translating into
greater consumer convenience,
increased accessibility and higher
sales for partners.

= Partner relevant brands/
companies to widen the service
spectrum.

Annual Report 2021-22

with the objective to provide
that consumer access to multiple
Adani Group services. By being
empowered through its super
app to accelerate Group growth,
capitalise on synergies, enhance
share of the consumer’s wallet
and build a stronger India, ADL
expects to grow through the
decade into a trillion-dollar
company (by valuation).

Consumer benefits of |
our disruptive SuperApp

|
At ADL, we believe that the

time is right of a consolidated
app for the following reasons

= Save storage space

= Provide a seamless,
integrated, contextualised
and efficient experience

= Provide enhanced
convenience and customer
experience

= Generate reward and loyalty
programmes
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Our approach g

]
Digitalise and integrate
Unleash digital 1
transformation

]
Connect 120 million people
Widen service breadth 1

]

On-board Adani Group
customers

Partner brands/companies 1
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Strategic partnership

The Adani Group, India's fastest-

growing diversified conglomerate,

acquired a minority stake 20%
in Cleartrip Private Limited, an
online travel aggregator and
part of the Flipkart Group, India’s
homegrown consumer internet
ecosystem.

This investment will draw on
synergies that already deliver

3 superior travel experience to
consumers. As a validation of the
extensive synergies, following

the acquisition by Flipkart Group,
Cleartrip registered 10x growth in
flight bookings. Besides, Adani-
owned or managed airports
indicate an appreciable increase
in air passengers (to around pre-
Covid levels). This partnership will
empower Cleartrip to transcend
digital boundaries and provide
end-to-end online travel services.

The investment will enhance the
strategic partnership between
Adani Group and Flipkart Group.
Cleartrip will serve as the Adani
Group's online travel aggregator

partner. Cleartrip’'s scalable
technology stack, user-friendly
interface and industry-first
initiatives have made it one of
India’'s most loved travel brands.
The Company's experienced
leadership and Flipkart's deep
consumer-focused experience
helped consolidate the Company’s
prominent OTA (online travel
agency/aggregator) position.

By collaborating with the Adani
Group in areas such as travel-
related products, loyalty programs
and other value-added services,
Cleartrip expects to provide
consumers with a seamless travel
experience.

The Company'’s relationship

with Flipkart comprises multiple
dimensions including data
centres, fulfilment centers and
air travel, raising the possibility
of extensive job creation in line
with the priorities of Atmanirbhar
Bharat. The Cleartrip platform will
graduate to become an essential
part of the broader SuperApp
journey.

Relevance

The digital world - social media
and GPS systems to artificial
intelligence and digital twins

—is accelerating disruptive
technologies and transforming
lives. These technologies possess

the capacity to reshape our world:

make work fluid and flexible,
deepen our internet dependance,
work from anywhere, enhancing
knowledge and taking humankind
ahead.

In 2021, 60.5% of India’s total
population accessed the internet

from their mobile phones. By
2025, this is likely to rise to 78.4%;
by 2030, this is likely to become
89.2% with a corresponding
increase in the number of active
Indian internet users expected

to increase from ~776.5 million in
2021 to 900 million by 2025.

Interestingly, India had 1.2 billion
mobile subscribers in 2021, of
which about 750 million were
smartphone users. The country is
poised to emerge as the second-
largest smartphone manufacturer



in five years, on the back of
compounded rural sector growth
of 6% (urban CAGR of 2.5%) from
2021 to 2026. Average wireless
data use per wireless data
subscriber of 14.6 GB per month
in FY 20-21 is expected to climb
to 40 GB by 2026.

What will make the Adani
integrated platform relevant is

that consumers will increasingly
prefer one application
COMPprising various services.

This app-lightness will enhance
convenience, speed and
responsiveness, graduating the
app from one that is functional to
one that is loved.

Competitive advantages

= Consumers embrace companies
that provide services with a

clear and intuitive interface; this
service is augmented by other
services/functions, encouraging
other merchants to partner the
SuperApp to provide services

= Enhanced trust (that
comes with brand value) and
convenience, which increases
customer transaction and
retention, while reducing
customer onboarding cost.

= Numerous offline services
can be digitised and integrated

inti one app, enhancing user
convenience

= The Company connects directly
with ~400 million consumers
and the aspiration is to graduate
the engagement to the digital
platforms

= The Adani ownership of airports
provides a large opportunity to
access the growing passenger
traffic through gateways

= Enhance stakeholder value
through superior consumer
engagement.

Government support

The Company'’s digital initiatives
are aligned with the government'’s
priority related to national
digitalisation.

Digital India is ?1,13,000-crore
flagship programme of the
Government of India, whose
vision is to transform India into a
digitally empowered society and
knowledge economy through
digital services, digital access and
digital inclusion.

The Digital India programme has
strengthened India's progression
in the UN e-Governance Index,

creation of an Aadhaar database

(world’s largest biometric-based
digital identity), BharatNet
(connecting 250,00 Gram
Panchayats), National Knowledge
Network (revolutionary state-of-
art network towards a knowledge
society), Meghraj (harness

cloud computing to create
digital entrepreneurs in towns
and villages), BPO promotion
scheme for the promotion of
BPO/ITES operations, growth in
mobile phone and electronics
manufacture, myGOV (world’s
largest digital democracy
platform).

Annual Report 2021-22

Our developments

The Company added 180
professionals across 20+
practices, 10+ platform tools,
10+ business partners like
Cleartrip.

The Company will empower
platforms that create B2C and
B2B opportunities.

The SuperApp will combine
multiple business unit apps,
built individually and merged
thereafter by 2023.

The Company assumed
digital marketing for 14 Group
businesses; their websites
possessing design and
content uniformity with SEO
optimisation.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

BUSINESS VERTICALS

Our mining business
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Overview

India is one of the best endowed
mineral repositories in the world,
possessing the largest global
deposits of various minerals.

At a time when the world is
transitioning from globalisation
to self-sufficiency, there is a
premium on the need to mine
these reserves and present

the country’'s downstream
manufacturing capacities with a
domestic head-start advantage
manifested in logistical proximity,
cost advantage and timely
resource availability.

This reality places India's mining
sector at the heart of the
Atmanirbhar Bharat initiative,
emphasising the need to
generate natural resources for
national needs, building into a
significant India advantage across
the value chain right down to
finished products, infrastructure
and national competitiveness.

In view of this, mining is not
incidental to India's growth but
represents the building block of
national prosperity.



India's consumption outlook for
various mineral resources remains
optimistic across the long-term.
India's coal consumption is
anticipated to rise 3.9% annually
to 1.18 billion tonne in 2024
based on 7.4% GDP growth rate
between 2022 and 2024, this
growth partly catalysed by the
timely availability of coal mined
from within the country.

India's iron ore production grew
20% to 246 million tonnes in
2021, servicing needs from
within India and outside. This
availability sustained the growing
manufacture of downstream steel
capacities, facilitated the export
of value-added end products
over resources and strengthened
India's forex earnings (Source:
Directorate General of

Commercial Intelligence &
Statistics).

There are credible reasons why
India’'s mining sector is at the
cusp of breakout growth. The
Indian government permitted
the opening up of the coal
mining sector for commercial
use, creating opportunities for
private players. The government
is in the process of starting
operations in around 100 mines
earlier discontinued / closed

/ abandoned. It is planning

to use about 100 MT coal for
gasification purposes to secure
India's energy needs domestically
and reduce import dependence.
The government is offering
more than 500 mines of various
minerals for auction by state
governments. The government

Power generation

In India, power is generated from
conventional (thermal, nuclear
and hydro) and renewable
sources (wind, solar, biomass
etc.). However, electricity is
largely generated through coal;
thermal power plants account for
nearly 75% of the country’'s power
generation. India's overall power
generation in December 2021
stood at 203.190 GW of electricity
from coal and 24.9 GW from gas-
fired power plants, indicating the
former’'s dominance.

The Indian thermal power plant
market is expected to register a
CAGR of around 2.3% between
2022 and 2027, higher than most
developed countries. During
COVID-19 outbreak, the share

of India's thermal power plants

declined from 72.5% to less than
two-thirds a3 month before the
lockdown.

We believe that the medium-term
outlook for thermal power plants
continued to be protected on
account of sizable generation
needed to address the stable
base load factor of thermal
plants, the government focusing
on a phased raw down of thermal
energy across the decades and
increasing industrialisation
strengthening thermal demand.

Annual Report 2021-22

intends to monetise more than
160 mining sector projects
exceeding 328,000 crore across
mining, beneficiation, first-mile
connectivity.

These realities have created an
unprecedented growth room for
India's private sector, offering a
multi-year business opportunity.

ey umoers R
63.4

(MMT), IRM volume, FY 20-21

64.4

(MMT), IRM volume, FY 21-22

17.5

(MMT), Mining services
volume, FY 20-21

277 B

(MMT), Mining services
volume, FY 21-22
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Milestones

|
Adani’s foray in coal mining
and operations beyond
borders
Mine with a total coal 1

resource of 269 MMT at
Bunyu, Indonesia

Largest exporter of 3000
Kcal coal in the world

Listed in HBA, Indonesia as 1
LIM 3010 & LIM 3000

]
Largest employer on Bunyu

island with a team of over
1000 direct and indirect
employees in FY 21-22
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Government initiatives and developments

= The National Steel Policy

aims to boost per capita steel
consumption to 160 kg by

FY 30-31. The government’s
objective is to increase rural steel
consumption from 19.6 kg per
capita to 38 kg per capita by

FY 30-31.

= In July 2021, India shipped its
first coal export consignment

to Rampal Power Plant in
Bangladesh, strengthening coal
exports. Iron ore exports reached
USD 1.7 billion in FY 21-22, an
increase of 168% YoY on account
of the low base effect of the
previous year.

= The Ministry of Mines notified
the Mineral Conservation and
Development (Amendment)
Rules in November 2021 to
provide guidelines related to

the conservation of minerals,
systematic and scientific mining
and the development of minerals
in the country for environment
protection.

= To unlock India's mineral
potential, Ministry of Mines
handed over 152 mineral block
reports to state governments
during the year under review;,
52 potential G-4 mineral blocks

(approved by the Geological
Survey of India) were handed to
15 State governments.

= |n September 2021, India and
Australia participated in a joint
working group (JWG) meeting
on coal and mines to strengthen
bilateral collaboration in the
coal sector. In September 2021,
the government approved the
Memorandum of Understanding
between the Geological Survey
of India (GSI) and the Joint Stock
Company Rosgeologia, Russia, in
the area of geosciences.

= The government took
initiatives including Mining

and Mineral Policy reforms, to
ramp production and capacity
utilisation of iron ore deposits by
government mining companies.

= |n Union Budget 2021, the
government reduced customs
duty to 7.5% on semis, flat and
long products of non-alloy, alloy
and stainless steels to enhance
MSME competitiveness. The
Indian government reduced the
import duty on copper scrap from
5% to 2.5%.

Budgetary support

= The government allocated
3393.24 crore to the Union Coal
Ministry for FY 22-23 in the Union
Budget in comparison to the
revised estimates of ¥644.09
crore in FY 21-22.

= The expenditure budget of
3393.24 crore in the FY 22-23,
included 3314.54 crore for Central
sector schemes / projects and
%12.96 crore for Coal Mines
Pension Scheme.
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AELls business

Adani Enterprises extended into
mine development and operations
in 2008. The Company addresses
the gap between coal demand
and supply through responsible
mining and imports from South
Africa, Australia, USA and Russia
in addition to other coal-rich
geographies.

The Company’'s growing industry
presence has been marked

by a sequence of positive
achievements.

Within just a decade, the
Company emerged as one of the
largest developers and operators
of coal mines in India in addition
to international footprints in
Indonesia and Australia. The
Company’'s mining projects are
located in Chhattisgarh, Madhya
Pradesh, Odisha and Jharkhand.
The Company's book size of 131
MTPA (101 MTPA coal blocks
and 16 MTPA iron ore blocks)
comprises MDO and commercial
coal mining capacities of 14
MTPA.

The Company has brought the
table a spirit of outperformance.

The Parsa East Kente Basan
project commenced production in
a record 3.5 years, a benchmark
for the coal mining industry in
India; thereafter, the project
touched peak capacity. The
Company dispatched its first

rake from the PEKB mine to
Rajasthan Rajya Vidyut Utpadan
Nigam Limited (RRVUNL) Power
Stations in March 2013. Besides,
the Company’s GPIII, Talabira Il &lll
mines became operational in less
than three years.

The Company's outperformance
was derived from proprietary
competence across the value
chain, comprising capabilities in
exploration, mine development,
construction, ore extraction,
beneficiation and transportation.
The Company possesses unigue
financial, contractual and project
management insights to manage
these projects (a number already
operational).

As India's largest resource
management company, mine
developer and operator (with a
domestic and global presence),

the Company continues to ramp
coal production capacity across
its mines. With non-fulfilment

of coal demand still addressed
by imports, the Company is
optimistic about leveraging its
integrated presence across the
supply chain with embedded
technologies to drive operational
efficiencies.

The Company leverages synergies
across various Group verticals,
extending to trading, logistics,
power generation, transmission,
distribution, ports (sea, air),
road, rail and water sectors. The
Company provides complete
assistance for establishing a
production complex i.e. land,
transportation and utilities like
power, water, etc. The Company
is also establishing one of
India's largest copper refinery
complexes.

Competitive strengths

India’s largest MDO |

player

Pan-India presence

(clientele and
minerals)

End-to-end mining
solution provider for
mine owners

Asset-light approach;
developing mines
through outsourcing

Diversified portfolio

Investment in
cutting-edge
technologies (drones
etc.)

enhancing

Projects developed
around clusters,

Gradual upgradation
in credit rating

economies of scale
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Our key customer offerings Our mining portfolio

Land acquisition

Facilitating permits and
clearances

Mine planning and design

Feasibility studies

Pit optimisation

Resource evaluation

Resource evaluation

Life-of-mine planning and
design

Mining method selection

Equipment optimisation
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Parsa east and Kente Basan
coal block: Parsa East and Kente
Basan coal block (PEKB) in
Chhattisgarh is allocated to the
Rajasthan Rajya Vidyut Utpadan
Nigam Limited (RRUVNL).
RRVUNL has undertaken a Coal
Mining and Delivery Agreement
with Parsa Kente Collieries
Limited (PKCL), a joint venture
company of RRVUNL and

Adani Enterprises Limited, and
appointed PKCL, as Sole Mining
Contractor.

PKCL as Mine Developer and
Operator of PEKB, is taking

up development, mining,
transportation and dispatch

of washed coal to electricity
projects of RRVUNL. The project
started mining operations and
transmitting coal to thermal
power stations of RRVUNL in
March 2013. Raw coal production
stood at 15 MMT and washed coal
dispatch to thermal power plants
of RRVUNL stood at 12.34 MMT in
FY 21-22.

Kente extension coal

block: Kente Extension coal block
in Chhattisgarh is allocated to
RRVUNL. Rajasthan Collieries
Limited (RCL) and RRVUNL

(a3 joint venture company of
RRVUNL and Adani Enterprises
Limited) entered into a coal
mining and delivery agreement
and appointed RCL as the only
mining contractor.

RCL is the Mine Developer &
Operator of Kente Extension Coal
Block and shall be focusing on
development of the coal block,
mining, beneficiation of coal and
scheduling for transportation and
dispatching coal to end recipient
power projects of RRVUNL. Kente
Extension is under development.

Parsa coal block: Parsa coal block
in Chhattisgarh is allocated to
RRVUNL. Rajasthan Collieries
Limited (RCL) and RRVUNL

(a joint venture company of
RRVUNL and Adani Enterprise
Limited) entered into a coal
mining and delivery agreement
and appointed RCL as the only
mining contractor. RCL, the Mine
Developer & Operator of Parsa
coal block, shall focus on the
development of the coal block,
mining, beneficiation of coal and
scheduling for transportation
and dispatching coal to power
projects of RRVUNL. The Parsa
coal block is under development.

Gare Pelma sector Il coal
block: Gare Pelma sector lll

coal block in Chhattisgarh was
allocated to the Chhattisgarh
State Power Generation
Company Ltd. (CSPGCL) for
confined use in its thermal
power plant in Chhattisgarh.
Gare Pelma Il Collieries Limited
(GPIIICL), 3 100% subsidiary of
Adani Enterprises Limited, was
appointed by the CSPGCL as Mine
Developer and Operator (MDO)
for the development, operation,
mining and dispatch of coal to
power projects of CSPGCL. On
16th November 2017, CSPGCL
and GPIICL entered into a Coal
Mine Services Agreement.
GPIIICL, as Mine Development &
Operator of Gare Pelma Sector
IIl coal block, is undertaking

the development of the coal
block, mining and arranging for
carriage and dispatching coal
to end recipient power projects
of CSPGCL. The coal block was
permitted to be opened on 26th
March 2019. Coal production
commenced on 6th December
2019 and coal produced was 3.27
MMT in FY 21-22. Coal delivery



started on 16th March 2020 and
total coal delivered in FY 21-22
was 3.52 MMT.

Talabira Il and Il coal

block: Talabira Il & Il coal block
at Odisha is allocated to NLC
India Limited (NLCIL) for confined
use in their thermal power plant.
Talabira (Odisha) Mining Private
Limited (TOMPL), a subsidiary

of Adani Enterprises Limited,

was appointed by NLCIL as Mine
Developer and Operator (MDO)
for the development, operation,
mining and dispatching of coal to
NLCIL. NLCIL and TOMPL entered
into a coal mining agreement

on 23rd March 2018. TOMPL as
Mine Development & Operator

of Talabira Il & Il coal block is
undertaking the development of
the coal block, mining, loading,
carriage and dispatching coal to
the points of delivery. The coal
block was permitted to be opened
on 29th March 2019. TOMPL
commenced operations in FY 20-
21 and coal production volumes
were 6.35 MMT in FY 21-22.

Suliyari coal block: Suliyari

coal block at Madhya Pradesh
was allocated to the Andhra
Pradesh Mineral Development
Corporation Limited (APMDC)

for merchandised mining of coal.
Adani Enterprise Limited was
appointed by APMDC as Mine
Developer and Operator (MDO)
for upgradation, operation,
mining and the delivery of coal to
APMDC. APMDC and AEL entered

How coal is dominating the market

into a Coal Mining Agreement
on 8th March 2018. AEL, as
Mine Development & Operator
of Suliyari coal block, will be
engaged in the development

of the coal block, extracting,
loading, carriage and dispatch of
coal to the point of delivery. The
Suliyari Coal block is operational
from April 2022.

Bailadila deposit -13 iron ore
mine: The mining lease of
Bailadila Deposit -13 Iron Ore
Mine in Chhattisgarh is held by
NCL (NMDC-CMDC Limited).
Adani Enterprises, as Mine
Developer and Operator (MDO)
was appointed by NCL for the
renovation, operation, extraction
and dispatch of iron ore to NCL.

NCL and AEL entered into an Iron

Annual Report 2021-22

Ore Mining Services Agreement
on 6th December 2018. AEL is
the sub-contractor to Bailadila
Iron Ore Mining Private Limited
(BIOMPL), a 100% subsidiary
company of Adani Enterprises
Limited, for the development of
the iron ore block, extraction,
loading, carriage and dispatching
iron ore to the point of delivery.
This iron ore mine is under
development.

Gare Pelma sector | coal block:
Gare Pelma sector | coal block at
Chhattisgarh has been allocated
to the Gujarat State Electricity
Corporation Limited (GSECL) to
ensure proper utilisation in their
thermal power plants in Gujarat.
On 15th December 2018, GSECL
issued a conditional Letter of

- |
India's annual coal

demand was 1.05
billion tonnes in 2021,
higher than the pre-
pandemic level of 931
million tonnes (2020)

India's energy share
is dominated by coal-
fired power demand,
likely to be catalysed
by increasing
industrialisation and
urbanisation.

strengthening

demand

Power demand likely
to be catalysed
by Power for All,

thermal power

The country plans
to commission
Uppur Thermal
Power Project in
Ramanathapuram
(capacity 1,600 MW)
by 2023
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Acceptance (LoA) to Adani
Enterprises Limited (AEL, 74%)
and Sainik Mining and Allied
Services Limited (SMASL, 26%) for
enlargement, operation, mining
and dispatching coal to final use
power projects of GSECL.

The AEL-SMASL consortium and
GSECL are yet to sign a coal mine
services agreement.

Gare Pelma sector Il coal

block: Gare Pelma Sector-Il

Coal Block at Chhattisgarh is
allocated to the Maharashtra
State Power Generation

Co. Ltd. (MAHAGENCO) for
captive use in its thermal

power plants in Maharashtra.
MAHAGENCO issued a Final
Letter of Acceptance (LoA) to
Adani Enterprises Limited (AEL)
on 5th November 2019 for the
development, operations, mining
and loading into wagons for
delivery to power projects of
MAHAGENCO. AEL formed an SPV
named Gare Palma Il Collieries
Private Limited. The Coal Mine
Services Agreement between
Gare Palma Il Collieries Private
Limited and MAHAGENCO is to be
signed. Production is anticipated
to commence by 2024.

Gidhmuri Paturia coal block:
Gidhmuri Paturia Coal Block

at Chhattisgarh is allocated

to Chhattisgarh State Power
Generation Company Ltd
(CSPGCL) for shackled use in
its thermal power plants in
Chhattisgarh. Gidhmuri Paturia

Collieries Private Limited (GPCPL),
an SPV of Adani Enterprises
Limited (AEL, 74%) and Sainik
Mining and Allied Service
Limited (SMASL, 26%) was
appointed by CSPGCL as Mine
Developer and Operator (MDO)
for the Development, operation,
extracting and dispatch of coal
to CSPGCL. CSPGCL and GPCPL
entered into a Coal Mining
Agreement on 2nd May 2019.

GPCPL, as Mine Development

& Operator (MDO) of Gidhmuri
Paturia coal block, will be
engaged in the renovation of the
coal block, mining, facilitating
transportation and dispatch of
coal. The coal block is under
development.

Kurmitar iron ore mine: The
mining lease of Kurmitar Iron Ore
Mining Private Limited in Odisha's
Sundargarh district is held by
Odisha Mining Corporation
Limited (OMCL). OMCL appointed
the Kurmitar Iron Ore Mining
Private Limited (KIOMPL), 3 100%
subsidiary of Adani Enterprises, as
the Mine Developer and Operator
(MDO) to undertake renovation,
functioning, extracting, carriage
and dispatch of iron ore to the
point of delivery. OMCL, AEL

and KIOMPL entered into an

Iron Ore Mining Agreement on
31st October 2019. The coal
production and delivery volumes
were 3 MMT respectively in

FY 21-22.

Key highlights, FY 21-22

= The Company operationalised
the Kurmitar iron ore mine.

= The Company signed an
agreement with Ministry of
Coal for Jhigador, Khargaon and
Gondkhari coal mines.
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= The Company emerged as
successful bidder for Bijahan coal
mine. The Company was also the
sole successful bidder for the
Gondbahera Ujheni East coal
mine.

Within just a
decade, the
Company
emerged as one of
the largest developers
and operators

of coal mines in
India in addition

to international
footprints in
Indonesia and
Australia. The
Company's mining
projects are located
in Chhattisgarh,
Madhya Pradesh,
Odisha and
Jharkhand. The
Company’s book
size of 131 MTPA
(101 MTPA coal
blocks and 16 MTPA
iron ore blocks)
comprises MDO and
commercial coal
mining capacities of
14 MTPA.




= The Company focused on digital
transformation, undertaking
various initiatives from efficiency
improvement to data-driven.

= The Company entered new
sectors - copper, aluminum and
cement - to reduce a dependence
on coal.

AEL and sustainability

The Company is focused on ‘green
mining’ (renewable energy) for
mining and washing as a part of
its ESG commitment.

The Company’'s business

units were mandated with
Environment, Social and
Governance (ESG) metrics and
measurement techniques.

The Company is focused on
reducing its carbon and water
footprint.

Social accounting, as measured
by the Social Return on
Investment, were aligned with
people's needs and capacity
building initiatives.

Adani's 'intelligent mining’
initiatives were driven by
digitisation with the objective
to decarbonise, strengthening

the Company’s sustainability
credentials.

Even as the Company’s
sustainability personality is
inspired by SDG Millennium
Goals, they have been customised
around local needs and ongoing
sustainability

The Company is committed to
promote talent diversity and
inclusion (individuals of different
genders, religions, races, ethnicity
and education), enriching its
workplace through different
perspectives

The Company's policies are woven
around sustainability, biodiversity,
re-wilding, holistic and inclusive
growth to balance the objectives
of the business, environment and
society

Annual Report 2021-22

Outlook, FY 22-23 g

There is scope for additional
capacities related to iron ore,
bauxite and coal mining based
on proven deposits in addition to
prospective sub-surface deposit
discovery opportunities. The
various infrastructure projects
rolled out across the country
continue to provide attractive
business opportunities for the
Company. The Company is
focused on mine portfolio growth
and diversification in a socially
sustainable manner.

m

(@}
o
2
o
o
2
=
m
o
<
m
P
<
m
=

S140d3d AJOLNLVLS

SIN3IWILVLS TVIONVNIH



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUTORY REPORTS

=
@
>
o
w
>
(@]
w
<
o
o
a
o
o
(8]

Adani Enterprises Limited

mnz

Adani Australia is @ multi-dimensional energy and infrastructure company,
dedicated to delivering energy solutions. By providing energy solutions in
Australia and Asia-Pacific from thermal and renewable energy, we will create
jobs and help fund major infrastructure upgrades to hospitals, schools and
roads by contributing billions of dollars in taxes and royalties to the Australian
economy.

Adani Australia owns and operates Abbot Point Terminal, ‘exporting’ coal
responsibly from Queensland for more than 35 years. This is Australia’'s most
northerly coal port and located 25 kilometres north-west of Bowen, in North
Queensland. The port is 3 modern, high volume, fast turnaround port complex
with natural deep water and a multi-user port facility (capacity 50 MTPA).

Adani Renewables Australia's first solar farm Rugby Run near Moranbah

was commissioned in October 2019, supplying 65MW of renewable energy,
powering about 23,000 Queensland homes. A power purchase agreement
was signed to market 80% energy generated. More than 247,000 solar panels
had been installed, generating 185,000MWh of power each year. Adani
Renewables Australia is also engaged in commercial negotiations for its
second solar farm in Whyalla.

Adani Mining Pty Ltd. is an Australian mining company that operates out of
regional Queensland. Adani Mining's flagship development is the Carmichael
mine and rail project, located more than 300km west of the Queensland coast,
the Carmichael project is ideally positioned to maximise the opportunities that
the Galilee Basin presents.

The Carmichael Project is a thermal coal mine and rail project, which will
transport coal from the Galilee Basin to countries in Asia, including India,
generating employment opportunity for Queenslanders in the process.

By delivering a 10 million tonne per annum mine, combined with a 200km
narrow gauge rail line that connects with existing rail infrastructure to the
Port of Abbot Point, communities like Townsville, Rockhampton, Mackay,
Bowen, Gladstone, Central Highlands and the Isaac regions are ideally
positioned to receive new jobs and contract opportunities for local workers
and businesses.



AEL: India's largest mining services player

Annual Report 2021-22

Gondbahera Ujheni East

Type of project Mine Capacity State Project status
Coal mining Parsa East Kente Basen 15 MMT Chhattisgarh Operational
Gare Pelma Il 5 MMT Chhattisgarh
Talabira Il & 11l 20 MMT Odisha
Suliyari 5 MMT | Madhya Pradesh
Parsa 5 MMT Chhattisgarh Under development
Gidhmuri Pituria 6 MMT Chhattisgarh
Kente Extension 7 MMT Chhattisgarh
Gare Pelma Il 23 MMT Chhattisgarh
Gare Pelma | 15 MMT Chhattisgarh LOA received
Iron ore mining Kurmitar 6 MMT Odisha Operational
Bailadila Deposit 13 10 MMT Chhattisgarh Under development
Commercial coal Gondulpara 4 MMT Jharkhand Under development
mining Dhirauli | 5MMT | Madhya Pradesh
Jhigador | TBD| Chhattisgarh
Khargaon ‘ TBD ‘ Chhattisgarh
Bijahan ‘ 5 MMT ‘ Odisha Agreement yet to be executed
|

TBD  Madhya Pradesh

Our integrated resources management business

The Company also provides a
door-to-door resource delivery
model.

This comprises the responsibility
and accountability of sourcing
resources from suppliers,
managing sea-borne logistics,
providing an intermediate
holding facility at discharge
ports and delivering resources to
customers.

This unique approach has allowed
the business to create more

600 satisfied customers across
various downstream industries
(power, cement, iron and steel,
among others).

The Company ventured into coal
management in 1999 to address
the gap in the requirement of
coal at thermal power plants and
the coal needs of the nation.

During the last couple of decades,
AEL retained its position as the
largest coal supplierin India and

a major supplier of important
minerals worldwide. The Company
is the largest coal importerin
Indonesia; it is one of the leading
revenue earners for Indian
Railways.

The Company is India's largest
non-coking coal off-takerin
Indonesia, South Africa and USA,

servicing private and PSU clients
in India.

The Company imports coal
through all major Indian ports,
reducing logistics cost and
ensuring timely delivery.

The Company's complement

of 10 marketing offices (four
international), 18 branch centres
and 20 operational ports has
translated into unchallenged
market leadership. The Company
enjoys a presence in the growing
coal markets of Sri Lanka,
Thailand, Vietnam, China and
Dubai.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

BUSINESS VERTICALS

Our agro products business

mna

Overview

India's agricultural industry
accounts for a significant part
of the Indian economy through
GDP contribution and livelihoods
generation. India is the second-
largest producer of fruit and
vegetables in the world and the

fourth largest agricultural nation.

However, India ranks 103rd in
the Global Hunger Index (GHI).
Nearly 40% of the food produced
in India is wasted each year due
to fragmented food systems and
inefficient supply chains even

before the food is delivered to the
consumer.

On the other hand, there is

a rising demand for fruit and
vegetables, growing population,
increased disposable incomes
and higher aspirations. The
government is promoting
investments in the agricultural
sector, specifically food
processing and cold chain,
through schemes and subsidies
to enhance national capacity,
moderate national losses



and enhance fresh produce
availability for customers.

India's domestic apple production
in market year (MY) 21-22

was estimated at 2.3 million
metric tonnes (MMT), largely
unchanged from the previous
season. Improved fruit quality

was expected due to favorable
weather conditions, normalised
labour availability and supply
chain recovery. The state of
Himachal Pradesh contributed
to 20% of the country's apple
production.

Annual Report 2021-22

Government support

= The Government announced a
PLI scheme for food processing
sector with an incentive outlay
0f %10,900 crore over six months
starting from FY 21-22.

= Schemes like Paramparagat
Krishi Vikas Yojana helped in
developing organic clusters

and chemical-free inputs for
farmers. The high proportion

of agricultural land (157 million
hectares) and diverse agro-
climatic conditions encouraged
the cultivation of different crops.
With 20 agri-climatic regions, all
15 major climates in the world
exist in India and India possesses
46 of 60 global soil types.

= The Indian Agriculture Export
Policy, 2018, was approved by the
Government of India in December
2018. The new policy was

aimed to increase the country'’s
agricultural export to USD 60
billion by 2022 and USD 100
billion in the next few years with
a stable trade policy regime.

= Under the 10th instaliment of
PM-KISAN, over 320,000 crore
was transferred to more than
10 crore beneficiary farmer
families. Under the PM-KISAN

Scheme, over 1.60 lakh crore was
transferred to more than %11.54
crore farmers till 2021

= Asurge in the international
price of fertilisers and key
ingredients is estimated to
enhance fertiliser subsidy to 31.38
lakh crore in FY 21-22

= Growing institutional credit
was provided, increasing MSP,
introducing new schemes like
Paramparagat Krishi Vikas Yojana,
Pradhanmantri Gram, Sinchai
Yojana, Sansad Adarsh Gram
Yojana and opening the export of
wheat and rice.

= |nitiatives like Kisan Rath
(mobile app for farmers, FPOs
and traders) were undertaken,
which included 200+ Kisan Rails
and Krishi Udaan Scheme for
transportation of produces, and
perishable cargo centres, cold
storage facilities at airports,
inland container depot and cargo
terminals and warehouses.

= Amazon.com, Microsoft and
Cisco Systems were among
expertise giants seeking to
harness data from India’'s farmers
in a formidable government-

led productiveness drive aimed
towards enhancing the efficiency
of the agricultural sector.

= With an investment of USD
272 billion in agritech and allied
segments by 2030, India can
generate USD 813 billion in
revenue, creating 152 million jobs
and becoming the largest private
sector player in the country.

ey umoers R

Controlled Atmosphere (CA)
facilities with a cumulative
capacity of 22,400 MT

17000+

Registered growers
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Adani Enterprises Limited

The rationale p——

India's fresh fruit business
rides higher demand
following a post-pandemic
need for increased immunity
and the possibility of fresh
produce figuring deeper in
food habits. Farm-Pik plans
to create a multifruit basket
to address growing perennial
demand across all population
segments.

116

AELls business

= The Adani Group, with the help
of subsidiary Adani Agri Fresh
Ltd. (AAFL), was the first large
player to commence business

of apple purchase, storage and
marketing in 2006. The Company
conducted operations through
state-of-the-art controlled
atmospheric storages in the apple
belt of Shimla District (Himachal
Pradesh).

= AAFL brought about a
revolution in Himachal Pradesh'’s
apple industry in 15 years,
manifested in an exponential
income and awareness growth

among farmers. This approach is
to be replicated in other States

= The Company enjoys a
competitive advantage through
longstanding infrastructure
investments and the largest built
storage capacity in its category
(22,500 MT) in Himachal Pradesh.

= The Company’'s Farm-Pik brand
enjoys leadership, riding superior
quality and broadbased pan-India
distribution network.

Competitive strengths

Infrastructure: The biggest
strength is the Company'’s state-
of-the-art infrastructure, the
largest in India's fresh produce
sector.

Storage: The Company leveraged
the latest controlled atmosphere
technology to enhance produce
shelf life.

Experience: The Company has
been engaged in fresh produce
procurement and marketing for
more than 16 years, enjoying
significant visibility.

Farmer base: The Company works
with a large farmer base (around
17,000 registered farmers),

an attractive advantage in
addressing growing fresh produce
demand.

Procurement; The Company
possesses the capacity to procure
nearly 20,000 MT of apples,
making it the largest corporate
player in infrastructure storage
and fresh produce procurement.

Supply chain: The Company
possesses the capacity to supply
fresh apples perennially across
the country, empowered by an
extended storage facility for nine
months

Technology: The Company

has invested in cutting-edge
technologies, extending product
life and enhancing quality

Network: The Company’s pan-
India marketing network makes
it possible to reach products to
under-served markets



Partnerships: The Company
enjoys sales alliances with
modern format stores

and e-commerce players,
strengthening offtake

Supply chain shift

The Company implemented

supply chain changes through the

following methods:

= The legacy traditional purchase
model in boxes was replaced

by digital sorting and grading
(colour, size and weight),
strengthening farmer revenues

= The purchase is based on pre-
decided prices of various grades
of apples, countering market
and intermediary malpractices,
strengthening farmer incomes

= The farmers serviced distant
markets without a corresponding
realisations risk.

= The technical knowhow of
farmers increased by connecting
them to global buyers,
strengthening productivity

= The Company helped enhance
farmer incomes and aspirations

Enhancing sustainability

A stronger focus on environment,
social and governance standards
has helped enhance the
Company's brand in terms of
dependability, responsibility,
sustainability, talent recruitment
and responsiveness to new
opportunities.

The Company focuses on
enhancing grower knowledge
through scientific programmes
addressed by subject matter
experts, sharing information
about technical innovation and
building the movement towards
sustainability.

The Company entered joint
ventures with respected
companies to develop model
orchards in their sites where
farmers are taught advanced
practices to enhance knowledge
in reducing post-harvest losses.

The Company marketed superior
anti hail nets to farmers at
subsidised costs to reduce losses

and protect incomes,

The Company enhanced
livelihoods through recruitments
based on qualifications and
experience; vendors were
introduced to different
opportunities to enhance their
business.

The Company conducted rural
medical camps through Adani
Foundation, marked by the free
distribution of medicines for
the marginalised; it assisted
the rural community and local
administration during the
pandemic through free food

distribution for migrant labourers

in addition to the distribution
of masks and sanitisers. The
Company organised free
vaccinations for employees,
contractors and their families.

Annual Report 2021-22

What is driving our sector

|
Growing population: India is

the second-largest populated
country with near 18% of

the global population, an
incentive for farmers to adopt
improved technologies to
enhance food output

Rising disposable incomes:
Increased disposable
incomes and aspirations are
incentivising investments in
irrigation, seeds, equipment,
fertilisers, warehousing and
cold storage.

Bio-diversity: India
encompasses diverse climatic
conditions and soil types
suitable for the cultivation

of cereals, fruits, vegetables,
flowers, cash crops etc.

Contract farming: The
introduction of contract
farming reduces the load
on the central and state
level procurement system
by increasing private sector
investments and higher
exposure to world-class
agriculture technologies

Organised retail: The
emergence of modern retail
has catalysed the agriculture
industry, eliminating
intermediaries and
remunerating farmers better.

mnz
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Outlook, FY 22-23 g

The Company will focus on
building a team for each fruit
vertical across different states,
enhancing throughput and
widening its product basket.

The Company is engaged with
various service providers to
protect produce quality and
shelf life. It seeks to increase its
Jammu & Kashmir footprint to
procure and store apples through
multiple models that increase
procurement volumes. Besides,

it intends to improve grading
machine performance to enhance
product quality. It seeks to build
business relationships with
e-commerce and modern format
stores.

118

Enhancing stakeholder value

The Company has played an
important role in enhancing
farmer incomes through
responsible disintermediation,
securing payments and creating
a transparent (per gram) payment

method in the interest of growers,

enhancing systemic integrity.

The Company catalysed the
business of local transporters,
especially through off-season
dispatch volumes. Local youth
were provided employment within
on the basis of their educational
qualifications, strengthening rural
livelihoods.

Key highlights, FY 21-22

The Company contributed
significantly to improve the
technical knowledge of farmers
through the arrangement of
various scientific programs as per
new innovations and contributing
to increased productivity and
quality.

The Company commenced the
farming of pomegranates and
mangoes.

Farm-Pik widened its portfolio
with grapes, pomegranates
and mangoes in Maharashtra,
Rajasthan and Gujarat,
strengthening its perennial
relevance.

The Company promoted small
packaging of fruit categories to
address the affluent.

The Company commenced a pilot
apple project in Uttarakhand in
collaboration with Directorate of
Horticulture, Uttarakhand.

The Company outperformed

its sector despite stressed

market conditions on account

of a strong farmer base, which
helped procure sizably for storage
despite poor quality on the field
due to various environmental
factors.

Despite extensive pan-India
farmer protests, the operations
team performed creditably at the
field and plant levels, resulting in
targeted procurement quantity.

The Company initiated a pilot
trading project along with
procurement in the Shimla
district, which was managed
creditably.

The Company arranged scientific
farm programs in joint ventures
with renowned agri-input
companies to assist farmers
increase productivity and quality.



Sorting

The Farm-Pik promise

Annual Report 2021-22

Produce is
conveyed in the
sorting machine

Produce passes
through camera
units to sort

as per size and
colour grade

The storage 1

bins are moved
to Controlled
Atmosphere (CA)
chambers

Sorted produce is
stored accordingly
in intermediate
storage bins
(along with
farmer's reference
details)

Controlled Apples can be In traditional | CA technology 1 Technology .
atmosphere preserved for pro‘d'u'ct handling permits farmers driven;
nine months facilities, farmers to harvest atmosphere
(CA) chambers with protected need to harvest produce in controlled by
nutrition all the produce parts and reach regulating relative
AAFL facilities humidity, carbon
at convenience dioxide and
and capitalise on oxygen
better realisations
CA storage Placement Monitoring of ® [ controlied 1 Benefits: |
of applesin temperature, atmosphere slows Extended storage
large airtight oxygen, carbon- respiration and life, fruit firmness,
refrigerated dioxide and ripening reduces storage
rooms humidity disorders, higher
realisations,
better nutrient
retention and
effective disease
control
Pre-sorting Latest high- Special cups Automatic crate Special bins for
system end eight-lane suitgble for dumping the storage of
automatic sorting apples of apples
equipment different shapes
and sizes
Produce sorted Gentle bin fillers CCD cameras All contact parts Integrated
according to size, to avoid fruit used for sorting made of food software

colour and weight

damage

by size and colour

grade material

Packing system

Integrated
software

Latest high end
4-lane automatic
equipment

Apple washing
in bin dumper
with chlorine
treatment before
packing

Special cups for
sorting apples of
different shapes
and sizes

Additional
provision of
colour and size
grading

Produce sorted
according to
weight

CCD cameras for
sorting by size
and colour

Bin de-stackers

Fruit contact
equipment made
of food-grade
material
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Adani Enterprises Limited

BUSINESS VERTICALS

Our defence sector business

120

Overview

India accounts for 3.7% of
global military spending,
making it the world's third
highest military spender. The
country stands at an inflection
point as far as this sector is
concerned. Even as defence
sector spending continues

to rise, there is likely to be a
decisive change in the spending
pattern. The Government of
India is emphasising the need
for self-reliance in defence
equipment manufacture in
line with the 'Make in India’

initiative, a large departure
from the past when a large part
of India’s defence equipment
would be imported. Besides, the
proposed corporatisation of the
Ordnance Factory Board (OFB)
could help induct state-of-the-
art technologies and enhance
operating efficiencies. Besides,
various opportunities have

been created for India’s defence
sector, encouraging private
sector participation through
the articulation of long-term
policies. The Government of India



enhanced FDI in India's defence
sector up to 74% through the
automatic route for companies
seeking new defence industrial
license and up to 100% through
the government route.

The time is opportune for the
sustainable growth of this sector.
Technologies are evolving,
putting a premium on the need to
contemporarise equipment and
weapons. A number of countries
are increasing their defence
spending, making it imperative
for India to increase its defence
budget. These realities will create
room for the replacement of
equipment on the one hand while
addressing the need for increased
spending.

This potential is reflected in

the numbers. India's defence
and aerospace manufacturing
market was valued at 385,000
crore in 2021, expected to reach
%1 lakh crore by 2022 and could
grow to USD 70 billion by 2030.
Besides, the Indian defence
market represents an accessible
cumulative revenue generation
opportunity of USD 306.95 billion
between 2021 and 2030.

The evolution of India's defense
sector from imports to self-
reliance is expected to transform
the sector’'s global positioning

as well. According to the
Stockholm International Peace
Research Institute Report 2020,
India is among top leading 25

Government policies

= To support defence sector
modernisation, capital outlay
increased 18.75% in the Union
Budget FY 21-22 over the
preceding year, the highest
increment in 15 years. In this
Union Budget, 68% of the capital
procurement was proposed to be
earmarked for domestic industry
and 25% of the R&D budget
earmarked for industry, start-ups,
and academia.

= The Ministry of Defence
formulated a draft Defence
Production and Export Promotion
Policy 2020 (DPEPP) to position
India among leading exporters

in the defence and aerospace
sectors. The DPEPP 2020

pillars comprised the following:
Reform procurement ecosystem,
Indigenise and support MSME
and start-ups, Optimise resource

allocation, Promote investments,
FDI and ease of doing business,
Promote innovation and R&D,
Encourage and reform DPSUs and
OFB, Provide quality assurance
and testing infrastructure and
Promote exports

= The government released
Defence Acquisition Procedure
2020 (DAP) to transform India
into a global manufacturing hub
with a focus on indigenously
designed, developed, and
manufactured weapon
systems. The DAP 2020 offset
guidelines were revised to
incentivise the discharge of
offsets with a preference to
Indian defence equipment
manufacturing companies to
manufacture complete defence
products (over components or
sub-parts).

Annual Report 2021-22

defence product exporting
nations. The government set a
target of ¥35,000 crore export

in aerospace and defence good
services by 2024-25, which could
graduate India towards the global
defence supply chain.

The government aims to ensure
transparency, predictability,

and ease of doing business by
creating a robust ecosystem and
supportive government policies.
Towards this end, the government
has taken initiatives to de-license,
de-regulate, promote export and
liberalise foreign investment.

(15 numoers S
2.1

% of GDP spent on defence
(FY 21-22)

15

% of share in global arms
import

5.25

Ztrn, Union Budget allocation
to the defence sector
(FY 22-23)

19 B

%, increase in defence capital
expenditure (FY 21-22)

121

(@}
o
2
o
o
2
=
m
o
<
m
P
<
m
=

S140d3d AJOLNLVLS

SIN3IWILVLS TVIONVNIH



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUTORY REPORTS

2
@
>
o
w
>
(@)
w
<
o
o
a
o
o
o

Adani Enterprises Limited

AELS strengths p—

= |ndia’s first private sector
UAV manufacturer-exporter

= |ndia’s first and only private
small arms manufacturing
facility

= |ndia’s first company to
implement counter-drone
systems for airports

= India's first comprehensive
aircraft services being built

Outlook, FY 22-23 g

The Defence Ministry has set

a target of 70% self-reliance

in weaponry by 2027, creating
attractive prospects for industry
players. The introduction of Green
Channel Status Policy to promote
private sector investments in
defence production could widen
the Company’s portfolio.
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= Under the Atmanirbhar Bharat
thrust of the Government of India,
the country’'s Ministry of Defence
prepared a list of 209 items
(Positive Indigenisation List) for
which there would be an embargo
on the import beyond the timeline
indicated against them, a wide
opportunity to the sector to
manufacture these items.

= |n the defence sector, the
Strategic Partnership (SP) Model
envisaged the establishment of
long-term strategic partnerships
with defence manufacturing
companies in India through a
transparent and competitive
process, wherein they would tie

up with global Original Equipment
Manufacturers (OEMs) to seek
technology transfers to set

up domestic manufacturing
infrastructure and supply

chains. For the manufacture of
indigenous defence equipment
in three years (FY 18-19 to FY
20-21), the Government accorded
Acceptance of Necessity for 119
proposals worth around 214,255
crore.

AELs business

The Company ventured into
Defence & Aerospace in 2017 with
3 vision to help transform India
into a destination for world-class
high-tech defence manufacture.
Within a short time, the Company
built a comprehensive ecosystem
of defence products across

small arms, precision guided
munitions, unmanned aerial
systems, structures, electronics,
radars, EW systems and
simulators, among others. The
Company is focused on building
proprietary technologies through
complementary collaborations.

Key highlights, FY 21-22

The Company bagged contracts
for over 1,000 crore from the
Indian Armed Forces including
the first small arms contract
awarded to a private sector small
arms manufacturer.

The Company formally signed the
first development cum production
partner contract with Defence
Research and Development
Organisation (DRDO) for the Long
Range Guided Bombs for the

Indian Air Force. The Company
will undertake the design and
development of the smart guided
bomb system along with DRDO
and shall be appointed as the sole
supplier to the India Air Force.

The Company started delivering
Air Defence Fire Control Radars
to the Indian Army, comprising a
contract valued in excess 0of ¥900
crore.
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Operations, FY 21-22

The pandemic-induced
lockdown in various states

of the country disrupted the
Company's operations. However,
the Company continued to
operate safely while protecting
employees.

Despite manufacturing
challenges, the Company
continued to ramp production
of Hermes 900 fuselage,
maintaining its culture of

zero defects, zero rework and
zero safety record for three
consecutive years. The continued
success represents a testimony
to the Company’s excellence in
industrialisation, engineering
and quality systems and the
ability to deliver products with
zero-concessions. The Company
is expected to bag an additional
contract for 22 shipsets of
Hermes 900 fuselages to be
delivered over 36 months.

The Company commenced
operations of the MiG29
simulator at Adampur under a
20-year Build Operate Maintain
Contract with the Indian Air
Force.

Small arms and ammunition: The
Company ventured into small
arms manufacture by acquiring

a majority stake in PLR Systems
in 2021, In line with its vision to
build unique capabilities aimed
at enhancing indigenisation
capabilities in India, the Company
commissioned the first barrel
manufacturing facility in the
private sector. It also enjoyed

the privilege of being the first
private sector company in India to
be awarded a small arms supply
contract by the Indian Armed
Forces. With the commissioning
of the barrel line in the third

quarter of FY 21-22, the Company
expanded its manufacturing
capacity to over 100,000 small
arms per year and emerged as
the only facility to achieve 100%
indigenisation in this space.

The Company intends to deepen
its presence in the personnel
security domain with the
establishment of a state-of-the-
art small caliber ammunition
manufacturing facility in
Hyderabad. The manufacturing
facility is expected to be
commissioned by the third
quarter of 2023 with an installed
capacity to produce 100 million
rounds per annum for all major
small arms.

Counter drone systems: With
the rising threat of rogue drones
threatening India's borders

and critical infrastructure,

the Company emphasised its
presence in the counter-drone
domain with successful live
demonstrations of the Rudrav
Counter Drone System across
customer locations. The Rudrav
System has been the most
sought-after system across
various customers; it will be
deployed at multiple airports
under a unique availability-based
model providing the airports 24x7
security against rogue drone
threats. The Company intends to
strengthen traction to provide
proven security solutions. The
Company was chosen as the
Development cum Production
Partner for the indigenously
designed Counter Drone Solution.

Missiles: Building on the strong
foundation for an indigenous
missile system, the Company
was chosen as a development
partner by DRDO for the maiden

project under the Development
cum Production Partner Model.
Under the DcPP Model, the
Company shall undertake the
design and development of a
smart guided bomb system with
DRDO and will be appointed as
the sole system supplier to the
India Air Force. The Company was
awarded another DcPP Contract
for UAV Launched Precision
Guided Missiles for the Indian
Armed Forces, widening the
missile portfolio. The Company
was chosen for the development
of a swarm drone system around
a unique algorithm, enabling
these drones to operate in 3-GPS
denied environment.

Aircraft services and MRO:

The Maintenance, Repair, and
Overhaul (MRO) sector, which
ensures the availability and
airworthiness of aircrafts, is of
critical importance to Indian
and global aerospace & defense
industry. The Indian MRO industry
size is expected to grow from
USD 1.7 billion in 2021 to USD
4.0 billion by 2031 - a compound
annual growth rate (CAGR) of
8.9% against the expected global
CAGR of 5.6%. The Company
continues to build one-stop
solutions for all aircraft-related
services across India and South
Asia focused on multiple areas
like aircraft maintenance,
overhaul and repair, component
services, training, simulators,
digital solutions and airport
services.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

BUSINESS VERTICALS

Our copper business
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The big picture

Copperis fundamental to modern
life, often referred to as a building
block from cars to electronics.
Because of this, copper demand
has grown in line with global
economic growth, making the
metal a reliable commodity with
which to track long-term business
cycles. It would be reasonable

to communicate that copper
represents the building block of
the modern world, a fair proxy of
economic growth and prosperity.

On account of its properties,
singularly or in combination,

of high ductility, malleability,

and thermal and electrical
conductivity as well as its
resistance to corrosion, copper
has become a major industrial
metal (ranking third after iron and
aluminum by quantity consumed).
The major copper applications
comprise electrical wires (60%),
roofing and plumbing (20%) and
industrial machinery (15%).



Copperis used in building
construction, power generation
and transmission, electronic
product manufacturing, and

the production of industrial
machinery and transportation
vehicles. Copper wiring and
plumbing are integral to
appliances, heating or cooling
systems and telecommunications
links. Copper is an essential
component in the motors, wiring,
radiators, connectors, brakes and
bearings used in cars and trucks.
The average car contains 1.5
kilometers (0.9 mile) of copper

The global copper market was
estimated at USD 255,160 million
in 2022 and forecast to grow

to a readjusted USD 343,900
million by 2028 at a CAGR of 5.1%
(Source: Bloomberg).

Interestingly, 73% of the global
power generation will come

from renewable energy sources
by 2050 and copper will

play a significant role in that
transformation. Solar and wind
energy farms are extensively
dependent on copper, comprising
cabling and heat exchange in
solar and wind farms. For starters,

Annual Report 2021-22

electric vehicles, used in EV
batteries, coils, wiring and
charging stations. By 2030, more
than 250,000 tonnes of copper
will be needed as part of windings
in electric traction motors in EVs.
(Source - Visual Capitalist)

India's annual refined copper
requirement is estimated at
nearly 700,000 tonnes; 95% of
the country’'s consumption is
addressed through imports. India's
infrastructure expansion, coupled
with growth in population,
aspirations, urbanisation, electric
vehicles and renewables sector
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. wind farms can contain anywhere are expected to drive the next >

copper ranges from 20 kilograms - c

. between 4 to 15 million pounds of round of copper demand across 3

(44 pounds) in small cars to ) S,

i . copper; solar photovoltaic farms the foreseeable future. 2

45 kilograms (99 pounds) in : »

; ) require 9,000 pounds of copper m

luxury and hybrid vehicles. or meaawatt of ener 3

(Source: Geoscience News and P 9 9. ﬁ
Information). Besides, copper is critical to
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The global demand for copper account of the extensive under- Demand for electric vehicles will >

has consistently been ahead penetration. India's per capita require five times more copper %

of supply. The global demand- copper consumption is less than 1 than normal vehicles. Besides, é

supply gap doubled from 0.3
million tonnes in 2015 to 0.6
million tonnes in 2020. India’s
long-term copper market appears
to be attractively optimistic on

kg, lower than the global average
of 3.2 kg and China's 5.4 kg.

The demand outlook for copper
is robust for a relevant reason.

renewable energy, infrastructure
growth and electricity demand
are emerging as robust copper
demand catalysts.

1 "0 10 °
Kg, per capita Kg, per capita Kg, per capita MMT, planned MMT, targeted
copper global copper copper capacity of capacity of the
consumption in consumption consumption in the Company's Company by
India China copper capacity 2030
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Kutch Copper Limited’s positioning

At Kutch Copper Limited, our
vision is to emerge as a globally
admired copper business
committed to building India and
enhance value for stakeholders
through trust and courage.

Copper is a key raw material
linked to the Adani Group's
infrastructure portfolio

(energy and transportation),
strengthening national self-
reliance and securing its supply
chain.

The Company is replicating

the Adani Group's established
business model with the objective
to emerge the largest, generate
free cash flows and enhance
stakeholder value.

Government initiatives

= |n April 2021, the Directorate
General of Foreign Trade

(DGFT) updated the import
policy for copper and aluminum,
amended from ‘free’ to ‘free with
compulsory registration’ under
the non-ferrous metal import
monitoring system (NFMIMS),
effective from 12th April 2021.

= To accelerate copper

recycling, the Indian government
announced a reduction in the
import duty on copper scrap from
5% to 2.5% in the Union Budget
2021.

= The industry body Assocham
requested the Indian government
to reduce the customs duty on

copper concentrate from 2.5%
level to zero to provide a level-
playing field and help the industry
compete with the import of value-
added copper products from

the free trade agreement (FTA)
countries under nil duty.

Competitive strengths

KCL was incorporated as a 100%
subsidiary of Adani Enterprises
Limited (AEL).

AEL emphasised the
identification and development
of beneficiation and value-
creation opportunities, leading
to successful diversification and
growth.

The Company will leverage the
Adani Group's transformative
investment model across the
development, operations and
post-operational phases.

The Company instituted a
best-in-class team with deep
domain experience of more than
350 person-years in the metals
segment.

KCLs scale and inter-business
synergies could generate a
competitive advantage, marked
by cutting-edge technology,
resource trading competence and
energy infrastructure.

The Company will enhance value
for stakeholders and investors
through the manufacture of

by-products, including precious
metals (gold and silver) and
sulphuric acid, which can be
partly converted to phosphoric
acid, a key input for the fertiliser
industry.

The Company retains the
option to explore value-added
downstream opportunities like
copper tubes.

Enhancing sustainability

KCLls plant has been designed
keeping environment
sustainability in mind.

The Company will not only comply
with the existing environmental
norms, but also position itself as a
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global benchmark.

A third of the Company'’s plant
area will comprise green belt,
investing ~15% of its project cost
in environment protection.

Adani's ESG framework has
been based around the guiding
principles of United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals
(UNSDG) and standards under
Global Reporting Index (GRI).
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KCL expects to emerge 3as the annum by then. sustained urbanisation resulting
largest single-location copper in a larger demand for air-
smelting complex in the world conditioning systems, electric
by 2030, doubling its planned vehicles and renewable energy.
capacity to 1.0 million MT per

The demand for copper is
expected to progressively
strengthen on account of

Our key focus areas

Water management | Waste management 1 Ambient air quality |

KCL is designing its The Company will aim at The ambient air emissions

manufacturing complex towards generating value from wastes are being designed around g

zero liquid discharge and like slag and gypsum. being better than international 2

complete water recycling. The standards. %

Company will generate value §

from waste, promoting a circular =

economy. g
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Adani Enterprises Limited

BUSINESS VERTICALS

Our petrochem business
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Overview

India is emerging as a global
hub for petrochemicals, the
industry valued at USD 40 billion
within the country. The industry
generates livelihoods for over

a million people; it provides
resources to industries like
pharmaceuticals, construction,
agriculture, textiles and
automotive, among others. India
ranks sixth in the world by size
in terms of chemical sales and
accounts for 3% of the global
chemicals industry.

The petrochemicals sector is

expected to emerge as the
primary driver of the global oil
and gas sector, accounting for
more than a third of incremental
oil and gas demand by 2030.
This is expected to be driven by
the growth and profitability of
petrochemical products (around
3% CAGR over the decade) and
stagnating global fuel demand
(around 1% CAGR).

Over this decade, a majority of

incremental capacity is expected
to emerge in Asia (around 65% of
greenfield global capacity), which



could help the region reduce its
import dependence. This growing
Asian capacity, coupled with a
significant expansion by select
US and Middle East companies
(driven by a feedstock advantage)
is likely to create excess supply
across different chemistries,
which could disrupt traditional
petrochemicals trade routes and

India's global competitiveness

Feedstock access: The Indian
petrochemicals industry is
dependent on imports, with
over 65% of the installed
refining capacity dependent
on crude oil. About 80% of
India's petrochemicals capacity
is integrated with petroleum
refineries, an edge in terms
of petrochemical feedstock
certainty.

markets.

Within this volatility, India's
petrochemical sector emerged
as a growth avenue. With a
significant import dependence
and high-demand growth, India
has emerged as one of the

most attractive markets for new
petrochemical investments. With

Annual Report 2021-22

demand growth estimated at
around 8% CAGR over 15 years,
India could contribute to more
than 10% of incremental global
petrochemicals growth over the
decade and could need more than
15 world-scale petrochemicals
assets by 2035 to address
domestic demand.

Market access: The current

per capita consumption of
chemicals in India is low (1/10th
of the world's average). A large
population base, increasing per
capita income and rising demand
from end-use sectors make India
an attractive market,

Capital cost: India offers a
competitive cost of infrastructure
fabrication compared to other

countries due to the presence of
a large fabrication market, low
cost of labour and a favourable
location.

Operating cost: The availability
of competent and low-cost
labour coupled with affordable
electricity rates has helped

keep the operating cost of
petrochemical plants competitive.

Advantage India

Strategic location: Surrounded
by water on three sides, India’s
geographic coordinates are
distinctly advantageous for
trade. Besides, its large market,
maritime exports and a thriving
private sector have helped
strengthen the economy. India is
located at the centre of a trans-
Indian Ocean route connecting
the western continents and East
Asia; these coordinates have
helped establish close contacts
with West Asia, Africa and Europe
from the Western coast, and
Southeast and East Asia from the
Eastern coast. India's western
and southwestern coasts have
been the transit landfall points
for Middle East crude oil. India

is dependent on crude oil for

over 65% of its feedstock mix;
maritime trade enables the
country to fulfill its feedstock
needs.

With major refineries and
petrochemical plants located
across India’s coastline, the
country’'s position in the global
chemical sector is unique as it
enjoys access to petrochemical
feedstock and major demand
centres, both catered through its
ports.

Skilled and competent talent: The
Indian government took proactive
initiatives to develop a skilled
workforce for the manufacturing
and services industry. The
Ministry of Skill Development

and Entrepreneurship (MSDE)

was incorporated in 2014

and launched the Skill India
programme in 2015 to remove

a disconnect between demand
and supply of skilled manpower,
develop vocational and technical
training frameworks for jobs

and create new employment
opportunities, various training
programmes specific to the
chemical and petrochemicals
sector were launched by the
MSDE. The availability of a
competent workforce at a
competitive cost contributes to
a reduction in capex by reducing
fabrication costs and increasing
margins.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Government support

In Union Budget 2022, the
government reduced the customs
duty on critical chemicals like
methanol, acetic acid and heavy
feed stock for petroleum refining.
The emphasis on infrastructure
spending is expected to resultin
the additional consumption of
petrochemicals like polymers and
specialty chemicals. Agriculture-
focused measures like the
doubling of micro irrigation outlay
to 10,000 crore could further
the demand for polymer-based
irrigation products and services.
The new vehicle scraping

policy could boost polymer

and elastomer consumption in
anticipation of a requirement of
new and additional vehicles.

The increased outlay on
healthcare and the fund for

vaccination could boost polymer
consumption with requirements
of syringes and other polymer-
based healthcare products.

In general, with increased
government spending, the
requirement of petrochemicals
and polymers required in a
range of sectors could increase
and provide a fillip to local
demand. The roll out of the

PLI schemes for key end-use
sectors could enhance supply
and strengthen petrochemical
consumption demand. Among the
sectors earmarked, seven sectors
- mobile phone manufacturing,
auto and components, medical
devices, textile products etc.

- use a significant quantity of
petrochemicals, the estimated
PLI outlay of ¥1.41 lakh

AELls competitiveness

= Savings in logistics costs due to
3 proximity to a port and demand
centers

= World-class integrated
infrastructure in terms of ports,
power and logistic parks

= Experienced management team
with expertise across varied fields

= Skilled workforce

= Use of innovative process

Outlook, FY 22-23

The Company ventured into
petrochem business in 2021.
It is exploring opportunities
to develop a petrochemical
cluster at Mundra. The first
proposed project of 2 MMT
coal to PVC capacity is likely

to be constructed in a phased
manner. Phase | will comprise
the development of 1000 KTPA
PVC (2X 500 KTPA each sub-
phase) and is expected to be
commissioned by November,
2024,

crore auguring well for the
petrochemical industry. In the
proposed PCPIR (Petroleum,
Chemicals and Petrochemicals
Investment Region) Policy
2020-35, the government is
expected to provide a viability
gap funding of up to 20% for
related infrastructure projects
and could provide an additional
budgetary allocation of 20% for
smart and sustainable systems
like zero liquid discharge-based
common effluent treatment
plant, integrated solid waste
management, real-time
environmental monitoring
systems and emergency response
systems.



CORPORATE SOCIAL RENPONSIBILITY

Our commitment towards
community development

Annual Report 2021-22

Overview

With an experience of working
with communities for more than
25 years, the Adani Foundation is
increasingly focused on scaling
integrated development efforts
across India. It believes that
everyone, regardless of who

and where they are, deserves
equitable access to opportunities
and a fair chance to a better
quality of life. Over the years,

the Foundation has responded
to society’'s changing needs

in alignment with Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs) - be
it sustainable livelihoods, health
and nutrition and education for
all or addressing environmental

concerns - with an enhanced
focus on the empowerment of
women. Today, our reach covers
3.7 million people in 2,409
villages across 16 states in India.

In March 2020, the outbreak of
coronavirus marked the beginning
of an unprecedented time in
modern history. The Foundation’s
relief efforts continued into FY
21-22 to safeguard communities
amidst grave adversities brought
upon by subsequent pandemic
waves. As the situation continued
to evolve, the CSR activities
pivoted their everyday processes
for building back a more resilient
and inclusive society.

During the year FY 21-22, AEL
spent %12.87 crore towards its
CSR initiatives as a part of its
commitment to give back to
society.

Adani Enterprises Ltd spent a
majority of the above amount
towards covid-19 relief measures.

Out of the above, AEL contributed
%3.24 crore to Adani Foundation
for implementing various CSR
interventions, as described in
detail below.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

CQOVID-19 relief efforts

The first half of FY 21-22 was
challenging due to the second
phase of the Covid-19 outbreak,
which had an impact worse than
the first.

Apart from various Adani Group
relief measures, AEL leveraged its
sourcing, logistics and operational
capabilities to procure and
transport oxygen concentrators
from plants across the globe

and install and operate them in
various parts of the country.

Commissioning and operations &
maintenance of ten oxygen plants
across six states

Importing, airlifting and
transporting of 250+ oxygen
concentrators.

Importing cryogenic tanks for
oxygen supply to India.

Adani Foundation believes that
education is the stepping stone
to lead a life of dignity, especially
for the underserved and the
vulnerable. The main philosophy
behind its educational initiatives
is to make 'quality’ education
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accessible and affordable to the
young minds. To reach out to the
most marginalised population, the
Adani Foundation runs cost-free
schools as well as subsidised
schools across India. Many smart

learning programs as well as
projects to adopt government
schools are being implemented
in remote areas. It aids
Aanganwadis and Balwaadis by
creating a fun-filled environment
for kids at an early age.

Adani Vidya Mandir: Surguja
was established in 2013 with a
noble vision of imparting free
and quality education to the
meritorious children hailing from
the district of Surguja. The school
which began its journey eight
years back with 208 students
now houses 830 students
ranging from LKG to Class-X.
The school which provides free
study materials, uniforms, food
and transportation is acclaimed
as a 'Temple of Knowledge' by
everybody in and around the
region of Surguja. The serene
ambience, verdant and lush
campus, competent faculty and
student-friendly infrastructure
are the major attractions of Adani
Vidya Mandir.



Class-X CBSE Board Result 2021
All 35 students, who enrolled for
Class X CBSE Secondary School
Examination 2021, have passed
the examination with impressive
marks. Ms Neelu Yadav and
Master Rinku Yadav have topped
the examination with 92.2%.

The students are pursuing their
higher education in various
reputed institutions in Surguja
and Bilaspur districts. Adani Vidya
Mandir illuminates the young
minds of Surguja with knowledge,
perspicacity, wisdom and veracity
transforming the rural lives in
Surguja.

NABET Accreditation: AVMS
leaves no stone unturned impart
quality education. AVMS has
applied for accreditation and is
setting every system in place to
fulfill the conditions under each
domain prior to the readiness
visit. Each staff member of
AVMS is committed to give their
best to elevate the school to

the expected quality set by the
Quality Council of India in the
domains of school governance,
education and support process,
performance measurement and
improvement on grounds of all
the given parameters and thereby
readying system of the school

to acquire the appellation, the
second NABET-accredited school
in Chhattisgarh.

School website: AVMS has its
own school website (launched

in Sept’2021). The website was
developed by the Technical and
the Educational vertical, Adani
Foundation in accordance with
the guidelines issued by CBSE for
the affiliated schools.

Newsletter: AVMS launched its
first ever Newsletter on April 2021
entitled The Trendsetters. The

monthly edition of the newsletter
is released on every last day

of the month giving a glimpse

of the major scholastic and
non-scholastic activities of the
month. The newsletter is found
to be one of the best mediums of

connecting with the stakeholders.

Remedial class: AVMS conducts
remedial classes in villages as
well as in the school post-school
hours to bridge the learning gap
incurred by the pandemic.

Athletics, Sports and Games:
The students of Surguja studying
at Adani Vidya Mandir have
immense potential in sports and
games. They do showcase a
great deal of zeal and zest in all
the athletic events as well. The
students of AVMS have given

a great performance at both
district and zonal level Sports
Meet in javelin throw, long jump,
high jump, 100 metres race, 200
metres race and 400 metres race
by winning first, second and third
positions. Master Vijay Yadav, a
student of class-X was qualified
for state level Sports Meet and
brought laurels to the school by
securing the third position in
javelin throw and high jump.

The Co-Curricular Activities: The
Inter-house CCA competitions
are being held in 2021-'22 session
from time to time by the CCA
Department for team-building
spirit and the overall personality
development of each student
representing four houses viz.
Ujjain House, Takshashila House,
Nalanda House and Kashi House.

The House Masters tick against
the name of each student in
the house members list, for
each chance being awarded

to him/her to mitigate and

Annual Report 2021-22

minimise the discrepancy among
students in terms of the award
of opportunities given by their
teachers in the respective

house and thereby see to it that
no child is left behind and are
duly promoted to upgradetheir
budding skills.

Term-1 CBSE Class-X
Examination: Adani Vidya Mandir,
Surguja, conducted the CBSE
Class-X Term-| examination in

the school from 25th November
2021 to 1th December 2021
successfully. 28 students

from AVMS appeared for the
examination, in the presence

of the observer and external
examiner. The flying squad visited
the school twice to ensure the
smooth conduct of the board
examination.

Health Check Up of AVMS
Students: The annual health
checkup of all students of AVMS
from classes |-X was organised
at AVMS. The checkup was
facilitated by Dr. Deepak Pungle, a
medical team and Health Centre,
Shivnagar. The students who
were diagnosed with any disease
or symptoms of disease were
referred to the Health Centre,
Shivnagar for further checkup
and the follow-up treatment.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Garv Hai is Adani Group's
nationwide programme

that aims to nurture India's

next generation of sporting
champions and support them

in their journey to represent
India on national and worldwide
platforms (Commonwealth
Games, Asian Games and the
Olympics, among others).
Starting in 2016, the project
began accepting applications
from athletes, coaches, sports
academies and others across
multiple sports. In 2019, a large
exercise, which spanned 29
States and 100 towns, attracted
up to 5000 applicants, from
which 19 potential athletes
with the desire to make it big
were selected. The campaign
received over 3000 entries. Garv
Hai, named after the group’s
pilot initiative designed around
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the 2016 Rio Olympics, is now a
national programme to identify
and empower stakeholders in
the sports fraternity. Since the
2016 Rio Olympics, #GarvHai has
helped over 28 athletes across
boxing, wrestling, tennis, javelin

throw, shooting, running, shotput,

brisk walking, archery and more.
Six of 19 athletes backed by
#GarvHai competed for India at
the Tokyo Olympics. Wrestlers
Ravi Kumar Dahiya and Deepak
Punia, boxer Amit Panghal, Indian
women's hockey team captain
Rani Rampal, tennis player Ankita
Raina, javelin thrower Shivpal
Singh, and race walker KT Irfan
were among them. Ravi Dahiys,
who was supported by the Adani
Group since 2019, won a Silver
Medal in the 57 kg division at the
Tokyo Olympics..

Objectives

= To support athletes in their
quest to get better results at
global level and instilling pride in
the nation

= To create a sporting ecosystem
that extends from grassroots to
the elite level.

= To create a database of
promising athletes

Key performances

= Tokyo Olympics: Seven
qualifications — out of nine senior
athletes

= Padma Shri and World Athlete
of the Year: Rani Rampal

= World Boxing Championship:
Amit Panghal - first Indian male
boxer to win silver medal

= World Wrestling Championship:
Two (Deepak Punia- Silver & Ravi
Kumar Dahiya - Bronze)

= Rome Ranking Series
(Wrestling)- Three medals (Ravi
Dahiya- Gold, Deepak Punia and
Sajan Bhanwal- Bronze)

= |TF 25K Single & Doubles title-
Ankita Raina

= World rankings:
* Amit Panghal, World No 1
* Deepak Punia, World No 2
* Ravi Kumar Dahiya, World No 4
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CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Adani Enterprises Limited

Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 30" Annual Report along with the Audited Financial Statements of your
Company for the financial year ended on 371t March, 2022.

Financial Performance Summary
The summarised financial performance highlight is as mentioned below:

(% in Crore)
Particulars Consolidated Results Standalone Results
FINANCIAL RESULTS
Total Income 70,432.69 40,290.93 27,327.55 13,750.65
Total Expenditure other than Financial Costs and Depreciation 65,706.98 37,032.08 25,518.24 12,355.10
Profit before Depreciation, Finance Costs and Tax 4,725.71 3,258.85 1,809.31 1,395.55
Finance Costs 2,525.88 1,376.85 571.33 505.93
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 1,247.78 53714 124.73 121.51
Profit / (Loss) for the year before Exceptional Items and Tax 952.05 1,344.86 1,113.25 768.11
Add / (Less) Exceptional Iltems - (258.89) - (212.85)
Profit / (Loss) for the year before Taxation 952.05 1,085.97 1,113.25 555.26
Total Tax Expenses 476.68 339.65 392.55 186.45
Profit for the year 475.37 746.32 720.70 368.81
Add / (Less) Share in Joint Venture & Associates 312.33 299.44 -
Net Profit / (Loss) after Joint Venture & Associates (A) 787.70 1,045.76 720.70 368.81
Add / (Less) Other Comprehensive Income (after tax) 445,57 (711.86) 4,03 (1.82)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,233.27 333.90 724.73 366.99
Add / (Less) Share of Minority Interest (B) (11.14) (123.12) -
Net Profit / (Loss) for the year after Minority Interest (A+B) 776.56 922.64 720.70 368.81
APPROPRIATIONS
Net Profit / (Loss) for the year after Minority Interest 776.56 922.64 720.70 368.81
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (2.43) (3.82) 4,03 (1.82)
Balance brought forward from previous year 12,679.07 11,783.80 2,640.43 2,298.44
Add / (Less) : On account of Consolidation Adjustments (83.70) 1.45 -
Amount available for appropriations 13,369.50 12,704.07 3,365.16 2,665.43
Less : Appropriations
Dividend on Equity Shares (109.98) - (109.98)
Transfer to General Reserve (25.00) (25.00) (25.00) (25.00)
Distribution to holders of Unsecured Perpetual Securities (12.07) - (12.07)
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 13,222.45 12,679.07 3,218.10 2,640.43
Notes:

1. There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the
financial year and the date of this report.

2. Previous year figures have been regrouped / re-arranged wherever necessary.
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Performance Highlights

Operational Highlights

The key aspects of your Company’'s consolidated
performance during the financial year 2021-22
(FY 2021-22) are as follows:

B Integrated Resource Management (IRM) volume
stood at 64.4 MMT vs 63.4 MMT in FY 2020-21.

B Mining Services production volume increased by
58% to 27.7 MMT vs 17.5 MMT in FY 2020-21.

B Solar Manufacturing volume stood at 1104 MW vs
1158 MW in FY 2020-21.

B Airports handled 36.9 Million passengers across
7 operational airports.

Other important milestones during the year are as
below :

B |n the Airports business, your Company

« completed acquisition of Mumbai and Navi
Mumbai International Airports.

* tookoveroperations of three Airports at Jaipur,
Guwahati and Thiruvananthapuram.

B Successfully completed Initial Public Offering
and listed equity shares of its joint venture, Adani
Wilmar Limited ("AWL") at Indian stock exchanges.
AWL continues to maintain leadership of its
"Fortune” brand with refined edible oil market
share of 20%+.

B |n the Road business, the Company won project
of 317,100 Crore for construction & maintenance
of three greenfield Ganga Expressway projects of
464 kms in Uttar Pradesh.

B Revised charter of various Board Committees,
implemented and established new Board
Committees including Corporate Responsibility
Committee to review and provide assurance for
ESG commitments.

B Consolidated Rating upgraded to A+ for long term
facilities and A1+ for short term facilities by CARE
Ratings Ltd.

Consolidated Financial Results

The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of
your Company as on 31* March, 2022, prepared in
accordance with the relevant applicable Ind AS and
Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI
Listing Regulations”) and provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”), forms part of this Annual Report.

Financial Highlights

B Consolidated Total Income from operation
increased by 75% to 370,433 Crore in FY 2021-22 vs
40,291 Crore in FY 2020-21.

Annual Report 2021-22

B Consolidated EBIDTA increased by 45% to 34,726
Crore in FY 2021-22 vs 33,259 Crore in FY 2020-21.

B Consolidated PAT attributable to owners stood at
3777 Crore in FY 2021-22 vs 3922 Crore in FY 2020-21.

Standalone Financial Results

On standalone basis, your Company had a strong
performance and registered total income of
327,328 Crore (~2xof previousyear)and PAT of¥721Crore
(95% increase over previous year).

The operational performance of your Company has
been comprehensively discussed in the Management
Discussion and Analysis Section, which forms part of
this Annual Report.

Dividend

Your Directors have recommended a dividend of
100% (Z1/- per Equity Share of face value of %1 each)
on the fully paid up Equity Shares out of the profits
of the Company for the FY 2021-22. The said dividend,
if approved by the shareholders, would result into a
cash outflow of 2114 Crore.

The details of shareholders pay out during the last 5
years

800
200 69889 2052
600
500 48491
400 36881
300
20925
200
. 0998 10998
4399 4399
W2.0% oo 573% 982% 581%
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
W PAT M Dividend M Dividend as %

®in Crore) ®in Crore) of PAT

The Dividend Distribution Policy, in terms of Regulation
43A of the SEBI Listing Regulations is available on the
Company’'s website at https:.//www.adanienterprises.
com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-

governance/Polices/DividendDistributionPolicy
Locked.pdf

Transfer to Reserves

The Company proposes to transfer 325 Crore to the
General Reserve, out of the amount available for
appropriation.
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CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Adani Enterprises Limited

Fixed Deposits

There were no outstanding deposits within the
meaning of Section 73 and 74 of the Act read with
rules made thereunder at the end of the financial year
2021-22 or the previous financial years. Your Company
did not accept any deposit during the year under
review.

Non-Convertible Debentures

During the year under review, your Company has
issued 2,000 Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable,
Principal Protected Market Linked Non-Convertible
Debentures ("“MLD"), having face value of 310 Lakhs
each aggregating to 3200 Crore on a private placement
basis. These MLDs are listed on the Wholesale Debt
Market Segment of the BSE Limited. Non-Convertible
Debentures amounting ¥759.30 Crore are outstanding
as on 31t March, 2022.
Particulars of Guarantees or
Investments

During the year under review, your Company has made
loans, given guarantees, provided securities and made
investments in compliance with Section 186 of the Act.
The details are mentioned in the Financial Statement.

Loans,

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures, Associate
Companies and LLPs

Your Company had 122 subsidiaries (direct and indirect
including LLPs) and 1 associate company, as on

37t March, 2021.

During the yearunder review, the following subsidiaries,
joint venture and associate company have been
formed/acquired:

Subsidiary companies formed/acquired:

1. Adani Road 0&M Limited (a subsidiary of Adani
Road Transport Limited, which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company).

2. Badakumari Karki Road Private Limited
(asubsidiary of Adani Road Transport Limited, which
is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company).

3. Panagarh Palsit Road Private Limited (a subsidiary
of Adani Road Transport Limited, which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company).

4, Mundra Petrochem Limited.

Mundra Solar Energy Limited (a subsidiary of
Adani Tradecom Limited, which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company).

6. Mahanadi Mines and Minerals Private Limited.
7. Mundra Windtech Limited.

8. Adani Cement Industries Limited.
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10.

1.

2.

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.
19.

20.

21.

22.

23,

24,

25.
26.

27.

28.

GVK Airport Developers Limited (a subsidiary of
Adani Airport Holdings Limited, which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company).

GVK Airport Holdings Limited (a subsidiary of GVK
Airport Developers Limited, which is a step down
subsidiary of the Company).

Mumbai International Airport Limited (a subsidiary
through holding of GVK Airport Holdings Limited
and Adani Airport Holdings Limited, which are
subsidiaries of the Company).

Navi Mumbai International Airport Limited
(3 subsidiary of Mumbai International Airport
Limited, which is a step down subsidiary of the
Company).

Bangalore Airport & Infrastructure Developers
Limited (a subsidiary of GVK Airport Developers
Limited, which is a step down subsidiary of the
Company).

Bhagalpur Waste Water Limited.

Bowen Rail Operation Pte. Ltd (3 subsidiary of
Adani Global Pte. Ltd., Singapore which is a step
down subsidiary of the Company).

Bowen Rail Company Pty Ltd. (a subsidiary of
Bowen Rail Operation Pte. Ltd., Singapore which is
a step down subsidiary of the Company).

Adani Petrochemicals Limited.
Noida Data Center Limited.

PLR Systems (India) Limited (a subsidiary of
Ordefence Systems Limited, which is a step down
subsidiary of the Company).

Adani Digital Labs Private Limited.

Mumbai Travel Retail Private Limited (a subsidiary
of Adani Airport Holdings Limited, which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company).

April Moon Retail Private Limited (a subsidiary of
Adani Airport Holdings Limited, which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company).

Astraeus Services IFSC Limited (a subsidiary
of Adani Defence Systems and Technologies
Limited, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company).

Mundra Solar Technology Limited (a subsidiary of
Adani Infrastructure Private Limited, which is a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company).

Mundra Aluminium Limited.
Adani Data Networks Limited.
Budaun Hardoi Road Private Limited.

Unnao Prayagraj Road Private Limited.



29. Hardoi Unnao Road Private Limited.
30. Adani New Industries Limited.

31. Bengal Tech Park Limited.

32. Adani Copper Tubes Limited.

Addition in Associate / Joint Venture companies:
1. Cleartrip Private Limited (20%).

2. AdaniConnex Private Limited (50%).

Cessation of subsidiary companies:

1. AdaniConnex Private Limited (ceased as subsidiary
and became 50% joint venture company with
Edgeconnex Europe B.V. w.e.f. 14™ May, 2021.)

2. Noida Data Center Limited'
3. DC Development Hyderabad Private Limited'
4, DC Development Noida Private Limited?

In view of above, your Company has 150 subsidiaries
(direct and indirect including LLPs) and 3 associate
companies as on 31t March, 2022. Detailed list of these
subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures is provided as
part of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129, 134 and
136 of the Act read with rules framed there under
and Regulation 33 of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
your Company has prepared Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and
3 separate statement containing the salient features
of financial statement of subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates in Form AOC-1, which forms part of this
Annual Report.

The Annual Financial Statements and related detailed
information of the subsidiary companies shall be
made available to the shareholders of the holding
and subsidiary companies of the Company seeking
such information on all working days during business
hours. The financial statements of the subsidiary
companies shall also be kept for inspection by any
shareholder/s during working hours at the Company’s
Registered Office and that of the respective subsidiary
companies concerned. In accordance with Section 136
of the Act, the Audited Financial Statements, including
Consolidated Financial Statements and related
information of the Company and audited accounts of
each of its subsidiaries, are available on website of the
Company, www.adanienterprises.com.

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8(1)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 the details
of developments of subsidiaries of the Company are
covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis
Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

Annual Report 2021-22

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for
the year under review, as stipulated under the SEBI
Listing Regulations, is presented in a section forming
part of this Annual Report.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

As of 31* March, 2022, your Company's Board had
eight members comprising of four Executive Directors
and four Independent Directors. The Board has one
woman Independent Director. The details of Board
and Committees composition, tenure of Directors,
areas of expertise and other details are available in the
Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this
Annual Report.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of
the Act, read with rules made thereunder and Articles
of Association of the Company, Mr. Rajesh S. Adani
(DIN: 00006322) is liable to retire by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Mr. Narendra Mairpady'’s first term of five years as an
Independent Directorofthe Companyisduetoexpireon
30" November,2022. TheBoard,ontherecommendation
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and after
taking into account the performance evaluation of
his first term and considering the business acumen,
knowledge, experience, skills and contribution, have
re-appointed him as Independent Director for a second
term of one year upto 30 November, 2023, subject
to approval of Members at the ensuing AGM. In the
opinion of the Board, he possesses requisite expertise,
integrity and experience (including proficiency)
for appointment as an Independent Director of the
Company. The terms and conditions of appointment
of Independent Directors are as per Schedule IV of
the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, and available on
Company’s website www.adanienterprises.com.

The tenure of Mr. Vinay Prakash as an Executive
Director (designated as a Director) of the Company
will expire on 11" August, 2022. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors
at their respective meetings held on 3 May, 2022
recommended and approved the re-appointment and
payment of remuneration to Mr. Vinay Prakash as an
Executive Director (designated as a Director) of the
Company for a further period of 5 (Five) years w.e.f,
12t August, 2022, subject to approval of Members
at the ensuing AGM. Terms and conditions for his
re-appointment are contained in the Explanatory
Statement forming part of the Notice of the ensuing
AGM,

1. Transferred to AdaniConnex Private Limited, a joint venture company. w.e.f. 22" February, 2022.

2. Transferred to AdaniConnex Private Limited, a joint venture company. w.e.f. 22" November, 2021.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

The Board recommends the appointment /
re-appointment of above Directors for your approval.
Brief details of Directors proposed to be appointed /
re-appointed as required under Regulation 36 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations are provided in the Notice of
the ensuing AGM.

The Company has received declarations from all the
Independent Directors of the Company confirming
that they meet with the criteria of independence as
prescribed both under sub-section (6) of Section 149
of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations and there
has been no change in the circumstances which may
affect their status as Independent Director during the
year.

Committees of Board

During the year under review, with an objective of
further strengthen the governance standards so
as to match with internationally accepted better
practices, the Board had reconstituted certain existing
committees to bring more independence; constituted
certain new Committees and Sub-committees; and
amended / adopted the terms of reference of the
said Committees. Most of the Committees consist of
majority of Independent Directors.

Details of the various Committees constituted by the
Board, including the Committees mandated pursuant
to the applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing
Regulations, are given in the Corporate Governance
Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

Number of meetings of the Board

The Board of Directors met 4 (four) times during the
year under review. The details of board meetings and
the attendance of the Directors are provided in the
Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this
Annual Report.

Independent Directors’ Meeting

The Independent Directors met on 30" March,
2022, without the attendance of Non-Independent
Directors and members of the management. The
Independent Directors reviewed the performance of
Non-Independent Directors, the Committees and the
Board as a whole alongwith the performance of the
Chairman of the Company, taking into account the
views of Executive Directors and assessed the quality,
quantity and timeliness of flow of information between
the management and the Board that is necessary for
the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their
duties.

Board Evaluation

The Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating
its performance and as well as that of its Committees
and individual Directors, including the Chairman of
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the Board. The exercise was carried out through a
structured evaluation process covering various aspects
of the Boards functioning such as composition of the
Board and Committees, experience and competencies,
performance of specific duties and obligations,
contribution at the meetings and otherwise,
independent judgment, governance issues etc.

At the Board Meeting that followed the above
mentioned meeting of the Independent Directors,
the performance of the Board, its Committees, and
individual Directors was also discussed. Performance
evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the
entire Board, excluding the Independent Director being
evaluated.

Policy on Directors’

Remuneration

The Company's policy on Directors’ appointment
and remuneration and other matters
("Remuneration Policy”) provided in Section 178(3)
of the Act is available on the Company’s website at
https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/

Appointment &

corporate-governance.

We affirm that the remuneration paid to the Directors
is as per the terms laid out in the Remuneration Policy
of the Company.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of
Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability,
state the following:

3. that in the preparation of the Annual Financial
Statements, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures, if any;

b. that such accounting policies have been selected
and applied consistently and judgement and
estimates have been made that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31t March,
2022 and of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on that date;

c. that proper and sufficient care has been taken
for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

d. that the Annual Financial Statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis;

e. thatproperinternal financial controls were in place
and that the financial controls were adequate and
were operating effectively;
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f. that proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws were in place and
were adequate and operating effectively.

Internal Financial Controls system and their
adequacy

The details in respect of internal financial controls
system and their adequacy are included in the
Management and Discussion and Analysis, which forms
part of this Annual Report.

Risk Management

The Board has formed a Risk Management Committee
(RMC) to frame, implement and monitor the risk
management plan for the Company. The RMC is
responsible for reviewing the risk management plan
and ensuring its effectiveness. The Audit Committee
has an additional oversight in the area of financial
risks and controls. The major risks identified by the
businesses are systematically addressed through
mitigation actions on a continual basis.

Board Policies

The details of the policies approved and adopted by
the Board, as required under the Act and SEBI Listing
Regulations, are provided in Annexure — A to this report.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Your Company has constituted a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee and framed a CSR
Policy. The brief details of CSR Committee are provided
in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms
part of this Annual Report. The updated CSR Policy
is available on the website of the Company at https://
www.adanienterprises.com/investors/corporate-
governance. The Annual Report on CSR activities is
annexed to this report.

Further, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
has certified that CSR spends of the Company for
the financial year 2021-22 have been utilized for the
purpose and in the manner approved by the Board.

Corporate Governance Report

Your Company is committed to good corporate
governance practices. The Corporate Governance
Report, as stipulated by the SEBI Listing Regulations,
forms part of this Annual Report along with the
required Certificate from Statutory Auditors regarding
compliance of the conditions of corporate governance,
as stipulated.

In compliance with corporate governance
requirements as per the SEBI Listing Regulations, your
Company has formulated and implemented a Code of
Business Conduct for all Board members and senior
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management personnel the Company (Code of
Conduct), who have affirmed the compliance thereto.
The said Code of Conduct, is available on the website
of the Company at https://www.adanienterprises.com/
investors/corporate-governance.

Business Responsibility and Sustainability
Report

In its constant endeavor to improve corporate
governance, your Company has, on a voluntary
basis, transitioned to Business Responsibility and
Sustainability Report (BRSR) for the year ended
31t March, 2022, which forms part of this Annual
Report.

Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 134(3) (a) of the Act, the draft
annual return as on March 31, 2022, prepared in
accordance with Section 92(3) of the Act, is made
available on the website of the Company and can be
assessed using the link https://www.adanienterprises.
com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/Investor-

Downloads/Annual-Return/FY-22.pdf.

Transactions with Related Party

All transactions with related parties are placed before
the Audit Committee for its approval. An omnibus
approval from Audit Committee is obtained for the
related party transactions which are repetitive in
nature. Accordingly, the disclosure of related party
transactions, as required under Section 134(3)(h) of
the Act, in Form AOC - 2, is not applicable.

All related party transactions, entered into during the
financial year under review, were on an arm's length
basis and were in the ordinary course of business. Your
Company has not entered into any transactions with
related parties which could be considered material
in terms of Section 188 of the Act and SEBI Listing
Regulations, as applicable till March 31, 2022.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions is available
on the Company’'s website and can be assessed using
the link https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/
corporate-governance.

General Disclosure

Neither the Executive Chairman nor the Managing
Director of the Company received any remuneration
or commission from any of the subsidiary of your
Company.

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is
required in respect of the following items as there were
no transactions/events of these nature, during the year
under review:

141

M3IING3N0 31vVd0dd00

a)
>
>
C
5
o
pe)
=
o
m
e
o
Pl
2]
2]

SINIWILVLS TVIONVNIH


https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/corporate-governance
https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/corporate-governance
https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/corporate-governance
https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/corporate-governance
https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/corporate-governance
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/Investor-Downloads/Annual-Return/FY-22.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/Investor-Downloads/Annual-Return/FY-22.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/Investor-Downloads/Annual-Return/FY-22.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/corporate-governance
https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/corporate-governance

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wn
0
[a 4
o
a
w
o
>
@
o
o
=
<
(%]}

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Adani Enterprises Limited

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to
dividend, voting or otherwise.

2. Issue of shares (Including sweat equity shares) to
employees of the Company under any scheme.

3. Significant or material orders passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the
going concern status and the Company’s operation
in future.

4, \Voting rights which are not directly exercised
by the employees in respect of shares for the
subscription/ purchase of which loan was given by
the Company (as there is no scheme pursuant to
which such persons can beneficially hold shares as
envisaged under section 67(3)(c) of Act).

Change in the nature of business.

6. Application made or proceeding pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

7. One time settlement of loan obtained from the
banks or financial institutions.

Insurance

Your Company has taken appropriate insurance for all
assets against foreseeable perils.

Statutory Auditors & Auditors’ Report

As per Section 139 of the Act read with rules made
thereunder, as amended, the term of M/s. Shah
Dhandharia & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 118707W/ W100724), as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company, expires at the
conclusion of the ensuing AGM and they are eligible
for re-appointment for a second term of 5 (five) years.
Your Company has received a letter from M/s. Shah
Dhandharia & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, to the
effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be
within the prescribed limits under Section 141 of the
Act read with rules made thereunder and that they are
not disqualified for such re-appointment.

Your Directors recommend the re-appointment of
M/s. Shah Dhandharia & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants,
as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office
from the conclusion of the ensuing AGM till the
conclusion of 35" AGM of the Company, to be held in
the calendar year 2027.

The Notes to the financial statements referred in
the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory. There are
no qualifications or reservations or adverse remarks
or disclaimers given by Statutory Auditors of the
Company and therefore do not call for any comments
under Section 134 of the Act. The Auditors’ Report is
enclosed with the financial statements in this Annual
Report.
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Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act
and the rules made thereunder, your Company has
re-appointed Mr. Ashwin Shah, Practicing Company
Secretary to undertake the Secretarial Audit of
the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report for
FY 2021-22 is provided as Annexure-B of this report.
There are no qualifications or reservations or adverse
remarks or disclaimer in the said Secretarial Audit
Report.

Cost Audit Report

Your Company has re-appointed M/s. K. V. Melwani &
Associates, Practicing Cost Accountants to conduct
audit of cost records of Mining Activities of the
Company for the year ending 31t March, 2023.

The Cost Audit Report for the FY 2020-21 was filed
before the due date with the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs.

Your Company has maintained the cost accounts and
records in accordance with Section 148 of the Act and
rules made thereunder.

Secretarial Standards

During the year under review, your Company has
compliedwith allthe applicable provisions of Secretarial
Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF)

During the vyear, your Company has transferred
the unclaimed and un-encashed dividend of
FY 2013-14 amounting to %7,71,496/- along with 19,428
corresponding shares as per the requirements of the
IEPF Rules. The details of the resultant benefits arising
out of shares already transferred to the IEPF, year-
wise amounts of unclaimed / un-encashed dividends
lying in the unpaid dividend account up to the year,
and the corresponding shares, which are liable to be
transferred, are provided in the IEPF section of the
Corporate Governance Report and are also available
on our website, at https://www.adanienterprises.com/
investors/corporate-governance

Reporting of frauds by Auditors

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors,
Cost Auditors and Secretarial Auditor have not
reported any instances of fraud committed against
your Company by its officers or employees to the Audit
Committee or the Board, under Section 143(12) of the
Act.
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Particulars of Employees

Your Company had 1,155 employees on standalone
basis as on 31t March, 2022.

The percentage increase in remuneration, ratio of
remuneration of each Director and Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) (as required under the Act) to the
median of employees’ remuneration, as required
under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are provided as
Annexure-C of this report.

The statement containing particulars of employees as
required under Section 197 of the Act, read with Rule
5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided in a
separate annexure forming part of this report. In terms
of Section 136 of the Act, the report and accounts are
being sent to the Members and others entitled thereto,
excluding the said annexure which is available for
inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of
the Company during business hours on working days of
the Company. If any Member is interested in obtaining
a copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company
Secretary in this regard.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment at

Workplace

As per the requirements of The Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder,
your Company has constituted Internal Complaints
Committees (ICs) at all relevant locations across India
to consider and resolve the complaints related to sexual
harassment. The ICs includes external members with
relevant experience. The ICs, presided by senior women,
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conduct the investigations and make decisions at the
respective locations. The ICs also work extensively on
creating awareness on relevance of sexual harassment
issues, including while working remotely.

During the year under review, there were no complaints
pertaining to sexual harassment.

All new employees go through a detailed personal
orientation on anti-sexual harassment policy adopted
by the Company.

Conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo

The information on conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with
Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as
amended, is provided as Annexure-D of this report.
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Your Directors are highly grateful for all the guidance,
support and assistance received from the Government
of India, Governments of various states in India,
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Your Directors also wish to place on record their sincere
appreciation for the dedicated efforts and consistent
contribution made by the employees at all levels,
to ensure that the Company continues to grow and
excel even during the challenging times of COVID-19
pandemic.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Gautam S. Adani
Executive Chairman
(DIN: 00006273)
Date: 39 May, 2022
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Name of Policies

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle
Blower Policy

Policy  for  procedure
of inquiry in case of
leak or suspected leak
of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information

Code of Internal
Procedures and Conduct
for Regulating, Monitoring
and Reporting of Trading
by Insiders

Code of Practices and
Procedures for Fair
disclosure of unpublished
price sensitive information

Terms of Appointment of
Independent Directors

Familiarization Program

Related party transactions

Policy on Material

Subsidiaries

Material Events Policy

Website content Archival
Policy
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Annexure - A
to the Directors' Report

Board Policies

Legislation

Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing
Regulations and as defined
under Section 177 of the Act.

Regulation 9A of SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015.

Regulation 8 of  SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015.

Regulation 8 of  SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015.

Regulation 46 of SEBI Listing
Regulations and Section 149
read with Schedule IV to the
Act.

Regulations 25(7) and 46 of
SEBI Listing Regulations.

Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing
Regulations and as defined
under the Act.

Regulation 24 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

Regulation 30 of SEBI Listing
Regulations.

SEBI Listing Regulations.

Weblink

https.//www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-
governance/Polices/AEL_Whistle_Blower_Policy.
pdf

https.//www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-
governance/Polices/Leak-of-UPSI-Policy.pdf

https:.//www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-
governance/Palices/Insider-Trading-Code.pdf

https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-
governance/Palices/Code_for_Fair_Disclosure.pdf

https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-
governance/Polices/Terms-and-Conditions-of-
Appointment.pdf

https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-
governance/Palices/Familiarization_programme_
imparted_to_ID_18_19.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-
governance/Polices/AEL_Policy_Related_Party_
Transcation.pdf

https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-
governance/Palices/Policy_on_Material_
Subsidiary.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-
governance/Polices/Material_Events_Policy.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-
governance/Polices/Archival_Policy.pdf
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Name of Policies

Policy on Preservation of
Documents

Nomination and
Remuneration Policy of
Directors, KMP and other
Employees

CSR Policy

Dividend Distribution
Policy

Code of Conduct for

Board of Directors and
Senior Management of
the Company

Policy on Board Diversity

Legislation

Regulation 9 of SEBI Listing
Regulations.

Regulation 19 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations and
Section 178 of the Act.

Section 135 of the Act.

Regulation 43A of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

Regulation 17 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

Regulation 19 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.
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Weblink

https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-
governance/Polices/36_InvBotDL_Policy-on-
Preservation-of-Documents.pdf

https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-
governance/Polices/Remuneration_Policy.pdf

https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-
governance/Polices/AEL_CSR_palicy.pdf

https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-

governance/Polices/DividendDistributionPolicy_

Locked.pdf

https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-
governance/Polices/Code_of Conduct.pdf

https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/
Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-
governance/Polices/Board-Diversity-Policy---
Adani-Enterprises-Ltd.pdf

145

M3IING3N0 31vVd0dd00

9
>
=
c
S
o
pe)
>
el
m
e
(@]
el
B
(%]

SINIWILVLS TVIONVNIH


https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/36_InvBotDL_Policy-on-Preservation-of-Documents.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/36_InvBotDL_Policy-on-Preservation-of-Documents.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/36_InvBotDL_Policy-on-Preservation-of-Documents.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/36_InvBotDL_Policy-on-Preservation-of-Documents.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/Remuneration_Policy.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/Remuneration_Policy.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/Remuneration_Policy.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/AEL_CSR_policy.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/AEL_CSR_policy.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/AEL_CSR_policy.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/DividendDistributionPolicy_Locked.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/DividendDistributionPolicy_Locked.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/DividendDistributionPolicy_Locked.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/DividendDistributionPolicy_Locked.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/Code_of_Conduct.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/Code_of_Conduct.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/Code_of_Conduct.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/Board-Diversity-Policy---Adani-Enterprises-Ltd.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/Board-Diversity-Policy---Adani-Enterprises-Ltd.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/Board-Diversity-Policy---Adani-Enterprises-Ltd.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/Board-Diversity-Policy---Adani-Enterprises-Ltd.pdf

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wn
&
[a 4
o
a
w
o
>
o
(@]
S
>
i
(%]}

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Adani Enterprises Limited

Annexure — B
to the Directors' Report

Form No. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members
Adani Enterprises Limited

Ihave conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by Adani Enterprises
Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
me a3 reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and also the information provided
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives in the conduct of secretarial audit
during the pandemic of COVID 19 situation across
the country, | hereby report that in my opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31 March, 2022 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board processes and
compliance- mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minutes books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31
March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
('SCRA) and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;
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The following Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’):-

3. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial  Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefit) Regulation,
2014 (Not Applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period);

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

f.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an lIssue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
(Not Applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period); and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);



vi. Laws specifically applicable to the industry to
which the Company belongs, as identified by the
management, that is to say:

Legislation Name
Payment of Wages Act, 1936
The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

The Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952

Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

Employee Taxation as per Income Tax Act, 1961

Employee Group Insurance Scheme and Maternity
Benefits.

Shops and Establishment Act & Rules thereunder.

The Contract Labour (Abolition & Repeal) Act &
and Rules thereunder

Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act,
1981

The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution)
Act, 1974

The Noise Pollution (Regulation and Control)
Rules, 2000

Hazardous Wastes (Management and Handling)
Rules, 1989

Manufactures Stores and import of Hazardous
Chemical Rules, 1989

Factories Act, 1948

| have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the following:

a. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned
above subject to filing of certain e-forms with additional
fees.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 39 May, 2022
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| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule
the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the
dissenting members' views are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes.

| further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period the
Company has:

1. Passed a special resolution for appointment of
Mr. V. Subramaniam who is appointed as
Independent Director and is reappointed as
Independent Director, not eligible to retires
by rotation to hold office for a second term of
5 Consecutive years upto 2026.

2. Passed a special resolution for appointment of
Mrs. Vijaylaxmi Joshi who is appointed as
Independent Director and is reappointed as
Independent Director, not eligible to retires
by rotation to hold office for a second term of
5 Consecutive years upto 2026.

3. Passed a special resolution for approval of offer or
invitation to subscribe to Securities for an amount
not exceeding 32,500 Crore.

CS Ashwin Shah

Company Secretary

C. P. No. 1640

UDIN: FO01640D000260131

Quality Reviewed 2021 PRC:1930/2022

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure-A’ and forms an integral

part of this report.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

To

Annexure - A
to the Secretarial Audit Report

The Members
Adani Enterprises Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this
letter

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the
responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and
processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents
of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 3@ May, 2022
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Where ever required, we have obtained the
Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management.
Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

CS Ashwin Shah

Company Secretary

C. P. No. 1640

UDIN: FO01640D000260131

Quality Reviewed 2021 PRC:1930/2022
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Annexure — C
to the Directors' Report

[Information pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director
to the median remuneration of the employees of
the Company for the financial year 2021-22 and
the percentage increase in remuneration of each
Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Officer, Company Secretary in the financial year
2021-22:

Name of Directors/ Ratio of % increase in
KMP remuneration | remuneration
to median in the

remuneration | financial year
of Employees

Executive Directors

Mr. Gautam S. Adani 15.43:1 3.30
Mr. Rajesh S. Adani 34,92 :1 16.46
Mr. Pranav Adani 2718 :1 16.57
Mr. Vinay Prakash’ 40.16 : 1 3.39
Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hemant Nerurkar? 1.78 :1

Mr. V. Subramanian? 1.78 :1

Mrs. Vijayalaxmi Joshi? 1.70:1

Mr. Narendra Mairpday? 1.50:1

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Jatin Jalundhwala’ 1218 :1 16.20
Mr. Jugeshinder Singh 51.53:1 121.16

™ Excluding performance based variable incentive.
2 Reflects sitting fees and Directors' commission.

ii) The

iii)

iv)

v)

percentage increase in the median
remuneration of employees in the financial year:
34.33%

The number of permanent employees on the rolls
of Company: 1,155 as on 3715t March, 2022.

Average percentile increase already made
in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year
and its comparison with the percentile increase
in the managerial remuneration and justification
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration:

- Averageincreaseinremuneration of employees
excluding KMPs: 12%.

- Average increase in remuneration of KMPs:
39.28%

- KMP salary increases are decided based
on the Company's performance, individual
performance, inflation, prevailing industry

trends and benchmarks.

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the
Remuneration Policy of the Company:

The Company affirms remuneration is as per the
Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Annexure - D
to the Directors' Report

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

[Information as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

A. Conservation of Energy :

150

a)

the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

Installed 46 nos. High MAST operated with LED lights.
New Silo 2 is designed and installed with LED lights.

Silo 1is refabricated and existing conventional HPSV lights are replaced by LED lights. Details are as
under:

Installed Replaced by Total Quantity
400W HPSV 100W LED 4
150W HPSV 70W LED 32
70W HPSV 35W LED 17
2X 36W fluorescent tube light 36W LED 10

Replacement of conventional HPSV lights in 10 MTPA CHP area by LED lights. Details are as under:

Installed Replaced by Total Quantity
70W HPSV 35W LED 200

Replacement of 28W fluorescent tube light fittings in Gumga township with 20W LED lights. Details
are as under:

Installed Replaced by Total Quantity
28W fluorescent tube light 20W LED batten light 300

Installation of New high efficiency LED lights in Mine Area. Details are as under:

Light details Total Quantity
350 W LED 20
150 W LED 10

Similarly, many HPSV lights in project areas were replaced by LED lights. It was ensured that these
lights give satisfactory performance by continuous service, maintenance and spares replacement etc.

As already quoted above, conventional HPSV lights are replaced by LED lights. Benefit or Impact of
replacement are as under:

Installed Replaced by Total Total Watt of Total watt of
Quantity conventional lights LED lights

400W HPSV 100W LED 4 1,600 400
150W HPSV 70W LED 32 4,800 2,240
70W HPSV 35W LED 217 15,190 7,595

2X 36W fluorescent tube light 36W LED 10 720 360
28w fluorescent tube light 20W LED 300 8,400 6.000
TOTAL 30,710 16,595
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- Total Power Consumption of conventional lights comes @ 12 hour - 368.52 units/day.
- While the Power consumption of LED lights comes @ 12 hour only - 199.14 units/day.
- Hence, a total saving of 169.38 units/day is recorded.

- This corresponds that total 5081.4 units/month are saved through the replacement of conventional
lights by LED lights.

b) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:
- SolarLEDIlights are underinstallation, wherever feasible in project area, especially under CSRinitiatives.
- Solar Water heaters are already installed and are ensured to give uninterrupted services.

c) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment:

- For Parsa East & Kente Basan ("PKEB") Mine, 10 MW solar plant installation work is under process for
reduction of consumption of energy from power grid.

B. Technology Absorption:
(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption:

- The Company has taken up a digital mine information management system, Mineshot for all the
operating coal and iron ore mines.

- Implementation of an Integrated Security Command and Control center completed.

- Pilot for OITDS had taken up at PEKB.

M3IING3N0 31vVd0dd00

- It is ensured that previously installed Technological initiatives delivers satisfactory deliveries by
regular up-keeping and service as & when required. These are: Geo-spatial Database, CMS for CHP
critical equipment, Mine water treatment, Video analytics system for security services, Terrestrial Lidar
Surveying, Tree-Transplanter, Drill-blast optimization etc.

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:
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- Condition Monitoring Service (CMS) in CHP has averted critical failures/breakdown of plant equipment
thereby ensuring increased plant up-time. The system generates advance alerts whenever an
equipment starts generating internal deficiency.

- Geo-spatial Database has helped to create integrated Maps through various sources including Drone
for PEKB and Parsa coal blocks. This helped in creating One Map for one Business with all important
information at just one click.

SINIWILVLS TVIONVNIH

- Mine water Treatment system has helped in providing potable water to nearby villages by treatment of
surplus mine water.

- Slope stability of OB dumps had increased.

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of the financial
year)

- No technology imported for conservation of energy.
(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development.
- NIL

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

(Zin Crore)
Particulars 2020-21
1. Foreign exchange earned (including export of goods on FOB basis) 110.28 -
2. Foreign exchange used 20,097.58 5,536.52
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Annexure
to the Directors' Report

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

The Company has framed Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy which encompasses its philosophy
and guides its sustained efforts for undertaking and supporting socially useful programs for the welfare &
sustainable development of the society.

The Company carried out / implemented its CSR activities/projects directly and through its implementation
agency, Adani Foundation.

The CSR Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company at https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/
media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/AEL_CSR_policy.pdf

Composition of the CSR Committee:

Sr.  Name of Director Designation/ Nature of | No. of meetings of CSR | No. of meetings of CSR
No. Directorship Committee held during Committee attended
the tenure during tenure

1. Mr. V. Subramanian’ Chairman 1 1

2. Mr. Rajesh S. Adani? Member 1 1

3, Mr. Pranav V. Adani Member 2 2

4, Mr. Hemant Nerurkar Member 2 2

5. Mrs. Vijaylaxmi Joshi® Member 1 1

1. Appointed as Chairman of CSR Committee w.e.f. 27 October 2021.
2. Ceased as Chairman and Member of CSR Committee w.e.f. 27t October 2021.
3. Appointed as a Mlember of CSR Committee w.e.f. 27®" October 2021.

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the Company.

https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/corporate-governance

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of Sub-rule (3) of Rule 8
of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).

Not Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any.

%2.43 Crore being the amount of excess CSR spent during FY 2020-21.

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): ¥737.89 Crore

a Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) : ¥14.76 Crore

b Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years. : Nil
¢ Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any :32.43 Crore

d Total CSR obligation for the financial year 2021-22 (7a+7b-7c) : ¥12.33 Crore


https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/AEL_CSR_policy.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/-/media/Project/Enterprises/Investors/corporate-governance/Polices/AEL_CSR_policy.pdf
https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/corporate-governance
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8. a3 CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year 2021-22 : As per below given table.

Total Amount Amount unspent (%)
Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Financial Year Unspent CSR Account as per Schedule VIl as per second proviso to Section
(in?) section 135(6) 135(5).
Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
Transfer Fund Transfer
312.87 Crore N.A. N.A.

b Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year 2021-22 : Not Applicable

¢ Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year 2021-22:

Sr. | Name of the Item from = Local Location of the project Amount Mode of Mode of implementation -
No. | Project the list of  area spent implementation | Through implementing agency
activities | (Yes/ State District for the - Direct (Yes/ Name CSR
in No) project No)
schedule (in%
VIl to the Crore)
Act.

1. Procurement (xii) Yes Across India 9.43 Yes
& Supply
of Oxygen
generation
plant &
Oxygen
concentrator
for Covid-19

2. Infrastructure (ii) Yes Gujarat Ahmedabad 0.58 No Adani CSR0O0000265
Support Foundation
to bring
International
Quality
Education
3. Support to (vii) Yes Gujarat Ahmedabad 1.31 No Adani CSR0O0000265
Coaching of Foundation
Athletes for
Olympic
4, Free Schooling (ii) No Chhattisgarh Surguja 1.35 No Adani CSRO0000265
Facilities for Foundation
local students

5. Donation to (vi) No New Delhi 0.10 Yes -
Army Central
Welfare Fund

6. | Donation to (vi) No New Delhi 0.10 Yes -
IAF Central
Welfare Fund

registration
number
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Total Amount spent towards CSR Activities 12.87

d Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Nil
e Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : Nil

f  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : ¥12.87 Crore
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g Excess amount for set off, if any

Sr. Particulars Amount

No. (Xin Crore)

(i) a. | Two percentage of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 14.76

b. | Amount available for set-off for FY 2020-21 2.43

CSR obligation for the FY 2021-22 (a-b) (Net) 12.33

(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 12.87

(i) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-()] 0.54

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the Nil
previous financial years, if any

v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 0.54

9 a Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years : Not Applicable

b Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s)
: Not Applicable

10 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details) : Not Applicable

a Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) : Not Applicable
b Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset : Not Applicable

¢ Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered,
their address etc. : Not Applicable

d Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of
the capital asset) : Not Applicable

11 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section
135(5) : Not Applicable

V. Subramanian Hemant Nerurkar
Independent Director & Independent Director &
Chairman- CSR Committee Member — CSR Committee
(DIN: 00357727) (DIN: 00265887)
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Management Discussion
and Analysis Report

Global economic overview

The global economy grew an estimated 5.9% in 2021
compared to a de-growth of 3.3% in 2020. 0

The global economic recovery was attributed to
accelerated vaccine rollout across 4.4 billion people,
around 56% of the global population (single dose).

The global economy was affected by prohibitive
shipping freight rates, a shortage of shipping
containers and semi-conductor chips in 2021
Inflation was at its highest since 2011, especially in
the advanced economies, catalysed by a run up in
commodity prices. Some emerging and developing
economies were positioned to withdraw policy support
to contain inflation even as the economic recovery was
still incomplete.

The global economy is projected to grow at a modest
2.6% in 2022 following the Russia-Ukraine war.
A higher interest rate environment could affect
emerging markets and developing economies with
large foreign currency borrowings and external
financing needs in 2022.

Regional growth % 2020

World output 5.9 (3.3)
Advanced economies 5.0 (4.9)
Emerging and 6.3 (2.4)

developing economies

(Source: IMF, World Bank, UNCTAD)

Performance of some major economies

United States: The country reported GDP growth of
5.7% in 2021 compared to a de-growth of 3.4% in 2020,
following the government’s investment of trillions of
dollars in COVID relief.

China: The country's GDP grew 8.1% in 2021 compared
to 2.3% in 2020 despite it being the novel coronavirus
epicentre.

United Kingdom: The country’s GDP grew 7.5% in 2021
compared to a 9.9% de-growth in 2020.

Japan: The country reported growth of 1.7% in 2021
following a contraction in the previous year.

Germany: The country reported a GDP growth of 2.9%
in 2021 compared to a decline of 4.9% in 2020,

(Source: World Bank, IMF, Business Standard, Times of
India)

Indian economic review

The Indian economy reported an attractive recovery in
FY 22, its GDP rebounding from a de-growth of 7.3 per
centin FY 21 to a an estimated growth of 8.7 per cent
in FY 22. By the close of FY 22, India was among the
six largest global economies, its economic growth rate
was the fastest among major economies (save China),
its market size at around 1.40 billion the second most
populous in the world and its rural under-consumed
population arguably the largest in the world.

Y-0-Y growth of the Indian economy

Regional growth % FY19 FY20 FY21 Bagys

Real GDP growth (%) 6.1 42 (7.3) 8.7

Growth of the Indian economy, FY 22

Regional growth % Q1, Q2, Q3 Q4,
FY22| FY22| FY22| FY22

Real GDP growth (%) 20.1 8.4 5.4 4.1
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Thelndianeconomy was affected by the second wave of
the pandemic that affected economic growth towards
the fag end of the previous financial year and across
the first quarter of the financial year under review. The
result is that after a growth of 1.6 per cent in the last
quarter of FY 21, the Indian economy grew 20.1 per
cent in the first quarter of FY 22 due to the relatively
small economic base during the corresponding period
of the previous year.

India’s monsoon was abundant in 2021 as the country
received 99.32% of a normal monsoon, lower though
than in the previous year. The estimated production
of rice and pulses was of 127.93 million tonnes and
26.96 million tonnes respectively. The total oilseeds
production of the country recorded a volume of 371.47
million tonnes. Moreover, based on the spatial and
temporal distribution of the 2021 monsoon rainfall,
the agricultural gross value added (GVA) growth in
FY22 wasanticipated to be 3-3.5%. The country's
manufacturing sector grew an estimated 12.5 per
cent, the agriculture sector 3.9 per cent, mining
and quarrying by 14.3%, construction by 10.7% and
electricity, gas and water supply by 8.5% in FY 2021-22.

There were positive features of the Indian economy
during the year under review.

India got the highest annual FDI inflow of USD 83.57
billion in FY2021-22, a validation of the global investing
confidence in India's growth story. The Government
approved 100% FDI for insurance intermediaries and
increased FDI limit in the insurance sector from 49% to
74% in the Union Budget 2021-22.

India surpassed the ¥88,000 Crore target set for asset
monetisation in FY 22, raising over 397,000 Crore with
roads, power, coal, mining and minerals accounting for
a large chunk of the transactions.

The Indian Government launched a four-year %6 lakh
Crore asset monetisation plan (roads and highways,
pipelines, power transmission lines, telecom towers,
railways station re-development, private trains, tracks,
goods sheds, dedicated freight corridor, railways
stadiums, airports, projects in major ports, coal mining
projects, mineral mining blocks, national stadia,
redevelopment of colonies and hospitality assets).

In 2021, India was the largest recipient of global
remittances. The country received USD 87 billion
during 2021, with the US being the largest source
(20%). India's foreign exchange reserves stood at an
all-time high of USD 642.45 billion as on September
3, 2021, crossing USD 600 billion in forex reserves for
the first time.

India’'s currency weakened 3.59% from 373.28 to 375.91
to a US dollar through FY 22. The consumer price index
(CPI) of India stood at an estimated 5.3% in FY 2021-
22.India reported improving Goods and Services Tax
(GST) collections month-on-month in the second half
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of 2021-22 following the relaxation of the lockdown,
validating the consumption-driven improvement in the
economy. The country recorded its all-time highest GST
collections in March 2022 at %1.42 lakh Crore, which
was 15% higher than the corresponding period in 2021.

India ranked 62 in the 2020 World Bank's Ease of Doing
Business ranking. The country received positive FPIs
worth 51,000 Crore in 2021 as the country ranked
fifth among the world’s top leading stock markets with
a market capitalisation of $3.21 trillion in March 2022.

The fiscal deficit was estimated at ~%15.91 trillion for
theyear ending 31t March, 2022 on account of a higher
Government expenditure during the year under review.

India's per capita income was estimated to have
increased 16.28% from 31.29 lakh in 2020-21 to %1.50
lakh in 2021-22 following a relaxation in lockdowns and
increased vaccine rollout.

India's tax collections increased to a record 327.07 lakh
Crore in FY 2021-22 compared with a Budget estimate
of 322.17 lakh Crore. While direct taxes increased 49
per cent, indirect tax collections increased 30 per cent.
The tax-to-GDP ratio increased from 10.3 per cent in
FY21to 11.7 per cent in FY22, the highest since 1999.

Retail inflation in March at 6.95 per cent was above
the RBI's tolerance level of 6 per cent but fuel prices
played no part in this surge. Retail inflation spiked to a
17-month high in March 2022, above the upper limit of
the RBI's tolerance band for the third straight month.

(Source: Economic Times, IMF, World Bank, EIU,
Business Standard, McKinsey, SANDRP, Times of India,
Livemint, Investindia.org, Indian Express, NDTV, Asian
Development Bank)

Indian economic reforms

2022-23 provisions

The Budget 2022-23 seeks to lay the foundation of
the Indian economy over the ‘Amrit Kaal' period of the
next 25 years leading to 100 years of independence
in 2047. The Government is emphasizing the role of
PM Gati Shakti, Inclusive Development, Productivity
Enhancement & Investment, Sunrise Opportunities,
Energy Transition, Climate Action, and as Financing of
Investments.

and Budget

Thecapitalexpendituretargetofthelndian Government
expanded by 35.4% from ¥5.54 lakh Crore to %7.50 lakh
Crore. The effective capital expenditure for FY23 was
seen at ¥10.7 lakh Crore. An outlay of ?5.25 lakh Crore
was made to the Ministry of Defence, 13.31% of the
total Budget outlay. A boost was provided to India's
electric vehicle policy 'Scheme for Faster Adoption and
Manufacturing of (Hybrid and) Electric Vehicle in India’,
An announcement of nearly 20,000 Crore was made
for the PM Gati Shakti National Master Plan to catalyse
the infrastructure sector. An expansion of 25,000 km


http://InvestIndia.org

was initiated in 2022-23 for the national highways
network. To boost the agricultural sector, an allocation
of ¥2.37 lakh Crore was made towards the procurement
of wheat and paddy under MSP operations. An outlay
of %1.97 lakh Crore was announced for the Production
Linked Incentive (PLI) schemes across 13 sectors.

Outlook
India's medium-term optimism is derived from the fact
that three down cycles - long-term, medium-term

and short-term — could well be reversing at the same
time. The long-term downtrend, as a result of non-
performing assets, scams and overcapacity could be
over; the medium-term downtrend that was caused by
the ILFS crisis, select banks collapse and weakening
NBFCs could well be over; the short-term downtrend
on account of the pandemic has weakened following
the acceleration of the vaccine rollout.

There is a possibility of each of these downtrends
having played out, which could well lead to a multi-year
revival in capital investments. Some USD 500 billion
worth of investments are expected to be made in the
wind and solar infrastructure, energy storage and grid
expansion.

The Indian economy is projected to grow by 8% in
FY23 (World Bank estimate), buoyed by tailwinds of
consistent agricultural performance, flattening of the
COVID-19 infection curve, increase in Government
spending, favourable reforms and an efficient roll-out
of the vaccine leading to a revival in economic activity.

Across the next three years, capital expenditure in
core sectors - cement, metal, oil refining and power -
should be about 35 trillion. Besides, the Government'’s
production linked incentives (PLI)-led capex should
generate an incremental 1.4 trillion in sectors like
consumer durables, pharmaceuticals and automobiles.

Industry overview

Coal business: India is the second-largest coal producer
and ranks fourth in terms of coal reserves in the
world, emphasizing the country’s capacity to provide
adequate coal and address its needs for industrial
development. India produced about 777.26 million tons
of coal in FY 22 compared to 716.08 million tonnes
in FY 21, an increase of 8.54%. The country's coal
requirement is expected to reach 1,123 million tonnes
by 2023 from the present 777.26 million tonnes.

India's total coal production increased by 6.74 % to
74.78 million tonnes during December 2021 compared
to the same period in 2019. Elevated mining reforms
and a growing focus on the mineral-led manufacture of
downstream metals is expected to catalyse the growth
of steel, aluminium, fertilizers and cement industry.
The growth of the country's coal mining business is
driven by the Government's decision to eliminate coal
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imports by 2023-24. Moreover, the demand for coal in
the country is expected to be in the range of 1.3-1.5
billion tonnes by 2030, despite the push for renewable
energy. (Source: Mint, coal.gov.in, Business Standard)

Airport: India had 136 commercially-managed airports
by Airports Authority of India (AAI) which included
30 civil enclaves at Defence airfields in the country
and 6 under Public Private Partnerships (PPP) for
operations, maintenance and development of airports,
making it the third largest domestic market for civil
aviation in the world.

Quality airport infrastructure influences national
competitiveness, enabling a systematic movement of
people and cargo. Indian airports handled 20.97 lakh
tonnes of freight in 2021-22 (till November) compared
to 14.44 |akh tonnes during the same period in the
previous year, recording a growth of 45.25 per cent.
This was slightly lower than the air cargo loading of
22.88 lakh tonnes during the pre-pandemic period of
April-November 2019.

India is a large market for travel and tourism. The travel
market in India is projected to reach USS$ 125 billion by
FY 2026-27 from an estimated US$ 75 billionin FY 2019-
20. Also, the Indian airline travel market was estimated
at USS 20 billion and is projected to double in size by
FY 27, owing to improved airport infrastructure and
growing access to passports. Besides, superior airport
infrastructure catalyses the growth of the tourism
sector, creating higher employment opportunities in
the country.

India's passenger traffic stood at 115.37 million in 2021
and is likely to reach 520 million by 2037. To cater to
the rising air traffic, the Government of India worked
towards increasing the number of airports. The rising
demand in the sector pushed the number of airplanes
operating in the sector. The number of airplanes is
expected to reach 1,100 planes by 2027. The number
of operational airports is projected to increase to 190-
200 by FY 2039-40. Moreover, the travel and tourism
industry is expected to contribute USS 512 billion to
the GDP of the country by 2028, catalysed by growing
population, higher disposable incomes, increased fare
affordability, cost effectiveness, wider airline choice,
increased preference for better travelling modes, better
inter-modal connectivity, investment in modern aircraft
fleet and others.

The Government of India took various initiatives to
address the incidence of growing air traffic in the
country. The Government of India launched a regional
connectivity scheme named UDAN (Ude Desh ka Aam
Nagrik) to make flying affordable for the common man.
The Government also planned to invest 325,000 Crore
(USS 3.58 billion) in five years to augment facilities and
infrastructure at airports. (Source: rajyasabha.nic.in,
IBEF, indiabudget.gov.in)
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Adani Enterprises Limited

Infrastructure: The infrastructure sector is the key
driver of India's growth journey and balanced socio-
economic development. Strong infrastructure enables
a country and its corporations to be competitive while
helping uplift people from poverty. The result is that
India's infrastructure sector stood at the cusp of rapid
growth, driven by government reforms, incentives and
long-term prospects. In FY2020-21, the sector was
estimated to contribute nearly 4% to the GDP of the
country.

The Government planned to invest %111 lakh Crore
(USS 1.5 trillion) in National Infrastructure Pipeline to
complete projects by 2025. In FY 2021-22, US$ 100
billion was invested through FDI in the infrastructure
sector. From roads, ports, airports to power, water,
health and technology, each needed to grow in a
robust manner led by government investments and
risk sharing, bold policy initiatives, PPP models and
tax breaks, particularly for private participation and a
necessary focus on skill development. These initiatives
are expected to help meet the US$ 5 trillion economy
target by FY 2024-25 and USS 10 trillion by 2030.
(Source: Statista, Financial Express)

Copper: Copper is one of the most important non-
ferrous metalsinindia, used to address diverseindustrial
needs. The size of the Indian copper industry is around
6.6 lakh tonnes per annum, merely 3% of the world
copper market as of 2021. The factors that influence
d the growth of the copper in India are the regulations
and performance of London Metal Exchange, currency
exchange rates, infrastructure developments, electric
industry, telecom boost, renewable energy, electric
vehicles, consumer durables, among others. Further,
the sector is expected to grow at a CAGR of 7% until
2030.

India's per capita consumption of copper stood at
0.5 Kg against global average of 3.1 Kg. In terms of
exploration, only 20,000 sq.km. area is explored out of
a potential 60,000 sg.km in India. To boost recycling of
copper in India, the Indian government announced a
reduction in the import duty on copper scrap from 5%
to 2.5%. (Source: mines.gov.in, IBEF)

Petrochemicals: India's petrochemical industry is one
of the fastest-growing industries in the country. The
country ranks sixth globally and fourth in Asia in terms
of global sale of chemicals. More than 80,000 varieties
of chemicals and petrochemicals were manufactured
in the country. The industry employed over two million
people peryear.

The petrochemicals market was estimated at USS 700
million in 2021. Petrochemicals are a part of our day
to day lives — used in manufacturing, construction,
packaging, agriculture, textile and apparel,
pharmaceuticals and others. In terms of volume, the
petrochemical market in India stood at 42.50 million
tonnes in 2021 and is expected to reach 49.62 million
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tonnes by 2025, growing at 8 CAGR of ~6.14% between
FY 2021 and FY 2025.

The petrochemical market in India is segregated into
three divisions - basic petrochemicals, intermediates
and other petro-based chemicals. The basic
petrochemicals segment (polymers, synthetic fibres,
synthetic rubber, synthetic detergent intermediates
and others) dominated the market, accounting
for ~45.53% of the share of the market volume in
2020. This growth was catalysed by the increasing
consumption of high-density polyethylene (HDPE),
linear low-density polyethylene (LDPE), polypropylene
and polyvinyl chloride, among others. The Indian
Government set up a 2034 vision for the chemicals
and petrochemicals sector to seize opportunities,
strengthen domestic manufacturing, reduce imports
and attract investments for manufacturing key
chemicals. Moreover, with the concept of a self-reliant
India, the country is expected to attract 8 lakh Crore
investments by 2025 to emerge as a front runnerin the
global chemical and petrochemical industry. (Source:
business.mapsofindia.com, globenewswire.com, PWC
India, ETimes)

Hydrogen: Hydrogen is a versatile energy carrier that
can be utilized in diverse energy system applications,
which includes the integration of renewables, clean
transportation, industry and others. India's hydrogen
demand is around 6.7 million tonnes in 2022. It is
expected to approximately double by 2030 and
the cost is expected to decline by 50 per cent. Oil
refineries, fertiliser plants and steel units are the major
consumers of hydrogen in India. Presently, 3 majority
of the demand is addressed by grey hydrogen, which
is produced from fossil fuels (natural gas or naphtha).
With the increased deployment of renewable power
capacity, the cost of renewable electricity has fallen
sharply to make green hydrogen more feasible.

The emerging focus on green hydrogen, produced using
renewable energy, has some of the best environmental
credentials among cleaner-burning fuels. The zero-
carbon fuel is produced using renewable power from
wind/solar sources. With India's low renewable energy
cost advantage, the cost of green hydrogen in the
country is poised to fall to about 1/4 of global levels
of green as well as grey hydrogen to less than USD 1
per kg, potentially making the country the lowest-
cost producer of green hydrogen across the world.
In addition, India plans to manufacture five million
tonnes of green hydrogen per annum by 2030, aiming
to make India a green hydrogen hub. To support this
transition from grey hydrogen to green hydrogen
and cater to growing hydrogen demand, the country
plans to invest in innovation, R&D and demonstration
projects to support the commercialisation of upcoming
technologies and accelerate the cost reduction of
green hydrogen. The demand for hydrogenis forecasted
to witness a 5-fold jump to 28 million tonnes by 2050;
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80 per cent of this demand is expected to be green in
nature. (Source: power-technology.com, reuters.com,
ETimes, Invest India)

Electrolysers: India's electrolysers market was
estimated at USS 304.57 million and is expected to
reach USD 467.39 million by 2027, a rise of 6.3% year on
year. The electrolyseris a device that utilises electricity
to break water into oxygen and hydrogen, making it the
most vital partin making hydrogen economically viable.
To produce green hydrogen through any process,
electrolysis is essential. India plans to provide federal
financial support to set up electrolysers as it proposed
to mandate using green hydrogen for fertilizer and
refining plants, catalysing the growth of electrolysers.

Presently, the alkaline water electrolysis technique is
being used in India, which consumes more electricity to
produce hydrogen, while the use of polymer electrolyte
membrane (PEM) electrolysis could bring down the
electricity requirement, resulting in a8 cost reduction
for hydrogen production.

The Indian government launched the National
Hydrogen Energy Mission on 15" August, 2021 to
enable competitive green hydrogen production and
plans to emerge as a global leader in green hydrogen.
With this vision, the country is seeking bids for 4,000
MW of electrolyser capacity and battery energy system
storage system of 4,000 MWh capacity. India is also
targeting 15 Gigawatts (GW) of electrolyser-making
capacity and considering production-linked incentives
to boost local manufacturing. (Source: pib.gov.in,
fortunebusinessinsights.com, ETimes)

Power batteries: The battery is becoming integral to
grid management and system operators/distribution
utilities at distribution, transmission as well as
generation nodes. In India, the battery storage market
is witnessing significant opportunities in electrified
mobility and storage requirements. India's power
battery market was estimated at US$ 1.66 billion in
2020 and expected to surpass US$ 15 billion (~ 1.12
trillion) by 2030. The country’s demand is expected
to rise to 260 GWh by 2030, driven by the increasing
demand for electric vehicles (EVs), consumer
electronics, stationary storage and others. According
to Mercom India, India is positioned to capture a large
share of the global storage market and contribute up
to 13% of the global battery demand by 2030.

India has a vast potential for large-scale battery
manufacturing, which support the growth of electric
vehicles, grid storage and energy security. Moreover,
the Indian government's target of manufacturing
30% of new vehicle sales as electric by 2030 and 34
GW/136 GWh of battery storage needed to add 450GW
of renewables in India by 2030, could drive the nation
to become a key lithium battery consumer. (Source:
mercomindia.com, mordorintelligence.com)
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Water: India is one of the most water-stressed
countries in the world. With a population of 1.38 billion
people, India is the second most populous country. The
average annual per capita water availability in 2001
and 2011 was assessed as 1,816 cubic meters and 1,545
cubic meters respectively, which reduced to 1,486
cubic meters in 2021 and could reduce to 1,367 cubic
meters in 2031.. At 250 billion cubic metres per year,
India is the largest consumer of ground water in the
world, consuming more than China and the US - the
next two largest consumers ( combined ).

India is also facing a freshwater crisis. India has just
4% of the world's fresh water but 16% of the global
population. More than 6% of this population lacks
access to safe waterand about 15% of India's population
practices open defecation. A lack of household water
connections and toilets contributes largely to water-
borne illnesses, stunting, and death. Therefore, 6%
of India's GDP is estimated to be affected due to the
water crisis of the country.

Over the coming years, the water requirement across
all the sectors could increase due to the growing
population. Nearly 40% of the population could have
absolutely no access to drinking water by 2030. With
rising population and industrialization, it was expected
thattherewould beanincreaseintheamountof sewage
and industrial waste being generated. Moreover, there
could be a significant imbalance between the water
demand and water resource availability by 2050,
thereby causing water scarcity. (Source: Statista, Mc
Kinsey, water.org, ide-india.org)

Government allocations

Jal Jeevan Mission (rural): The Indian government in
partnership with Indian states, launched Jal Jeevan
Mission (JJM), which aims at providing functional
household tap connections to every rural household by
2024 at the service level of 55 litre per capita per day.

National Perspective Plan (NPP): India’s river basins
could face a severe deficit by 2030 unless concerted
action is taken, with some of the most populous
basins , including the Ganga, Krishna, and the Indian
portion of the Indus—facing the biggest absolute gap.
As a3 result, the Indian government formulated the
National Perspective Plan (NPP) for Water Resources
Development, which envisages water transfer from
water surplus basins to water deficit basins

Har Ghar Nal Se Jal: The Indian government covered 8.7
Crore households under this scheme, out of which 5.5
Crore households were provided tap water in the last
two years. Further, the government plans to allocate
360,000 Crore to provide potable water to another 3.8
Crore households in 2022-23 under the Har Ghar Nal
Se Jal programme.
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Pradhan Mantri Krishi Sinchai Yojana (PMKSY):
The Indian government aimed to enhance rural
prosperity by enhancing water availability to all
agricultural farms, leading to higher production and
productivity. (Source: IBEF, Hindustan Times)

Defence: India is the second largest armed forces
in the world. India accounted for 3.7% of the global
military spending, making it the third highest military
spender in the world. The expenditure on the defence
sector constituted 15.5% of the Central Government'’s
budget and nearly 2.1% of India's GDP for 2020-21.
With a growing demand from the defence sector, the
government identified it as one of the core areas to
boost ‘Atmanirbhar Bharat’ or ‘Self-reliant India’. The
Defence Ministry has set a target of 70% self-reliance
in weaponry by 2027, creating large prospects for
industry players.

The export of defence items, including major items,
was INR 8,434.84 Crore in FY 2020-21 compared to
INR 1,521.00 Crore in FY 2016-17. The country focusing
on innovative solutions to empower the country's
defence and security via ‘Innovations for Defence
Excellence (iDEX)’, which provided a platform for start-
ups to connect to defence establishments and develop
new technologies/products in five years (2021-2026).

The Indian government spelt out a turnover target of
USS 25 billion (including exports of USS 5 billion in
aerospace and defence goods and services) by 2025.
To support defence modernisation, in the Budget
2021-22, the defence capital outlay increased by
18.75% the preceding year, highest ever increment
in the over 15 years. The Indian government has
also called for increased participation of defence
manufacturing companies from the private sector to
cater to the growing demand. The opening up of the
Indian defence industry also paved the way for foreign
original equipment manufacturers to enter strategic
partnerships with defence equipment manufacturers
in India. Besides, the Indian government enhanced
foreign direct investment (FDI) in the defence sector
up to 74% through the automatic route for companies
seeking new defence industrial license and up to 100%
by the government route. This will boost defence
manufacturing in India and make the country a
trustworthy weapons supplier to friendly nations.
(Source: IBEF, Invest India, prsindia.org)

Solar panels manufacture: The Indian renewable
energy sector is the fourth most attractive renewable
energy market in the world. India also ranked fifth
in terms of installed capacity of solar power, as of
March 2022. The country is targeting about 500 GW
of installed renewable energy capacity by 2030, of
which about 280 GW (over 60%) is expected from solar
power. Imports of solar cells and modules increased by
448% to US$ 1.97 billion in the first nine months of the
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calendar year 2021 compared to imported solar cells
and modules (USS 359.93 million) in the same period
last year.

The Indian Government seeks to develop a ‘green city’
in every State of the country, powered by renewable
energy. The ‘green city’ will mainstream environment-
friendly power through solar rooftop systems on all
houses, solar parks on the city’'s outskirts, waste-to
-energy plants and electric mobility-enabled public
transport systems. Indian government policies, like
allowing 100% FDI under the automatic route for
renewable power generation and distribution projects,
are expected to increase the participation from global
players in the Indian market.

Edible oils: India is the world's second-largest consumer
of edible oil. India's edible oils market was estimated
at USS 3.54 billion in 2020. It is expected to grow at
a CAGR of 6.82% from 2021 to 2027, reaching almost
US $5.72 billion in 2027. The growth could be catalysed
by anincreasing population, rising disposable incomes,
urbanisation, awareness of healthy and hygienic
foods and changing dietary habits with an increasing
shift towards processed foods with a high content of
vegetable oils.

The edible oils sector occupies an important spot in
the agricultural economy, accounting for an estimated
production of 36.56 million tonnes of nine cultivated
oilseeds during 2020-21 as per the Ministry of
Agriculture. Though oilseeds production in India grew
by almost 43% from 2015-16 to 2020-21, production
lagged consumption, necessitating imports of edible
oil. Less than half of India's edible oil consumption is
met through the domestic production of oilseeds such
3s mustard, groundnut, and soybean. The country is
one of the largest importers of edible oil. Edible oil
imports increased by 63% to 31.17 trillion during the oil
year 2021-22 compared to %71,625 Crore in the previous
year. Itis further expected to grow at a rate of 3.4% per
annum till 2030, owing to increasing irregularities in
demand and supply of the sector. Therefore, edible oils
consumption in India is expected to remain high due to
population growth, dietary habits and traditional meal
patterns expected to shift towards processed foods.
As per the OECD-FAO Agricultural Outlook 2021-2030,
India is projected to maintain a high per capita edible
oils consumption growth of 2.6% per annum, reaching
14 kg/capita by 2030. To make the country self-
reliant in terms of edible oil and reduce dependence
on imports, the Indian government urged farmers to
embrace the National Mission on Edible Oils — Oil Palm
(NMEO-OP) as a pledge for achieving self-reliance in
edible oil and committed to provide a financial outlay
of ¥11,000 in the cooking oil ecosystem. The Mission
aims to add additional areas for production (6.5 lakh
hectares) and increasing productivity of oilseeds in the
country. (Source: dfpd.gov.in, Times of India, ETimes)
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Data centres: India is one of the youngest and tech-
savvy populations in the world. Digital adoption is
rising in the country. The Indian data centre industry
is experiencing meteoric growth. Over the last two
years, India's data centre market has grown attractively,
primarily triggered by new data localization rules (data
generated in India to be stored within the country).
This 'smart’ move by the government, catalyse the need
for enterprises to upgrade their digital infrastructure
and adopt technologies to improve processes and
customer experience. This stimulated innovation and
data centre sector-specific jobs. Besides, a major
shift in data consumption pattern of consumers was
observed, which included a change in the way people
communicate, collaborate and access goods and
services. Being connected through the digital world
has become the new way for life benefiting businesses
and individuals.

The Indian data centre sector has already drawn
considerable global capital and is also being eyed by
private equity players. The pandemic fuelled the digital
transmutation as it brought a new sense of digital
acceleration and discipline through the increased use
of video conferencing, rise in over the top (OTT) and
e-commerce platforms. These factors are driving the
demand for data centres in India, clearly evident by the
fact that the data centre industry in India is expected
to double capacity from 499 MW in 2021 to 1,008 MW
by 2023.

As the world's second-most populous country with
ever-increasing smartphone adoption, India is an
interesting market for hyperscalers (entities that
provide large-scale internet, networking and cloud
services to organizations — for the next 5 years and
beyond). Besides, hyperscalers like Google and Amazon
are actively committing investments in the digital
infrastructure in India.

The adoption of new technologies such as Big Data, 5G,
IoT, Blockchain, AR/VR and Al, new age applications and
innovations could drive digital infrastructure. Mumbai
and Chennai are expected to drive 73% of the sector’s
total capacity addition during 2021-23, followed by
Pune, Kolkata, Hyderabad, Bangalore and Delhi NCR
emerging as new hotspots. Data centres are a new
real estate segment, which is estimated contribute to
5-10% of the overall absorption of commercial realty in
any market.

Company overview

About us

Adani Enterprises Ltd. ("AEL or the Company”) was
incorporated in 1993. AEL is one of the fastest growing
diversified businesses providing an extensive range
of products and services. The Company is engaged in
mining & services, resource logistics, new energy supply
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chain including solar module and cell manufacturing,
transport & logistics business like airports and roads,
utilities like water and data centers, edible oil and food
businesses. The Company operates as an incubator,
establishing new businesses in transport & logistics
and energy & utility sectors, apart from increasing its
focus on direct-to-consumer businesses. It followed
this strategy consistently since inception, when it was
first established and later listed (1994). AEL incubated
and listed on the bourses businesses like Adani Ports,
Adani Power, Adani Transmission, Adani Green Energy,
Adani Gas and Adani Wilmar.

Financial performance

The Company continued to register robust financial
performance on the back of its strong operational
performance across its key and established businesses.
The Company's continued focus on transport & logistics
and energy & utility verticals was expected to drive
performance.

Key highlights of the Company's consolidated

performance for the year were as under:

B Consolidated Total Income increased 75% to
370,433 Crorein FY 2021-22 versus 340,291 Crore in
FY 2020-21.

B Consolidated EBIDTA increased by 45% to 34,726
Crore in FY 2021-22 versus %3,259 Crore in FY
2020-21.

B Consolidated PAT attributable to owners stood
at 777 Crore in FY 2021-22 versus 3922 Crore in
FY 2020-21.

Operational performance
Key highlights of the Company's consolidated
operational performance for the year were as under:

B Mining Services production volume increased 58%
to 27.7 MMT in FY 2021-22 versus 17.5 MMT in
FY 2020-21 following the ramping up of new
mines, with Parsa East and Kente Basan (PEKB)
coal blocks operating at their peak.

B Integrated Resources Management (IRM) volume
stood at 64.4 MMT in FY 2021-22 as against 63.4
MMT in FY 2020-21.

B Solar Manufacturing volume stood at 1,104 MW in
FY 2021-22 versus 1,158 MW in FY 2020-21.

Key business segments

Natural Resources Business

Integrated Resources Management (IRM)

Adani Group is an established and diversified
conglomerate in India, having a global presence with
a world-class infrastructure and utility portfolio, while
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the Company continues to operate as the incubator
and flagship company of the Group. The Group made a
marked shift from B2B to B2C business with a growing
presence in gas, electricity and airports. The Group has
3 decades-long track record of industry best growth
rates across sectors with a repeatable, robust and
proven transformative model of investment.

The Company, with established Integrated Resources
Management (IRM) business relations with its suppliers
evolved as India's largest coal off taker in Indonesis,
South Africa and USA for non-coking coal catering to
the requirement of private and public sector clients
in India. The Company developed strong business
relationships with miners for the procurement of
imported coal and functions as a pre-emptive facilitator
for meeting the energy requirements of customers.

The Company continues to look at opportunities to
develop relations with new miners, which could lead
to timely and cost-effective coal delivery. Leveraging
on its inherent logistical expertise through its wide
network across the supply chain, the company imports
coal through a majority of ports in India, which saves
logistic costs ensures timely delivery to customers.

Adani's 'door-to-door’ delivery model comprises the
responsibility and accountability for sourcing from
suppliers, managing sea-borne logistics, providing
an intermediate holding facility at discharge ports
and inland transportation to finally delivering at the
doorsteps of customers. This unique approach has
allowed the business to cater to satisfied customers
across various industries such as power, cement, steel
and iron, among others.

The Company maintained its status as the largest
Integrated Resources Management service
provider pertaining to import of thermal coal
(non-coking steam coal) in India during 2021-22 with
3 protected market share. The business witnessed a
decline in volumes pertaining to supplies to States or
Central owned Electricity Boards. However, in the last
quarter, the Company witnessed new orders from the
State or Central Electricity Board and captured higher
market share of the steel, cement and other sectors
by venturing into the retail segment to address local
markets in different geographies.

Last year, the Company launched its flagship e-portal
for the online trading of coal. The Company was able
to attain a good stronghold in this space by leveraging
the benefits of an early entrant. The Company expects
that the e-portal will bring in two-fold benefits of the
ease of doing business for retail customers; the use
of technology will enable faster, reliable and a more
customer-centric approach which could help capture
even larger share of the retail business. During the year,
the Company successfully launched 'BRAVUS' in the
market.
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Going forward, the Company will target for a balanced
customer mix of retail, State and Central-owned
Electricity Board customers, which is expected to yield
growth and steady cash flows.

Mining business

AEls mining business is one of its fastest
growing leadership in operating segments.
The current operations are focussed on the
mining business i.e. Mine Developer & Operator
(MDO - Coal & Iron Ore) and Commercial Mining (Coal).
The mining business actively focussed and targeted
diversification opportunities to own mines across
range of minerals such as Iron Ore, Bauxite, Limestone,
Chromite, Diamond and other key minerals.

Mining development and Operation (Coal &
Minerals)

InIndia, as a partofthe public private partnership model,
Government / Public sector companies, including State
power generation companies (State Electricity Boards),
and State mineral corporations allotted coal & mineral
blocks, appoints a Mine Developerand Operator (“MDQO")
to activities relating to the development and operations
of a Coal & Mineral Block allotted to deliver coal/
mineral under agreed contractual terms. Government /
public sector companies, allotted coal & mineral blocks,
published tenders for the selection of MDO and were
at various stages of bid processes and subsequent
award of tender. The Company participated in such
tenders to secure long-term MDO contracts in the last
financial year. There comprised other MDO tenders in
advance stages where AEL participated and intends to
participate and secure long-term MDO contracts.

Commercial mining - coal

Government of India launched the auction process
for commercial coal mining for the private sector and
removing restrictions on the end use of coal in June
2020. Thirty eight coal blocks were put up for auctions
in the first tranche of commercial coal mining auction.
Forward auctions concluded for eligible 18 blocks (19
effective) in November 2020. AEL and its subsidiaries
won two coal blocks, Dhirauli in Madhya Pradesh and
Gondulpara in Jharkhand. Subsequently, Ministry of
Coal, launched the second tranche of commercial coal
mining in March 2021 by publishing a list of sixty seven
coal blocks of which AEL won Jhigador, Khargaon and
Gondkhari mine. Further, Ministry of Coal, launched
third tranche of commercial coal mining in October
2021 by publishing list of ninety nine coal blocks of
which AEL won Bijahan and Gondbahera Ujheni East
coal mines. AEL is evaluating these opportunities
and will participate in more auctions by leveraging its
mining and integrated coal management capabilities.



Commercial mining - mineral

Government of India approved Mines and Minerals
(Development and Regulation) Amendment Bill, 2021
on 23 March 2021 to attract investors and ease mine
development and operations. A discussion paper was
also published by Ministry of Mines, reflecting guidelines
and seeking comments from all the stakeholders. The
amendment to section 10A (2)(b) & 10A (2)(c) of the
Mines and Minerals (Development and Regulation)
Act, 1957 will make available for auction more than
500 mineral deposits blocks of various minerals such
as iron ore, bauxite, graphite, chromite, diamond etc.
Now in FY 22 & onwards, Ministry of Mines is expected
to undertake the process of auctions of these mineral
blocks. AEL intends to evaluate and participate in
these auctions.

A brief of existing operations is provided below:

Domestic coal production (MMT)
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ROM coal Production (MMT)

B Parsa East and Kanta Basan (PEKB) Coal Block

Rajasthan Rajya Vidyut Utpadan Nigam Limited
(RRVUNL) has been allocated the Parsa East and
Kanta Basan coal blocks (PEKB) in the State of
Chhattisgarh. RRVUNL entered into a Coal Mining
and Delivery Agreement with Parsa Kente Collieries
Limited (PKCL) [ajointventure company of RRVUNL
and AEL] appointing PKCL as the sole mining
contractor. PKCL as Mine Developer and Operator
of PEKB is undertaking the developments, mining,
beneficiation of coal, arranging transportation and
delivery of washed coal to end use power projects
of RRVUNL. The project commenced mining
operations and dispatches of coal to thermal
power stations of RRVUNL in March 2013. For

Annual Report 2021-22

2021-22, raw coal production was 15 MMT, washed
coal production was 11.88 MMT and washed coal
dispatch to thermal power plants of RRVUNL was
12.34 MMT.

Kente Extension Coal Block

RRVUNL was allocated the Kente Extension
Coal Block in Chhattisgarh. RRVUNL entered
into a Coal Mining and Delivery Agreement with
Rajasthan Collieries Limited (RCL) [a joint venture
company of RRVUNL and AEL] appointing RCL as
3 sole mining contractor. RCL as Mine Developer
& Operator of Kente Extension Coal Block will
undertake the development of the coal block,
mining, beneficiation of coal and arranging for
transportation and delivery of coal to end use
power projects of RRVUNL. The coal block is under
development stage.

Parsa Coal Block

RRVUNL was allocated the Parsa Coal Block in
Chhattisgarh. RRVUNL entered into a coal mining
and delivery agreement with Rajasthan Collieries
Limited (RCL) [a joint venture company of RRVUNL
and AEL] appointing RCL as the sole mining
contractor. RCL, as mine developer & operator of
Parsa coal block, will undertake the development
of the coal block, mining, beneficiation of coal and
arranging for the transportation and delivery of coal
to end use power projects of RRVUNL. All major
statutory clearances were issued by Government
authorities and production from the coal block is
expected to be commenced in FY 2022-23.

Gare Pelma Sector-lll Coal Block

Chhattisgarh State Power Generation Company
Ltd. (CSPGCL) was allocated the Gare Pelma
Sector - Il Coal Block in Chhattisgarh for captive
use in their thermal power plant in Chhattisgarh.
CSPGCL has appointed Gare Pelma Il Collieries
Limited (GPIICL), a wholly owned subsidiary of
AEL, as Mine Developer and Operator (MDO) for
the development, operation, mining and Delivery of
coal to end use power project of CSPGCL. CSPGCL
has entered into a Coal Mine Services Agreement
with GPIICL on 16™ November 2017. GPIIICL ,
as MDO of Gare Pelma Sector Il Coal Block, is
undertaking the development of the said coal
block, mining and arranging for the transportation
and delivery of coal to end use power projects of
CSPGCL.

During 2021-22, GPIIICL achieved raw coal
production of 3.26 MMT and dispatched 3.5 MMT
of coal.
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Talabira Il & Il Coal Block

NLC India Limited (NLCIL) was allocated the Talabira
II' & Il Coal Block in Odisha for the captive use in
theirthermal power plant. NLCIL appointed Talabira
(Odisha) Mining Private Limited (TOMPL), a wholly
owned subsidiary of AEL, as Mine Developer and
Operator (MDO) for the development, operation,
mining and delivery of coal to NLCIL. NLCIL entered
into a coal mining agreement with TOMPL on 23™
March 2018. TOMPL as MDO of Talabira Il & Il Coal
Block is the undertaking development of the coal
block, mining, loading, transportation and delivery
of coal to delivery points.

TOMPL commenced coal production in April 2020.
In FY 2021-22 TOMPL achieved coal production of
6.35 MMT and dispatched 6.36 MMT of coal.

Suliyari Coal Block

Andhra Pradesh Mineral Development Corporation
Limited (APMDC) was allocated the Suliyari coal
block in Madhya Pradesh for commercial mining of
coal. APMDC appointed AEL as Mine Developer and
Operator (MDO) for the development, operation,
mining and Delivery of coal to APMDC. APMDC
entered into a Coal Mining Agreement with
AEL on 8% March 2019. The coal block is under
operational stage. Over burden removal (OBR)
and coal production started. For 2021-22, raw coal
production was 19,014 Tons.

Bailadila Deposit - 13 Iron Ore Mine

NCL (NMDC-CMDC Limited) is the mining lease
holder of Bailadila Deposit -13 Iron Ore Mine
in Chhattisgarh. NCL appointed AEL as Mine
Developer and Operator (MDO) for development,
operation, mining and delivery of iron ore to NCL.
NCL entered into an Iron Ore Mining Services
Agreement with AEL on 6™ December, 2018. AEL
awarded a sub-contract to Bailadila Iron Ore Mining
Private Limited (BIOMPL), 3 100% subsidiary of AEL,
for the development of the iron ore block, mining,
loading, transportation and delivery of iron ore to
the delivery point. The mine is under development
stage.

Gare Palma Sector | Coal Block

Gujarat State Electricity Corporation Limited
(GSECL) was allocated the Gare Pelma Sector -
Coal Blockin Chhattisgarh for the development and
operation and for the captive use of coal in thermal
power plantsin Gujarat. GSECL issued a conditional
Letter of Acceptance (LoA) to consortium of
AEL (74%) and Sainik Mining and Allied Services
Limited (SMASL, 26%) on 15" December, 2018 for
the development, operation, mining and delivery of
coal to end use power projects of GSECL. A coal

mine services agreement between the AEL-SMASL
Consortium and GSECL is yet to be signed.

Gare Palma Sector Il Coal Block

Maharashtra State Power Generation Co. Ltd.
(MAHAGENCO) was allocated the Gare Pelma
Sector -l Coal Block Chhattisgarh for the
development and operation and for the captive use
of coal in thermal power plants in Maharashtra.

AEL formed a wholly owned subsidiary, namely
‘Gare Palma Il Collieries Private Limited’ (GPIICPL).
A coal mine agreement between GPIICPL (MDO),
AEL (successful bidder) and MAHAGENCO was
signed on 31.03.2021. As per the approved mining
plan, the peak rated capacity of GP-Il Coal Mine is
23.6 MTPA with a total mineable reserve of 553.177
MMT for open cast mining. GPIICPL, as MDO of Gare
Palma Il Coal Block, will undertake the development
of the coal block and then operate mine, transport
and load coal into wagons for delivery to the power
projects of MAHAGENCO.

Gidhmuri Paturia Coal Block

Chhattisgarh State Power Generation Company
Ltd. (CSPGCL) was allocated the Gidhmuri Paturia
Coal Block in Chhattisgarh for captive use in
thermal power plants in Chattisgarh. CSPGCL
appointed Gidhmuri Paturia Collieries Private
Limited (GPCPL), a subsidiary of AEL, (74%) and
Sainik Mining and Allied Service Limited (SMASL,
26%) as MDO for development, operation, mining
and delivery of coal to CSPGCL. CSPGCL entered
into a coal mining agreement with GPCPL on 2"
May 2019. GPCPL, as MDO of Gidhmuri Paturia
coal block, will be undertaking the development of
the coal block and then mining and arranging for
transportation and delivery of coal to the delivery
point. The coal block is under development.

Kurmitar Iron Ore Mine

Odisha Mining Corporation Limited (OMCL) is the
Mining Lease holder of Kurmitar Iron Ore Mine
in Sundargarh District, in Odisha. Kurmitar Iron
Ore Mining Private Limited (KIOMPL), a wholly
owned subsidiary of AEL, was appointed by
OMCL as the MDO for development, operation,
mining, transportation and delivery of iron ore
to delivery point. OMCL entered into an iron
ore mining agreement with AEL and KIOMPL on
31t October, 2019. The iron ore mining and
evacuation infrastructure was under development
stage. KIOMPL took over mine operations from
the earlier contractor and commenced iron ore
production from 1%t April 2021. Iron ore production
in FY 21-22 was 2.95 MMT.



Commercial coal blocks

B Dhirauli coal mine (Madhya Pradesh)

Stratatech Mineral Resources Private Limited
(SMRPL), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, emerged as a successful bidder of the
Dhirauli coal block, auctioned for the sale of coal.
SMRPL entered into Coal Block Development and
Production Agreement (CBDPA) with Nominated
Authority, Ministry of Coal on 11.01.2021. The
nominated Authority issued the allocation order
of Dhirauli Coal Block to SMRPL on 03.03.2021.
SMRPL, as coal block owner/allottee, shall
undertake the development and operation of the
coal block and then utilize/sell the coal as per
requirements. The coal blockis under development.

B Gondulpara coal mine (Jharkhand)

The Company emerged as the successful bidder of
the Gondulpara coal block, auctioned for the sale
of coal. The Company entered into a Coal Mine
Development and Production Agreement (CMDPA)
with the Nominated Authority, Ministry of Coal,
on 11.01.2021. The Nominated Authority issued
the Vesting Order of the Gondulpara coal block
to the company on 08.03.2021. The Company,
as coal block owner/allottee, shall undertake the
development and operation of the coal block and
then utilize/sell the coal as per requirements. The
coal block is under development.

B Bijahan coal mine (Odhisa)

InMarch 2022, Mahanadi Mine and Minerals Private
Limited (MMMPL), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, emerged as a successful bidder
of Bijahan coal block, auctioned for sale of coal.
MMMPL is in the process of signing Coal Block
Development and Production Agreement (CBDPA)
with the Nominated Authority, Ministry of Coal.

B  Gondbahera Ujheni
Pradesh)

In March 2022, MP Natural Resources Private
Limited (MNRPL), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, emerged as a successful bidder of
Gondbahera Ujheni East coal mine, auctioned
for sale of coal. MMMPL is in the process of
signing Coal Block Development and Production
Agreement (CBDPA) with the Nominated Authority,
Ministry of Coal.

East coal mine (Madhya

Coal mining in Indonesia

PT Adani Global, Indonesia a wholly-owned step down
subsidiary of the Company, was awarded a coal mining
concession in PT Lamindo Inter Multikon (stepdown
subsidiary in Bunyu Island, Indonesia).

Annual Report 2021-22

The Bunyu Mines has a Joint Ore Reserves Committee
(JORC)-compliantresource of 269 Million Metric Tonnes
(MMT) for both mines (i.e. combined). Production from
the mine during 2021-22 was at 2.16 Million Metric
Tonnes (MMT).

With an upsurge in demand and recovery in prices, the
Indonesian company set target a production of 4 MMT
for 2022-23.

Coal mining and related infrastructure in
Australia

Our wholly-owned step-down subsidiaries in Australia
have 100% interest in the Carmichael coal mine in
the Galilee Basin in Queensland, Australia. During
the year ended 31t March, 2022, the Group worked
on the development and construction of coal mining
tenements in the Galilee Basin in Queensland
(Australia). The Group completed the construction of
mine along with the necessary infrastructure required
to commence mine operations. The mine started
production and test sales of coal from the Carmichael
coal mine during the year.

Road, metro and rail

AEL focused on incubating successful businesses
to address the country's growing appetite for
infrastructure. In line with our vision to contribute
towards nation building, the Company seeks to tap
opportunities in the road, metro & rail sectors by
developing National Highways, expressways, tunnels,
metro-rail, rail, etc. Adani Group is confident of
positioning itself as a dominant player in the road,
metro and rail sectors.

- The Company and its subsidiary Adani
Road Transport Ltd. (ARTL) bagged
14 projects with more than 5,000 lane kms and
asset value exceeding INR 41,000 Crore spread
over 10 Indian States Chhattisgarh, Telangana,
Andhra Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh. Kerala,
Gujarat, West Bengal, Odisha. Uttar Pradesh, and
Maharashtra. The portfolio will have a mix of
HAM (Hybrid Annuity Mode), TOT (Toll - Operate -
Transfer) and BOT (Build -Operate -Transfer) type
assets. These assets are under various stages of
development/ execution/ operation. ARTL is in the
process of acquiring 49% stake of the Maharashtra
Border Check Post Network Ltd, which comprises
24 Border Check posts in Maharashtra.

- The Company will continue to evaluate and bid
for attractive opportunities in the transport sector
which generates value for stakeholders, The Group
will use its immense expertise and experience in
setting up and operating complex and mammoth
infrastructure projects in record time with world-
class quality standards.
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- As a developer, the Company will primarily
target PPP projects structured in Build-Operate-
Transfer (BOT)-Toll, TOT and HAM models. We
will focus on projects across pan-India initiated
by National Highways Authority of India (NHAI)
under Bharatmala Pariyojana, etc. and Ministry of
Road Transport and Highways (MORTH), Ministry
of Railways, Metro Corporation of the respective
States and other projects under the purview of the
Central and State authorities and agencies.

- The Company will focus on select EPC projects,
which can offer scale and complexity in terms of
the nature of work and technology requirement,
and which requires the developer to leverage
its project execution capabilities to create
differentiated value in the industry.

- Having multiple infrastructure businesses across
different States, the Company would like to
leverage its local presence and expertise in project
management to build synergies for its Road, Metro
& Rail Infrastructure development.

- The Company will focus on in-organic growth
through mergers and acquisitions, where it will look
out for good asset that offer a clear visibility of cash
flows and are available at attractive valuations.

- The Company and its subsidiary ARTL are exploring
opportunities of Railways Station Development
Projects, Dedicated Freight Corridor projects under
the PPP mode.

Water

Water touches every aspect of development and it
links nearly every Sustainable Development Goal.
It drives economic growth, supports healthy ecosystem,
and is essential and fundamental for life itself. The
Indian economy is undergoing rapid urbanization
and industrial growth, Water a key resource, getting
attention from the Government, policy makers, media
and from the markets, given rising concerns on
availability. A report by NITI Ayog draws attention to
the fact that 48% of India’'s population is under high
water stress.

Jal Shakti Ministry is focusing on programme such
as ‘National Mission for Clean Ganga (NMCG) and
National River Conservation for pollution abatement
of Ganga & Other Rivers, Pradhanmantri Krishi Sinchae
Yojana (PMKSY) for extending coverage of irrigation
with improved efficiency of micro-irrigation, Jal Jeevan
Mission (JJM) & Har Ghar Jal Mission for providing
piped water connection to 14.6 Crore rural households
by 2024, Jal Shakti Abhiyaan to stimulate rainwater
harvesting and water conservation, National River
Linking projects to connect 37 rivers across to ensure
adequate water throughout the year in all regions etc.
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Foreseeing the massive need for water infrastructure
capacity augmentation, the Company is implementing
a Waste Water Treatment project at Prayagraj in Uttar
Pradesh and Bhagalpur in Bihar under the ‘Namami
Gange, One City One Operator’ framework.

The Prayagraj project comprises the construction
of three 3 new sewage treatment plants (STPs) of
cumulative 72 MLD capacity and rehabilitation of six
existing STPs of cumulative 254 MLD capacity with
15 years of operations and maintenance (O&M). The
rehabilitation of existing STPs was done successfully
and they are under operation.

The Bhagalpur project comprises the construction new
STPs of 45 MLD along with associate infrastructure like
pumping station and rising main / gravity main.

The Company is bidding for more project opportunities
in the areas of wastewater treatment, irrigation
infrastructure development, large water supply & water
distribution projects and desalination projects.

Defence & aerospace

After some of the most pathbreaking steps in FY 21,
FY 22 was a watershed year for the Indian Defence
industry. The Indian Government continued its drive
towards Atmanirbharta in defence manufacturing with
an import embargo on multiple defence items as well
undertaking an unprecedented review of all import
procurements. The complex geopalitical situation
towards the end of 2021-22 reinforced the need for self-
reliance and need for preparedness for a large-scale
conflict. The Union Budget for 2022-23 reserved 68%
of the capital procurement budget for the domestic
defence industry. As a testimony to the importance of
the unmanned systems, the Indian Government banned
imports of drones in the country.

The Company continued to deepen and broad base its
capabilities across its key focus areas with a resulting
order book of almost ¥8,000 Crore. The volatile
situation at the borders prompted fast track capital
equipment purchases for bolstering national security
and your company bagged three prestigious orders
with a total order value of more than ¥500 Crore. The
Company operationalized a state-of-the-art simulator
for MiG29 aircraft for the Indian Air Forces in Adampur
under a first of its kind Build Operate Maintain contract
for over 20 years. As a testimony to the quality and
deep technical capabilities, your Company was the only
one to successfully complete the trials of the 32,500
Crore Light Machine Guns tender for the Indian Army.

The Company had acquired a majority stake in PLR
Systems, which is India's first small arms manufacturing
facility in 2020-21. The Company is working towards
its vision of deepening the defence manufacturing
capabilities completed the expansion of the first



barrel manufacturing facility in the private sector in
India. Armed with a completely automated facility,
your Company expanded its annual small arms
manufacturing capacity to almost 100,000 small arms
per annum.

Complementing the small arms capability and
with a vision of complete self-reliance in defence
manufacturing, your Company made a foray into
ammunition manufacturing with the announcement
of investing almost 1,500 Crore to establish South
Asia's largest ammunition manufacturing facility in the
Uttar Pradesh Defence Corridor. The first phase of the
ammunition manufacturing complex shall have a 100
million round small caliber ammunition manufacturing
facility commissioned by March 23. The facility shall be
complemented by the establishment of medium and
large calibre ammunition manufacturing facilities in
subsequent years.

The Company forayed into the domain of missile
manufacturing with the start of the development of
Long Range Glide Bomb (LRGB) in 2020-21, working
along with DRDO. The Company enhanced its presence
in the missile domain with the award of two more
development projects for UAV Launched Precision
Guided Missile (ULPGM) and Very Short Range Air
Defence System (VSHORADS). Your Company expects
to start the series production of LRGB and ULPGM in
2022-23 followed by VSHORADS in 2023-24.

Continuing to sharpen the operational and capabilities,
the Company continued to ramp its production of
Hermes 900 fuselage, maintaining its zero defect,
zero rework and zero safety record. Your Company was
awarded a contract for the delivery of 56 Air Defence
radars for the Indian Army by 2024. As a result of
agile capabilities, your Company delivered 34 radars
in @ record nine months with the complete delivery
expected to be completed by 2022-23. Another
testimony of the Company's operational excellence
and deep technical excellence was the award of a new
contract for the supply of seekers for MRSAM for a
total order value of over 700 Crore.

The Company has been a national leader in the
unmanned systems domain, the only company to
manufacture MALE class UAVs in India along with the
one of the few companies to have an operationally
proven counter-drone system in India.

The Company conducted the first live demonstration
of the state-of-the-art Rudrav counter drone system at
Sardar Vallabhbhai International Airport, Ahmedabad.
The Company continued its effort in the indigenization
of counter-drone with the joint development of
completely indigenous counter-drone system with
DRDO. Your Company also conducted the first live
demonstration of Hermes 900 UAV wherein the
various users were able to conduct live trials of Hermes

Annual Report 2021-22

900 ISTAR capabilities. Your Company is in discussions
with multiple users or both Hermes 900 UAS as well
as Rudrav counter-drone solution for border as well as
internal security.

Airports

India's airportsinfrastructureis at the cusp of its biggest
change, the Indian Government moving to a PPP model
for the airports it operates, creating an unprecedented
investment opportunity for the private sector. In the
recent past, the Government of India proposed and
implemented policy changes and guidance for the
improvement of the sector.

From being a luxury, air travel has been democratised
to the point that it has become accessible through
affordable pricing and widening connectivity. Between
FY 2009-10 and FY 2019-20, air traffic grew at a CAGR
of 11% and yet remained one of the least penetrated
large global aviation markets. With the projected
growth of the Indian economy Government support,
growing household incomes and a larger number of
millennials influencing consumption, India's aviation
sector is expected to report robust growth.

The Adani Group ventured into the airports
infrastructure business in 2019 through Adani
Enterprises Limited (AEL) and AELs ability to incubate
new businesses and financial strength allowed long-
term strategic bets.

Airports Authority of India (AAl) adopted a single-stage
electronicbidding processfortheselectionofthe bidder
for the award of the project. The Company emerged as
the highest bidder on a fee per passenger basis for six
airports. The concession agreement for Ahmedabad,
Lucknow and Mangaluru airports were signed on 14
February, 2020 and the Concession Agreements for
the Jaipur, Guwahati and Thiruvanthapuram airports
were signed on 19" January, 2021. The Company
commenced operations in Ahmedabad, Lucknow
and Mangaluru airports in FY 2020-21 while the
commencement of operations in Jaipur, Guwahati
and Thiruvanthapuram started from October 2021.
The Company has completed the process of acquiring
Mumbai International Airport Limited (MIAL). Following
the completion of this transaction, Adani Group had
seven operational airports and one greenfield airport
under its fold. Navi Mumbai International Airport
Limited (NMIAL), subsidiary of MIAL, is building a
state-of-the art and world-class airport scheduled to
commence its commercial operations by December
2024, With an estimated capex of 319,500 Crore,
NMIAL is being build to handle 20 MPPA traffic in
Phase 1. In line with its vision of responsible nation
building, the Company intends to transform the Indian
airports infrastructure sector. The Company intends to
design revolutionary airports that reimagine the future,
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offer seamless processes that facilitate touch-less
operations, especially in the post COVID-19 era, when
social distancing will be the new norm and to create a
‘gateway to goodness.’

The Company's business model assures a hybrid
revenue model, including aero and non-aero revenues.
The non-aero focus, is to be directed towards the
development of airport villages that can address
non-passenger airport visitors. An entry into this
business is in line with the Adani Group's philosophy
of bridging its B2B and B2C businesses. The airports
business will create strategic adjacencies for the
existing business of the Adani Group. These airports
handle 25% of India's air traffic consumer base of 300+
Mn people. The Company intends to provide end-to-
end integration, committed to the best ASQ ratings
across categories.

The onset of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 and
its subsequent waves have significantly impacted
the flight operations throughout the country, which
affected the industry’s growth. However, as the Covid
situation improves the aviation sector is expected to
see a revival. The Company's focus does not end in
only providing a quality travelling experience but also a
distinctive experience to non- travelling clients.

The aviation industry experienced numerous
changes in recent years. From passenger processing
regulations, modernization within airport buildings to
the introduction of biometric technology, airports have
experienced a rapidly changing environment.

Adani Airports continues its digital transformation
journey to provide stakeholders a wealth of
opportunities. Our ability to identify, prioritize and
implement digital solutions like Pranaam Services,
Passenger Self Service Solutions, Centralized Airport
Control Center, Airport Operations System, Customer
Relationship Management and Electronic Point of
Sales System have been critical to success.

The outlook for the airport infrastructure business
is positive on account of the government's decision
to progressively divest ownership stakes in Indian
airports in favour of private operators. This divestment
and related opportunities are expected to accelerate
the modernization of infrastructure, turning them
into showpieces of a global standard. The Company
enjoys a decisive advantage in emerging as a sectorial
outlier within only a couple of years of entering the
business, holding attractive prospects of outsized and
sustainable growth across the long-term. The Company
intendstore-defineIndia's airportsinfrastructure sector
through gateway development, regional footprint
growth, focus on consumers and non-passengers and
deeper investment in digital technology interventions
that could widen the consumer choice and delight.
The outlook for the Company is underpinned by the
fact that India is expected to emerge as the third
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largest aviation market, catalyzed by the Government's
decision to advocate the public-private partnership
model, graduate India into an MRO hub, flexible use
of air space and a8 matured regulatory framework with
assured returns.

Solar manufacturing

Since five years, the Company has been operating a
vertically integrated solar photovoltaic manufacturing
facility of 1.2 GW capacity along with Research and
Development (R&D) Centre within an Electronic
Manufacturing Cluster (EMC) facility at Mundra. It
remains the first and the largest GW scale integrated
facility in India, with the capability to produce modules
up to 1.5 GW following debottlenecking done through
process engineering and innovation.

The Company expanded its module manufacturing
capacity to 3.5 GW by adding 2 GW of hi-tech and fully
automated PERC Bifacial Module Lines. The Company
will soon be setting up the cell lines to make this
expansion fully integrated.

Mundra Solar PV Limited (MSPVL), a step-down
subsidiary of AEL, can be looked upon as a success
story of Government of India's Make in India initiative
with backward integration through ancillaries such as
EVA, backsheet & aluminium frame within the same
EMC facility. Currently, a glass manufacturing facility
is also under implementation. MSPVL continues to
lead the domestic solar PV Industry in terms of scale
and technology. It is the only manufacturer in India to
have produced Mono p-PERC and n-PERT Bifacial cells
besides the multi MCCE wafer-to-cell on a commercial
scale. MSPVL will be among the first few in the country
to start manufacturing the mono P-PERC type cells
with 182 mm and 210 mm wafers. The cutting-edge
technology, with machines and equipment sourced
from the best-in-class producers, aim to help in cost
leadership, scale of operations and reliability standards
as per global benchmarks. The Company'’s vision is to
become a measure of success in the solar Industry by
innovating, benchmarking and improving continuously.

The Company aligned itself with Government of India’s
aim of 300 GW of solar installation by 2030 with 3
focus on the solarization of agricultural pumps under
the KUSUM Scheme and increasing rooftop solar
installations. In a sector dominated by cheap Chinese
imports, the Company has been able to maintain a
robust order book, particularly in the domestic content
requirement (DCR) segment, due to which asset
utilization has been at its fullest. Since the inception of
businessin 2017, MSPVL sold about 4.4 GW of modules,
catering to Indian and global demand. It provides
modules across the Indian subcontinent for various
utility scale installations, both for DCR schemes and
other open category projects in states like Rajasthan,
Telangana, Tamil Nadu, and Union Territory of Andaman



& Nicobar Islands. Out of 82,408 solar pumps (~556
MW) installed under KUSUM Scheme till February
2022, MSPVL supplied modules for 307 MW (~55%).
MSPVL has established a pan-India presence through
22 channel partners and 16 resellers, for catering to the
Residential rooftop segment.

MSPVL was classified as a Tier-1 bankable module
supplier by Bloomberg NEF within the first year of
its operation. It was rated as top performer in the
Product Quality Program (PQP) by PVEL-DNV-GL,
for four consecutive years (2018 to 2021), across all
major reliability tests for PERC and Bifacial Products.
A 'Positive’ outlook and ratings upgrade to A- by Indian
rating agencies helped the Company reduce financing
cost and maintain the highest levels of operational
performance.

1 ,1 O 4 MW modules

Manufacturing volume during
FYy22

Data centre

The digital economy in India is expected to create
a value of USD 1 trillion by 2025. Data Centers are
enablers of digital transformation, acting as a platform
to create value from data and data management,
playing a significant role in the growth of digital-first
India.

The grant of ‘Infrastructure Status' to the data centre
industry during the recent Union Budget of India was
an acknowledgement of the growing dependence of
the success of other industries on data centres. India's
data centre industry is poised to report a strong growth
which stood at 499 MW* as of H1 2021 and is expected
to grow to 1007 MW by 2023 .

The four major segments that driving the data centre
growth in India are Enterprise, Government, Cloud
players and Tech-native businesses.

- The Enterprises are not just generating more data
but also migrating their workloads from captive to
third-party co-location data centers and public/
hybrid cloud.

- Government is acting as an enabler in driving
demand through various key digitization initiatives
such as Smart Cities, Digital India, Meghraj and
Aadhar etc.

- India's public cloud services market
(lIaaS+S8aS+Paas) is estimated to reach US$10.8
billion by 2025, growing at CAGR of 24.1% for
2020-25. Due to high-end customer demand, these
players will need more cloud regions in India.
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- Tech-native businesses such as ecommerce,
fintech, OTT, e-learning, video conferencing, online
gaming and others revolutionized our modern
economy and are emerging as a key driver of data
storage and computing demand.

Agro

Adani Wilmar Ltd.

Adani Wilmar Limited (AWL), our 50: 50 joint venture
with the Wilmar Group, Singapore, came out with
an Initial Public Offer (IPO) during the year and was
successfully listed on National Stock Exchange of India
(NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE) on February 8, 2022. The
IPO raised US$ 482 Mn of new capital. Post listing, AEL
now holds 44% interest indirectly in AWL.

Taking off from last year, AWLs consumer packs
business continued its upward trajectory. With the
resurgence of traditional foods and consumers moving
towards a healthy lifestyle, AWL introduced protein-
rich Fortune Chana Sattu. Adding a modern twist to
the traditional, it launched Fortune Achaari Khichdi,
a fusion of Basmati rice and tangy-flavoured Green
Chilka Moong Dal.

Anticipating the needs of South Indians, where granular
sugar consumption is on the rise, AWL made a swift
foray in the South region with Fortune sugar. Likewise,
launching two delicious variants of Poha. Indori Poha
and Thick Poha allowed the brand to get a high seat
at the breakfast table of millions of Indian households.
Further launched unique variants of Khichdi - Pav Bhaji
and Mexican ensured that AWL made it to the dinner
menu as well.

Inthelast couple of years, the escalation of cooking and
dining at home made people more health conscious.
Taking cognizance of this, AWL launched Fortune
Xpert Total Balance Oil, containing the goodness of
three blended oils. To grow its market share, it ensured
that the product branding for sunflower oil was in
Tamil script for specific regions. With a perspective to
increase its reach to a wider audience, AWL released
commercials featuring the very popular Akshay Kumar
and South sensation Samantha Ruth Prabhu.

While AWL has been launching products and
strengthening visibility, it focussed on learning goals as
well. CRM training for Customer Complaint Resolution
Teams and Sales Teams were conducted successfully.

AWL believes that when greener choices are made, they
lead to a sustainable future. True to this ethos, AWL
is instilling a culture of accountability that strongly
reflects in its actions. In 2021-22, 17,500 MT of plastic
waste was sent to authorised recyclers. Following
the guidelines of Extended Producer’'s Responsibility
(EPR), AWL has been driving conservation efforts by
ensuring that the plastic through product packaging
was collected and recycled.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

As a part of AWLs ongoing commitment to social
responsibility, Fortune SuPoshan, a community
initiative, continued to touch the lives of many.
The SuPoshan Sanginis were at the forefront, be it
counselling mothers of Severe Acute Malnutrition
(SAM) / moderate acute malnutrition (MAM) children,
providing crucial information to lactating mothers
or empowering adolescent girls. This project was
effective to such a large extent that in 2021-22, the
project was able to exit out from 10 sites, in view of the
commendable improvement in the nutritional status of
children.

Online and offline footprint

In 2021-22, AWL expanded to 25 new cities and its pin-
code coverage increased by 90%. So far It had a strong
presence in 14 Indian states and Union Territories, pan-
India. AWL reached out 9.9 million unique users for the
first time, out of which 20,000 people chose Fortune
products to make home-cooked meals healthier.
Fortune attracted 1.5 Lakh+ app downloads, increasing
AWLs social presence and making the user experience
more seamless than ever.

AWL saw good traction with its recent initiative —
Fortune Marts. With a solid presence in 33 cities overall
and 28 cities last year, these offline stores flourished
with no signs of slowing. These Fortune Marts house
live bakeries where people could avail of fresh delicious
delights in a jiffy.

Awards and Recognitions

« AWL was conferred SEA Award for Highest
Processor and Exporters for Rapeseed Oilcake,
Castorseed Oilcake by ‘The Solvent Extractors
Association of India’.

e Fortune SuPoshan was awarded the Times CSR
Award in recognition of its contribution to uplifting
the lives of malnourished children and expectant
mothers.

« AWLls Mangalore and Kakinada refineries were
recognised for excellence in food safety at the ClI
Food Safety Awards 2021.

* Neemuch Besan and Mundra Rice, two distinct
offerings of the AWL, were certified for sector-
specific best-in-class manufacturing practices at
Cll Food Safety Awards 2021.
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Adani Agri Fresh Limited

Adani Agri Fresh Limited (AAFL), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company pioneered the establishment
of an integrated storage, handling and transportation
infrastructure for apples in Himachal Pradesh for 16
years.

Since inception in 2006, AAFL set up modern
Controlled Atmosphere (CA) storage facilities at three
locations in Rewali, Sainj and Rohru in Shimla District
of Himachal Pradesh. AAFL set up a marketing network
in major towns across India to cater to the needs of
wholesale, retail and organized retail chain stores.

AAFL, which is marketing Indian fruits under the brand
name FARM-PIK, expanded its footprint in the branded
fruit segment with a focus on pouch/punnet packs
along with gift packs. AAFL consolidated its presence
in the pomegranate and grapes value chain and grew
its basket of domestic fruits with the introduction of
mangoes.

The production of apples during 2021-22 was in line
with the negative trend of the previous two years 3as
the production areas were impacted by hailstorms
and poor weather. AAFL took steps to mitigate these
risks by taking a CA unit on lease at Harshil, Uttarkashi
District, Uttarakhand and developed a strategy to cover
all apple growing regions in North India.

As plant operations returned to normalcy with strict
protocols on Covid-19 prevention at the beginning
of the year, there were no further interruptions to
business. Competition from domestic CA operators
continued to increase but AAFL leased additional
facilities in neighboring regions.

The global apple production was stable at around 90
Mn MT while demand in India grew rapidly in the post-
pandemic period. An increased focus on health and
immunity increased the demand for multiple fresh fruit.
As a result, India's import of apples more than doubled
in 2021-22 over the previous year.

Apple production in European countries was only
marginally higher than the previous year while the ban
on importing apples from China and the increased duty
on Washington apples from USA caused a major surge
in imports from Iran and Turkey.

Overall, AAFL met profitability targets for the year by
entering into agreements with organized retail and
e-commerce grocery players with negotiated pricing
for large volumes.
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Details of significant changes in key financial ratios and Return on Net Worth

Pursuant to amendment made in Schedule V to the SEBI Listing Regulations, details of significant changes
(i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in Key Financial Ratios and
any changes in Return on Net Worth of the Company (on standalone basis) including explanations therefor are

given below:
Particulars FY ended FY ended Changes Explanation
31t March, IEXRE | IR between
2022 2021 Current FY &
Previous FY
Debtor's turnover 8.68 41N 111.53% Due to significant increases in commodity
prices, revenue from operations increased
significantly against average trade receivables.
Inventory turnover 7.69 8.04 -4.29% Not applicable
Interest coverage 4.93 3.24 52.11% Ratio shows improvement during the year
ratio mainly due to increase in EBITDA by 30%.
Current ratio 1.09 1.08 0.66% Not Applicable
Debt equity ratio 0.81 0.70 14.54% Not Applicable
Operating profit 4.87% 7.51% -35.20% EBITDA increased 30% during the year in
margin absolute terms. Since revenues increased
significantly due to higher commodity prices,
it resulted into lower margins in percentage
terms.
Net profit margin 2.64% 2.68% -1.67% | Not applicable
Return on net 13.75% 8.93% 53.92% | Ratio shows improvement as there was an

worth

exceptional loss in the previous year on
account of a reversal of interest claim on
delayed payment from the customer for 3133.41
Crore and write-off of the Palej Block for79.44
Crore.

Risk mitigation

The Company is exposed to internal as well as external
business risks. The Company has a comprehensive risk
management system in place, which is tailored to the
specific requirements of its diversified businesses,
considering various factors, such as the size and nature
of the inherent risks and the regulatory environment of
the individual business segment or operating company.
The risk management system enables it to recognize
and analyze risks early and take appropriate actions.
The senior management of the Company regularly
reviews the risk management processes of the
Company for effective risk management.

The Company is subject to risks arising from interest
rate fluctuations. The Company maintains its accounts
and reports its financial results in rupees. The
Company is exposed to risks relating to exchange rate
fluctuations. The Corporate Risk Management Cell

works with the businesses to establish and monitor
the specific profiles including strategic, financial and
operational risks.

We believe that our multi-location operations also allow
us to leverage the competitive advantages of each
location to enhance our competitiveness and reduce
geographic and political risks in our businesses.

Internal control and adequacy

The Company has strong internal control systems and
best in class processes commensurate with its size and
scale of operations. This comprises of:

B Well formulated policies and procedures for all
major activities. These procedures facilitate
effective business operations with governance.

B Well defined delegation of power with authority
limits are in place for approving revenue as well as
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Adani Enterprises Limited

capex expenditure at the level of organizational
hierarchy. This enables ease is in decision-making
processes in day-to-day affairs as well as long-term
& short-term business plans.

B Effective management of financial control through
annual budgeting process and its monitoring
is carried out through a monthly review for all
operating and service functions.

B State-of-the-art ERP system to record data for
accounting, consolidation and management
information purposes and connects to different
locations for efficient exchange of information.
The Company continued its efforts to align all
processes and controls with global best practices.

B A well-established online compliance management
systeminwhichtechnologyisseamlesslyintegrated
with laws. The system provides comprehensive
coverage across all laws applicable on the business
and its compliance update at each of operating
units though management dashboard.

B A well-established multidisciplinary Management
Audit & Assurance Services (MA&AS) in the
organization, that consists of professionally
qualified accountants, engineers and SAP
experienced executives, who carry out extensive
audit throughout the year, across all functional
areas and submit reports to the Management
and Audit Committee about the compliance with
internal controls and efficiency and effectiveness
of operations and key process risks.

B Risk based annual internal audit plan followed by
MAEAS. The audit plan and its scope are reviewed
and approved by the Audit Committee. The entire
internal audit processes are web enabled and
managed on-line by Audit Management System
(AMS).

B Carrying out an internal audit in accordance
with auditing standards to review the design
effectiveness of the internal control system and
procedurestomanagerisks,operation of monitoring
control, compliance with relevant policies and
procedure and recommend improvement in
processes and procedure.

B  Regular review by the Audit Committee of the
execution of audit plan, the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal audit systems, and
monitors implementation of internal audit
recommendation including those relating to
strengthening the of company’s risk management
policies and systems.

Interms of corporate governance, there are many Board
Committees in place, comprising solely/majority of
Independent Directors, for monitoring and governance
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over efficiency and effective internal controls. Details
of these Committees are given in the Corporate
Governance Report, which forms part of this Annual
Report

Human resource strategy

The Company believes that Human Resource is the
principal driver of change. It pushes the levers that take
futuristic businesses to the next level of excellence
and achievement. The Company focuses on providing
individual development and growth in a professional
work culture that enables innovation, ensures high
performance and remains empowering. A focus has
been given to HR transformation activities to revamp
the HR organisation structure and processes. The new
human resource management systems and processes
are designed to enhance organisational effectiveness
and employee alignment. The Company work, towards
creating leadership in all business in which it operates.
During the year, several initiatives, such as performance
management systems, Learning & Development system
and Talent Management system were put in place for
efficient and effective organisation. A lot of focus is
being given to enhance people capabilities through a
e-learning management system. The broad categories
of learning & development include behavioural,
functional / domain and business related.

Many other programs for employee rejuvenation,
creating stronger inter-personnel relations and team
building and aimed at strengthening the bond across all
divisions and locations of the company were organized.
These programs helped employees significantly in
leading a balanced work life in the organization. The
HR function is committed to improve all processes
based on the results and feedback and ensure that its
manpower will remain its greatest asset.

Cautionary notice

Statements in the Management Discussion and
Analysis describing the Company's objectives,
projections, estimates, expectations and others may
constitute “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations.
Actual results may differ from those expressed or
implied. Several factors that could significantly impact
the Company’s operations include economic conditions
affecting demand, supply and price conditions in
the domestic and overseas markets, changes in the
Government regulations, tax laws and other statutes,
climatic conditions and such incidental factors over
which the Company does not have any direct control.

The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly
update or revise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events,
or otherwise.
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Annexure
to the Directors' Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is about meeting our
strategic goals responsibly and transparently,
while being accountable to our stakeholders.
Adani Enterprises Limited (“the Company” /
"AEL) is equipped with a robust framework of
corporate governance that considers the long-
term interest of every stakeholder as we operate
with a commitment to integrity, fairness, equity,
transparency, accountability and commitment to
values. The framework lays down procedures and
mechanisms for enhancing leadership for smooth
administration and productive collaboration among
employees, value chain, community, investors and
the Government.

Courage, Trust and Commitment are the main
tenets of our Corporate Governance Philosophy -

« Courage: We shall embrace new ideas and
businesses.

* Trust: We shall believe in our employees and
other stakeholders.

« Commitment: We shall stand by our promises
and adhere to high standard of business.

The Company believes that sustainable and long-
term growth of every stakeholder depends upon the
judicious and effective use of available resources
and consistent endeavor to achieve excellence
in business along with active participation in
the growth of society, building of environmental
balances and significant contribution in economic
growth.

The Company is in compliance with the conditions
of corporate governance as required under the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time
("SEBI Listing Regulations”), as applicable.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board, being the trustee of the Company,
is responsible for the establishment of cultural,
ethical and accountable growth of the Company
and is constituted with a high level of integrated,
knowledgeable and committed professionals.
The Board provides strategic guidance and
independent views to the Company's senior
management while discharging its fiduciary
responsibilities.

Composition of the Board

The Company has a balanced Board with optimum
combination of Executive and Non-Executive
Independent Directors, which plays a crucial role
in Board processes and provides independent
judgment on issues of strategy and performance.

The Board currently comprise of 8 (eight) Directors
out of which 4 (four) Directors are Executive
Directors and remaining 4 (four) are Independent
Directors including 1 (one) Woman Independent
Director. The Independent Directors are
Non-Executive Directors, as defined under
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations
as amended from time to time.

The maximum tenure of the Independent Directors
isin compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act"). All Independent Directors have confirmed
that they meet the criteria as mentioned under
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations
as amended from time to time and Section 149 of
the Act.

The present strength of the Board reflects judicious
mix of professionalism, competence and sound
knowledge which enables the Board to provide
effective leadership to the Company.

The Independent Directors have included their
names in the data bank of Independent Directors
maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate
Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the Act read
with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment &
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,

None of the Directors is a director in more than
10 (ten) public limited companies or acts as an
independent director in more than 7 (seven) listed
companies. Further, none of the Directors on the
Company's Board is a member of more than 10 (ten)
committees and chairperson of more than 5 (five)
committees (committees being, audit committee
and stakeholders’' relationship committee) across
all the companies in which he/she is a Director.

The composition of the Board is in conformity with
the Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
which requires that for a company with a chairman,
who is a promoter, at least half of the board shall
consist of independent directors and the board
of directors of the top 1,000 listed companies,
effective 1t April, 2020, shall have at least one
independent woman director.
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Adani Enterprises Limited

The composition of Board as on 31t March, 2022.

Board Composition

m Executive Directors
B Non-Executive Independent Directors

wn)
=
E
=
= The composition of the Board and the number of directorships and committee positions held by the Directors
o as on 31t March, 2022, are as under:
<
o
Z Name and Designation | Age & Date of Category No. of other No. of Board Committees? (other than
z (DIN) of Director Appointment Directorships held' AEL) in which Chairman / Member.
(Other than AEL) Chairman Member
E Mr. Gautam S. Adani 59 years, Promoter 5 - -
g Executive Chairman 02/03/1993 Executive
< (DIN: 00006273)
E Mr. Rajesh S. Adani 57 years, Promoter 5 - 2
E Managing Director 02/03/1993 Executive
& (DIN: 00006322)
Mr. Pranav V. Adani 43 years, Promoter 7 1 2
= Director 31/03/2015 Executive
% (DIN: 00008457)
3 Mr. Vinay Prakash 48 years, Executive 3 - -
£ Director 12/08/2017
§ (DIN: 03634648)
é Mr. Hemant Nerurkar 73 years, Non Executive 8 2 7
Director 11/08/2015 (Independent)
(DIN: 00265887)
Mr. V. Subramanian 73 years, Non Executive 2 - 1
Director 22/08/2016 (Independent)
(DIN: 00357727)
Mrs. Vijaylaxmi Joshi 64 years Non Executive 2 - 2
Director 02/12/2016 (Independent)
(DIN: 00032055)
Mr. Narendra Mairpady | 67 years, Non Executive 8 1 2
Director 09/12/2017 (Independent)
(DIN: 00536905)

Notes :
1. The Directorships held by the Directors, as mentioned above excludes alternate directorships, directorships in foreign companies,
Companies under Section 8 of the Act and Private Limited Companies, which are not the subsidiaries of public limited companies.

2. Represents Membership / Chairmanship of two committees viz. audit committee and stakeholders’ relationship committee as per
Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

3. Ason31*March,2022, none of the Directors of the Company was related to each other except Mr. Gautam S. Adani, Executive Chairman and
Mr. Rajesh S. Adani, Managing Director who are related to each other as brothers.
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Board Age profile and Board Experience is as under:

Board Age Profile Board Experience

H 36-55 M <30 years
H 56-75 B >30 years
(in years)

Profile of the Directors is available on the website of the Company at https:/www.adanienterprises.com/
about-us/board-of-directors

concerned Director is a Director
Mr. Gautam S. Adani | Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited | Promoter & Executive
(DIN: 00006273) Adani Transmission Limited Promoter & Executive

(@]
o
Details of other listed entities where the Directors of the Company are directors, as on 31t March, 2022, are as §
under: 3_13.
o
Name of Director Name of other Listed entities in which the Category of Directorship §
=
=

Adani Total Gas Limited Promoter & Non-Executive %
Adani Power Limited Promoter & Non-Executive §
Adani Green Energy Limited Promoter & Non-Executive %
Mr. Rajesh S. Adani Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited | Promoter & Non-Executive S
(DIN: 00006322) Adani Transmission Limited Promoter & Executive @
Adani Power Limited Promoter & Non-Executive .
Adani Green Energy Limited Promoter & Non-Executive z
Mr. Pranav V. Adani Adani Total Gas Limited Promoter & Non-Executive §
(DIN: 00008457) Adani Wilmar Limited Non-Executive & Non-Independent «
Mr. Vinay Prakash Nil Nil o
(DIN: 03634648) 5
Mr. Hemant Nerurkar | NCC Limited Non-Executive & Independent @
(DIN: 00265887) Igarashi Motors India Limited Non-Executive & Independent
Crompton Greaves Consumer Electricals Limited | Non-Executive & Independent
DFM Foods Limited Non-Executive & Independent
Tega Industries Limited Non-Executive & Independent
Mr. V. Subramanian Sundaram-Clayton Limited Non-Executive & Independent
(DIN: 00357727)
Mrs. Vijaylaxmi Joshi | GHCL Limited Non-Executive & Independent
(DIN: 00032055)
Mr. Narendra Kesar Enterprises limited Non-Executive & Independent
Mairpady Man Industries (India) Limited Non-Executive & Independent
(DIN: 00536905) Suumaya Industries Limited Non-Executive & Independent
Equippp Social Impact Technologies Limited Non-Executive & Independent

175


https://www.adanienterprises.com/about-us/board-of-directors
https://www.adanienterprises.com/about-us/board-of-directors
30018993
Cross-Out
Promoter & Non-Executive


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wn
0
[a 4
o
a
w
o
>
@
o
o
=
<
(%]}

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Adani Enterprises Limited

Board Meetings and Procedure

The internal guidelines for Board / Committee
meetings facilitate the decision making process
at the meetings of the Board/Committees in an
informed and efficient manner.

Board Meetings are governed by structured
agenda. All major agenda items are backed
by comprehensive background information to
enable the Board to take informed decisions.
The Company Secretary, in consultation with the
Senior Management, prepares the detailed agenda
for the meetings.

Agenda papers and Notes on Agenda are circulated
to the Directors, in advance, in the defined agenda
format. All material information is circulated along
with agenda papers for facilitating meaningful and
focused discussions at the meeting. Where it is not
practicable to attach any document to the agenda,
the same is tabled before the meeting with specific
reference to this effect in the agenda. In special
and exceptional circumstances, additional or
supplementaryitem(s) onthe agendaare permitted.
In order to transact some urgent business, which
may come up after circulation agenda papers,
the same is placed before the Board by way of
table agenda or Chairman’s agenda. Frequent and
detailed deliberation on the agenda provides the
strategic roadmap for the future growth of the
Company.

Minimum 4 (four) pre-scheduled Board meetings
are held every year. Apart from the above,
additional Board meetings are convened by giving
appropriate notice to address the specific needs
of the Company. In case of business exigencies or
urgency of matters, resolutions are also passed by
way of circulation.

Detailed presentations are made at the Board
/ Committee meetings covering finance, major
business segments and operations of the
Company, terms of reference of the Committees,
global business environment, key business areas
of the Company including business opportunities,
business strategy and the risk management
practices, before taking on record the quarterly /
halfyearly/annual financial results of the Company.

The required information as enumerated in Part
A of Schedule Il to SEBI Listing Regulations is
made available to the Board for discussions and
consideration at every Board Meeting. The Board
periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws
applicable to the Company, as required under
Regulation 17(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The important decisions taken at the Board
/ Committee meetings are communicated to
departments concerned, promptly. Action taken
report on the decisions taken at the meeting(s) is
placed at the immediately succeeding meeting of
the Board / Committee, for noting by the Board /
Committee.

Due to the exceptional circumstances caused
by the COVID-19 pandemic and consequent
relaxations granted, all the Board/ Committee
meetings in FY 2021-22 were held through video
conferencing.

During the year under review, Board met four times
i.e on 5" May, 2021, 3@ August, 2021, 27t October,
2021 and 14 February, 2022.

The Board meets at least once in every quarter
to review the Company's operations and financial
performance. The maximum time gap between
any two meetings is not more than 120 days.
The necessary quorum was present in all the
meetings.

The details of attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and at the last Annual General Meeting, held on

120 July, 2021, are as under:

Name of Director(s)

Mr. Gautam S. Adani 4
Mr. Rajesh S. Adani

Mr. Pranav V. Adani

Mr. Vinay Prakash

Mr. Hemant Nerurkar
Mr. V. Subramanian
Mrs. Vijaylaxmi Joshi
Mr. Narendra Mairpady

A dADdDDPADdDDH

Number of Board Meetings held and
attended during FY 2021-22

Attended Last % of attendance

AGM
Attended
4 Yes 100%
4 Yes 100%
4 Yes 100%
4 Yes 100%
4 Yes 100%
4 Yes 100%
4 Yes 100%
4 Yes 100%
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During the year, the Board accepted all recommendations of the Committees of the Board, which were
statutory in nature and required to be recommended by the Committees and approved by the Board. Hence,
the Company is in compliance of condition of clause 10(j) of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Skills / expertise competencies of the Board of Directors:

The following is the list of core skills / competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the
context of the Company's business and that the said skills are available within the Board Members:

Business Leadership Leadership experience including in areas of business development, strategic
planning, succession planning, driving change and long-term growth and guiding
the Company and its senior management towards its vision and values.

Financial Expertise Knowledge and skills in accounting, finance, treasury management, tax and
financial management of large corporations with understanding of capital
allocation, funding and financial reporting processes.

Risk Management Ability to understand and assess the key risks to the organization, legal compliances
and ensure that appropriate policies and procedures are in place to effectively
manage risk.

Global Experience Global mindset and staying updated on global market opportunities, competition

experience in driving business success around the world with an understanding of
diverse business environments, economic conditions and regulatory frameworks.

Merger & Acquisition Ability to assess 'build or buy’ & timing of decisions, analyze the fit of a target with
the Company'’s strategy and evaluate operational integration plans

Corporate Governance Experience in implementing good corporate governance practices, reviewing

& ESG compliance and governance practices for a sustainable growth of the Company
and protecting stakeholders' interest.

Technology & Experience or knowledge of emerging areas of technology such as digital, artificial

Innovations intelligence, cyber security, data centre, data security etc.

In the table below, the specific areas of focus or expertise of individual board members have been highlighted.

Name of Director Areas of Skills/ Expertise
Business Financial Risk Global Corporate Merger & | Technology
Leadership = Expertise | Management Experience | Governance Acquisition &
& ESG Innovation
Mr. Gautam S. Adani Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Mr. Rajesh S. Adani Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Mr. Pranav V. Adani Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Mr. Vinay Prakash Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Mr. Hemant Nerurkar Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Mr. V. Subramanian Y Y - Y Y Y
Mrs. Vijaylaxmi Joshi Y Y - Y Y Y
Mr. Narendra Mairpady Y Y Y - Y Y Y

Note - Each Director may possess varied combinations of skills/ expertise within the described set of parameters
and it is not necessary that all Directors possess all skills/ expertise listed therein.

Directors’ selection, appointment, induction All new directors are taken through a detailed
and familiarisation: induction and familiarization program when they
join the Board of the Company. The induction
program is exhaustive covering the history and
culture of Adani Group, background of the Company
and its growth, various milestones in the Company'’s
existence since its incorporation, the present
structure and an overview of the businesses and
functions.

As per the delegation given by the Board to the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of
the Company, consisting exclusively of Independent
Directors, the NRC screens and selects the suitable
candidates, based on the defined criteria and makes
recommendations to the Board on the induction
of new directors. The Board appoints the director,
subject to the shareholders' approval.
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Deep dives and immersion sessions are conducted
by senior executives on their respective business
units / functions. Key aspects that are covered in
these sessions include:

e Industry / market trends

« Company’'s operations including those of major
subsidiaries

e Growth Strategy
« ESG Strategy and performance

Meeting of Independent Directors:

The Independent Directors met on 30" March,
2022, without the attendance of Non- Independent
Directors and members of the management.
The Independent Directors reviewed the
performance of Non-Independent Directors and
the Board as a whole, the performance of the
Chairman of the Company, taking into account
the views of Executive Directors and assessed
the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of
information between the Management and the
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively
and reasonably perform their duties.

Confirmation as regards independence of
Independent Directors

In the opinion of the Board, all the existing
Independent Directors and the one who are
proposed to be appointed/ re-appointed at the
ensuing AGM fulfil the conditions specified in the
SEBI Listing Regulations and are independent of
the management.

Remuneration Policy:

The remuneration policy of the Company is
directed towards rewarding performance, based
on review of achievements on a periodic basis.
The Company endeavors to attract, retain, develop
and motivate the high-calibre executives and to
incentivize them to develop and implement the
Group's strategy, thereby enhancing the business
value and maintain a high performance workforce.
The policy ensures that the level and composition
of remuneration of the Directors is optimum.

i) Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors

The Members had, at the Annual General
Meeting held on 7t" August, 2019, approved the
paymentof remuneration by way of commission
to the Non-Executive Directors (other than
Promoter Directors) of the Company, of a sum
not exceeding 1% per annum of the net profits
of the Company, calculated in accordance with
the provisions of the Act, for a period of 5 years
commencing 1t April, 2020. The remuneration
by way of commission to the Non-Executive

ii)

iii)

& Independent Directors is decided by the
Board. In addition to the commission, the
Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting
fees of ¥50,000/- for attending Board and
Audit Committee meetings and 325,000/- for
attending other Committee meetings along
with actual reimbursement of expenses,
incurred for attending each meeting of the
Board and Committees.

The Company has taken a Directors’ & Officers’
Liability Insurance Policy.

Performance Evaluation Criteria for

Independent Directors:

The performance evaluation criteria for
Independent Directors are determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
An indicative list of factors that may be
evaluated include participation and
contribution by a director, commitment,
effective deployment of knowledge and
expertise, effective management of
relationship  with  stakeholders, integrity
and maintenance of confidentiality and
independence of behaviour and judgement.
The details of evaluation are captured in the
Directors’ Report, which forms part of this
Annual Report.

Remuneration to Executive and Promoter
group Directors:

The remuneration of the Executive Directors
is recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee to the Board based
on criteria such as industry benchmarks,

the Company's performance Vis-3-vis
the industry, responsibilities shouldered,
performance/track record, macro-economic

review on remuneration packages of heads
of other organisations. The pay structure of
Executive Directors has appropriate success
and sustainability metrices built in. On the
recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the remuneration
paid/payable by way of salary, perquisites and
allowances (fixed component), incentive and/
or commission (variable components), to its
Executive Directors, within the limits prescribed
under the Act, is approved by the Board and by
the Members in the General Meeting.

The Executive Directors and Promoter Group
Directors are not being paid sitting fees for
attending meetings of the Board and its
Committees. The Company has not granted
stock option to the Executive Directors or
employees of the Company.
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Details of Remuneration:

i)

Non-Executive and Independent Directors:

The details of sitting fees and commission paid to the Non-Executive and Independent Directors during
the financial year 2021-22 are as under:

(% In Lakhs)
Name of Directors Commission Sitting Fees Total
Mr. Hemant Nerurkar 20.00 6.75 26.75
Mr. V. Subramanian 20.00 6.75 26.75
Mrs. Vijaylaxmi Joshi 20.00 5.50 25.50
Mr. Narendra Mairpady 20.00 2.50 22.50

Other than sitting fees and commission paid to Non-Executive and Independent Directors, there were no
pecuniary relationships or transactions by the Company with any of the Non-Executive and Independent
Directors of the Company. The Company has not granted stock options to the Non-Executive and

Independent Directors.

ii) Executive Directors

Details of the remuneration paid / payable to the Executive Directors of the Company during the financial

year 2021-22 are as under:

(ZIn Crore)

Name & Designation of Directors Salary Perquisites & Commission Total
Allowances

Mr. Gautam S. Adani, 2.06 0.26 - 2.32
Executive Chairman
Mr. Rajesh S. Adani, 3.08 0.38 1.78 5.24
Managing Director
Mr. Pranav V. Adani, Director 0.91 113 2.04 4.08
Mr. Vinay Prakash, Director 2.31 33.72" - 36.03
1. Including performance based variable incentive for exceptional operational and financial performance in the mining services and

integrated resource management businesses of the Company.

Mr. Gautam S. Adani and Mr. Rajesh S. Adani
(on behalf of S.B. Adani Family Trust) and
Mr. Gautam S. Adani and Mrs. Priti G. Adani (on
behalf of Gautam S. Adani Family Trust) hold
62,11,97,910 and 88,36,750 Equity Shares of
the Company, respectively. Mr. Gautam S. Adani
and Mr. Rajesh S. Adani hold 1 (one) Equity
Share each of the Company in their individual
capacity.

Except above, none of the Directors of the
Company hold equity shares of the Company
in their individual capacity. The Company does
not have any Employees’ Stock Option Scheme
and there is no separate provision for payment
of Severance Fees.

Notes on Directors

re-appointment

Mr. Rajesh S. Adani, Director is retiring at the
ensuing AGM and being eligible, offers himself for
re-agppointment.

appointment  /

The NRC has recommended and Board has
reappointed (i) Mr. Vinay Prakash as an Executive
Director (designated as a Director) of the Company
for a further period of 5 (Five) years w.e.f.
12™ August, 2022 and (ii) Mr. Narendra Mairpady
as Independent Director for a second term of
one year upto 30" November, 2023. As a part of
good ESG practice, it has been decided that the
overall tenure of a Independent Director shall not
exceed six years and this will be implemented on a
progressive basis.

Accordingly, considering the first term of
appointment of five years of Mr. Narendra Mairpady
as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f,
ot December, 2017, it is proposed to recommend
his re-appointment for a second term of one year
upto 30 November, 2023.

The brief resume and other information required to
be disclosed under this section is provided in the
Notice convening the ensuing AGM.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees play a vital role in
ensuring sound corporate governance practices.
The Committees are constituted to handle specific
activities and ensure speedy resolution of the
diverse matters. The Board Committees are set up
under the formal approval of the Board to carry out
clearly defined roles under which are considered
to be performed by members of the Board, as
a part of good governance practice. The Board
supervises the execution of its responsibilities by
the Committees and is responsible for their action.
The minutes of the meetings of all the Committees
are placed before the Board, for review.

As on 31t March, 2022, the Board has constituted
the following Committees / Sub-committees:

I.  Statutory Committees

Audit Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Risk Management Committee (“RMC")
Securities Transfer Committee

mmo o wr

Il. Non-Statutory Committees

With an objective of further strengthen the
governance standards, so as to match with
internationally accepted better practices, the
Board has constituted following additional
Committees / Sub-committees -

Terms of Reference:

Corporate Responsibility Committee
Public Consumer Committee
Information Technology & Data Security

-~ Io

Mergers &  Acquisitions Committee

(Sub-committee of RMC)

K. Legal, Regulatory & Tax Committee
(Sub-committee of RMC)

L. Reputation Risk Committee
(Sub-committee of RMC)
M. Commodity Price Risk  Committee

(Sub-committee of RMC)

Statutory Committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee acts as a link among
the Management, the Statutory Auditors,
Internal Auditors and the Board to oversee the
financial reporting process of the Company.
The Committee's purpose is to oversee the
quality and integrity of accounting, auditing
and financial reporting process including
review of the internal audit reports and action
taken report. A detailed charter of the Audit
Committee is also available on the website of
the Company at https://www.adanienterprises.
com/investors/board-and-committee-charters

As on 31t March, 2022, the Audit Committee
comprise solely of Independent Directors to
enable independent and transparent review
of financial reporting process and internal
control mechanism with an objective to further
strengthen the confidence of all stakeholders.

The powers, role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee covers the areas as contemplated
under SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time and Section 177 of the Act.
The brief terms of reference of Audit Committee are as under;

SN | Terms of Reference Frequency
1. To oversee the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial Q
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible
2. | To recommend for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of statutory P
and internal auditors of the company
3. | To approve availing of the permitted non-audit services rendered by the Statutory A

Auditors and payment of fees thereof


https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/board-and-committee-charters
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SN | Terms of Reference Frequency

4. | To review, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:
A. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be A

included in the Board's report in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act,

2013

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same Q
C. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by Q

the management
D. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit
findings

E. Compliancewithlistingandotherlegal requirementsrelatingtofinancial statements
F. Disclosure of any related party transactions
G. Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report

5. To review, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission
to the board for approval

6. | To review, with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of
funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus/
notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency, monitoring the utilisation of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the
Board to take up steps in this matter

7. To review and monitor the Auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness Q
of audit process

8. | To approve or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related P
parties

9. |To scrutinise inter-corporate loans and investments

10. | Toundertake valuation of undertakings orassets of the company, whereveritis necessary

11. | To evaluate internal financial controls and risk management systems

12. | To review, with the management, the performance of statutory and internal auditors,
adequacy of the internal control systems

13. | To review the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit

14. | To discuss with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on Q

15. | Toreview the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters Q
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of
a material nature and reporting the matter to the board

16. | To discuss with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and Q
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern

17. | Tolook into the reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in the payment to the depositors, Q
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and
creditors

18. | To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism Q

19. | To approve appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, P
experience and background, etc. of the candidate

20. | To review financial statements, in particular the investments made by the Company’s Q
unlisted subsidiaries

21. | To review compliance with the provisions of SEBI Insider Trading Regulations and verify Q
that the systems for internal control are adequate and are operation effectively
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SN | Terms of Reference Frequency
22. | To review the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding Q
company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 Crore or 10% of the asset size of the
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments

23, | To oversee the company’s disclosures and compliance risks, including those related to Q
climate

24. | To consider and comment on rationale, cost benefits and impact of schemes involving P
merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders

25. | To review key significant issues, tax and regulatory / legal report which is likely to have P
significant impact on financial statements and management’s report on actions taken
thereon

26. | To discuss with the management regarding pending technical and regulatory matters Q

that could affect the financial statements and updates on management's plans to
implement new technical or regulatory guidelines

27. | Toreview and recommend to the Board for approval - Business plan, Budget for the year A
and revised estimates
28. | To review Company's financial policies, strategies and capital structure, working capital H
" and cash flow management
= 29. | To ensure the Internal Auditor has direct access to the Committee chair, providing Q
% independence from the executive and accountability to the committee
;E) 30. | To review the treasury policy & performance of the Company, including investment of P
2 surplus funds and foreign currency operations
:z(’ 31. | To review management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of A
= operations
32. | To review, examine and deliberate on all the concerns raised by an out-going auditors p
and to provide views to the Management and Auditors
33, | Tocarryoutanyotherfunction mandated by the Board from time to time and/or enforced P

by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable

Frequency — A Annually Q Quarterly H Half yearly P Periodically
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Composition, Meetings and Attendance of the Audit Committee
During the FY 2021-22, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held i.e. on 5% May, 2021, 3 August,

§ 2021, 27™ October, 2021 and 14" February, 2022. The intervening gap between two meetings did not
@ exceed 120 (one hundred and twenty) days.
E The details of the Audit Committee meetings attended by its members during FY 2021-22 are given below:
[24
§ Sr.  Name and Designation Category Number of meetings held % of
8 No during FY 2021-22 attendance
Held Attended
1 Mr. Hemant Nerurkar, Non-Executive & 4 4 100%
Chairman Independent Director
2 Mr. Rajesh S. Adani', Executive Promoter 3 3 100%
Member
3 Mr. V. Subramanian, Non-Executive & 4 4 100%
Member Independent Director
4. | Mrs. Vijaylaxmi Joshi, Non-Executive & 4 4 100%
Member Independent Director

1. Ceased as Member of the Committee w.e.f. 27" October, 2021.
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All members of the Audit Committee have accounting and financial management knowledge and expertise
/ exposure. The Audit Committee meetings are attended by the Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors, Chief
Financial Officer and Head of Finance.

The minutes of the Audit Committee Meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings.

Mr. Jatin Jalundhwala, Company Secretary & Joint President (Legal) and Compliance Officer act as the
Secretary of the Committee.

Mr. Hemant Nerurkar, Chairman of the Audit Committee attended the last AGM held on 12t July, 2021 to
answer shareholders’ queries.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

As on 31t March 2022, all the members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) were
Independent Directors. A detailed charter of the NRC is also available on the website of the Company at
https:.//www.adanienterprises.com/investors/board-and-committee-charters

Terms of reference:

The powers, role and terms of reference of NRC covers the areas as contemplated under the SEBI Listing
Regulations and Section 178 of the Act. The brief terms of reference of NRC are as under:

SN | Terms of Reference Frequency

1. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and A
independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees

2. | To formulate criteria for & mechanism of evaluation of Independent Directors and the A
Board of directors
3. | To specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees A

and individual directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee or by an independent external agency and review its
implementation and compliance
4, | To devise a policy on diversity of Board of Directors P
5. | To ldentify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in P
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the
Board their appointment and removal

6. | Toextend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis A
of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors

7. To review and recommend remuneration of the Managing Director(s) / Whole-time P
Director(s) based on their performance

8. |To recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior P
management

9. |Toreview, amend and approve all Human Resources related policies A

10. | To ensure that the management has in place appropriate programs to achieve maximum A

leverage from leadership, employee engagement, change management, training &
development, performance management and supporting system

11. | Tooversee workplace safety goals, risks related to workforce and compensation practices A
12. | To oversee employee diversity programs A
13. | To oversee HR philosophy, people strategy and efficacy of HR practices including A

those for leadership development, rewards and recognition, talent management and
succession planning (specifically for the Board, KMP and Senior Management)

14. | To oversee familiarisation programme for Directors A

15. | Torecommend the appointment of one of the Independent Directors of the Company on P
the Board of its Material Subsidiary

16. | To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or P

enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable

Frequency - A Annually P Periodically
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Composition, Meetings and Attendance of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee

During the FY 2021-22, four meetings of the NRC were held i.e. on 5 May, 2021, 3© August, 2021, 27t
October, 2021 and 12t February, 2022.

The details of the NRC meetings attended by its members during FY 2021-22 are given below:

Sr.  Name and Designation Category Number of meetings held % of

No during FY 2021-22 attendance

Held during Attended
the tenture

1. Mr. Hemant Nerurkar, Non-Executive & 4 4 100%
Chairman Independent Director

2. Mr. Gautam S. Adani’, Executive Promoter 3 3 100%
Member

3. Mr. V. Subramanian, Non-Executive & 4 4 100%
Member Independent Director

4. | Mrs. Vijaylaxmi Joshi, Non-Executive & 4 4 100%
Member Independent Director

1. Ceased as Member of the Committee w.e.f. 27¢" October, 2021
The minutes of NRC Meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings.

Mr. Jatin Jalundhwala, Company Secretary & Joint President (Legal) and Compliance Officer act as the
Secretary of the Committee,
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C. Stakeholders’' Relationship Committee
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC) comprise of four members, with a majority of Independent

é Directors. A detailed charter of the SRC is also available on the website of the Company at https:.//www.
% adanienterprises.com/investors/board-and-committee-charters
% Terms of Reference:
é The powers, role and terms of reference of SRC covers the areas as contemplated under the SEBI Listing
o Regulations and Section 178 of the Act. The brief terms of reference of SRC are as under:
= SN | Terms of Reference Frequency
§ 1. To look into various aspects of interest of shareholders, debenture holders and other Q
g security holders including complaints related to transfer/ transmission of shares, non-
w receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate
% certificates, general meetings etc.
% 2. | Toreview the measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders A
° 3. To review adherence to the service standards adopted in respect of various services A
being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
4, | Toreview various measures and initiatives taken for reducing the quantum of unclaimed Q

dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/ annual reports/ statutory
notices by the shareholders of the Company

5. To review engagement programs with investors, proxy advisors, etc. and to oversee Q
investors movement (share register)

6. | To review engagement with rating agencies (Financial, ESG etc.) H

7. To oversee statutory compliance relating to all the securities issued, including but not A

limited to dividend payments, transfer of unclaimed dividend amounts / unclaimed
shares to the IEPF

8. | To suggest and drive implementation of various investor-friendly initiatives H

9. |Toapprove and register transfer and/ or transmission of securities, issuance of duplicate P
security certificates, issuance of certificate on rematerialization and to carry out other
related activities

10. | To carry out any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time or enforced P
by any statutory notification/amendment or modification as may be applicable

Frequency — A Annually Q Quarterly H Half yearly P Periodically
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Composition, Meetings and Attendance of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
During the FY 2021-22, four meetings of SRC were held i.e on 5™ May, 2021, 3¢ August, 2021,
27" October, 2021 and 14™ February, 2022.

The details of the SRC Meetings attended by its members during FY 2021-22 are given below:

Sr.  Name and Designation Category Number of meetings held % of
No during FY 2021-22 attendance

Held during Attended
the tenture

1. Mr. V. Subramanian Non-Executive & 4 4 100%
Chairman Independent Director

2. Mr. Rajesh S. Adani, Executive Promoter 4 4 100%
Member

3. Mr. Pranav V. Adani, Executive Promoter 4 4 100%
Member

4, Mr. Hemant Nerurkar’, Non-Executive & 1 1 100%
Member Independent Director

1. Appointed as Member of the Committee w.e.f. 27®" October, 2021

The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company as per requirements of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

The minutes of the SRC Meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings.

M3IING3N0 31vVd0dd00

Mr. Jatin Jalundhwala, Company Secretary & Joint President (Legal) and Compliance Officer act as the
Secretary of the SRC.

Redressal of Investor Grievances

The Company and its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent address all complaints, suggestions and
grievances expeditiously and replies are sent usually within 7-10 days except in case of dispute over facts
or other legal impediments and procedural issues. The Company endeavors to implement suggestions as
and when received from the investors.
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Details of complaints received and redressed during the year:

Opening Balance During the year Pending Complaints
Received Resolved
Nil 8 8 Nil

SINIWILVLS TVIONVNIH

All complaints have been resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

As on 31t March 2022, the CSR Committee comprise of four members, with a8 majority of Independent
Directors. A detailed charter of the CSR Committee is also available on the website of the Company at
https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/board-and-committee-charters

Terms of reference:

The powers, role and terms of reference of CSR Committee covers the areas as contemplated under
Section 135 of the Act. The brief terms of reference of CSR Committee are as under:

SN | Terms of Reference Frequency
1. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR”) A
Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company as specified
in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and review
thereof
2. | To formulate and recommend to the Board, an annual action plan in pursuance to CSR A
Policy
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SN | Terms of Reference Frequency

3. | To recommend to the Board the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR A
activities

4, | To monitor the implementation of framework of CSR Policy A

5. | To review the performance of the Company in the areas of CSR H

6. | To institute a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of CSR projects/ H
activities undertaken by the company

7. To recommend extension of duration of existing project and classify it as on-going A
project or other than on-going project.

8. | To submit annual report of CSR activities to the Board A

9. |Toconsiderand recommend appointment of agency/consultant for carrying out impact A
assessment for CSR projects, as applicable, to the Board

10. | To review and monitor all CSR projects and impact assessment report A

11. | To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/or p
enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or modification as may be applicable
or as may be necessary or appropriate for performance of its duties

Frequency - A Annually Q Quarterly H Half yearly P Periodically

% Composition, Meetings and Attendance of CSR Committee
§ During the FY 2021-22, two meetings of CSR Committee were held i.e on 5% May, 2021 and
% 14™ February, 2022,
§ The details of the CSR Committee meetings attended by its members during FY 2021-22 are given below:
<
= Sr.  Name and Designation Category Number of meetings held % of
No during FY 2021-22 attendance
é Held during Attended
g the tenture
g 1. Mr. Rajesh S. Adani’, Executive Promoter 1 1 100%
5 Chairman
ZE) 2. Mr. V. Subramanian?, Non-Executive & 1 1 100%
Chairman Independent Director
= 3. | Mr. Hemant Nerurkar, Non-Executive & 2 2 100%
% Member Independent Director
é 4. | Mr. Pranav V. Adani, Executive Promoter 2 2 100%
g Member
§ 5. Mrs. Vijaylaxmi Joshi?, Non-Executive & 1 1 100%
8 Member Independent Director

-

Ceased as Member of the Committee w.e.f 27®" October, 2021.
2. Appointed as Chairman of the Committee w.e.f 27" October, 2021.
3. Appointed as Member of the Committee w.e.f 27" October, 2021.

The minutes of the CSR Committee Meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings.

Mr. Jatin Jalundhwala, Company Secretary & Joint President (Legal) and Compliance Officer act as the
Secretary of the Committee.

Sustainability Governance

The Companyhasintegrated sustainabilityintoits core business strategy. To ensure smooth implementation
of various measures across the organization, we have established a Sustainability Governance mechanism
wherein at the pinnacle is the Board of Directors followed by Corporate Sustainability Leadership
Committee which looks after the Sustainability Business Unit Committee who is responsible for
Sustainability Reporting at each site. The Sustainability Report of the Company is available on the website
of the Company at https://www.adanienterprises.com/sustainability/environment.
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E. Risk Mlanagement Committee

As on 31t March, 2022, the Risk Management Committee (RMC) comprise of five members. A detailed
charter of the RMC is available on the website of the Company at https:/www.adanienterprises.com/
investors/board-and-committee-charters.

The Board at its meeting held on 27" October, 2021 constituted the following committees as
Sub-committees of RMC, as a part of good corporate governance practice —

*«  Mergers & Acquisitions Committee
* Legal, Regulatory & Tax Committee
* Reputation Risk Committee

e Commodity Price Risk Committee

Constitution, meetings and terms of reference and other details of above Sub-committees, are separately
included as a part of this report.
Terms of reference:

The powers, role and terms of reference of RMC covers the areas as contemplated under Regulation 21 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations. The brief terms of reference of RMC are as under:

SN | Terms of Reference Frequency

1. Toreview the Company’s risk governance structure, risk assessment and risk management A
policies, practices and guidelines and procedures, including the risk management plan.

2. | To review and approve the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM’) framework A

3. | To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include: A

a. A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by
the listed entity, in particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability
(particularly, ESG related risks), information technology, cyber security risks or any
other risk as may be determined by the Committee

b. Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of
identified risks

c. Business continuity plan, Oversee of risks, such as strategic, financial, credit, market,
liquidity, technology, security, property, IT, legal, regulatory, reputational, and other
risks

d. Oversee regulatory and policy risks related to climate change, including review of
state and Central policies

4, | To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to identify, Q
monitor, evaluate and mitigate risks associated with the business of the Company

5. | To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including Q
evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems

6. | Toreview compliance with enterprise risk management policy, monitor breaches/ trigger H
trips of risk tolerance limits and direct action

7. To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in a year, including by A
considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity

8. | To consider appointment and removal of the Chief Risk Officer, if any, and review his P
terms of remuneration

9. |To review and approve Company's risk appetite and tolerance with respect to line of H
business

10. | To review and monitor the effectiveness and application of credit risk management A

paolicies, related standards and procedures to control the environment with respect to
business decisions

11. | Toreview and recommend to the Boardvarious business proposals for theircorresponding p
risks and opportunities
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SN | Terms of Reference Frequency
12. | To obtain reasonable assurance from management that all known and emerging risks Q

has been identified and mitigated and managed
13. | To form and delegate authority to sub-committees, when appropriate, such as: P

- Mergers & Acquisition Committee;
- Legal, Regulatory & Tax Committee;
- Commodity Price Risk Committee;

- Reputation Risk Committee; and

- Other Committee(s) as the committee may think appropriate
14. | To oversee suppliers’ diversity A

15. | To carry out any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time or enforced -
by any statutory notification/ amendment or modification as may be applicable

Frequency — A Annually Q Quarterly H Half yearly P Periodically

Composition, Meetings and Attendance of RMC
During the FY 2021-22, three meetings of RMC were held i.e on 3 August, 2021, 27 October, 2021 and

£ 12t February, 2022,

ﬁ The details of the RMC meetings attended by its members during FY 2021-22 are given below:

<

<

2 Sr. | Name and Designation Category Number of meetings held % of

jzt’ No during FY 2021-22 attendance
=

Held during Attended
the tenture

2 1. | Mr. Rajesh S. Adani’, Executive Promoter 2 2 100%
§ 2. Mr. Hemant Nerurkar?, Non-Executive & 3 3 100%
5 Chairman Independent, Director
= 3. | Mr. Vinay Prakash, Executive Director 3 3 100%
= Member

4, Mr. Pranav V. Adani’, Executive Promoter 2 2 100%
z Member
% 5. Mr. Narendra Mairpady?, Non-Executive & 1 1 100%
zZ Member Independent Director
% 6. Mr. Jugeshinder Singh, Chief Financial Officer 3 3 100%
o Member (Key Managerial
S Personnel)

1 Ceased as Members of the Committee w.e.f 27" October, 2021.
2 Appointed as Chairman of the Committee w.e.f 27® October, 2021.
4 Appointed as Member of the Committee w.e.f 27" October, 2021.

The Company has a risk management framework to identify, monitor and minimize risks.
The minutes of the RMC Meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings.

Mr. Jatin Jalundhwala, Company Secretary & Joint President (Legal) and Compliance Officer act as the
Secretary of the RMC.

F. Securities Transfer Committee

In order to provide efficient and timely services to investors, the Board has delegated the power of
approving transfer/transmission of Company’s securities, issue of duplicate share / debenture certificates,
split up / sub-division, and consolidation of shares, issue of new certificates on re-materialization, sub-
division and other related formalities to the Securities Transfer Committee.
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No requests for transfers of any securities are pending as on 31 March, 2022 except those that are
disputed and / or sub-judiced.

Non-Statutory Committees

Corporate Responsibility Committee (CRC)

The Board, at its meeting held on 27™ October, 2021, constituted the CRC. As on 31t March, 2022, all
the members of the CRC are Independent Directors. A detailed charter of the Corporate Responsibility
Committee is available on the website of the Company at https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/
board-and-committee-charters.

Terms of reference:

SN | Terms of Reference Frequency
1. To define the Company's corporate and social obligations as a responsible citizen and A
oversee its conduct in the context of those obligations
2. | Toapprove astrategy for discharging the Company’s corporate and social responsibilities Q
in such a way as to provide an assurance to the Board and stakeholders
3. To oversee the creation of appropriate policies and supporting measures (including A

Public disclosure policy, Anti-money Laundering policy, Anti Bribery, Fraud & Corruption
policies etc.) and map them to UNSDG and GRI disclosure standards

4, | To identify and monitor those external developments which are likely to have 3 Q
significant influence on Company's reputation and/or its ability to conduct its business
appropriately as a good citizen and review how best to protect that reputation or that

ability

5. | To review the Company's stakeholder engagement plan (including vendors / supply A
chain)

6. | Toensurethat appropriate communications policies are in place and working effectively A
to build and protect the Company's reputation both internally and externally

7. To review the Integrated Annual Report of the Company A

8. | To review and direct for alignment of actions / initiatives of the Company with United P
Nations Sustainable Development Goals 2030 (UNSDG):

1. No poverty

2. Zero hunger

3. Good health & well being

4. Quality education

5. Gender equality

6. Clean water and sanitation

7. Affordance and clean energy

8. Decent work and economic growth

9. Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure
10. Reduced inequalities
11. Sustainable cities and communities
12. Responsible consumption and production
13. Climate action
14. Life below water
15. Life onland
16. Peace and justice strong intuitions
17. Partnerships for goals

9. | Toreview sustainability and /or ESG and/ or Climate reports or other disclosures such as A
ethical governance, environmental stewardship, safety performance, water and energy
use etc. and similar communications to stakeholders on ESG initiatives and activities by
the Company and ensure mapping of the same to GRI disclosure standards

10. | Tooversee strategies, activities and policies regarding sustainable organisationincluding A
environment, social, governance, health and safety, human talent management and
related material issue and indicators in the global context and evolving statutory
framework
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SN | Terms of Reference Frequency
1. | To oversee ethical leadership, compliance with the Company's sustainability policy, H
sustainability actions and proposals and their tie-in with the Strategic Plan, interaction
with different stakeholders and compliance with the ethics code

12. | To oversee Company'’s initiatives to support innovation, technology, and sustainability A

13. | To oversee sustainability risks related to supply chain, climate disruption and public H
policy

14. | To monitor Company's ESG ratings / scores from ESG rating agencies and improvement H
plan

15. | To approve appointment of Chief Sustainability Officer after assessing the qualification, P
experience and background etc. of the candidate

16. | To oversee the Company's: Q

3. Vendor development and engagement programs;

b. program for ESG guidance (including Climate) to stakeholders and to seek feedback
on the same and make further improvement programs
17. | To provide assurance to Board in relation to various responsibilities being discharged by H
the Committee

g Frequency — A Annually Q Quarterly H Half yearly P Periodically
E Composition, Meetings and Attendance of CRC
f During the FY 2021-22, one meeting of CRC was held on 12% February, 2022.
<
:z(’ The details of CRC meeting attended by its members during FY 2021-22 are given below:
Z
¢ Sr. | Name and Designation Category Number of meetings held % of
" No during FY 2021-22 attendance
(2
§ Held Attended
% 1. Mr. Hemant Nerurkar, Non-Executive & 1 1 100%
= Chairman Independent Director
o
?K 2. Mr. V. Subramanian, Non-Executive & 1 1 100%
o Member Independent Director
3, Mrs. Vijaylaxmi Joshi, Non-Executive & 1 1 100%
Member Independent Director

The minutes of CRC Meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings.

Mr. Jatin Jalundhwala, Company Secretary & Joint President (Legal) and Compliance Officer act as the
Secretary of the Committee.
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H. Public Consumer Committee (PCC)

The Board, at its meeting held on 27" October, 2021, constituted the PCC.
As on 31 March, 2022, all the members of the PCC are of Independent Directors.
A detailed charter of the PCC is available on the website of the Company at https://www.adanienterprises.
com/investors/board-and-committee-charters

Terms of reference:

SN | Terms of Reference Frequency
1. To devise a policy on consumer services A
2. | Tooversee consumer relationships management (approach, attitude and fair treatment) H
including the Company'’s paolicies, practices and services offered
3. To review the actions taken for building and strengthening consumer service orientation H
and providing suggestion for simplifying processes forimprovement in consumer service
levels
4, | To discuss service updates, ongoing projects specifically targeted towards improvement H
of consumer service and appropriate actions arising from discussions
5. To examine the possible methods of leveraging technology for better consumer services H

with proper safeguards and recommend measures to enhance consumer ease
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SN | Terms of Reference Frequency

6. |To seek / provide feedback on quality of services rendered by the Company to its H
consumers

7. To examine the grievance redressal mechanism, its structure, framework, efficacy and H

recommend changes /improvements required in the system, procedures and processes
to make it more effective and responsive

8. | To review the status of grievances received, redressed and pending for redressal H

9. |To review the working of Alternate Dispute Redressal (ADR) Mechanism, if established H
by the Company

10. | To approve appointment of Chief Consumer Officer after assessing the qualifications, P
experience and background, etc. of the candidate and to oversee his performance

11. | To oversee policies and processes relating to advertising and compliance with consumer P
protection laws

12. | To review consumer engagement plan, consumer survey / consumer satisfaction trends H

and to suggest directives for improvements

Frequency - A Annually H Half yearly P Periodically

The details of composition of PCC are given below:

Sr.  Name and Designation Category

No

1. Mr. V. Subramanian, Chairman Non-Executive & Independent Director
2. Mr. Hemant Nerurkar, Member Non-Executive & Independent Director
3. Mr. Narendra Mairpady, Member Non-Executive &lndependent Director

The minutes of PCC Meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings.

Mr. Jatin Jalundhwala, Company Secretary & Joint President (Legal) and Compliance Officer act as the
Secretary of the Committee.

Information Technology & Data Security Committee (IT&DS Committee)

The Board, at its meeting held on 27" October, 2021, constituted the IT&DS Committee. As on
31t March, 2022, ITeDS Committee comprise of four members with majority of Independent Directors.
A detailed charter of the IT&€DS Committee is available on the website of the Company at https:.//www.
adanienterprises.com/investors/board-and-committee-charters

Terms of reference:

SN Terms of Reference Frequency
1. To review and oversee the function of the Information Technology (IT) within the H
Company in establishing and implementing various latest IT tools and technologies by
which various key functions and processes across various divisions within the group can
be automated to the extent possible and thereby to add the value
2. | To review and oversee the necessary actions being taken by IT and Cyber team with A
respect to protection of various important data across the Company and what the policy
for data protection and its sustainability

3. To oversee the current cyber risk exposure of the Company and future cyber risk strategy H

4, | To review at least annually the Company’s cyber security breach response and crisis A
management plan

5. | Toreview reports on any cyber security incidents and the adequacy of proposed action H

6. | To assess the adequacy of resources and suggest additional measures to be undertaken A
by the Company

7. To regularly review the cyber risk posed by third parties including outsourced IT and A
other partners

8. | To annually assess the adequacy of the Group's cyber insurance cover A

Frequency — A Annually H Half yearly
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Composition, Meetings and Attendance of IT&€DS Committee
During the FY 2021-22, one meeting of IT&DS Committee was held on 12" February, 2022.

The details of ITEDS Committee meeting attended by its members during FY 2021-22 are given below:

Sr.  Name and Designation Category Number of meetings held % of
No during FY 2021-22 attendance
Held Attended

1. Mr. Hemant Nerurkar, Non-Executive & 1 1 100%
Chairman Independent Director

2. Mr. Pranav Adani, Executive Promoter 1 1 100%
Member

3. Mr. Vinay Prakash, Executive Director 1 1 100%
Member

4. | Mrs. Vijaylaxmi Joshi, Non-Executive & 1 1 100%
Member Independent Director

The minutes of ITEDS Committee Meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings.

Mr. Jatin Jalundhwala, Company Secretary & Joint President (Legal) and Compliance Officer act as a
Secretary of the Committee.

Mergers & Acquisitions Committee (M&A) Committee

The Board, at its meeting held on 27" October, 2021, constituted the M&A Committee as a Sub-committee
of Risk Management Committee. As on 31t March, 2022, the M&A Committee comprise of three members,
with a majority of Independent Directors A detailed charter of the M&A Committee is available on the
website of the Company at https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/board-and-committee-charters

Terms of reference:

SN | Terms of Reference Frequency
1. To review acquisition strategies with the management P
2. |To review proposals relating to merger, acquisition, investment or divestment P

("Transaction/s") that are presented to the Committee (including how such transaction
fits with the Company’s strategic plans and acquisition strategy, Transaction timing,
important Transaction milestones, financing, key risks (including cyber security) and
opportunities, , risk appetite, tolerance and the integration plan) and if thought fit, to
recommend relevant opportunities to the Audit Committee / Board as appropriate

3. | To oversee due diligence process with respect to proposed Transaction(s) and review P
the reports prepared by internal teams or independent external advisors, if appointed
4, | To evaluate execution / completion, integration of Transaction(s) consummated, P

including information presented by management in correlation with the Transaction
approval parameters and the Company’s strategic objectives

5. | To periodically review the performance of completed Transaction(s) A

6. | To review the highlights good practices and learnings from Transaction and utilize them P
for future Transactions

7. To review the tax treatment of Transactions and ascertain their effects upon the P

financial statements of the Company and seek external advice on the tax treatment of
these items, where appropriate

Frequency — A Annually P Periodically
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The details of composition of M & A Committee are given below:

Sr. | Name and Designation Category

No

1. Mr. Jugeshinder Singh, Chairman Chief Financial Officer (Key Managerial Personnel)
2. Mr. Hemant Nerurkar, Member Non-Executive & Independent

3, Mr. Narendra Mairpady, Mlember Non-Executive & Independent

The minutes of M & A Committee Meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings.

Mr. Jatin Jalundhwala, Company Secretary & Joint President (Legal) and Compliance Officer act as the
Secretary of the sub-committee.

Legal, Regulatory & Tax Committee (LRT Committee)

The Board, at its meeting held on 27" October, 2021, constituted the LRET Committee as a Sub-committee
of Risk Management Committee. As on 315t March, 2022, the LRET Committee comprise of three members,
with a majority of Independent Directors A detailed charter of the LRET Committee is available on the
website of the Company at https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/board-and-committee-charters

Terms of reference:

(@]

SN Terms of Reference Frequency 3
1. To exercise oversight with respect to the structure, operation and efficacy of the A ?3
Company's compliance program §

2. | To review legal, tax and regulatory matters that may have a material impact on the H §
Company's financial statements and disclosures, reputational risk or business continuity =

risk =

3. | To review compliance with applicable laws and regulations H -
4, | To approve the compliance audit plan for the year and review of such audits to be A %
performed by the internal audit department of the Company a

5. To review significant inquiries received from, and reviews by, regulators or government p E
agencies, including, without limitation, issues pertaining to compliance with various g
laws or regulations or enforcement or other actions brought or threatened to be brought g

against the Company by regulators or government authorities / bodies / agencies

6. | To review, oversee and approve the tax strategy and tax governance framework and A
consider and action tax risk management issues that are brought to the attention of
the Committee

Frequency - A Annually H Half yearly P Periodically

Composition, Meetings and Attendance of LRT Committee
During the FY 2021-22, one meeting of LRT Committee was held on 12™ February, 2022.
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The details of LRT Committee meeting attended by its members during FY 2021-22 are given below:

Sr.  Name and Designation Category Number of meetings held % of
No during FY 2021-22 attendance
Held Attended

1. Mr. Pranav Adani, Executive Promoter 1 1 100%
Chairman

2. Mr. Hemant Nerurkar, Non-Executive & 1 1 100%
Member Independent Director

3, Mr. Narendra Mairpady, Non-Executive & 1 1 100%
Member Independent Director

The minutes of LRT Committee meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings.

Mr. Jatin Jalundhwala, Company Secretary & Joint President (Legal) and Compliance Officer act as the
Secretary of the sub-committee.
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L. Reputation Risk Committee

The Board, at its meeting held on 27" October, 2021, constituted the Reputation Risk Committee as
a Sub-committee of Risk Management Committee. As on 31t March, 2022, the Reputation Risk Committee
comprise of three members, with a majority of Independent Directors. A detailed charter of the Reputation
Risk Committee is available on the website of the Company at https://www.adanienterprises.com/
investors/board-and-committee-charters

Terms of reference:

SN | Terms of Reference Frequency
1. To review reports from management regarding reputation risk, including reporting on H
the Reputation Risk Management Framework and Reputation Risk Appetite
2. | To provide ongoing oversight of the reputational risk posed by global business scenario, H
functions, geographies, material legal changes, climate change or high-risk relationships
/ programs
3. To assess and resolve specific issues, potential conflicts of interest and other reputation p
risk issues that are reported to the Committee
4, | Torecommend good practices and measures that would avoid reputational loss A
5. To review specific cases of non-compliances, violations of codes of conduct which may p

cause loss to reputation the Company

Frequency - A Annually H Half yearly P Periodically

The details of composition of Reputation Risk Committee are given below:

Sr. | Name and Designation Category

No

1. Mr. Pranav V. Adani, Chairman Executive Promoter

2. Mr. Hemant Nerurkar, Member Non-Executive & Independent Director
3. Mr. Narendra Mairpady, Member Non-Executive & Independent Director

The minutes of Reputation Risk Committee Meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings.

Mr. Jatin Jalundhwala, Company Secretary & Joint President (Legal) and Compliance Officer act as the
Secretary of the sub-committee.

M. Commodity Price Risk Committee

The Board, at its meeting held on 27" October, 2021, constituted the Commodity Price Risk Committee
3s a Sub-committee of Risk Management Committee. As on 31t March, 2022, the Commodity Price Risk
Committee comprise of three members, with a majority of Independent Directors. A detailed charter
of the Commodity Price Risk Committee is available on the website of the Company at https:/www.
adanienterprises.com/investors/board-and-committee-charters

Terms of reference:

SN | Terms of Reference Frequency

1. To monitor commodity price exposures of the Company H

2. To oversee procedures for identifying, assessing, monitoring and mitigating commodity A
price risks

3. |To devise Commodity Price Risk Management (CPRM) Policy and to monitor A
implementation of the same

4. | To review strategy for hedging in relation to volume, tenure and choice of the hedging A
instruments and to approve /ratify of any deviations in transactions vis-a-vis the CPRM
Policy

5. | To review MIS, documentation, outstanding positions including market to market of H
transactions and internal control mechanisms

6. | Toreview internal audit reports in relation to the CPRM Policy A

7. To review and amend the CPRM Policy, if market conditions dictate from time to time A

Frequency - A Annually H Half yearly
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The details of composition of Commodity Price Risk Committee are given below:

Sr. | Name and Designation Category

No

1. Mr. Vinay Prakash, Chairman Executive

2. Mr. Hemant Nerurkar, Member Non-Executive & Independent
3, Mr. Narendra Mairpady, Member Non-Executive & Independent

The minutes of Commodity Price Risk Committee meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent
meetings.

Mr. Jatin Jalundhwala, Company Secretary & Joint President (Legal) and Compliance Officer act as the
Secretary of the sub-committee.

4, SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company has two material non-listed subsidiary incorporated outside India namely Adani Global FZE., Dubai
and Adani Global Pte. Limited, Singapore. The Company has nominated Mr. Hemant Nerurkar, Independent
Director of the Company on the Board of these two material subsidiaries.

The subsidiaries of the Company function with an adequately empowered board of directors and sufficient
resources.

For more effective governance, the Company monitors performance of subsidiary companies, interalia, by
following means:

a) Financial statements, in particular investments made by unlisted subsidiary companies, are reviewed
quarterly by the Company’s Audit Committee.

M3IING3N0 31vVd0dd00

b) Minutes of unlisted subsidiary companies are placed before the Board of the Company regularly.

c) A statement, wherever applicable, of all significant transactions and arrangements entered into by the
Company’s subsidiaries is presented to the Board of the Company at its meetings.

The risk factors and project reports of the subsidiary companies are also reviewed by the Audit Committee of
the Company.
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The Company has a policy for determining ‘material subsidiaries’. The policy is uploaded on the website of the
Company at https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/corporate-governance.

5. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for its
employees and Directors to report concerns about any unethical and improper activity. No person has been
denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower policy is uploaded on the website
of the Company at https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/corporate-governance. The Audit Committee
monitors and reviews the investigations of the whistle blower complaints. During the year under review, no
complaints were received under Whistle Blower Policy.

SINIWILVLS TVIONVNIH

6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

a) Annual General Meetings

The date, time and location of the Annual General Meetings held during the preceding 3 years and special
resolutions passed thereat are as follows:

Financial | Day & Date Location of Meeting Time | No. of Special
Year Resolutions
passed

2018-19 | Wednesday, H. T. Parekh Hall, AMA Complex, ATIRA, 11:30 2

7% August, 2019 | Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, Ahmedabad - 380 015 a.m.
2019-20 | Friday, Through Video Conferencing / Other Audio 1.00 2

26" June, 2020 Visual Means p.m.
2020-21 | Monday, Through Video Conferencing / Other Audio 12.00 3

12t July, 2021 Visual Means Noon
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b)

d)

Whether special resolutions were put
through postal ballot last year, details of
voting pattern:

There were no special resolutions passed
through postal ballot process during FY 2021-
22.

Whether any resolutions are proposed to
be conducted through postal ballot:

There is no immediate proposal for passing any
resolution through postal ballot. None of the
businesses proposed to be transacted at the
ensuing AGM require passing of a resolution
through postal ballot.

Procedure for postal ballot:

Prescribed procedure for postal ballot, as
per the provisions contained in this behalf in
the Act read with rules made there under as
amended from time to time, shall be complied
with, whenever necessary.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a)

Financial Results:

The quarterly/half-yearly and annual results
of the Company are normally published in the

DIVIDEND HISTORY (EQUITY SHARES)

Financial Year Rate
2012-13 140%
2013-14 140%
2014-15 140%
2015-16 (Interim) 40%
2016-17 40%
2017-18 40%
2018-19 40%
2019-20 (Interim) 100%
2020-21 100%
2021-22 (Proposed) 100%

b)

c)

Per

Indian Express (English) and Financial Express
(a regional daily published from Gujarat).

The quarterly/half-yearly and annual results
and other official news releases are displayed
on the website of the Company - www.
adanienterprises.com shortly after its
submission to the Stock Exchanges.

Intimation to Stock Exchanges:

The Company regularly intimates to the
Stock Exchanges all price sensitive and other
information which are material and relevant to
the investors.

Earnings Calls and Presentations to
Analysts:

At the end of each quarter, the Company
organizes meetings / conference call with
analysts and investors and the presentations
made to analysts and transcripts of earnings
call are uploaded on the website thereafter.

The Company has maintained consistent
communication with investors at various
forums organized by investment bankers.

Share }) Dividend Payout
 in Crore)*

1.40 154.96

1.40 153.97

1.40 159.15

0.40 44,07

0.40 52.95

0.40 53.04

0.40 53.04

1.00 132.59

1.00 109.98 (Excluding DDT)
1.00 114.00 (Excluding DDT)

# Including dividend distribution tax (DDT) wherever applicable
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9. OTHER DISCLOSURES

a)

b)

c)

d)

Disclosure on materially
related party transactions:

All related party transactions entered into
during the financial year were at arm's length
basis and in the ordinary course of business.
The details of related party transactions are
disclosed in financial section of this Annual
Report. The Company has developed a policy
on materiality of Related Party Transactions
and also on dealing with Related Party
Transactions (RPT Policy).

significant

The said RPT Policy is uploaded on the
website of the Company at https://www.
adanienterprises.com/investors/corporate-
governance.

In the preparation of the financial statements,
the Company has followed the accounting
policies and practices as prescribed in the
Accounting Standards.

Details of compliance

The Company has complied with all the
requirements of the Stock Exchanges as well
as the regulations and guidelines prescribed
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(SEBI). There were no penalties or strictures
imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges
or SEBI or any statutory authority on any
matter related to capital markets during the
last three years.

ADANI Code of Conduct

The ADANI Code of Conduct for the Directors
and Senior Management of the Company has
been laid down by the Board and the same is
posted on the website of the Company.

A declaration signed by the Managing Director
affirming the compliance with the ADANI Code
of Conduct by the Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel of the Company is as
under:

Declaration as required under SEBI Listing
Regulations

Directors and Senior Management of the
Company have affirmed compliance with
the ADANI Code of Conduct for the financial
year ended 31t March, 2022.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 3 May, 2022

Rajesh S. Adani
Managing Director

f)

s)]

h)

Annual Report 2021-22

Adani Code of Conduct for Prevention of
Insider Trading

Adani Code of Conduct for Prevention of
Insider Trading, as approved by the Board, inter
alia, prohibits dealing in the securities of the
Company by Directors and employees while
in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information in relation to the Company. The
said Code us available on the website of the
Company.

CEO / CFO Certificate

The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board
with regard to the financial statements and
other matters as required by the SEBI Listing
Regulations. The certificate is appended as an
Annexure to this report.

They have also provided quarterly certificates
on financial results while placing the same
before the Board pursuant to Regulation 33 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Proceeds from public issues, rights issues,
preferential issues etc.

The Companydisclosesto the Audit Committee,
the uses / application of proceeds /funds
raised from rights issue, preferential issue as
part of the quarterly review of financial results,
whenever applicable.

The designated Senior Management Personnel
of the Company have disclosed to the Board
that no material, financial and commercial
transactions have been made during the year
under review in which they have personal
interest, which may have a potential conflict
with the interest of the Company at large.

The Material Events Policy, Website Content
Archival Policy, Policy on Preservation of
Documents are uploaded on the website of
the Company at https://www.adanienterprises.
com/investors/corporate-governance.

As a part of good governance practice, the
Company has also constituted several policies
from ESG perspective and the same are
available on Company's website at https://www.
adanienterprises.com/investors/corporate-
governance 3as per following details —

* Biodiversity Policy

* Climate Change Policy

* Energy Management Policy
* ESG Policy

» Resource Conservation Policy
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)

n)

0)

p)

*  Water Stewardship Policy

« Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Policy

* Human Rights Policy

e Occupational Health & Safety Policy
* Freedom of Association Policy

* Prevention of Sexual Harassment

* Stakeholder Engagement Policy

e Cyber Security & Data Privacy Policy
* Policy on Responsible Advocacy

e Supplier Code of Conduct

¢ Anti Corruption & Anti Bribery Policy
*« PolicyonEmployee Grievance Management

Details of the familiarization programmes
imparted to the Independent Directors are
available on the website of the Company at
https://www.adanienterprises.com/investors/
corporate-governance.

The Company has put in place succession plan
for appointment to the Board and to Senior
Management.

The Company complies with all applicable
Secretarial Standards.

The Company has complied with all the
mandatory requirements specified in
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of
sub - regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations. It has obtained a
certificate affirming the compliances from
Statutory Auditors and the same is attached to
this report.

As required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, particulars of Director
seeking re-appointment at the ensuing
AGM are given herein and in the Annexure
to the Notice of the 30" AGM to be held on
26 July, 2022.

The Company has obtained certificate from
M/s Chirag Shah and Associates, Practising
Company Secretaries confirming that none of
the Directors of the Company is debarred or
disqualified by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs
or any such authority from being appointed or
continuing as Director of the Company and the
same is also attached to this report.

Total fees for all services paid by the Company
and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis,

a)

A

to the Statutory Auditors and all entities in
the network firm / network entity of which the
Statutory Auditor is a part, is given below:

M/s. Shah Dhandharia & Co. LLP

(Z In Lakh)
Payment to Statutory
Auditors
Audit Fees 777
Other Services 5.61
Total 82.78

(All amount excluding GST)

As per the requirements of The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder, the Company has
constituted Internal Complaints Committees
(ICs) at all relevant locations across India to
consider and resolve the complaints related
to sexual harassment. The ICs includes
external members with relevant experience.
The ICs, presided by senior women, conduct
the investigations and make decisions at
the respective locations. The ICs also work
extensively on creating awareness on relevance
of sexual harassment issues, including while
working remotely.

During the year under review, there were no
complaints pertaining to sexual harassment.

All new employees go through a detailed
personal orientation on anti-sexual harassment
policy adopted by the Company.

10.GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Company Registration Details:

The Company is registered in the State
of Gujarat, India. The Corporate I|dentity
Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is
L51100GJ1993PLCO19067.

Annual General Meeting:

Day and Date Time Mode
Tuesday, 10.00 Through Video
26t July, 2022 a.m. Conferencing /

Other Audio Visual
Means

Registered Office:

‘Adani Corporate House”, Shantigram, Near
Vaishno Devi Circle, S. G. Highway, Khodiyar,
Ahmedabad - 382421.
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Financial Calendar for 2022-23: (tentative
schedule, subject to change)

Period Approval of
Quarterly results

Quarter ending Mid August, 2022

30t June, 2022,
Quarter and half

year ending

30t September, 2022.
Quarter ending

31t December, 2022.
The year ending

37t March, 2023.

Mid November, 2022

Mid February, 2023

End May, 2023

Record Date:

The Company has fixed Friday, 15™ July, 2022 as
the '‘Record Date’ for determining entitlement
of Members to receive dividend for the financial
year ended 31t March, 2022, if approved at the
ensuing AGM.

Dividend Payment:

Dividend of ¥1 per share (100%) will be paid on
or after Tuesday, 26" July, 2022, if approved by
the Members in the ensuing AGM.

Dividend Distribution Policy

As per Regulation 43A of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the top 500 listed companies
shall formulate a dividend distribution policy.
Accordingly, a policy was adopted to set
out the parameters and circumstances that
will be taken into account by the Board in
determining the distribution of dividend to its
shareholders and/or retaining profits earned by

Annual Report 2021-22

the Company. The Dividend Distribution Policy
of the Company is available on the website of
the Company at https://www.adanienterprises.
com/investors/corporate-governance.

Listing on Stock Exchanges:

(3) The equity shares of the Company are
listed with the following stock exchanges

BSE Limited (BSE) (Stock Code:
P. J. Towers, Dalal Street, 512599)
Fort, Mumbai - 400 001

National Stock Exchange | (Stock Code:
of India Limited (NSE) ADANIENT)
“Exchange Plaza", Bandra-

Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),

Mumbai - 400 051.

(b) Depositories:

1. National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL)
Trade World, 4 Floor, Kamala Mills
Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel,
Mumbai - 400013.

2. | Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL)
25" Floor, A Wing, Marathon
Futurex, Mafatlal Millis Compound,
NM Joshi Marg,
Lower Parel (E), Mumbai - 400013

Annual Listing fees of BSE & NSE and
Annual Custody / Issuer fee of NSDL &
CDSL for FY 2022-23 will be paid on receipt
of the invoices from respective agencies.

Market Price Data: High, Low during each month in Financial Year 2021-22.
Monthly share price movement during the year 2021-22 at BSE & NSE:
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Month BSE NSE
High ) Low (%) Volume High ) Low (}) Volume
(No. of shares) (No. of shares)
April, 2021 1,251.70 1,034.95 1,29,00,293 1.251.60 1,035.00 20,16,70,814
May, 2021 1,350.50 1,123.40 71,18,395 1,351.55 1122.65 15,73,50,068
June, 2021 1.718.45 1,201.10 2,34,03,188 1.717.20 1,201.20 33,48,53,920
July, 2021 1,522.90 1,333.30 74,48,377 1,522.55 1.332.75 9,71,14,255
August, 2021 1,596.10 1,362.20 58,28,762 1,596.85 1,361.55 9,24,45,588
September, 2021 1,628.10 1,381.30 28,20,569 1,628.45 1,381.35 7.32,66,296
October, 2021 1,672.55 1,344.60 36,45,110 1,672.95 1,367.70 5,80,76,104
November, 2021 1,788.00 1,411.05 30,57,985 1,788.90 1,411.20 5,64,35,685
December, 2021 1,787.30 1,556.00 16,33,188 1,788.00 1,555.20 3,35,01,701
January, 2022 1,908.55 1,655.25 22,70,245 1,908.50 1,654.50 3,94,54,077
February, 2022 1,808.85 1,529.55 18,05,476 1,809.00 1,528.80 3,01,03,337
March, 2022 2,042.20 1,539.80 31,77,935 2,042.00 1,539.30 3,30,84,069

[Source: This information is compiled from the data available from the websites of BSE and NSE]
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J. Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex.
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K. Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:

M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited are
appointed as Registrar and Share Transfer
(RET) Agents of the Company for both Physical
and Demat Shares. The address is given below:

M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited

5t Floor, 506 to 508, Amarnath Business
Centre - 1 (ABC-1),

Beside Gala Business Centre, Nr. St. Xavier's
College Corner, Off C G Road, Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad - 380006

Tel: +91-79- 26465179

Fax : +91-79-26465179

Contact Person: Mr. Nilesh Dalwadi

Shareholders are requested to correspond
directly with the R & T Agent for queries
pertaining to their shares such as transfer /
transmission of shares, change of address,
queries pertaining to their shares, dividend etc.

Transfer to Investor Education and

Protection Fund (IEPF)

In terms of Section 124(6) of the Act read
with Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authority  (Accounting, Auditing, Transfer
and Refund) Rules, 2016, the Company has
transferred the shares to the demat account of
IEPF Authority in respect of which the dividend
has not been claimed for a continuous period
of seven years or more.

The Company had communicated to all the
concerned shareholders individually whose

shares were liable to be transferred to IEPF.
The Company had also given newspaper
advertisements, before such transfer in favour
of |IEPF. The Company had also uploaded
the details of such shareholders and shares
transferred to IEPF on the website of the
Company at https://www.adanienterprises.
com/investors/corporate-governance

In terms of the Section 125 of the Act, the
amount of dividend that remained unclaimed
for a period of seven years is required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF) administered by the
Central Government. To ensure maximum
disbursement of wunclaimed dividend, the
Company sends reminders to the relevant
shareholders, before transfer of dividend to
IEPF.

During the year, your Company has transferred
the unclaimed and un-encashed dividend
of FY 2013-14 amounting %7,71,496/- along
with 19,428 corresponding shares, as per the
requirements of the IEPF Rules.

Shareholders may note that both the
unclaimed dividend and corresponding shares
transferred to the IEPF Authority including all
benefits accruing on such shares, if any, can be
claimed back by them from IEPF Authority after
following the procedure (i.e. an application
in E-form No. IEPF-5) prescribed in the Rules.
Shareholders may refer Rule 7 of the said Rules
for Refund of shares / dividend etc.
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M. Share Transfer System:

The Company's shares are compulsorily traded
inthe demat segment on stock exchanges, bulk
of the transfers take place in the electronic
form. The share transfers received in physical
form are processed through R & T Agent, within
seven days from the date of receipt, subject to
the documents being valid and complete in all
respects. The Board hasdelegated the authority
for approving transfer, transmission, issue of
duplicate share certificate, dematerialization
etc. to the Securities Transfer Committee.
Allthe physicaltransfers received are processed
by the R & T Agent and are approved by the
Securities Transfer Committee well within the
statutory period of one month. The Securities
Transfer Committee meets every fortnight for
approval of the transfer, transmission, issue of
duplicate share certificate, dematerialization
/ rematerialization of shares etc. and all valid
share transfers received during the vyear
ended 31 March, 2022 have been acted upon.
The share certificates duly endorsed are
returned immediately to the shareholders by
the R & T Agent.

During the year under review, the Company
obtained following certificate(s) from a
Practicing Company Secretary and submitted
the same to the stock exchanges within
stipulated time

1. Certificate confirming due compliance of
share transfer formalities by the Company

Annual Report 2021-22

pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations for year ended
31t March, 2022 respectively with the
Stock Exchanges; and

2. Certificate regarding reconciliation of the
share capital audit of the Company on
quarterly basis.

All share transfer and other communication
regarding share certificates, change of
address, dividend etc. should be addressed to
R & T Agents of the Company at the address
given above.

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity:

The equity shares of the Company are tradable
in compulsory dematerialized segment of
the Stock Exchanges and are available in
depository system of National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).
The demat security (ISIN) code for the Equity
Share is INE 423A01024.

As on 31 March, 2022, 109,96,14,570
(constituting 99.98%) were in dematerialized
form.

The Company's equity shares are frequently
traded on the BSE Limited (BSE) and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

The Distribution of Shareholding as on 31t March, 2022 is as follows:

Number of shares

Number of shareholders

Equity Shares held in each category

Category Holders % of Total Total Shares % of Total
1to 500 2,20,381 97.52 72,63,443 0.66
501 to 1000 2560 M 20,12,112 0.18
1001 to 2000 1284 0.56 19,15,385 0.17
2001 to 3000 455 0.20 11,52,827 0.10
3001to 4000 257 on 9,36,155 0.09
4001 to 5000 152 0.07 7,04,962 0.06
5001 to 10000 387 0.17 28,43,244 0.26
Above 10000 565 0.26 1,08,29,81,955 98.47
TOTAL 2,26,071 100.00 1,09,98,10,083 100.00
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Category

Promoters and Promoter Group

Foreign Portfolio Investors / Institutional Investors
Mutual Funds, Financial Institutions / Banks
N.R.I., Foreign National and Foreign Bodies
Private Bodies Corporate

Indian Public and others

Clearing Members (Shares in Transit)

IEPF Authority

Indian Public and others

Total

P. Shareholding Pattern as on 31t March, 2022 is as follows:

No. of Shares (%) of total

held
82,39,63,481 74,92
22,34,23,263 20.31
2,19,71,859 2.00
11,85,902 oMNn
17,93,203 0.16
2,57,67,005 2.34
3,41,405 0.03
1,96,146 0.02
11,67,819 0N

1,09,98,10,083 100.00

Listing of Debt Securities:

The Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures issued on private placement basis
by the Company are listed on the Wholesale
Debt Market (WDM) of BSE Limited.

Debenture Trustees (for privately placed
debentures):

1. IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited
Asian Building, Ground Floor,
17, R. Kamani Marg,
Ballard Estate, Mumbai - 400001
Phone No. +91-22-4080 7000
Fax: +91-22-66311776
E-mail ID: itsl@idbitrustee.com
Website: www.idbitrustee.com

2. Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
GDA House, First Floor, Plot No. 85,
S. No. 94 & 95, Bhusari Colony (Right),
Kothrud, Pune - 411038
Phone No. +91-20-2528 0081
Fax: +91-20-2528 0275
E-mail ID: dt@ctltrustee.com
Website: www.catalysttrustee.com

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any
convertible instruments conversion date
and likely impact on equity.

There were no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/

Warrants or any convertible instruments as at
37t March, 2022,

Commodity Price Risk/Foreign Exchange
Risk and Hedging:

In the ordinary course of business, the
Company is exposed to risks resulting from
exchange rate fluctuation and interest rate
movements. It manages its exposure to these
risks through derivative financial instruments.
The Company's risk management activities
are subject to the management, direction
and control of Treasury Team of the Company
under the framework of Risk Management
Policy for Currency and Interest rate risk
as approved by the Board. The Company's
Treasury Team ensures appropriate financial
risk governance framework for the Company
through appropriate policies and procedures
and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with
the Company’'s policies and risk objectives.
It is the Company’'s policy that no trading in
derivatives for speculative purposes may be
undertaken. The decision of whether and when
to execute derivative financial instruments
will be governed by the risk management
palicy framework while also considering the
prevailing market conditions and the relative
costs of the instruments.

Major Plant Locations:
Not Applicable
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V. Address for correspondence:
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The shareholders may address their communications / suggestions / grievances / queries to:

1. Mr. Jatin Jalundhwala 2. | M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 5% Floor, 506 to 508, Amarnath Business
Adani Enterprises Limited Centre - 1 (ABC-1), Beside Gala Business
“Adani Corporate House", Shantigram, Near Centre, Nr. St. Xavier's College Corner, Off CG
Vaishno Devi Circle, S. G. Highway, Khodiyar, Road, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006
Ahmedabad - 382421 Tel: +91-79- 26465179
Email id: jatin.jalundhwala@adani.in Fax: +91-79-26465179

Contact Person: Mr. Nilesh Dalwadi
Email id: ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in
W. Credit Rating:
Rating Agency Facility Rating/Outlook
Care Ratings Limited Bank Facilities for Parsa East and Long Term Rating - CARE

Kente Basan Block of MDO Division A+/Stable

Short Term Rating - CARE
Al+

All other Bank Facilities Long Term Rating -

CARE A+/Stable
Short Term Rating —

CARE AT+\
Brickwork Ratings India Private Commercial Paper Issuance BWR A1+
Limited
Acuite Ratings & Research Commercial Paper Issuance ACUITE A1+
Limited

Non-mandatory Requirements:

The non-mandatory requirements have been adopted 3.
to the extent and in the manner as stated under the
appropriate headings detailed below:

1. The Board:

Your Company has an Executive Chairman and 4.
hence, the need for implementing this non-
mandatory requirement does not arise.

2. Shareholder Rights:

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial 5.
results of your Company are published in
newspapers and posted on Company's website
www.adanienterprises.com. The same are also
available on the sites of stock exchanges (BSE &

NSE) where the shares of the Company are listed

i.e. www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com.

KKKk kkokokok

Modified opinion(s) audit report:

The Company already has a regime of un-qualified
financial statements. Auditors have raised no
qualification on the financial statements.

Separate posts of Chairperson and CEO:

Mr. Gautam S. Adani is the Chairman and
Mr. Rajesh S. Adani is the Managing Director and
CEO of the Company.

Reporting of Internal Auditor:

The Internal Auditor of the Company is a permanent
invitee to the Audit Committee Meeting and
regularly attends the Meetings for reporting
their findings of the internal audit to the Audit
Committee Members.
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Certification by
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year ended 31t March, 2022 and
that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1.

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading.

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

3. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended
371t March, 2022 which are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

4, We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control system and that we have evaluated
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company and we have disclosed to the auditors and
the Audit Committee, efficiencies in the design or operation of internal control system, if any, of which we are
aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

5. We further certify that we have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:

a) there have been no significant changes in internal control system during the year;

b) there have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

c) there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware, involving management
or an employee having a significant role in the Company'’s internal control system.

Place: Ahmedabad Rajesh S. Adani Jugeshinder Singh

Date: 3 May, 2022 Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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Independent Auditor’'s Certificate on compliance with the Corporate
Governance requirements under SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To,

The Members

Adani Enterprises Limited

Adani Corporate House,

Shantigram, Near Vaishno Devi Circle,
S. G. Highway, Khodiyar,

Ahmedabad - 382421, India

The Corporate Governance Report prepared by Adani Enterprises Limited (“the Company”), contains details as
stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended (collectively referred to as ‘SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015") (applicable criteria’) with respect to Corporate
Governance for the year ended 31t March, 2022. This report is required by the Company for annual submission to
the Stock exchange and to be sent to the Shareholders of the Company.

Management Responsibility

The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company
including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility
also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Corporate Governance Report.

The Management along with the Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion whether the Company has complied
with the condition of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations.

We conducted our examination of the Corporate Governance Report in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) and the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate
Governance, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). The Guidance Note on Reports
or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the
Code of Ethics issued by ICAL

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality
Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and
Related Services Engagements.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks associated in
compliance of the Corporate Governance Report with the applicable criteria. The procedures include but are not
limited to verification of secretarial records and financial information of the Company and obtained necessary
representations and declarations from directors including independent directors of the Company.

The procedures also include examining evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate Governance Report
on a test basis. Further, our scope of work under this report did not involve us performing audit tests for the
purposes of expressing an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any of the financial information or the financial
statements of the Company taken as a whole.
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CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Adani Enterprises Limited

Opinion
Based on the procedures performed by us as referred above and according to the information and explanations

given to us, we are of the opinion that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations, as applicable for the year ended 315 March, 2022.

Other Matters and Restriction on use

This reportis neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

This report is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to
comply with its obligations under the SEBI Listing Regulations and should not be used by any other person or
for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other
purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in
writing. We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of
this report.

For SHAH DHANDHARIA & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118707W/ W100724

Shubham Rohatgi

Partner
Place: Ahmedabad Membership No. 183083
Date: 3 May, 2022 UDIN - 22183083A1JBUH2316
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Certificate of Non-Disqualification
of Directors

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Adani Enterprises Limited

Adani Corporate House, Shantigram
Near Vaishno Devi Circle, S. G. Highway,
Khodiyar Ahmedabad - 382481

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
Adani Enterprises Limited having CIN L51100GJ1993PLC0O19067 and having registered office at Registered Office
- Adani Corporate House, Shantigram, Near Vaishno Devi Circle, S. G. Highway, Khodiyar Ahmedabad-382481.
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this
Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Inouropinionand to the best of ourinformation and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by
the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated
below for the Financial Year ending on March 31,2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs
or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in
No. Company

1. Mr. Gautam S. Adani 00006273 02/03/1993

2. Mr. Rajesh S. Adani 00006322 02/03/1993

3, Mr. Pranav V. Adani 00008457 31/03/2015

4, Mr. Vinay Prakash 03634648 12/08/2017

5. Mr. Hemant Nerurkar 00265887 11/08/2015

6. Mr. V. Subramanian 00357727 22/08/2016

7. Mrs. Vijaylaxmi Joshi 00032055 02/12/2016

8. Mr. Narendra Mairpady 00536905 09/12/2017

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification.
This certificate is neitheran assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For, Chirag Shah and Associates